
BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING AGENDA 

July 17-19, 2024 

Montana State Capitol Building 
Room 152 

Helena, MT 



AGENDA 
 

  



Board of Public Education July 17-19, 2024  Page 1 
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
July 17-19, 2024 

Montana State Capitol Building, Room 152 
Helena, MT 

 
 
Wednesday July 17, 2024 
10:00AM 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

    
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
This time will be provided for public comment on items not listed on the agenda. This meeting is open to the 
public both in person and electronically. For those wishing to give virtual public comment, please contact 
bpe@mt.gov to request the Zoom link for the meeting. Members of the public who have joined virtually on Zoom 
may “raise their hand” at the appropriate time to participate after being recognized by the Board Chair. Members 
of the public who wish to share written public comment with the Board members must submit written public 
comment to the Executive Director at bpe@mt.gov no later than two (2) business days before the start of the 
meeting. Any written public comment received after this deadline will be shared with the Board members 
after the meeting. All written public comment will be included as part of the official public record. 
 
Action may be taken on any item listed on the Board agenda. Per §2-3-103, MCA, the Board encourages public 
comment on any item prior to Board final action. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – page #10 

(Items may be pulled from Consent Agenda upon request) 
 

A. May 9-10, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
B. Financials 

    
ADOPT AGENDA 
 
STRATEGIC PLANNING SESSION – Dr. Tim Tharp – 2 Hours, page #26 
 

• REVIEW STRATEGIC PLAN 
• REVIEW BYLAWS 
• REVIEW COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 
• REVIEW MEETING CALENDAR AND AGENDA CALENDAR 2025 
• ADVISORY COUNCIL REFLECTION AND REVIEW 
• LEGISLATIVE IMPLEMENTATION REFLECTION AND REVIEW 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON STRATEGIC PLANNING ITEMS 
 
 

************************************************LUNCH BREAK************************************************ 
**Lunch will be provided for Board members** 

 

mailto:bpe@mt.gov
mailto:bpe@mt.gov


Board of Public Education July 17-19, 2024  Page 2 
 

 REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 1-5) 
   
Item 1   CHAIRPERSON REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #35 
   Dr. Tim Tharp 
      
Item 2   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #36 
   McCall Flynn 
 
Item 3   STATE SUPERINTENDENT REPORT – 1 Hour, page #37 
   State Superintendent Elsie Arntzen 

• Assessment Update 
• MAST Update 
• Federal Update 
• Data Modernization Update 
• Content Standards Revision Update 
• OPI Staffing Report 

 
Item 4   GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #70 
   Dylan Klapmeier    
    
Item 5   STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #71 
   Gavin Mow 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Susie Hedalen (Items 6-9) 
 
Item 6 ACTION TO ACCEPT AND PLACE ON FILE THE CLASS 7 LICENSURE CRITERIA 

FOR CHIPPEWA CREE TRIBE OF THE ROCKY BOY RESERVATION – 15 Minutes, 
page #72 

 Matthew Bell 
 
Item 7 LITIGATION UPDATE – 15 Minutes, page #78 
 Aislinn Brown 
 
Item 8   NOTICE OF THE SURRENDER OF BPE CASE #2024-07 – 5 Minutes, page #79 
   Brenton Craggs 
 
********************************************TIME CERTAIN AT 3:15PM******************************************** 
 
Item 9 ACTION ON APPEAL HEARING OF BPE CASE #2024-04, OLIVER – 1.5 Hours, page 

#80 
  Aislinn Brown 
 
RECESS 
 
Thursday July 18, 2024 
8:30 AM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 
 
 
 



Board of Public Education July 17-19, 2024  Page 3 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 10-12) 
 
Item 10 ACTION ON MEMBERSHIP TO THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE BOARDS 

OF EDUCATION (NASBE) – 15 Minutes, page #82 
   McCall Flynn 
 
Item 11 INFORMATION ON MONTANA SCHOOL INSURANCE ALLIANCE – 15 Minutes, page 

#89 
 John Doran  
 
Item 12 INFORMATION ON OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION REGIONAL CAREER 

COACHES – 30 Minutes, page #100 
 Mary Heller  
 

 REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Item 13) 
 
Item 13 COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #122 
   Dr. Angela McLean 
 

 MACIE LIAISON – Susie Hedalen (Items 14-15) 
  
Item 14 MACIE REPORT – 15 Minutes, page #133 
 Jordann Lankford Forster 
  
 ACTION ITEM 

• Action on Fort Peck Tribal Representative 
 
Item 15 AMERICAN INDIAN STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT PANEL AND DISCUSSION – 1 Hour, 

page #135 
   Jordann Lankford Forster, Ivan Small, Carrie Kouba, Crystal Hickman 
 

 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Madalyn Quinlan (Items 16-22) 
 
Item 16 REVIEW OF SUPERINTENDENT’S PROPOSED REVISIONS TO ARM TITLE 10, 

CHAPTER 53, MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS – 1 Hour, page #155 
   Dr. Julie Murgel, Marie Judisch 

 
************************************************LUNCH BREAK************************************************ 

**Lunch will be provided for Board members** 
 
Item 17 REFLECTION AND REVIEW OF TITLE 10, CHAPTER 55, ACCREDITATION 

STANDARDS – 1 Hour, page #369 
 Crystal Andrews; Dr. Julie Murgel; Daniel Sybrant, Cognia; Superintendent Tanya 

Funk, Saco School District; County Superintendent Pam Birkeland, Madison 
County Schools; Superintendent Wade Sundby, Cut Bank School District 

 
Item 18 ACTION ON THE ACCREDITATION STATUS OF ALL SCHOOLS – 30 Minutes, page 

#403 
   Crystal Andrews 
 
Item 19 PANEL DISCUSSION AND FEEDBACK ON 2023-2024 ACCREDITATION PROCESS – 

1 Hour, page #405 
 Superintendent Elliott Crump, Shelby School District; Superintendent Dave Means, 

Whitefish School District; Superintendent Dan Rispens, East Helena Public 
Schools; Superintendent Nichole Pieper, Power School District 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON 2023-2024 ACCREDITATION PROCESS 



Board of Public Education July 17-19, 2024  Page 4 
 

Item 20 INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ON OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION THINK 
TANK’S RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE 2024-2025 ACCREDITATION PROCESS – 30 
Minutes, page #406 

   Dr. Julie Murgel, Crystal Andrews 
 
Item 21 ACTION ON PROVISIONAL ACCREDITATION STATUS FOR NEW PUBLIC 

CHARTER SCHOOLS – 30 Minutes, page #410 
   Crystal Andrews 
 
Item 22 ACTION ON THE PROPOSED NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND TIMELINE 

PERTAINING TO RULEMAKING IN ARM TITLE 10, CHAPTER 54, WORLD 
LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARDS, AND AUTHORIZE FILING OF THE NOTICE 
WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR PUBLICATION IN THE MONTANA 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER – 15 Minutes, page #415 

   Madalyn Quinlan 
 
RECESS 
 
Friday July 19, 2024 
8:30 AM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 
 CHARTER COMMITTEE – Madalyn Quinlan (Items 23-26) 

 
Item 23 UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CHOICE SCHOOL COMMISSION – 15 Minutes, page #435 
 Trish Schreiber 
 
Item 24 ACTION ON PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK WORK 

GROUP’S RECOMMENDATIONS ON PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL PERFORMANCE 
FRAMEWORK METRICS AND CRITERIA – 45 Minutes, page #436 
Christy Mock-Stutz; Dr. Jeril Hehn, Director of Advanced Academics, Billings 
Public Schools; Superintendent Dan Rispens, East Helena Public Schools; Barbara 
Frank, Academic and Community Services Director, Missoula County Public 
Schools; Superintendent Erik Wilkerson, Jefferson High School 
 

Item 25 ACTION TO DELAY THE OPENING OF JEFFERSON ACADEMY PUBLIC CHARTER 
SCHOOL FOR ONE-YEAR AND REVISION OF THE CHARTER CONTRACT – 15 
Minutes, page #446 

   Madalyn Quinlan; Superintendent Erik Wilkerson, Jefferson High School 
 
Item 26 ACTION ON AMENDMENTS TO PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACTS – 15 

Minutes, page #466 
   Madalyn Quinlan 
 

 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – Renee Rasmussen (Item 27) 
 
Item 27 ACTION ON THE NOTICE OF ADOPTION PERTAINING TO THE AMENDMENT OF 

ARM, TITLE 10, CHAPTER 56, ASSESSMENT STANDARDS, AND AUTHORIZE 
FILING OF THE NOTICE WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE’S OFFICE FOR 
PUBLICATION IN THE MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER – 15 Minutes, page 
#467 

   Renee Rasmussen 



Board of Public Education July 17-19, 2024  Page 5 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Susie Hedalen (Items 28-31) 
 
Item 28 INFORMATION ON ADDED ENDORSEMENTS UNDER CLASS 4 CAREER AND 

TECHNICAL EDUCATION LICENSURE – 15 Minutes, page #469 
   Crystal Andrews, Shannon Boswell 
 
Item 29 INFORMATION ON THE RECOMMENDATION FOR INITIAL APPROVAL OF THE 

UNIVERSITY OF MONTANA REQUEST TO IMPLEMENT HEALTH AND PHYSICAL 
EDUCATION ENDORSEMENT AND SECONDARY EDUCATION ENDORSEMENT – 
15 Minutes, page #472 

   Crystal Andrews 
 
Item 30 INFORMATION ON THE VIRTUAL JOINT SITE VISIT AND STATE EXIT REPORT OF 

MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY EDUCATOR PREPARATION PROVIDER IN THE 
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION – 15 Minutes, page #476 

   Crystal Andrews, Dr. Julie Murgel 
 
Item 31 INFORMATION ON THE SITE VISIT AND STATE EXIT REPORT OF MONTANA 

STATE UNIVERSITY NORTHERN EDUCATOR PREPARATION PROVIDER IN THE 
COLLEGE OF ARTS, SCIENCES, AND EDUCATION – 15 Minutes, page #516 

   Crystal Andrews, Michelle Price 
 

************************************************LUNCH BREAK************************************************ 
**Lunch will be provided for Board members** 

 
11:30AM LUNCH AND VISIT WITH HELENA SCHOOL DISTRICT SCHOOL AGED CHILD CARE 

(SACC) PROGRAM 
 Broadwater Elementary School  
 900 Hollins Avenue, Entry Number 5 
 
********************************************RECONVENE AT 1:00PM******************************************** 

 
 MSDB LIAISON – Renee Rasmussen (Item 32) 

 
Item 32   MSDB REPORT – 1 Hour, page #581 
   Paul Furthmyre 
 
   ACTION ITEMS: 

• Action on Personnel Items 
• Action on Out of State Travel Requests 
• Action on GFHS/MSDB Cooperative Dance Team MHSA Agreement 
• Action on Final Reading of MSDB Policies 8425, 8425P, 8450, 8450F1, F2, 

F3, 1000 Series, 2000 Series, 4000 Series 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS September 12-13, 2024 Livingston, MT 
Election of Board Officers 
Approve Strategic Planning Items – C  
MACIE Update 
MACIE Renewal (Even Years) 
Montana Digital Academy Update 
Annual HiSET Report 
Annual Special Education Report 
Assessment Update 
Accreditation Update 
MAST Update 
Federal Update 



Board of Public Education July 17-19, 2024  Page 6 
 

Content Standards Revision Update 
Data Modernization Update 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
This time will be provided for public comment on items not listed on the agenda. This meeting is open to the public both in 
person and electronically. For those wishing to give virtual public comment, please contact bpe@mt.gov to request the Zoom 
link for the meeting. Members of the public who have joined virtually on Zoom may “raise their hand” at the appropriate time to 
participate after being recognized by the Board Chair. Members of the public who wish to share written public comment with 
the Board members must submit written public comment to the Executive Director at bpe@mt.gov no later than two (2) 
business days before the start of the meeting. Any written public comment received after this deadline will be shared with 
the Board members after the meeting. All written public comment will be included as part of the official public record. 
 
ADJOURN 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Montana Board of Public Education is a Professional Development Unit Provider. Attending a Board of Public Education 
Meeting either in person or via Zoom may qualify you to receive professional development units. Please complete the 
necessary information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for professional development units.    
 
Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda. Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”. 
Public comment is welcome on all items listed as “Action” and as noted at the beginning and end of each meeting. 
 
The Board of Public Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an 
individual’s ability to participate in the meeting. Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the 
Board of Public Education as soon as possible prior to the meeting start date. You may write to: Kris Stockton, PO Box 
200601, Helena MT, 59620, email at: kmstockton@mt.gov or phone at 406-444-0302. 
 

mailto:bpe@mt.gov
mailto:bpe@mt.gov
mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov


CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance  
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 
  



CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Items may be pulled from Consent Agenda if 
                          requested 

 
 

A. May 9-10, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
B. Financials 

 
  



CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

  



 

May 9-10, 2024 Board of Public Education  Page 1 
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
May 9-10, 2024 

Montana School for the Deaf and Blind 
3911 Central Ave 

Great Falls, MT 59401 
 
 
Thursday, May 9, 2024 
8:30 AM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 04:08 
Chair Tharp called the meeting to order at 8:30 AM.  Montana School for the Deaf and Blind (MSDB) 
Superintendent Paul Furthmyre introduced students and staff, before MSDB students led the Board in the Pledge 
of Allegiance and performed a brief presentation.  Ms. Kris Stockton took Roll Call, the Chair read the Statement 
of Public Participation, and welcomed guests. 
 
Board members present: Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair; Ms. Susie Hedalen, Vice Chair; Ms. Renee Rasmussen; Dr. Ron 
Slinger; Ms. Lisa Schmidt; Ms. Madalyn Quinlan; Ms. Jane Hamman; Mr. Gavin Mow, Student Representative.  
Ex Officio members: Mr. Joe Thiel, Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education, (OCHE); Mr. Dylan 
Klapmeier, Governor’s Office; State Superintendent Elsie Arntzen, Office of Public Instruction (OPI).  Staff 
present: Ms. McCall Flynn, Executive Director; Ms. Kris Stockton, Administrative Specialist; Ms. Julie Balsam, 
Accounting Technician. Guests:  Superintendent Furthmyre, MSDB; Ms. Marie Judisch, OPI; Ms. Rachel Cutler, 
Great Falls Public Schools (GFPS); Ms. Jackie Mainwaring, GFPS; Superintendent Laurie Barron, Evergreen 
School District; Superintendent Les Meyer, Frenchtown School District (FSD); Principal Riley Devins, FSD; 
Superintendent Craig Crawford, Stanford Public Schools; Mr. Brenton Craggs, Attorney, OPI; Dr. Julie Murgel, 
OPI; Ms. Crystal Andrews, OPI; Ms. Jordann Lankford Forster, Chair, Montana Advisory Council for Indian 
Education (MACIE); Ms. April Grady, OPI; Ms. Carrie Kouba, OPI; Ms. Krystal Smith, OPI; Mr. Sonny Tapia, 
Helena Independent Record; Ms. Ashley Perez, OPI; Ms. Cedar Rose, OPI; Ms. Kim Popham, Montana 
Federation of Public Employees (MFPE); Mr. Tom Cubbage, Great Falls Education Association; Ms. Kristi 
Steinberg, University of Montana (UM); Assistant Superintendent Christy Mock-Stutz, OPI.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment was made. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 12:48 
 

Board member Quinlan moved to adopt the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Board member Rasmussen. 
 

  No further discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
ADOPT AGENDA 13:13 
 

Board member Schmidt moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Motion seconded by 
Board member Hamman. 
 

  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 1-5) 
    

Item 1   CHAIRPERSON REPORT 13:33 
   Dr. Tim Tharp 
Chair Tharp thanked Board members and educators across the state for their work in public education before 
reviewing meetings he has attended and work he has done on behalf of the Board since the March meeting. 
 



 

May 9-10, 2024 Board of Public Education  Page 2 
 

Item 2   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 17:27 
   McCall Flynn 
Ms. McCall Flynn discussed the ongoing work of the Board Charter Committee in creating financial reports from 
the newly approved charter schools and beginning preparations for the upcoming application cycle.  Ms. Flynn 
discussed the Early Literacy Home-Based Program Request for Proposal (RFP) and the action item the Board will 
consider at the meeting to approve the selection.  Ms. Flynn provided a brief update on rulemaking and an 
overview of items on the agenda then concluded her report with an update on the Seal of Biliteracy applications 
for the current school year. 
 
Item 3   STATE SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 26:15 
   State Superintendent Elsie Arntzen 
Superintendent Arntzen opened her report by updating the Board on the Purple Heart School recipients for 2024, 
including MSDB, and reviewed items OPI staff will be presenting at the meeting.   
 
Assessment Update: Ms. Cedar Rose discussed school site visits conducted by the Assessment team and 
reviewed the types of assessments the team observed school districts using.  Ms. Rose discussed the 
Assessment Help Desk that is now available, and the types of requests they are receiving from schools before 
answering Board members’ questions.  Ms. Rose concluded her report by announcing that the ACT contract is 
being finalized for use for the 2024-2025 school year for high school juniors. 
 
MAST Update: Ms. Krystal Smith provided an update of the MAST assessment, including the recently completed 
MAST Roadshow providing support and training for districts, an update on the Federal Testing Waiver submitted 
to the Department of Education, and future events planned for districts ahead of the full implementation of MAST.  
Ms. Smith announced the upcoming MAST Summit in August, another MAST Roadshow, upcoming trainings, and 
feedback the team is receiving from schools.  Ms. Smith answered questions from Board members. 
 
Federal Update: Ms. Carrie Kouba presented the Federal Update which included updates on e-Grants and 
schools exiting targeted support services.  Dr. Julie Murgel presented additional information on schools receiving 
comprehensive or targeted support services and how the OPI is assisting those school districts to resolve the 
problems they are experiencing.  
 
Accreditation Update: Ms. Crystal Andrews discussed the completion of the Accreditation cycle and work the 
Accreditation team is doing to assist schools with the reporting process, noting that the team is evaluating and 
scoring the reports received.  The final process will result in a report to be presented to the Board at the July BPE 
meeting. Ms. Andrews answered Board members’ questions. 
 
Content Standards Revisions Update: Ms. Marie Judisch presented an overview of the Mathematics Content 
Standards, World Language Content Standards, and ELA Content Standards, which are all currently under 
revision. 
 
Data Modernization Update: Ms. Ashley Perez gave an update on the Data Modernization Project by reviewing 
ongoing activities, pieces of the project that have been completed, and an update on the Data Lake housing 
information provided by Infinite Campus.  Ms. Perez answered questions on how data from Power School will be 
brought in without manual intervention.   
 
Superintendent Arntzen introduced April Grady as the new Chief Financial Officer at the OPI.  Ms. Grady 
introduced herself to the Board and highlighted goals she has for the OPI. 
 
Superintendent Arntzen discussed the budget line item the OPI is requesting in their budget for funding for 
MACIE. 
 
Item 4 COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION REPORT 02:09:35 
   Joe Thiel 
Mr. Joe Thiel discussed ongoing high school and college graduation ceremonies occurring statewide and his 
attendance at a ceremony of college graduates at the Montana State Prison through Helena College.  Mr. Thiel 
discussed the updated Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) form, issues surrounding the rollout, and 
noted that FAFSA completion and college acceptance numbers are down compared to previous years due to the 
problems with the new form.  Mr. Thiel reviewed the GEAR UP Grant and changes made to the grant, noting that 



 

May 9-10, 2024 Board of Public Education  Page 3 
 

OCHE has submitted the grant application for the next seven years. Mr. Thiel concluded his report with an update 
regarding Math placement for incoming college freshman. 
 
Item 5   GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT 02:20:34 
   Dylan Klapmeier 
Mr. Dylan Klapmeier thanked the staff at MSDB for hosting the Board, then reviewed items from the Governor’s 
Office, including the Governor’s 56 County Tour, proclamations made by the Governor regarding financial literacy 
and work-based learning, meetings with School Administrators of Montana and the Montana School Boards 
Association to discuss schools that have implemented on site daycares for their faculty and staff. Mr. Klapmeier 
noted the Governor has written a letter of support for the Perkins State Plan, then discussed ongoing work with 
the Budget Office to assist districts to access funds from the TEACH Act, reviewed his attendance at the previous 
week’s MACIE meeting, provided an update on the Jobs for Montana Graduates program, and reviewed the 
Strategic Planning meeting of the Montana Digital Academy Board held in April.  Mr. Klapmeier answered Board 
members’ questions.  
    

 MSDB LIAISON – Renee Rasmussen (Item 6) 
 
Item 6   MSDB REPORT 02:34:55 
   Paul Furthmyre 
MSDB staff members made presentations to the Board on Indian Education for All, the MSDB Mentoring 
Program, Portrait of a Graduate, Professional Learning Centers, Cottage Learning Centers, and the Maintenance 
Program. 
 

Board member Rasmussen moved to approve the personnel items for the MSDB as listed 
in the agenda packet.  Motion seconded by Board member Hamman. 

 
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Board member Rasmussen moved to approve the Golden Triangle Curriculum Cooperative 
Agreement with the MSDB.  Motion seconded by Board member Quinlan. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Board member Rasmussen moved to approve the Great Falls High School/MSDB 
Cooperative MHSA Agreement.  Motion seconded by Board member Slinger. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Board member Rasmussen moved to approve MSDB Policy 5710P and 9320.  Motion 
seconded by Board member Schmidt. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Superintendent Furthmyre reported that enrollment numbers have increased, and he expects that to continue in 
the future. 
 

 MACIE LIAISON – Susie Hedalen (Item 7) 
  
Item 7 MACIE REPORT 03:34:30 
 Jordann Lankford Forster  
Ms. Jordann Lankford Forster reviewed the informational MACIE meeting held May 1st and reviewed the report 
she presented at the Montana Indian Education for All conference. Ms. Lankford Forster discussed the funding 
request from OPI for MACIE and stated her concerns with the amount of money being requested. Ms. Lankford 
Forster concluded her report by discussing a concern f regarding the lack of student performance improvement on 
reservation schools and discussed the possibility of holding an American Indian Student Achievement panel at an 
upcoming Board meeting .  
 

 REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Item 8) 
 



 

May 9-10, 2024 Board of Public Education  Page 4 
 

Item 8   STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 04:34:09 
   Gavin Mow  
Mr. Gavin Mow announced new members elected to the Montana Association of Student Councils (MASC), and 
provided an update on the MASC Student Survey he is conducting.  Mr. Mow shared how many students have 
completed the survey and that the survey is open until the following week.  Results from the survey will be 
presented at the July meeting.   
 

 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – Renee Rasmussen (Items 9-11) 
 
Item 9 ACTION ON AND RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED ON REVISIONS 

TO ARM TITLE 10, CHAPTER 56, ASSESSMENT STANDARDS 04:38:29 
   Renee Rasmussen 
Ms. Flynn stated that no public comments have been received on the revisions to Chapter 56, but that the 
comment period is open until 5:00pm Friday May 10th.  If comments are received, they will be brought to the July 
BPE meeting for consideration, with action to follow the next day.  Board member Rasmussen pointed members 
to the Economic Impact Survey conducted by the OPI.  No action was taken. 
 
Item 10 ACTION ON EARLY LITERACY TARGETED INTERVENTION HOME-BASED 

PROGRAM REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 04:43:02 
   Marie Judisch 
Ms. Marie Judisch provided an overview of the Request for Proposal  process for the Early Literacy Home-Based 
Program, reviewing the timeline for the RFP, the timeline of meetings held, and members of the group who scored 
the proposals.  Ms. Judisch answered Board members’ questions.   
  

Board member Rasmussen moved to approve Waterford Research Institute as the Home-
Based Early Literacy Program.  Motion seconded by Board member Schmidt. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Item 11 PANEL PRESENTATION ON MONTANA ALIGNED TO STANDARDS THROUGH-

YEAR (MAST) 05:34:53 
 Rachel Cutler, Curriculum Coordinator, Great Falls Public Schools; Jackie 

Mainwaring, Student Achievement, Great Falls Public Schools; Superintendent 
Laurie Barron, Evergreen School District; Superintendent Les Meyer, Frenchtown 
School District; Principal Riley Devins, Frenchtown School District; 
Superintendent Craig Crawford, Stanford Public Schools 

Board member Rasmussen opened the item and Ms. Flynn directed Board members to the page in their folders 
for information on the panel members and questions to be asked.  Ms. Flynn asked panelists to introduce 
themselves to the Board and provide their experience with the MAST Assessment product. Board members 
asked questions of the panel regarding the MAST Pilot Program and their experience with the assessment. Panel 
members discussed strengths and weaknesses of the MAST Pilot, where improvements could be made, feedback 
they are receiving from parents and students, and issues that arose implementing the pilot program. 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Susie Hedalen (Items 12-16) 
 

Item 12 NOTICE OF THE SURRENDER OF BPE CASE #2024-05  
 Brenton Craggs, OPI Legal Counsel 06:49:46 
Mr. Brenton Craggs notified the Board of the surrender of an educator license.  The Superintendent had 
requested revocation of the educator’s license, and the educator surrendered their license before the Board’s  
initial review. 

 
Item 13 ACTION ON INITIAL REVIEW OF BPE CASE #2024-03, NO RUNNER  
 Brenton Craggs, OPI Legal Counsel 06:51:44 
Mr. Brenton Craggs explained the reasons for the licensure revocation request from the Superintendent for the 
educator in BPE Case #2024-03, No Runner.  Mr. No Runner gave a statement to the Board. 
 
 Vice Chair Hedalen approved moving BPE Case #2024-03, No Runner to a contested case 

hearing to be held at the July 2024 BPE meeting.  Motion seconded by Board member 
Quinlan. 



 

May 9-10, 2024 Board of Public Education  Page 5 
 

 
 No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 14 ACTION ON COUNCIL FOR THE ACCREDITATION OF EDUCATOR PREPARATION 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 07:05:09 
   Dr. Julie Murgel and Crystal Andrews 
Dr. Julie Murgel reviewed the Memorandum of Understanding with the Council for the Accreditation of Educator 
Preparation for the Board.  Vice Chair Hedalen thanked Dr. Murgel for the work she has done. 
 

Vice Chair Hedalen moved to approve the Council for the Accreditation of Educator 
Preparation Memorandum of Understanding effective July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025.  
Motion seconded by Board member Rasmussen. 

 
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 15 ACTION ON PROPOSED PRAXIS TEST SCORE FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION 

07:09:22 
   Crystal Andrews 
Ms. Crystal Andrews presented an overview of the PRAXIS Test Review for Special Education.  Ms. Lisa Colon 
Durham, Educational Testing Service, provided background information regarding what has changed within the 
test, the multi state standard study to recommend a passing score, and presented adopted passing scores of 
surrounding states for the Special Education test.  Ms. Andrews reviewed the work completed by the Special 
Education Expert Panel to determine the passing score of 153 for Montana.  The score was brought to the 
PRAXIS Working Committee and then to the Montana Council of Deans of Education.  Both groups voted 
unanimously on the passing score of 153. Board members asked questions of Ms. Andrews and Dr. Murgel.  
Board members expressed concerns about the recommended passing score and Ms. Kristi Steinberg reviewed 
reasons the Expert Panel gave for setting the passing score of 153.  
 

Vice Chair Hedalen moved to approve the adoption of PRAXIS test #5355 Special 
Education with a qualifying score of 153.  Motion seconded by Board member Hamman. 
 
Vice Chair Hedalen asked that this test score be monitored. 
 
No further discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Item 16 ACTION ON THE NOTICE OF ADOPTION PERTAINING TO THE AMENDMENT OF 

ARM, TITLE 10, CHAPTER 57, EDUCATOR LICENSURE STANDARDS, AND 
AUTHORIZE FILING OF THE NOTICE WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE’S OFFICE 
FOR PUBLICATION IN THE MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER 07:30:07 

   Susie Hedalen 
Ms. Flynn reviewed the comments received and the responses from the Board. 
 

Vice Chair Hedalen moved to approve the Notice of Adoption pertaining to the amendment 
of ARM Title 10, Chapter 57, Educator Licensure Standards, and authorized filing of the 
notice with the Secretary of State’s Office for publication in the Montana Administrative 
Register.  Motion seconded by Board member Quinlan. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Tim Tharp (Item 17) 

 
4:00 PM  GOALBALL ACTIVITY WITH MSDB STUDENTS 07:32:55 
Board members participated in a game of Goalball with MSDB students. 
 
Item 17   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 08:21:09 
   Dr. Tim Tharp 
Dr. Tharp closed the meeting for Executive Session at 4:40 PM for the evaluation of the Board’s Executive 
Director. Executive Session ended at 5:28 PM. 
 



 

May 9-10, 2024 Board of Public Education  Page 6 
 

The Board recessed for the day at 5:30 PM. 
 
Friday, May 10, 2024 
8:30 AM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 01:57 
Chair Tharp called the meeting to order at 8:30 AM.  MSDB students led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance 
and gave a musical performance.  Ms. Kris Stockton took Roll Call, the Chair read the Statement of Public 
Participation, and welcomed guests. 
 
Board members present: Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair; Ms. Susie Hedalen, Vice Chair; Ms. Renee Rasmussen; Dr. Ron 
Slinger; Ms. Lisa Schmidt; Ms. Madalyn Quinlan; Ms. Jane Hamman.  Ex Officio member: Mr. Dylan Klapmeier, 
Governor’s Office.  Staff present: Ms. McCall Flynn, Executive Director; Ms. Kris Stockton, Administrative 
Specialist.  Guests: Ms. Marie Judisch, OPI; Ms. Trish Schreiber, Chair, Community Choice Schools Commission; 
Mr. Chris Averill, Chair, MT 250th Commission; Dr. Julie Murgel, OPI; Ms. Kim Popham, MFPE; Ms. Kristi 
Steinberg, UM; Assistant Superintendent Christy Mock-Stutz, OPI; Ms. Laci Novark, OPI; Ms. Nancy Hall, Office 
of Budget and Program Planning.  
 

 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Madalyn Quinlan (Items 18-19) 
 
Item 18  INITIAL REVIEW OF SUPERINTENDENT’S PROPOSED REVISIONS TO ARM TITLE 

10, CHAPTER 54, WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARDS 10:37 
   Marie Judisch, Dr. Julie Murgel 
Ms. Marie Judisch opened the item and Dr. Julie Murgel presented an overview of the revisions process and Ms. 
Judisch reviewed the proposed revisions and the Economic Impact Statement for the Board.  Ms. Judisch and Dr. 
Murgel answered Board members’ questions at the conclusion of the presentation. Ms. Flynn reviewed the 
Administrative Rulemaking timeline for the Board and answered questions. 
 
Item 19  INITIAL REVIEW OF SUPERINTENDENT’S PROPOSED REVISIONS TO ARM TITLE 

10, CHAPTER 53, MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS 01:06:55 
   Marie Judisch 
Dr. Murgel gave a summary of the work of the Task Force and the Negotiated Rulemaking Committee which took 
place over the course of five months.  Ms. Judisch reviewed the proposed changes by grade level for the Board 
and answered Board members’ questions.  This item will be reviewed again at the July 2024 BPE meeting. 
 

 CHARTER COMMITTEE – Jane Hamman (Items 20-22) 
 
Item 20 UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CHOICE SCHOOLS COMMISSION 02:28:54 
 Trish Schreiber 
Ms. Schreiber discussed the April Work Session held by the Commission and work that subcommittees are doing 
to implement goals and objectives established at the work session. 
 
Item 21 REVIEW OF REVISED PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION AND 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 02:37:52 
 Jane Hamman 
Board member Hamman discussed work the Charter Committee has completed to review and revise the 2024 
Public Charter School Application before reviewing the upcoming application cycle.  Board members discussed 
the proposed revisions to the application and offered additional revisions. 
 
Item 22 REVIEW PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK METRICS 

AND EVALUATION AND RENEWAL CRITERIA 02:56:21 
 Jane Hamman 
Board member Hamman reviewed the draft documents for the Performance Framework Metrics and Evaluation 
and Renewal Criteria and Ms. Flynn discussed how the documents were drafted.  Board member Hamman 
discussed options for developing standards and discussions the Charter Committee held regarding developing 
standards.  The Board discussed next steps in the process of developing the Performance Framework Metrics, 
and directed Ms. Flynn to convene a Work Group of public charter school representatives to bring a 
recommendation on the Public Charter School Performance Framework to the Board at the July 2024 meeting for 
approval. 



 

May 9-10, 2024 Board of Public Education  Page 7 
 

 
 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 23-25) 

 
Item 23 UPDATE ON 250TH COMMISSION 03:10:37 
 Chris Averill 
Mr. Chris Averill gave a presentation on the Montana 250th Commission, discussing the purpose of the 
Commission created by the Legislature, and the expectations of the Commission to celebrate the 250th 
anniversary of the nation. Mr. Averill reviewed members of the committee, quarterly meetings held to date, work 
subcommittees have completed, the adopted vision and key themes, and goals of the Commission.  Mr. Averill 
answered Board members’ questions.  Mr. Averill will update the Board on the progress of the Commission at 
future Board meetings.   
 
Item 24 ACTION ON K-12 PAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025 03:26:44 
   Laci Novark 
Ms. Laci Novark presented the K-12 Payment Schedule for Fiscal Year 2025 to the Board. 
 

Board member Slinger moved to approve the K-12 Payment Schedule for Fiscal Year 2025.  
Motion seconded by Board member Quinlan. 

 
  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 25 DISCUSSION ON BOARD PRIORITY BUDGET ITEMS FOR EXECUTIVE PLANNING 

PROCESS 03:29:49 
   McCall Flynn 
Ms. Flynn reviewed the current budget planning process and stated that agencies have until June 6th to submit 
any budget requests.  Ms. Flynn reviewed the Board budget and noted that since the Board currently has 
sufficient funding, no specific budget requests will be made.  Board members discussed potential requests and 
whether any budget requests should be made.   
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS July 17-19, 2024, Helena, MT 
Strategic Planning Meeting 
MACIE Update 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
OPI Staffing Report 
Accreditation Report 
Content Standards Revision Update 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment. 
 
ADJOURN 
Meeting adjourned at 12:16 PM. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Montana Board of Public Education is a Professional Development Unit Provider. Attending a Board of Public Education 
Meeting either in person or via Zoom may qualify you to receive professional development units. Please complete the 
necessary information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for professional development units.    
 
Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda. Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”. 
Public comment is welcome on all items listed as “Action” and as noted at the beginning and end of each meeting. 
 
The Board of Public Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an 
individual’s ability to participate in the meeting. Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the 
Board of Public Education as soon as possible prior to the meeting start date. You may write to: Kris Stockton, PO Box 
200601, Helena MT, 59620, email at: kmstockton@mt.gov or phone at 406-444-0302. 
 

 
 

mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov


 

1 
 

Board of Public Education 
Public Comment 

May 2024 
 

1. Jamie Greene, SSP, NCSP 
Bozeman, MT 
 
I am a school psychologist practicing in the field, and I’m emailing after learning about a new proposal 
at the Montana Board of Education to modify the school psychology licensing requirements. We all 
know that the school psychology shortages have a substantial negative impact on our district. It impacts 
our students and schools, and limits us in the services we can provide. I’d love to visit with you further 
about addressing school psychology shortages.  
 
It is unclear, at this point, how OPI would determine whether people who have a degree in another field 
(e.g. special education, counseling) but taking courses concurrently (e.g., an online school psychology 
program) would have sufficient course content or experience in providing school psychological services 
as a Class 5 School Psychologist. 
 
We need to make sure that our future school psychologists are trained school psychologists and that our 
school psychologist interns have the appropriate training and supervision to be successful. Please 
consider modifying or revising the present ARM proposal to ensure that our school psychologists have 
affiliated school psychological training. 

 



SAM Membership Survey: Financial Literacy requirement, May 2024

May 6, 2024
TO: Board of Public Education
FR: Rob Watson, Executive Director, School Administrators of Montana
RE: Financial Literacy graduation requirement & results of member survey

Dear Board Members,
In a recent public comment I provided the Board with a concern about the implementation of the
new graduation requirement related to Financial Literacy. It has been my understanding that the
Board intended to implement this new requirement without additional costs to school districts. To
that end, the new requirement was intended to be woven in the current requirement for Math,
Social Studies or Career/Technical Education.

SAM conducted a brief survey to examine the impacts of implementing the new graduation
requirement. (Survey results are below.) I believe the survey data is informative and helps
provide guidance to the Board and the Office of Public Instruction with implementation. In
reviewing the results, I was pleased to see that most districts were already on track to meeting
the new requirement. The details of the survey suggest that the Board and OPI would be well
advised to provide increased flexibility as schools implement this new standard.

Thank you for your interest in this information.

Survey Demographics and General Info:
● Response rate: 35%
● Survey respondents: 88% were high school principals OR principal/superintendents.
● District Size: C=24%, B=30%, A=20%, AA=25%
● Will your graduates meet the 2026 deadline? Yes=86%, 14% no or not sure



SAM Membership Survey: Financial Literacy requirement, May 2024



SAM Membership Survey: Financial Literacy requirement, May 2024

Open Response
Regarding the implementation of the new graduation requirement for Financial Literacy,
is there any additional information you would like to share about challenges you are
encountering to implement this new standard?
Common Themes:

● Staffing
○ Staffing may be our biggest issue going forward. We have not been able to hire a

business teacher, except through Emergency Authorization.



SAM Membership Survey: Financial Literacy requirement, May 2024

○ Can we do it? Yes, if we can find or retain trained and certified teachers with the
appropriate background.

○ We will be requiring financial literacy next year, but I have a teacher teaching it who is
outside of the required area. We do currently offer a section under CTE, but I would
have to hire another CTE teacher in order to have enough sections to serve our
students. So, I have a World Language teacher (who is passionate about financial
literacy) scheduled to teach some sections next year and we will likely get an
accreditation ding.

● Flexibility
○ I agree with the importance of the topic, I need flexibility. In rural schools we need to

be able to address this need in a variety of ways primarily do to staffing sets.
Teachers we have each year who can teach these standards.

○ Our biggest issue is making room in the schedule and the impacts this new
requirement has on our other class offerings. We are a small school with a limited
number of offerings, therefore when we add something we often take away from
something else. Trying to figure out a spot in the school day schedule that doesn't
hurt our existing electives will be challenging.

○ With budget cuts and increasing costs, it will be harder to keep all of our CTE
courses, thus pigeon holing students into fewer CTE options.

● Timing
○ It would be best to have this implemented with incoming Freshmen, class of 2027,

and not start with students in high school, class of 2026, who have already planned
out a course pathway to graduation.

○ The timeline for implementation has been problematic as we have an existing board
policy that states any changes to graduation requirements can only apply to a new
class of incoming 9th graders.

○ It has created some shifting of FTE in our school to make sure we offer the course to
our 11th/12th and therefore impacting some of the course offerings at the 9/10th
grade level.



CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

FINANCIALS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51010 Board of Public Education
ORG Budget Summary by OBPP Prog, Subclass, Fund
Data Selected for Month/FY:    01 (Jul)/2025 through 12 (Jun)/2025

OBPP Program Subclass Fund Org Acct Lvl 1 ORG Budget Actuals Amt A Accrual Amt ORG Bud Balance
01 K-12 EDUCATION 591,202.00 3,261.21 0.00 587,940.79

235H1 ADMINISTRATION 546,722.00 3,261.21 0.00 543,460.79
01100 General Fund 535,164.00 3,261.21 0.00 531,902.79

1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 535,164.00 3,261.21 0.00 531,902.79
61000 Personal Services 266,908.00 1,581.00 0.00 265,327.00
62000 Operating Expenses 268,256.00 1,680.21 0.00 266,575.79

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

02122 Advisory Council 11,510.00 0.00 0.00 11,510.00
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 11,510.00 0.00 0.00 11,510.00

61000 Personal Services 11,510.00 0.00 0.00 11,510.00

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

02219 Research Fund 48.00 0.00 0.00 48.00
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 48.00 0.00 0.00 48.00

62000 Operating Expenses 48.00 0.00 0.00 48.00

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

235H4 SITSD RST 44,480.00 0.00 0.00 44,480.00
01100 General Fund 44,480.00 0.00 0.00 44,480.00

1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 44,480.00 0.00 0.00 44,480.00
62000 Operating Expenses 44,480.00 0.00 0.00 44,480.00

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Grand Total 591,202.00 3,261.21 0.00 587,940.79

ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Subcl,Fund 1 of 1



STRATEGIC PLANNING SESSION 
 
 

• REVIEW STRATEGIC PLAN 
• REVIEW BYLAWS 
• REVIEW COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 
• REVIEW MEETING CALENDAR AND AGENDA 

CALENDAR 2025 
• ADVISORY COUNCIL REFLECTION AND REVIEW 
• LEGISLATIVE IMPLEMENTATION REFLECTION 

AND REVIEW 
 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON STRATEGIC PLANNING ITEMS 
 
 

  



State of Montana  PO Box 200601 
  Helena, Montana 59620-0601 
  (406) 444-6576 
  www.bpe.mt.gov 

 Board of Public Education 

Proposed July 2024 Page 1 
 

 
Board of Public Education 
Strategic Plan 2024-2025 

 
MISSION STATEMENT: 
The Board of Public Education has a mission statement as directed by the Montana Constitution, 
which states, “There is a board of public education to exercise general supervision over the public 
school system and such other public educational institutions as may be assigned by law”. The Board 
of Public Education was established to supervise, serve, maintain, and strengthen Montana's system of 
free quality public elementary and secondary schools. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
1. Exercise the Board’s constitutional and statutory authority to improve Montana’s education 

system. 
• Work with constitutional education authorities to ensure they understand and respect the 

constitutional authority of the Board of Public Education.  
• Collaborate with constitutional education authorities around initiatives to improve and support 

public education in Montana. 
• Work with the Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education, Office of Public Instruction, 

and education partners to implement Indian Education for All. 
• Promote and maintain a transparent and open public participation process.  

 
2. Promote a safe learning environment. 

• Work with education partners to help school districts navigate federal and state regulations and 
funding. 

• Assign the Executive Director to participate in the Montana School Safety Advisory 
Committee meetings. 

 
3. Evaluate and adopt the Board’s accreditation standards to ensure they are contemporary 

and effective to improve quality education for all Montana students. 
• Maintain the Board’s commitment to rigorous standards and assessments, and support 

flexibilities within the current frameworks. 
• Collaborate with education partners in support of drafting and implementing state standards, 

including efforts around licensing, content, transportation, assessment, accreditation, educator 
preparation programs, and other standards within the Board of Public Education’s authority.  

 
4. Foster quality teaching and administration. 

• Work with legislators and other entities to ensure they understand the roles and responsibilities 
of the Board of Public Education.  

• Adopt revisions to the Administrative Rules of Montana that are within the Board of Public 
Education’s authority. 

• Work with partners in P-12 and higher education to coordinate recruitment and retention 
efforts of teachers, staff, and school leaders. 

• Receive guidance from professional education organizations and take action on their 
recommendations, when appropriate. 



Proposed July 2024 Page 2 

5. Support the preparation of all Montana students for employment, post-secondary education, 
and civic life. 
• Work to support and expand pathways to career and life success through dual enrollment, 

internships, work-based learning, etc.  
• Collaborate with the Montana Digital Academy to support online instruction for students, and 

assign the Executive Director to serve on the Montana Digital Academy Governing Board. 
• Plan and prepare for the Board of Education meetings to support P-20 priorities and adopt a 

unified education budget. 
• Work with school districts and education partners to promote the Montana Seal of Biliteracy. 
• Prioritize and support innovation through the public charter school application process. 
• Receive guidance from the Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education and take action on 

their recommendations, when appropriate. 
 
6. Recognize and fulfill the Board’s statutory obligation to the Montana School for the Deaf 

and Blind. 
• Hire, support, and evaluate the Superintendent of the Montana School for the Deaf and Blind 

(MSDB). 
• Support and take action on personnel items, out of state travel requests, policies, and other 

items.  
• Assign the Executive Director and MSDB liaison to participate in the Montana School for the 

Deaf and Blind Foundation meetings. 
 

 



Board of Public Education – Draft July 2024 Page 1 
 

STATE OF MONTANA 
BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 

 
BYLAWS 

 
Article I.  Name 

 
The legal name of the Board is the Board of Public Education. 
 

Article II.  Objective 
 

The objective of the Board is to carry out its constitutional and statutory responsibility to 
exercise general supervision, in cooperation with the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction, over the public school system and other such public educational institutions 
as may be assigned by law. 
 

Article III.  Membership 
 

The Board consists of seven members appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the 
Senate. Not more than four may be from each of the two commission districts per § 5-1-
102 (2)(a)(b), MCA, and not more than four may be affiliated with the same political 
party. The Governor, Superintendent of Public Instruction, and Commissioner of Higher 
Education are ex-officio, non-voting members of the Board. There is also a non-voting 
student member, appointed by the Montana Association of Student Councils. The term 
of members appointed to the Board shall be seven years. When a vacancy occurs, the 
Governor shall appoint a member for the remainder of the term of the incumbent. 
Members appointed to the Board, before discharging their duties, shall take and 
subscribe to the constitutional oath of office.   
 

Article IV.  Officers 
 

The officers of the Board shall consist of a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson. The 
Chairperson and Vice Chairperson shall be elected among the appointed membership 
for the period of one year; annual reelection is permissible. Election of the Chairperson 
and Vice Chairperson shall be conducted by voice vote. The Chairperson-elect and Vice 
Chairperson-elect shall assume their respective office upon adjournment of the meeting 
at which they were elected. If the office of the Chairperson or Vice Chairperson is 
vacated prior to the expiration of the term, the Board will hold an election to fill the 
vacated office; the newly elected officer will serve for the remainder of the unexpired 
term and assume the gavel immediately. The duties of the Chairperson shall include 
presiding at meetings, participating in the construction of meeting agendas, and 
appointing all committees. The Chairperson shall vote on all matters. In the absence of 
the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson shall preside and shall perform such duties as 
are prescribed for the Chairperson. 
 
 



Board of Public Education – Draft July 2024 Page 2 
 

Article V.  Executive Director 
 

The Board shall appoint, prescribe the term and duties, and establish the salary of the 
Executive Director. The Executive Director shall serve as administrator to the Board and 
also as liaison between the Board and the Superintendent of Public Instruction, the 
Commissioner of Higher Education, the Legislature, and the Governor’s office. 
 

Article VI.  Meetings 
 

According to § 20-2-112, MCA, the Board shall meet at least quarterly. Special meetings 
may be called by the Governor, the chairperson of the Board, the Executive Director, or 
a request in writing of four regular appointed members. When necessary, the Board 
may hold meetings for resolution of specific agenda items either by a meeting in person, 
by conference call, or by a combination of both. In the case of a special meeting, the 
Executive Director shall notify each regular and ex-officio member either by e-mail, mail, 
or by telephone sufficiently in advance of the meeting to allow all Board members to 
travel to the meeting site from their principal Montana residence. 
 
The Board of Public Education and the Board of Regents shall meet yearly as the State 
Board of Education per § 20-2-101, MCA. 
 
Meetings of the Board shall be open to the public. The Chairperson may close the 
meeting to the public if he or she determines: 
 

a. That the demand of individual privacy clearly exceeds the merits of public 
disclosure, or 

b. That an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the bargaining 
or the litigating position of the Board. 

 
The Chairperson shall read for the minutes the reason for the closing, or the minutes 
will show that the person in question requested a closed session.   
 

Article VII.  Quorum 
 

A majority of the appointed members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 
business. 
 

Article VIII. Organization 
 

Section A. Officers  
The Board shall select, by a majority vote, a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson from its 
appointed members each September. The term of elected office shall be for one year. 
The Chairperson shall be the presiding officer and shall preside over all regular, special, 
and public meetings of the Board. The Vice Chairperson shall perform the functions of 
the Chairperson in their absence. 
 



Board of Public Education – Draft July 2024 Page 3 
 

Section B. Committees 
Standing committees shall be as follows: 
 

1. An Executive Committee: composed of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, 
and the Executive Director 

 
2. An Accreditation Committee 

 
3. A Licensure Committee 

 
4. A Montana School for the Deaf and Blind Committee 

 
5. A Legislative Committee 

 
6. An Assessment Committee 

 
7. An Education Interim Committee 

 
7.       A Charter School Committee 

 
The Board may create special committees as deemed necessary to carry out the 
responsibilities of the Board. Members of the special committees shall be appointed by 
the Chairperson. 
 
Duties of the committees shall be to review, report on, and make recommendations 
concerning any item referred to them and alert the Chairperson and Executive Director 
on any matters which should be placed on the agenda for Board discussion or action. 
The Chairperson shall serve as a member of all committees, unless otherwise 
determined by the Chairperson. The Executive Director shall attend all committee 
meetings and provide support as determined by the committee chairperson. 
 
The Board shall establish a Montana School for the Deaf and Blind Committee. Due to 
the uniqueness of the operations of the Montana School for the Deaf and Blind, the 
Committee is expected to meet more regularly than other committees of the Board. As 
required under § 20-8-101, MCA, the Montana School for the Deaf and Blind is under 
general supervision, direction, and control of the Board. This relationship requires more 
regular oversight and involvement in the maintenance and governance of the school.  
 

Article IV.  Order of Business 
 

The regular order of business shall be as follows: 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
4. Statement of Public Participation 



Board of Public Education – Draft July 2024 Page 4 
 

5. Welcome Visitors 
6. Items Pulled from Consent Agenda 
7. Consent Agenda Adoption 
8. Agenda Adoption 
9. Agenda 
10. Date and Place of Next Meeting 
11. Adjournment 

 
Article X.  Communications 

 
All official communications should come to the attention of the Board through the 
Executive Director of the Board. 
 

Article XI.  Parliamentary Procedure 
 

The Board will use Robert’s Rules of Order as a guide on questions of parliamentary 
procedure. 
 

Article XII.  Amendments 
 

These bylaws may be added to or amended by a majority vote at any meeting of the 
Board of Public Education provided that a quorum is present and provided that the 
proposed amendment is sent in writing to members of the Board of Public Education at 
least seven days in advance. 
 

Article XIII.  Professional Development 
 

The Board of Public Education offers professional development opportunities for Board 
members whenever possible. Board members may attend at least one professional 
development conference each year, when funding is available. All requests must be 
submitted to the Executive Director at least one month prior to the conference. Board 
members should submit the request using the Request and Justification for Travel 
Form. All out of state travel and travel that exceeds $1,000 must be approved by the 
Executive Committee prior to participation.  
 

Request and Justification for Travel Form (mt.gov) 

https://bpe.mt.gov/Home/Board-Members/


State of Montana  PO Box 200601 
  Helena, Montana 59620-0601 
  (406) 444-6576 
  www.bpe.mt.gov 

 Board of Public Education 

Board of Public Education – Draft July 2024 Page 1 

 
Board of Public Education 
Committee Assignments 

 July 2024 
 

STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

Executive Committee  Licensure Committee   Education Interim Committee 
Tim Tharp, Chair   Susie Hedalen, Chair   Jane Hamman, Chair 
Susie Hedalen, Vice Chair  Ron Slinger, Member   Lisa Schmidt, Member 
McCall Flynn, Executive Director  Tim Tharp, Member   Tim Tharp, Member 

 
MSDB Committee   Legislative Committee   Charter School Committee 
Renee Rasmussen, Chair  Renee Rasmussen, Chair  Jane Hamman, Chair  
Tim Tharp, Member   Jane Hamman, Member  Madalyn Quinlan, Member 

      Tim Tharp, Member   Tim Tharp, Member  
Accreditation Committee  
Madalyn Quinlan, Chair  Assessment Committee   Ad Hoc Legal Complaint Committee 

Ron Slinger, Member   Renee Rasmussen, Chair  Madalyn Quinlan, Chair 

Tim Tharp, Member   Lisa Schmidt, Member  Susie Hedalen, Member 

      Tim Tharp, Member   Tim Tharp, Member 

 

 

ADVISORY GROUP LIAISONS 
 

Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education – Susie Hedalen 
Montana Early Childhood Advisory Council – McCall Flynn 
Montana School Safety Advisory Committee – McCall Flynn 

 
 

OTHER COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
 

Education and Workforce Data Governing Board – Susie Hedalen 
Montana Digital Academy Governing Board – McCall Flynn 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



State of Montana  PO Box 200601 
  Helena, Montana 59620-0601 
  (406) 444-6576 
  www.bpe.mt.gov 

 Board of Public Education 

Board of Public Education – Draft July 2024 Page 1 

 
BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 

ANNUAL AGENDA CALENDAR  
January 2025 – November 2025 

(Proposed items from OPI are in italics – C symbolizes Consent Agenda) 
 

___________________________________________ 
January 16-17, 2025 – Helena, MT (East Helena?)                                          
Exiting Board Member – Last Meeting and Recognition 
MACIE Update 
Review individual Community Choice Schools’ Annual 
Reports 
ABCTe Interim Report 
Action on Authorizing Public Charter Schools 
Transportation Report 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
Accreditation Report 
Teacher Licensure Report 
Qualify Transformational Learning & Advanced 
Opportunity Grant Applications 
Quality Educator Loan Assistance Program Report 
Content Standards Revision Update 
Action on MSDB Superintendent Contract Extension 
MSDB Superintendent Performance Evaluation & 
Contract Extension Discussion 
___________________________________________ 
March 13-14, 2025 – Helena, MT (East Helena?)  
MACIE Update 
Action on MSDB School Calendar 
Action on Early Literacy Screening Tools (Odd Years) 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
Accreditation Report 
Annual School Food Services Report 
Review Draft CAEP MOU 
Content Standards Revision Update 
___________________________________________ 
May 8-9 or 15-16, 2025 – Great Falls, MT                                   
Student Representative Last Meeting & Recognition 
MACIE Update 
Action on K-12 Schools Payment Schedule 
Assessment Update 
Accreditation Update 
Action on CAEP MOU 
Federal Update 
Content Standards Revision Update 
Executive Director Performance Evaluation 
 

_________________________________________ 
July 16-18 or 23-25, 2025 – Helena, MT  
Strategic Planning Meeting 
MACIE Update 
Action on MSDB/Golden Triangle Co-op  
Reflection and Review of Chapter 56 Assessment 
Standards  
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
OPI Staffing Report 
Accreditation Report 
Content Standards Revision Update 
Action on Accreditation Status of All Schools 
Action on Public Charter School Annual Report 
___________________________________________ 
September 11-12 or 25-26, 2025 – TBD, MT   
Glendive, Evergreen, Lewistown, Polson, Dillon                         
Election of Board Officers 
Action on Strategic Planning Items – C  
MACIE Update 
Montana Digital Academy Update 
MACIE Renewal (Even Years) 
Review Community Choice School Academic 
Performance and Financial Reports  
Annual HiSET Report 
Annual Special Education Report 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
Content Standards Revision Update 
___________________________________________ 
November 19-21, 2025 – Missoula, MT                            
Board of Education Meeting 
Montana Council of Deans of Education Update 
MACIE Update 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
Annual Data Collection 
Action on Variance to Standards Requests & Renewals 
Accreditation Report 
Youth Risk Behavior Survey Update (Odd Years) 
Annual Professional Development Unit Providers List  
Content Standards Revision Update 
 

 
   
 
 



   REPORTS – Dr. Tim Tharp (Items 1-5) 
 
 

ITEM 1 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT 
 
 

Dr. Tim Tharp 
 

  



ITEM 2 
 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 
 

McCall Flynn 
 

  



ITEM 3 
 
 

STATE SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 
 
 

• Assessment Update 
• MAST Update 
• Federal Update 

• Data Modernization Update 
• Content Standards Revision Update 

• OPI Staffing Report 
 
 

State Superintendent Elsie Arntzen 
 
 
 

  



 

    
    

 

Superintendent Arntzen’s Report to the Board of Public Education 
as of July 1, 2024 

 
Superintendent Arntzen’s Message: 
 

 
 
I attended a press conference in Washington DC on June 20 to discuss the Biden 
Administration's radical redefinition of sex. To watch the press conference, click here. 
On Thursday, June 13, 2024, a federal court in Louisiana enjoined the U.S. Department of 
Education from implementing its final rules regarding sex discrimination. Set to go into effect on 
August 1, 2024, the rule would have expanded protections from sex discrimination to include 
protections based on gender identity and other characteristics not based on biological sex. The 
injunction applies in Montana, Louisiana, Mississippi, and Idaho, the states that challenged the 

https://www.youtube.com/live/le0MHQhFKK4?si=M-JfMRIKwlF5SRA-&t=1315
https://fingfx.thomsonreuters.com/gfx/legaldocs/akveoawjmvr/06132024titleix.pdf


 
2 

final rule. On July 16, 2024, I will meet with the Montana High School Association (MHSA) to 
discuss the creation of uniform guidance regarding Title IX and sports in our schools. 
 
 
Budget and Education Working Group: 

The second and third rounds of the Budget and Education Working 
Group (BEWG) meetings were held during May and June. The are seven 
small virtual group sessions held via Zoom. The purpose is to gather 
information from the community and offer feedback that will serve as a 
resource for the legislature when considering education funding for the 2025 
Biennium Budget and 2025 Legislative Session. OPI staff will provide a 
white paper and summary from the working group for the legislature. 

 
Over 170 Montanans signed up to be part of the working group and over 100 people participated 
in the first meeting. The schedule for the meetings is: 
Meeting dates and times for Group A: Special needs students and programs 

 Monday, May 20, 5:30 pm | Agenda | Recording |Summary Page 
 Monday, June 24, 5:30 pm | Agenda | Recording |Summary Page 
 Monday, July 22, 5:30 pm 
 Zoom Link for all Meetings. 

Meeting dates and times for Group B: Teacher pay, retention, & recruitment 
 Monday, May 20, 7:00 pm | Agenda | Recording | Summary Page 
 Monday, June 24, 7:00 pm | Agenda | Recording |Summary Page 
 Monday, July 22, 7:00 pm 
 Zoom Link for all Meetings. 

Meeting dates and times for Group C: Rural, population, & culture 
 Tuesday, May 21, 5:30 pm | Agenda | Recording | Summary Page 
 Tuesday, June 25, 5:30 pm | Agenda | Recording |Summary Page 
 Tuesday, July 23, 5:30 pm 
 Zoom Link for all Meetings. 

Meeting dates and times for Group D: Sustainability & tax burden 
 Tuesday, May 21, 7:00 pm | Agenda | Recording | Summary Page 
 Tuesday, June 25, 7:00 pm | Agenda | Recording |Summary Page 
 Tuesday, July 23, 7:00 pm 
 Zoom Link for all Meetings. 

Meeting dates and times for Group E: Programs & curriculum 
 Wednesday, May 22, 5:30 pm | Agenda | Recording | Summary Page 
 Wednesday, June 26, 5:30 pm | Agenda | Recording |Summary Page 
 Wednesday, July 24, 5:30 pm 
 Zoom Link for all Meetings. 

Meeting dates and times for Group F: Funding formula 
 Wednesday, May 22, 7:00 pm | Agenda | Recording | Summary Page 
 Wednesday, June 26, 7:00 pm | Agenda | Recording |Summary Page 
 Wednesday, July 24, 7:00 pm 
 Zoom Link for all Meetings. 

Meeting dates and times for Group G: School budgeting 
 Thursday, May 23, 5:30 pm | Agenda | Recording | Summary Page 
 Thursday, June 27, 5:30 pm | Agenda | Recording |Summary Page 
 Thursday, July 25, 5:30 pm 

https://opi.mt.gov/Home/BEWG
https://opi.mt.gov/Home/BEWG
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_zAxLDsMCSA
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024.5.20.Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-05-14-085722-920
https://youtu.be/t0DhPhibenk
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/BEWG_GroupA_May_Summary.pdf?ver=2024-06-10-140542-890
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024_5_29_June_Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-06-05-134033-627
https://youtu.be/Qtx5w8crAFs
https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/82120037677?pwd=Vks5UmFEZXc2aDBJM1ZjT1UyUEJVQT09
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024.5.20.Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-05-14-085722-920
https://youtu.be/bkxNi_1EZZY
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/BEWG_GroupB_May_Summary.pdf?ver=2024-06-10-152238-563
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024_5_29_June_Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-06-05-134033-627
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6CokO5m1-VU
https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/82120037677?pwd=Vks5UmFEZXc2aDBJM1ZjT1UyUEJVQT09
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024.5.20.Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-05-14-085722-920
https://youtu.be/2V2Nc4rKFMg
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/BEWG_GroupC_May_Summary.pdf?ver=2024-06-21-113311-440
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024_5_29_June_Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-06-05-134033-627
https://youtu.be/tXT_Pl5du14
https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/82120037677?pwd=Vks5UmFEZXc2aDBJM1ZjT1UyUEJVQT09
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024.5.20.Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-05-14-085722-920
https://youtu.be/cu8gMf3NpVo
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/BEWG_GroupD_May_Summary.pdf?ver=2024-06-21-113321-193
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024_5_29_June_Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-06-05-134033-627
https://youtu.be/5eDw55m5XNc
https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/82120037677?pwd=Vks5UmFEZXc2aDBJM1ZjT1UyUEJVQT09
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024.5.20.Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-05-14-085722-920
https://youtu.be/AV9oR0ctRuw
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/BEWG_GroupE_May_Summary.pdf?ver=2024-06-21-113327-527
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024_5_29_June_Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-06-05-134033-627
https://youtu.be/5nB3gwZw5VY
https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/82120037677?pwd=Vks5UmFEZXc2aDBJM1ZjT1UyUEJVQT09
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024.5.20.Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-05-14-085722-920
https://youtu.be/kgtsWIfVe_A
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/BEWG_GroupF_May_Summary.pdf?ver=2024-06-21-113429-477
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024_5_29_June_Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-06-05-134033-627
https://youtu.be/Mvv05KABhPE
https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/82120037677?pwd=Vks5UmFEZXc2aDBJM1ZjT1UyUEJVQT09
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024.5.20.Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-05-14-085722-920
https://youtu.be/pkzbgpqfq2Y
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/BEWG_GroupG_May_Summary.pdf?ver=2024-06-21-123907-677
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Legislation/BEWG/2024_5_29_June_Budget_Education_Working_SmallGroup_Agenda.pdf?ver=2024-06-05-134033-627
https://youtu.be/wqOxzSeTYQc


 
3 

 Zoom Link for all Meetings. 
 
For more information, please contact Katie Bloodgood, Legislative Liaison, at 
katherine.bloodgood@mt.gov.  
 
 
Assessment Update: 

Please see the Assessment Update attached at the end of this report.  
 
Cedar Rose, Assessment Director, is standing by for questions. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Montana Aligned to Standards Through-Year (MAST) Program Update: 

Professional learning opportunities are planned to support Montana’s 
districts in implementing the new MAST statewide assessment for grades 3-
8 in math and ELA. These opportunities will encompass in-person sessions, 
live virtual events, and asynchronous learning modules. 
 
• On August 7, 2024, members of the Assessment Team will be at 
the Annual Hutterite Educator Conference where there will be devoted 

sessions focusing on preparing for the 2024-2025 statewide MAST Assessment, ELL 
Identification & Support, and ACCESS for ELLs Testing. Navigate to the RSVP 
Link: https://forms.gle/6hQYznHaDgKHLEXj6 [forms.gle]. All are welcome to attend 
sessions that pertain to their districts. 

• From August 8-16, 2024, a second in-person MAST Roadshow will take place at 
multiple locations throughout Montana. Dates, times, locations, and the registration link 
can be found here. Please register by August 1. 

• On September 5, 2024, a second live virtual MAST Summit will take place. Once all 
details are confirmed, information will be shared and made accessible on the OPI MAST 
webpage and MAST Portal.  

• On October 3rd, 10th, and 24th, the Assessment Unit’s fall STC Workshop Series will 
provide details and support regarding the MAST. Once this information becomes 
available, it can be found on the Assessment Unit’s Stay Informed (mt.gov) webpage 
under the STC Workshop Series tab. 

• This fall, the OPI Assessment Unit will be offering weekly office hours at various times 
to best support STCs and the field with statewide assessment-related questions. Details 
and information can be found on the Statewide Assessments Stay Informed 
(mt.gov) webpage once finalized.  

• Additional live virtual and asynchronous learning opportunities will be available. 
More details and information will be shared on the MAST Portal, OPI MAST webpage, 
and OPI MAST Monthly Compass once finalized. 

 
For more information, please contact Tressa Graveley, Assessment Specialist. 
 
Please see the MAST Update attached at the end of this report. 

https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/82120037677?pwd=Vks5UmFEZXc2aDBJM1ZjT1UyUEJVQT09
mailto:katherine.bloodgood@mt.gov
mailto:cedar.rose@mt.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/forms.gle/6hQYznHaDgKHLEXj6__;!!GaaboA!vQLOUn_y9FtM5W8ZwKiubTnKO2oYJAE-Yet4lNcc5t-exW-pM_R5qFPV_WW4ZG6lV5rvIz2fJfLy-_8NwmJwrA%24
https://web.cvent.com/event/5730f2c4-997c-44e8-9542-7204843a7671/summary
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/Montana-Alternative-Student-Testing-Pilot-Program
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/Montana-Alternative-Student-Testing-Pilot-Program
https://newmeridiancorp.org/montana-aligned-to-standards-through-year-pilot-program-portal/
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/MontCAS/Stay-Informed#83594965-stc-workshop-series
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/MontCAS/Stay-Informed
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/MontCAS/Stay-Informed
https://newmeridiancorp.org/montana-aligned-to-standards-through-year-pilot-program-portal/
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/Montana-Alternative-Student-Testing-Pilot-Program
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/OPI-Communication/OPI-Monthly-Compass
mailto:tressa.graveley@mt.gov


 
4 

Krystal Smith, Education Innovation Manager, is standing by for questions. 
 
 
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Funds (ESSER) Update: 

The ESSER Close-Out Process begins July 2024, contact Kimberly Kelly 
at kimberly.kelly@mt.gov or (406) 594-9295 to schedule an appointment. 
Note this process is different than the E-Grants Final Expenditure Report 
(FER). It includes a full review of ESSER I, II & III Budget Pages and 
other relevant documentation. Please complete a Return Funds form if you 
are returning awarded funds for any reason. 
 

• A report of ESSER spending and compliances for each District will be sent in July to 
start the Close-Out Process. 

• If you do not receive one by July 15, 2024, check spam and contact ESSER Meet the 
Team. 

 
The ESSER team holds open office hours 6 days a week via Zoom, phone, email, text, and in-
person to offer support to school districts. 
 
Remember ESSER III deadline is on September 30, 2024. 
 
The state-wide ESSER allocation through June 26, 2024, is: 

 
 
Please see the ESSER Report attached at the end of this report. 
 
For more information on ESSER please click here or contact Wendi Fawns 
at wendi.fawns@mt.gov. 
 
 
Data Modernization Update 

The Office of Public Instruction is working with PowerSchool on the Data 
Modernization project. For current updates on the project, visit our website, 
look at project FAQs, and join the weekly Virtual Office Hours for 
Superintendents. 
 
Additionally, OPI is seeking feedback on the GEMS system to improve 
future data visualizations. Please take the survey here, which closes on July 

mailto:krystal.smith@mt.gov
mailto:kimberly.kelly@mt.gov
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLScUkBXernLUzzlwPvD-mYIHKgwQ426oCXiYTJDFw15yW6tyMA/viewform?usp=sf_link
https://opi.mt.gov/COVID-19-Information/ESSER/Meet-the-Team
https://opi.mt.gov/COVID-19-Information/ESSER/Meet-the-Team
https://opi.mt.gov/COVID-19-Information/ESSER
mailto:wendi.fawns@mt.gov
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Privacy-Data-Governance/K-12-Data-Task-Force
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Data%20Task%20Force/DM%20FAQ-Website.pdf?ver=2024-06-12-110930-770
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/School-Leadership-Support
https://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/School-Leadership-Support
https://montanaopi.sjc1.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_4SoaCXtFvbMGkXY


 
5 

26, 2024. If you have any questions about data modernization or the GEMS survey, please reach 
out to Anna Hoerner or Chris Bushnell. 
 
Please see the Data Modernization Project Status and Overview Update at the end of this report. 
 
Julia Caro, IT Project Specialist, is standing by for questions. 
 
 
State Content Standards Revision Update 

Please see the K-12 State Content Standards Revisions Update attached at 
the end of this report. 
 
Marie Judisch, Teaching and Learning Senior Manager, is standing by for 
questions. 
 
 

 
 
OPI Staffing Report: 

OPI’s number of vacant positions (as of 7/1/24): 
• Total vacancies: 15   
• In Recruitment: 6  
• In Hiring Process: 4 (accepted position, waiting for their start day) 
• Not filling: 2 (positions end 9/30/24) 
• Holding: 2 (committed to individuals but won’t fill until October) 
• Dual roles: 1 (Chief Legal is also Deputy Superintendent until end of term) 

 
Vacancies by Funding Type: 

• General Fund: 7 
• Federal: 8 

 
 
Early Literacy Targeted Interventions School Jumpstart Program: 

During the 2023 Legislative session, HB 352 (20-7-1803, MCA) was 
enacted. This legislation created three voluntary Early Literacy-Targeted 
Intervention programs. The programs are classroom-based, jumpstart, and 
home-based. Many schools have been busy preparing implementation by 
screening students per parent requests and planning upcoming programming. 
The home-based program provides interventions to students and families via 
a secure online platform. On July 1st, we will send out the data collection 

tool to collect information about the number of licenses districts request to serve their eligible 
students. Here is a draft of the data collection. Districts will be contacted in August to confirm 
the number of licenses awarded to their district for the home-based program. 
 
For more information, please contact Jackie Ronning, Early Literacy Coordinator, at 
jackie.ronning@mt.gov.  
 

mailto:anna.hoerner@mt.gov
mailto:christine.bushnell@mt.gov
mailto:julia.caro2@mt.gov
mailto:marie.judisch@mt.gov
https://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0070/part_0180/section_0030/0200-0070-0180-0030.html
https://acrobat.adobe.com/link/review?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:30e98dd4-f9f1-31d9-aa8a-f876a76ec0cf
mailto:jackie.ronning@mt.gov


 
6 

National Conference on Student Assessment: 
 

 
 
June 24-26, 2024, Cedar Rose, Krystal Smith, Dr. Julie Murgel, and Marie Judisch traveled to 
Seattle for the National Conference on Student Assessment to discuss best practices, research 
findings, and valuable resources to aid states in implementing high-quality assessments and 
robust accountability systems, which will lead to better outcomes for all students. Montana is 
leading the nation with the student-teacher-centered test. 



 

 

    
1 

 

July 2024 BPE  
Assessment Update 

 
2024-2025 Assessment Windows 

 
• MAST windows throughout the year with 6-week major testing windows (math 

and ELA testlets) and a final, 4-week anchor testlet window for a single equating 
and test development testlet (math or ELA). 

• Other required statewide assessments mirror past testing windows. 

 



 

    
2 

 

 
2024-2025 Assessment Field Support  

 
The Assessment Unit provides both synchronous and asynchronous training and 
support throughout the school year. These include:  

• In-person sessions at educator conferences (OPI Summer Institute, Hutterite 
Educator Conference)  

• MAST Roadshow 
• MAST Virtual Summit  
• Weekly live webinars leading up to statewide MAST testing 
• Annual STC Workshop Series in October  
• Recorded tutorials available in both the OPI Learning Hub, on the OPI 

Assessment Unit YouTube Channel, and MontCAS webpage 
• Three Learning Hub courses (English Learner Support & Assessment, STC 

Basics, MAST) 
• Monthly open office hours for individualized support  
• Monthly Assessment Bulletin with timely tasks and support  

 
 

 
 



 
 

Montana Aligned to Standards Through Year Assessment (MAST) 
Overview and Implementation Plan 

 
What is MAST? 

• A student-centered assessment model of smaller “testlets” proctored throughout the 
year, assessing on-grade level Montana state standards 

• Flexibly aligned testlets to local scope and sequence offering coherence with the taught 
curriculum 

• Available on demand to accommodate teacher, school, and/or district scheduling 
• Testlets administered in a class period instead of a 1-time testing event 
• Provide more immediate reporting of finer-grained, instructionally valuable information 

throughout the school year 
• In aggregate, provide a reliable, comparable measure of student mastery of grade-level 

standards to eliminate the need for a single, end-of-year summative assessment 
 
Lessons Learned from Year 2 Pilot 

1. MAST provides significant value in teaching and learning 
• Provided a need for school-level scope and sequence work to occur 
• Detailed reporting supports classroom instructional decisions 
• Supports best practice of chunking instruction, learning, and assessment 
• Reduced testing anxiety and stress on classroom teachers and students 
• Students preferred knowing the mast standards clusters they were being 

assessed on and the ease of the testing platform 
2. Additional requests from the field 

• In-year growth measure for math 
• Reduced testing time for testlets 
• Clarity on test security 
• Exemplars and practice tests made available 
• Clarity on how assessment results will be used for state and federal 

accountability

 
 
 
 



 
Testlet Timing from Administration 5 
For each grade level, the 12 different testlets are identified along the bottom horizontal axis. 
The duration of each testlet, in minutes, is found along the vertical axis. Below each graph’s 
title, the count of Montana students completing each testlet is communicated. For each testlet, 
a box and whisker plot communicates the least amount of time for students to complete tests 
as well as the extreme time per testlet. The bottom of the blue box represents the lower 
quartile, the middle line inside the blue box is the median of student timing data per testlet, 
and the top of the blue box is the upper quartile. The red dot signifies the timing identified for 
80% of all students to complete each testlet. A sample box and whisker plot is provided here to 
support the reading of these high-level testlet data sets.  
 
Summary- Most teslets are being completed by 80% of the students in less than 30 minutes. 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 

 



 
School Support Plan for 2024-25  
Beginning in mid-July, MAST support tools and documents will be available to school leaders 
and personnel. In addition, the MAST and New Meridian teams will be in-person as well as 
holding virtual office hours to support all Montana stakeholders, regardless of roles. Below is a 
calendar of these events.  
 

Open Office Hours for Scheduler Tool: July-September 
Road Show: August 8-15 

MAST Virtual Summit: September 5th 
Technical Webinars: September-October 

Reporting Webinars: October 
Q&A Sessions: before each window opens 

Listening Sessions: after each window closes 
 
 
 



Continual Stakeholder Feedback and Engagement 
The New Meridian team conducted several interviews with year 2 pilot participants, with 
questions surrounding the following topics: readiness to move from pilot to statewide 
implementation, implementation next year, testing schedule, test length, utility of the reported 
data, and progress/projection measures. The stakeholders interviewed include Havre 
Intermediate School principal, Kalispell Instructional Coach, Frontier School IT Coordinator, 
Great Falls Curriculum and Assessment Coordinator, and Arrowhead School 4-8 grade math 
teacher. The following conclusions were made from the data and responses provided from 
these interviews.  

1. The pilot phase led to significant refinements in MAST and set the stage for the 
operational rollout in the 2024-25 school year.  

2. The responsiveness and communications from the OPI during the pilot phase will 
continue to support the transition in assessment systems.  

3. Overall, the shorter, more frequent tests have helped reduce student anxiety and made 
testing a more integrated part of the school routine.  

4. Educators saw significant advantages to the shorter, more frequent testing format of 
MAST and found the length of the tests manageable.  

5. Educators look forward to the introduction of testlet-level reporting to support student 
instruction. They have valued the numerous opportunities to provide feedback during 
the iterative process of designing reports.  

 
As Montana continues to lead the nation in the innovative through-year model of assessment, 
many states, including the US Department of Education, are closely watching and tracking our 
progress. The OPI continues to partner with the National Center for Assessment to ensure all 
benchmarks are met as well as progress towards the peer review submission process in 
December 2025. The courage of Montana educational leaders, teachers, students, and families 
is applauded for navigating uncharted waters in assessment and providing a beacon of hope and 
promise for a personalized assessment model that not only meets the high standards of federal 
accountability requirements but also provides teachers useful data to impact the day-to-day 
learning of their students. 



ESSER III Monthly District Status  
Grant Awarded/Allocated Remaining Balance 

ESSER I (CARES) $37,765,900  - 
ESSER II (CRRSA) $152,527,416  - 
ESSER III (ARP) $347,337,106  $125,866,908  

Total $537,630,422  $125,866,908 

 
Updated Monthly on the ESSER Webpage 

Scan the QR code below with your smartphone camera to visit the website! 

ESSER Funds Used For: 
1. Wages/Staffing 
2. Learning Modality/Instructional Material 
3. Tangible Upgrades/Facility Improvements  
4. Assorted Varied Misc Items 

ESSER Grant Funding Project Outcomes   
304 schools representing 887 active projects 

311 projects Oct 2022 to Sept 2023 62 Outdoor Learning Space 
295 projects Oct 2023 to May 2024 32 Communication  
322 Air Quality projects  38 Curriculum 
83 Water projects  42 Transportation 
108 Safety projects  240 Technology Access projects  

 

Your OPI ESSER Team is here to help! 
• ESSER/EANS Director Wendi Fawns wendi.fawns@mt.gov 406-437-8595 
• ESSER Program Manager Rebecca Brown rebecca.brown@mt.gov 406-444-0783 
• ESSER Communications Specialist Allison Agostino allison.agostino@mt.gov 406-202-7685 
• ESSER Administrative Specialist Kim Kelly kimberly.kelly@mt.gov 406-594-9295 
• ESSER Grant Accountant Steven Morgan steven.morgan@mt.gov 406-594-9728  

 ESSER Impacts 
 
 

The Office of Public Instruction's ESSER team priority for 2024 is to provide resources 
and support to LEAs leveraging ESSER funds. 

 

 
 

 
 

Preparing for, Preventing, and Responding to the effects 
of COVID-19 on Montana students 

 
An announcement by the U.S. Department of Education made April 25, 
2024 allows ESSER funds awarded to SEAs to be merged with other federal 
administration grant funds.  This enables OPI to better provide services to our 
schools by continuing some of the support moving beyond the ESSER 
September 2024 deadline.  In order to do this, OPI must submit a waiver. 
  

An announcement by the U.S. Department of Education made January 9, 
2024 allows LEAs to request a liquidation extension for ESSER III. This was also 
available for ESSER I&II. This information has been in the monthly 
Compass and posted on the OPI ESSER website for over a year. There are 
specific guidelines for these LEA extensions. In order to determine the need 
for extensions, we ask that you complete a short Google Form here. (Please 
complete by July 31, 2024) 

 

https://opi.mt.gov/COVID-19-Information/ESSER
mailto:wendi.fawns@mt.gov
mailto:rebecca.brown@mt.gov
mailto:allison.agostino@mt.gov
mailto:kimberly.kelly@mt.gov
mailto:steven.morgan@mt.gov
https://oese.ed.gov/files/2024/04/FY-22-Admin-Funds-Tydings-Waiver-DCL.-4.25.24-1.pdf
https://oese.ed.gov/files/2024/04/FY-22-Admin-Funds-Tydings-Waiver-DCL.-4.25.24-1.pdf
https://oese.ed.gov/files/2024/01/Updated-Technical-FAQs-for-Liquidation-Extensions-1.9.24-v-2-for-posting.pdf
https://oese.ed.gov/files/2024/01/Updated-Technical-FAQs-for-Liquidation-Extensions-1.9.24-v-2-for-posting.pdf
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/ESSER/Compass/an%20ESSER%20Compass%20ALL%20AA%20May24.pdf?ver=2024-04-23-112859-763
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/ESSER/Compass/an%20ESSER%20Compass%20ALL%20AA%20May24.pdf?ver=2024-04-23-112859-763
https://opi.mt.gov/COVID-19-Information/ESSER
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSfZ_LyTlKdfMaDwUgaoRy5KiCi8S2PCcIvstNBQTMpYCtL7rg/viewform?usp=sf_link


Target Range K-8 Elementary 
Missoula, Montana - 568 Students 

Standard Per-Pupil: $11k - ESSER One-Time Per-Pupil: $2k 
 

Outdoor Learning Space Project 
• Students decided how it should look 
• ESSER helped hire design staff 
• School and community input to the design 
• Community engagement in student learning 
• Community support in fundraising 
The outdoor learning space project kept the focus of all 
students. The Foundation, parents, staff and community 

concept of the playground contained an inclusive play system 
integrating accessible surfaces and equipment that appeal to 
students of all abilities.  
Jessica Pyette (District Business Clerk) noted that almost 100% of 

the student body participated in the fundraising campaign. 
 
 
 

 

Lincoln County High School 
Eureka, Montana - 293 Students 

Standard Per-Pupil: $11k - ESSER One-Time Per-Pupil: $4k 
   

“Tiny House” class benefits: 
• Help students develop workforce skills  
• Address some of the community affordable housing challenges  
• Engage students in proficiency-based learning  
• Community support and connection 

“The best part of the class was 
the realistic hands-on aspect. 
The community people that 

came in really showed us how the skills can carry over to their 
industry and how we could get a job staying in our community 

using these skills.”  
- Caleb Ravich, Junior 

The students have been involved in every aspect of the building 
process - from initial plans all the way through the finish work - to 

produce two Tiny Houses. Students worked to do all of the framing, siding, windows, etc. and have 
also worked with the electrical and plumbing contractors.   
 

“Student gains are high and there’s a variety of students who 
participate… The community provided volunteer mentors, 

guest speakers from a local power company, plumbers, and 
electrical industry. I think the program gives students a way 

they can learn to invest in the community while the community 
also invests in them.”  

- Bryan R, Teacher 
The first two Tiny Houses to come from the class were 
auctioned off in May 2023. 

 ELO Stories 
ELO = Extended/Expanded Learning Opportunities 

As Montana students and families work to recover from 
the adverse impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, this 
grant is an opportunity to address students’ personal 
and academic needs, ensure parents and guardians are 
able to rejoin the workforce, and ultimately continue to 
strengthen Montana communities. 

LE Name ELO History ELO 
Funding 

Student 
Participation 

Avg. Weekly 
Participation 

Program 
Topic 

Panther Math and 
Reading Program 

Afterschool 21 - 23 
Summer 24 $97,423 26 7 Math 

Afterschool Club 
House 

Afterschool & 
Summer 21 - 24 $173,382 767 10 Reading 

Real World Book Club Afterschool & 
Summer 21 - 24 $177,999 288 28 Math & 

Reading 

Get Your Game On Afterschool 21 - 23 
Summer 23 - 24 $136,256 3115 3 Math 

Mango Math Afterschool & 
Summer 21 - 24 $157,269 363 28 Math 

Code Girls United Afterschool & 
Summer 21 - 24 $152,784 336 4 Math 

Educatio Learning 
Studio 

Afterschool 21 
Afterschool & 
Summer 22 - 24 

$146,293 230 5 Math 

 



DATA MODERNIZATION PROJECT UPDATE 

July 2024



OPI DATA MODERNIZATION PROJECT OVERVIEW
OPI Data Modernization Status and Overview Report

Activities
• Ongoing data replication from Infinite Campus State Edition to PowerSchool's Connected Intelligence.
• OPI staff continue to meet with the steering committee of key district staff and receive valuable feedback on the 

project and data collections.
• OPI staff presented to the PowerSchool User Group on June 18 to provide updates on the project.
• OPI staff and PowerSchool will present updates to school leaders at the SAM Administrator's Institute 

conference on July 24 and provide a demo.
• PowerSchool is building PS SIS custom connectors.
• Identified another data source (GEMS) for replication into Connected Intelligence through a VPN. GEMS 

replication is being completed.
• OPI is an active participant in the Education and Workforce Data Governing Committee and has been attending 

the ongoing meetings of the three working groups.
• Analysis is in progress for the additional modules of Unified Insights (Student Readiness, Risk Analysis, and 

Community Engagement).
• OPI provided a demo of the GEMS system to PowerSchool to assess current functionality and how Community 

Engagement will proceed. OPI also sent out a survey on GEMS to schools on June 28.
• Identifying and testing possible security solutions for school user access to the Unified Insights system.

2

https://montanaopi.sjc1.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_4SoaCXtFvbMGkXY


3

Category (Milestone) Task Progress Update

Systems Assessment Consulting (1-3)

Delivery of Draft Assessment Output Completed

Montana Review and Feedback Completed

Deliverable Updates and Final Approval Completed

PHASE I COMPLETE

Phase I was completed by September 22, 2023. It encompassed elements from project milestones 1-3.



4

Category (Milestone) Task Progress Update

Connected Intelligence (4a)
OPI CI Onboarding, including Platform Setup and Configuration Completed
OPI CI Security and Governance Implementation Completed
OPI CI Technical Training Completed

Connected Intelligence: Infinite Campus (IC) State Edition 
Integration (4a)

Finalize and share Data Dictionary/list of approved data elements Completed
ODBC Setup for IC State Edition Completed
Initial replication of AIM and AIM Datamart Data Completed
Ongoing Replication of AIM and AIM Datamart Data Completed

Analytics and Insights (5a)

Complete Custom Connector Analysis Completed

Build Custom Connector In Progress

Complete Analytics and Insights Implementation In Progress

Complete Analytics and Insights Technical Training Not Started

Customer Education (4/5)

Create Training Plan In Progress
State-level Analytics and Insights End User Training Not Started
District-level Analytics and Insights End User Training Not Started
Building-level Analytics and Insights End User Training Not Started

Phase III (4-5)
Analytics and Insights Risk Analysis Implementation In Progress
Analytics and Insights Student Readiness Implementation In Progress
Analytics and Insights Customizations Not Started

PHASE II & III PROGRESS



UPCOMING PHASES

5

Category (Milestone) Progress Update

Phase IV (4)

Complete PS SIS Custom Connector Analysis In Progress
Build Custom Connector for PS SIS Replication In Progress
Replicate data to CI for hosted districts Not Started
Set up VPNs for 6 On-Premise Districts Not Started

Replicate Data to VI for 6 On-Premise Districts Not Started

Connected Intelligence: State Reporting Enhancement Not Started

Phase V (4-5)
Replicate up to 6 additional data sources In Progress
Complete Community Engagement Implementation Not Started

Final Sign Off (6-7) Complete Post-Deployment and Final Sign Off Not Started

The Data Modernization project has a total of seven milestones. To get a more detailed look at the particular steps in 
each of the milestones, these were further broken down and organized into phases, recognizing that steps from different 
milestones may be co-occurring in the same phase. These phase items reflect what has been completed and items that 
are currently in progress or upcoming.



QUESTIONS?

6

























ITEM 4 
 
 

GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT 
 
 

Dylan Klapmeier 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM 5 
 
 

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
 

Gavin Mow 
 
 

  



ITEM 6 

ACTION TO ACCEPT AND PLACE ON FILE 
THE CLASS 7 LICENSURE CRITERIA FOR 
CHIPPEWA CREE TRIBE OF THE ROCKY 

BOY RESERVATION  

Matthew Bell 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE - (Items 6-9)

Susie Hedalen 



 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 
Date: July 18-19, 2024 

  
Presentation Class 7 MOU’s  

 
Presenter Mathew Bell 
 
Position Title American Indian Culture & Language Coordinator 

  
Overview  
  
Requested 
Decision(s) 

Action Item 

  
Related Issue(s)  
  
Recommendation(s) Accept and file criteria for Class 7 designation for 

Chippewa Cree Tribe of the Rocky Boy Reservation 

http://opi.mt.gov/










ITEM 7 

LITIGATION UPDATE 

Aislinn Brown 



ITEM 8 

NOTICE OF THE SURRENDER OF BPE 
CASE #2024-07 

Brenton Craggs 



********TIME CERTAIN AT 3:15 PM******** 

ITEM 9 

ACTION ON APPEAL HEARING OF 
BPE CASE #2024-04, OLIVER 

Aislinn Brown 



CALL TO ORDER 

A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. Roll Call
C. Statement of Public Participation
D. Welcome Visitors

July 18, 2024 
Montana State Capitol Building 

Room 152 
Helena, MT 



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – (Items 10-12)

Dr. Tim Tharp 

ITEM 10 

ACTION ON MEMBERSHIP TO THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE 

BOARDS OF EDUCATION (NASBE) 

McCall Flynn 



1 | P a g e

Benefits of Membership  

National Association of State Boards of Education 

The nonprofit, nonpartisan National Association of State Boards of Education (NASBE) is the only 

organization focused on meeting the needs and supporting the work of state boards of education. NASBE’s 

mission is to develop, support, and empower citizen leaders on state boards of education to strengthen 

public education systems so students of all backgrounds and circumstances are prepared to succeed in 

school, work, and life. 

By and For State Boards of Education 
State boards are uniquely positioned to reflect the citizen voice at the intersection of legislative policy 

making and state agency implementation. Boards are focused, deliberative and collaborative as they amplify 

legal requirements and work to create the conditions for a state’s education system to grow, improve and 

excel. They are situated to ask questions, reflect on data and research, convene partners and stakeholders, 

prioritize and plan, and enact policies, always working in sync within the complex eco-system of the 

education sector.  

The role and needs of state boards can best be met and supported by an organization that is uniquely 

designed and governed by them, and with them in mind. There is no other option that affords the 

board-centric information and peer-to-peer interaction opportunities that NASBE offers. The 

knowledge and perspective that comes with such interactions in combination with customized expertise can 

help increase boards’ effectiveness, impact, and influence. To this end NASBE focuses on the following.:  

• Creating opportunities for state board members to network and learn from each other, and share

interests, advice, lessons and goals as they seek to advance equity and excellence in education;

• Building state board members’ understanding of key education issues, practices, and challenges and

the role of state boards in addressing them;

• Inspiring boards to identify priorities, engage partners, ask questions, examine data and evidence,

identify strategies and actions, and support implementation to improve state education systems;

• Providing direct services and training to boards to build their capacity to operate effectively; and

• Synthesizing and communicating the perspective of state boards so they can impact federal policy

deliberations and actions toward prioritizing state leadership of public education.

The Benefits of Membership 
There are many benefits to a state board’s membership in NASBE. Among these are the following: 

Expertise. NASBE’s team knows how boards operate and is able to connect boards to the resources, 

research, and leading experts needed to navigate the policymaking process. NASBE leverages an extensive 

system of partners, coalitions, networks and connections to bring even more expertise to bear. NASBE not 

only brings boards together, it connects advocacy, research, and practice through a lens of pragmatic board 

action. State boards often turn to NASBE’s experts for thought partnership on particular issues of policy or 



2 | P a g e

practice. NASBE’s team can also offer personalized support on board operations, constituent engagement, 

goal setting, or policy review.  

Publications. Members want and need thought-provoking, practical, actionable, research-based information 

about the latest issues in education and on their role and functioning. The wide range of NASBE publications 

respond to those needs.  

▪ State Education Standard. This journal, written by subject-matter experts, provides insight into

education policy issues of significance. An editorial advisory board comprising state board members

reads and comments on drafts of each major article of the Standard prior to its approval for

publication.

▪ Education Leaders Reports cover hot topics as well as over-the-horizon thinking on education. They

provide background on policy issues, relevant research, and practical steps that the research findings

imply for state policymaking and practice.

▪ State Innovations provide concise examples of the policymaking experiences of particular state

boards of education. These reports serve as a source of new ideas for other states’ policymaking,

contacts to enable cross-state networking on key issues, and benchmarking.

▪ Policy Updates are two-page briefs on changes in federal education policy, state policy impacts, and

trends in education.

▪ Power of the Question reports are designed to present boards with a set of questions they may want

to ask on key education issues before them.

▪ Boardsmanship Reviews offer practical ideas on how to enhance the effectiveness and impact of a

state board of education.

Conferences and Events. NASBE hosts meetings and events each year for board members to engage with 

national experts and to network with peers from other states. Membership includes the following: 

▪ Regularly scheduled virtual “Office Hours” for board members to join with each other across the

country to gain insight into shared state policy issues and interact around their challenges and

experiences.

▪ Invitations to webinars on emerging issues and topics of interest in education.

▪ Discounted registration for NASBE’s Annual Conference.

▪ Two free registrations to the New Member Institute.

▪ Access to special interest meetings and convenings that bring together state board members and

national policy experts to examine key policy issues.

Training and Technical Assistance. NASBE offers member boards tools and resources to support them in 

effective leadership. Among the varied needs of state boards supported by NASBE are the following:  

▪ strategic planning

▪ assistance with state superintendent hiring and evaluation

▪ support for task forces and working groups

▪ boardsmanship

▪ board self-evaluation

▪ leading for equity and excellence

A National Voice.  As the national voice of state board members, NASBE has long represented its 

membership on critical education issues before Congress, the U.S. Department of Education, and other 

federal agencies. Member states are entitled to name one individual to serve on the Government Affairs 

Committee, which coordinates this work, and one individual to serve on the Public Education Positions 

Committee, which develops NASBE’s policy positions to guide this work. NASBE’s Public Education Positions 



3 | P a g e  
 

are approved by the organization’s Delegate Assembly which meets each year during the Annual Conference. 

This member approval again demonstrates NASBE’s member-driven approach.  

 

Selected Project Support. On selected policy and practice issues, NASBE often forms study groups or 

networks to assist state boards and their members to dive deep into subjects and further their state work. In 

some cases, these activities are accompanied by stipends. Stipends may be used to cover in-state meetings, 

technical assistance, and board professional development. 

 

Leadership Opportunities.  State boards are encouraged to nominate members to serve on NASBE 

committees and the Board of Directors to lead on education issues and governance on a national scale.  

 
Testimonials: Here’s what past and present members have said about the value of their membership in 

NASBE:  

 
“NASBE provides a wealth of benefits that stretch from top-notch professional development to serving as a 

prominent voice in shaping national education policy. More crucially, NASBE offers a forum where state 

education leaders from diverse regions and backgrounds can come together and not only learn from one 

another but create a common vision for public education and what’s best for children, regardless of 

whether they come from rural, urban, red, blue, north, south, or even non-states like the District of 

Columbia. Not only is NASBE great bang for the (minimal) buck, it is an amazing group of people.” 

 

“I am a better state board member because of the training, counsel, and interaction with NASBE. NASBE 

has also been a direct support to our state. The Kansas State Board of Education developed stronger 

relationships with our school administrators, especially those in small school districts, through activities 

and programs underwritten by a NASBE stipend. NASBE provides state board members with the supports 

necessary to meet the challenges of our times. I cannot imagine serving my state without the support and 

fellowship of NASBE.” 

 

“NASBE was instrumental in designing the process for evaluating our state superintendent, leading us to 

identify goals and metrics based on our strategic plan. The partnership with NASBE enabled us to set up 

an effective means of self-evaluation and holding state leadership accountable.”  

 

“When I was a local district board member, participation in our state school board association was a 

tremendous benefit for me. Now that I’m a state board member, the opportunities provided by NASBE for 

me are so valuable in helping me to be the best I can be. Other public officials I’ve known benefit from 

their organizations, so it only makes sense for me to do the same with NASBE.” 

 

For More Information 
Contact Paolo DeMaria, NASBE’s president and CEO at paolo.demaria@nasbe.org with membership 
questions. 

mailto:paolo.demaria@nasbe.org


1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Member Service Offerings 
 
The nonprofit, nonpartisan National Association of State Boards of Education (NASBE) is the only 
organization focused on meeting the needs and supporting the work of state boards of education. 
NASBE’s mission is to develop, support, and empower citizen leaders on state boards of education to 
strengthen public education systems so students of all backgrounds and circumstances are prepared to 
succeed in school, work, and life. 
 
In furtherance of this mission, NASBE offers to its members a wide range of services designed to support 
success in board activity, policy development, system improvement and impact.  
 
Boardsmanship Training 
A functioning board is fundamental to achieving success and driving an agenda committed to excellence 
and improvement. Even when Board members bring differing perspectives and opinions to the table, 
courtesy and collaboration, and an understanding of collective voice, can lead to an effective board 
process. 
 

• A free service (excluding travel expenses) provided to all NASBE members and customizable 
in duration beginning at a minimum of 2 hours up to a full day. 

• Can be delivered to new members, one-on-one, in small groups, or to the full board, virtually 
or in-person. 

• Virtual option – no charge 
• In-person option – state pays actual travel and lodging expenses. No consultation fee. 
• An excellent contribution to a board retreat or onboarding process. 

  
Board Effectiveness – Self-Assessment 
From time to time, every board wants to know how well it is doing. Creating an open and honest 
opportunity to gauge member satisfaction with board processes and approaches can be a powerful 
contributor to continuous improvement, and strengthen relationships and effectiveness.  
 

• A free service (excluding travel expenses) that utilizes a survey of board members to assess 
members’ opinions of the board’s effectiveness in policy leadership and efficiency of 
operations. 

• A report is generated and shared with members followed by a discussion for priority setting 
and action steps to improve effectiveness and operations. 

• Can be delivered virtually or in person. 
• Virtual option – no cost. 
• In-person option – state pays actual travel and lodging expenses. No consultation fee. 
 

Strategic Planning  
A strategic plan for education is at the heart of the work of most State Boards. Developing one is no small 
feat. NASBE offers two levels of service: Process consultation, and complete strategic planning support. 



2 | P a g e  
 

This article from the January 2023 issue of The State Education Standard discussed what good strategic 
planning looks like. 
 

Process Consultation:  
• A free service of up to 8 hours in assisting state boards in conceptualize and designing a 

strategic planning process to meet their needs and context.  
 
Complete Strategic Planning:  
• A fee-based service discounted for NASBE member states. 
• An in-depth process of data analysis, policy review, brainstorming, consensus building, 

metrics determination, and plan development. 
• A multi-phase process from stakeholder engagement to final adoption generally spanning 

three to six months. 
• Consultation fee – negotiated based on exact project specifications. 
• Expenses based on actual travel and lodging costs. 

 
Chief State School Officer Assessment or Evaluation  
For those State Boards that employ their chief state school officer, a fair and meaningful process of 
assessment or evaluation can be an important tool to promote greater alignment, collaboration and 
impact. 

• A fee-based service (discounted for NASBE members) that utilizes a process of surveying 
board members combined with a self-assessment by the chief to identify strengths and 
improvement opportunities relative to the chief’s performance. 

• Designed around five forces of leadership: technical leadership, human leadership, 
educational leadership, cultural leadership, symbolic leadership. 

• Consultation fee – negotiated based on exact project specifications. 
• Expenses based on actual travel and lodging costs. 

 
Chief State School Officer Search 
For those State Boards that hire the chief state school officer, there is no more important activity than the 
identification of a highly-qualified and effective individual to lead. NASBE is unique positioned to assist 
with such searches given its deep understanding of state boards, state departments of education and state 
chiefs. NASBE offers two levels of service: Process consultation, and a complete search process. 
 
 Process Consultation 

• A free service of up to 8 hours in assisting a state board to conceptualize and design a chief 
state school officer search to meet their needs and context. 

 
 Complete Search Process 

• A fee-based service, discounted for NASBE member states. 
• Comprehensive multi-phase chief search led by NASBE staff. 
• Conducted over a four to five month period. 
• Detailed proposal can be supplied on request. 
• Consultation fee – negotiated based on exact project specifications. 
• Expenses based on actual travel and lodging costs. 

 
Task Force/Work Group Facilitation/Board Retreats 
Many state boards identify issues or challenges that require more intensive and thorough attention. The 
idea of a task force or work group is very common, and has proven to be a successful way to understand 
issues, identify appropriate data and research and build consensus around needed policies, approaches 
and practices. Board retreats often include planning activities that lay out the work for the coming year. 



3 | P a g e  
 

Often such engagements require outside facilitation. NASBE also brings to the process deep expertise on 
education issues as well as an understanding of state boards and their role. NASBE offers two levels of 
service: Process consultation, and complete facilitation support. 
 
 Process Consultation 

• A free service of up to 4 hours of support in assisting a state board to conceptualize and design 
a task force or working group approach around a particular issue or challenge. 

 
 Complete Facilitation Support 

• A fee-based service discounted for NASBE member states. 
• Comprehensive multi-phase task force or work group facilitation led by NASBE staff. 
• Conducted over a three to four month period. 
• Detailed proposal can be supplied upon request. 
• Consultation fee – negotiated based on exact project specifications. 
• Expenses based on actual travel and lodging costs. 

 
For more information about these or any other assistance that NASBE may be positioned to provide, reach 
out to Paolo DeMaria, President & CEO at paolo.demaria@nasbe.org, or at 614-357-8545.  

mailto:paolo.demaria@nasbe.org


ITEM 11 

INFORMATION ON MONTANA SCHOOL 
INSURANCE ALLIANCE 

John Doran 



Montana School 
Insurance Alliance
(MTSIA)

June 19, 2024

Presented by:
John Doran
Chief Strategy Officer



Agenda

2

 HB332

 Mission/Goals

 Governance

 Underwriting Methodology

 Value Proposition



3

 Minimum 150 districts

 Minimum 12,000 covered Employee Lives 
(different than member lives)

 Max 12% of annual funding spent on admin

 Equal allocation of assessment risk among 
members

 Five-year initial commitment, five-year 
lockout period

 Early exit possible based on renewal and 
claim performance

$40M in funding to first 

new public school health 

insurance trust to meet 

minimum requirements by 

July 1st, 2026, deadline

HB 332 



4

Program Goals

Establish and maintain a 
member-directed risk sharing 
pool

Offer insurance program that 
is cost competitive and meets 
the needs of Montana school 
districts

Committed to full 
transparency in all costs and 
accounting

Create equitable risk sharing 
structures to ensure fairness 
and consistency for all 
members

Offer long-term stability 
through large pool risk 
sharing, fiscally prudent 
operations and accounting

Achieve goals established by 
HB332 and maximize $40M 
investment to benefit for 
Montana public schools



5

 Member-Directed: Governance by 
members participating in the Program

 Representative: Roles comprised of 
members from districts representing the 
make-up of schools in Montana

 Fair & Equitable: Decisions made by a 
group of people who reflect the 
membership of the program

 Transparent: Program financial data always 
available to members

 Fiscal Sustainability: Offer most financially 
efficient, competitive and stable insurance 
coverage to members

Guiding 
Principles



6

Member-Driven Board 

 Initial Board to serve through Oct. 31, 2026

 Permanent Board made up of representation from AA, A, B, C, independent elem

 Guided by bylaws (currently in progress)

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board include:

 Approve new members to the program

 Approve program renewals

 Oversee program financials

 Oversee operational aspects of program

 Placement of insurance/reinsurance

 Approve program vendors

 Appoint advisory committees as needed

 Declare assessments/dividends

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Governance



7

Interim Board of Directors

 Barb Riley, Board Chair MTSBA  Columbia Falls

 Craig VanNice, Vice Chair AA Admin Billings

 Casey Bertram  AA Admin Bozeman

 Dale Olinger  MASS  Lolo

 Lindsey Kambich MPFE  Butte

 Brad More  MASBO  Lewistown

 Joel Graves  MASS  Eureka

 Mark Johnston  MQEC  Ronan

 Jim Howard  MREA  Bonner

 Quint Nyman  MUST  State

 Carrie Ruff  MASBO  Bonner

 David King  MFPE  Billings

 Amanda Curtis  MQEC  State

 Elliott Crump  MREA  Shelby

 Krystal Zentner  MTSBA  Bridgetr

 Shawn Bubb  MUST  State 
 



8

Underwriting

 Fully-pooled risk arrangement

 Committee ensures suitable risk characteristics through new 
member approval process

 Members are brought in at the “right” rate

 New business opportunities are rated appropriately based on 
their risk profile

 Renewal underwriting as a single pool

 New groups receive the pool renewal for a specified period (2-3 
years)

 After the guarantee period, member groups are allocated the 
pool renewal with an adjustment based on their own 
performance (renewal allocation methodology)

District A District B District C

TRUST PROGRAM

TPA
(Medical 
claims & 

admin fees)

PBM
(Rx claims & 
admin fees)

Other
(Stoploss 

insurance, 
vendor fees, 

etc..)

Premium paid into 
Program based on 
fixed-rates

Program pays all 
claims and fees 
related to run 
health insurance 
pool.



Jan. 1, 2024 Oct. 1, 2024 June 30, 2025 July 1 – Oct. 1, 2026

9

Timeline of Milestones

Health Care Summit

Program Launch

Benefit Design 
Complete

Begin Marketing to 
School Districts

Meet or Exceed 
150 Districts and 
12,000 Covered 
Employees to 
Qualify the MTSIA

MTSIA Coverage 
Begins



10

Value Proposition:  All Members

 Cost Competitiveness

 Pooled renewal stability

 Benefit design flexibility

 Consultative support

 Transparency

 Enhanced Reporting

 HB 332



ITEM 12 

INFORMATION ON OFFICE OF PUBLIC 
INSTRUCTION REGIONAL CAREER 

COACHES 

Mary Heller 



 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: July 17‐19, 2024 
  

Presentation  Montana Ready Update 

   

Presenter  Mary Heller 

 

Position Title  Montana Ready Coordinator 
 

   
Overview  The purpose is to provide an overview of Montana OPI 

Ready Initiatives, including a summary of the work 
provided by 9 regional career coaches during the 2023‐
2024 school year.   

   

Requested Decision(s)  Information Only 

   

Related Issue(s)   

   

Recommendation(s)  None 
   



Montana 
Ready
Preparing Montana’s students for college, career, 
community, and life. 



Mission Statement 

Montana Ready is an initiative driven by 
Superintendent Elsie Arntzen to promote 

Community, College, and Career preparedness with 
K-12 and adult education students. Focused on 

Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math (STEM), 
Career and Technical Adult Education (CTAE), and 

Career and Technical Student Organizations (CTSOs), 
Montana Ready partners with the public and private 
sector, the military, and post-secondary entities to 
promote career ready students as the quality, high-

skilled workforce of tomorrow. 



Montana Ready – Career Development K-12 Connection

K-12 Education Workforce



Alabama’s Model
In 12 years, Alabama went from the 
bottom tier of economic 
development to being one of the 
top states in the nation. 

• Highlights:
• Coordinated state-wide initiative 

of partnerships with legislative 
support  - Industry Driven and 
focused on CTE

• Integrated Career Development 
activities and standards K-12

Billings School District

Billings SD hired a team of career 
coaches, and they are making gains 
in students career development. 

• What they are doing:
• Career Coaches assigned to 

work with each school
• Careers Center 
• Work Based Learning 

opportunities

Career Development Models



Examples of industries that will be in high demand through 2031 and beyond:

• Highway Construction Including Transportation (i.e. Automotive & Diesel 
Technicians)

• Health and Medical Care
• Hospitality and Tourism
• Vertical Construction Including the Building Trades (i.e. Electricians, 

Plumbers, etc.)
• Childcare and Education (i.e. Early Childhood/Elementary, Special Education, 

and Industrial Technology)
• Welding and Manufacturing

5

Industry Needs



Industry Needs

• Skilled employees adequately prepared to join the workforce. 
• School liaisons in the K-12 environment to the private sector, military, 

and other stakeholders promoting career awareness and industry-
driven preparation. 



Regional 
Career 
Coaches
What did 9 Regional Career Coaches establish to 
support career and workforce development in 
Montana? 



CTAE and CTSOs

• Career and Technical Education leads to workforce development success. In 
Montana, we include Adult Education – CTAE

• Montana has 16 recognized CTE pathways and 100s of careers that require different levels of 
training and/or education

• CTSOs help students with leadership development which is tied to employability 
skill training. Montana has seven nationally-recognized CTSOs:

• Skills USA
• BPA – Business Professionals of America
• FCCLA – Family Career and Community Leaders of America
• FFA – Future Farmers of America
• TSA – Technology Student Association
• HOSA– Health Occupations Students of America
• DECA – Distributive Education Clubs of America



• Partnered with licensed, education professionals and industry partners to 
ensure quality work based learning experiences:

Internships, pre-apprenticeship programs, school-based enterprise 
businesses, simulated workplace, and more. 

• Quality WBL opportunities include:
• Clear, pre-determined objectives/learning outcomes
• Students can earn transcript credits 
• Components of assessment and feedback sharing
• Possibility to earn IRCs (industry recognized credentials)
• True real-world work experiences!

Work Based Learning Opportunities



Four Levels of Work Based Learning



Connection with Multiple Stakeholders

Colleges, Montana Registered 
Apprenticeship Programs, Military etc.

School counselors, CTE teachers, 
CTSO leaders, administrators, etc.

Dept. of Labor and Industry,  
Chamber of Commerce, Montana 
Contractors Association, Jobs for 
Montana Graduates, and more…

POST-HS TRAINING 
PROGRAMS

PARENTS & COMMUNITY 
MEMBERS 

SCHOOLS

BUSINESSES & 
INDUSTRY PARNTERS

OTHER AGENCIES



Montana Ready Components 2023-2024

• August – September: Communication with schools to establish career 
development opportunities

• October: ACTE Conference-bridge building with educators
• November – May: 

• Partnered with business/industry for career fair events; 
• Provided classroom lessons for career pathway advice and activities; 
• Delivered professional development on WBL for teachers, counselors, and administrators; 
• Worked closely with districts on developing authentic, standards based WBL opportunities
• Created and maintained a newsletter; and
• Brought new partnerships to schools.

• May – Present: Wrapping it all up and helping districts, business, and industry 
prepare for next year and beyond.



Identification of District Levers 
October - February

• What partnership do districts have?
 104 with the OPI – coordination between Career Coaches and CTE/CTSOs
 14 with the DLI – in Apprenticeship and Career Lab, and a few with JMG. 
 39 are working with OPI Career Coaches

• What districts are providing and supporting employability/soft skill 
training? 
 61 from CTE/CTSO
 22 from counselor, college, career classes
 13 from other extra curricular including JMG, National Honor Society, etc.



Montana Ready Events: March - April

• Montana Ready Trades Day in April – over 500 students attended
 All Class C schools except for Lewistown Public Schools

• Collected pre-event data from 252 students



Montana Ready Events: March - April

• Other insightful information



Professional Development for Districts: 
January - May

• Community of Practice – How to best implement WBL in your district
• Support to school administrators, teachers, counselors, and parents for:
 January: Career Awareness
 February: Career Exploration
 March: Career Training
 April: Career Launch
 May: Career Connected Learning

Over 100 educators from around the state attended one or more of these sessions 
and many more subscribed to receive the recording and resources afterwards. 



Other Activities Led by Career Coaches: 
October - July

• Bi-Monthly Newsletters 
• Nearly 500 subscribers 

• Assist with partners
 MPSEOC
 Build Montana
 PopUp events for construction 

 industry
 Read Alouds “Grit Leads 
 to Greatness”

 AHEC
 Increased Advanced

Opportunity applications
 Increase of 39 school district
 applications
 10 districts turned away because
 there isn’t enough funding



Middle School Exploration

• American Student Assistance ratings in three key areas for Middle School Career Exploration:
1. Vision –Emerging. Gives credit to the legislature in support of CTSOs and the 

Montana Ready Initiative for using Regional Career Coaches
2. Policy – Emerging. Credits the OPI for Standards for Workplace Competencies, 

standards for CTE for K-12 students, WBL manual, and activities under 
Advanced Opportunities funding.

3. Infrastructure – Emerging. Credits the state utilizing various funding sources 
to support career exploration activities: Perkins V, Montana Career Lab, and 
support to CTSOs. 



Ongoing Montana Ready Needs 

• Districts report that they want ongoing connections between Career 
Development and other the OPI initiatives:
 CTE and CTSOs
 Advanced Opportunities and Transformational Learning
 Teacher credentials and support for professional development
 Perkins Grant for K-12
 High school credit opportunities for graduation requirements

• These districts are developing their own Career Coach:
 Gallatin High School
 Charlo
 Columbia Falls
 Big Fork



Want more information? 
• Learn more about Montana Ready and Career Technical Education
• Review the Revised 2023 Work-Based Learning Manual

Mary Heller, Montana Ready Coordinator 
 Email: Mary.heller@mt.gov
 Phone: (406) 399-0640 

THANK YOU

https://opi.mt.gov/Educators/Teaching-Learning/Montana-Ready
https://opi.mt.gov/Educators/Teaching-Learning/Career-Technical-Education-CTE
https://opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=Nq1E8eUZ4o8%3d&portalid=182
mailto:Mary.heller@mt.gov


REPORTS – (Item 13)

Dr. Tim Tharp 

ITEM 13 

COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION 
REPORT 

Dr. Angela McLean 



 

Montana University System Report 

Montana Board of Public Education  

July 18, 2024  

 

• Montana’s Future at Work Grantees 
 

• FAFSA Completion Efforts  
 

• College Readiness and Math  
 

 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 



Bridging Education Transitions: 
Supporting Remedial Math & Writing 

Needs in MT

Crystine Miller, Director of Student Affairs & Student Engagement, OCHE
Lauren Fern, Assistant Professor & Mathematics Discipline Lead, Missoula College

Elizabeth Burroughs, Phd, Professor, Mathematics, Montana State University



Distribution of Enrollment of First-Time Freshman in a 
First Math/Writing Class over Time

35%

15%3%

16%

62%
69%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2015-16 2021-22

Math

17%

4%1%

12%

82% 84%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2015-16 2021-22

Writing



MUS Developmental Education Strategies
Institute Math Pathways (specific math courses 
directly relevant to each field of study)

Transition away from pre-requisite to a co-
requisite model

Revise performance funding metric to incentivize 
first-year math/writing completion

Adopt common, system-wide placement policy

Promote professional development for faculty, 
advisors, and administrators





Proportion of Enrollment and College Level Pass Rates 
 All First-Time Freshman from 2015-2022 

Math

Writing

Fail/Pass
College Level

Fail/Pass
Co-
requisite

Fail/Pass 
Remedial

24% 13% 63% of total enrollment

41% Pass 77% Pass 87% Pass

82% of total enrollment8% 10%

61% 
Pass 76% Pass 88% Pass

100% of 
Math 
Enrollment

100% of 
Writing 
Enrollment



Implications: Graduation Rates 2-year
Graduation rate of 2-year college student cohorts who started college between 2015 and 2019 and either took a co-req, 
remedial or college level math or writing course.

3%

13% 14%
11%

25% 26%

19%

34% 32%

Writing

2 Years
(On-

time)

4 Years
(200%)

3 Years
(150%)

College LevelCo-requisiteRemedial

3%

13%

19%

11%

25%

33%

19%

33%
38%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Math

2 Years
(On-time)

3 Years
(150%)

4 Years
(200%)



Implications: Graduation Rates 4-year
Graduation rate of 4-year college student cohorts who started college between 2015 and 2017 and either took a co-req, 
remedial or college level math or writing course.

12%
21%

34% 35%

66%
58%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Math

8% 8%

29% 27%

55%

Writing
4 Years

(On-
time)

4 Years
(On-

time)

6 Years
(150%)

6 Years
(150%)

College LevelCo-requisiteRemedial



Recommendation
Montana high schools adopt three years of math as the minimum                  
graduation standard. 
• The proposed “Core” standards are very strong. Yet, there remains a skills gap between 

content in those standards and any of the math courses in the MUS math pathways 
including pathways for CTE, certificate, and two-year degree programs. Additionally, only 
two years of math does not give students adequate time and practice in the skill areas 
required for college-readiness. 

• Every Montana Career Pathway for in-demand careers in the state recommends four 
years of math to be career and college-ready. 

• Low math course taking impacts students self-perception of ability to pursue 
postsecondary education, including certificate, two-year, and four-year degree paths. 

• Montana is one of only three states in the country with a minimum requirement of two 
math courses for HS graduation.

• Montana HS graduation standards require four years of writing/ELA. MUS enrollment 
trends suggest that increased ELA course-taking at the HS level results in stronger 
college-readiness skills for MT high school students and lower need for remediation. 



K-12 and Higher Ed Collaboration

• Structuring math in dual enrollment opportunities for high school students

• Leveraging existing resources to support K-12 teachers in earning required 9 
credits of math

• Strengthening use of EdReady as a tool for college readiness

• Creating shared professional development opportunities to strengthen transition 
between k-12 and post-secondary for Montana students.

• Strengthening dialogue between K-12 and Postsecondary



MACIE LIAISON – (Items 14-15)

Susie Hedalen 

ITEM 14 

MACIE REPORT 

Action Item: 

• Action on Fort Peck Tribal
Representative 

Jordann Lankford Forster 



MONTANA ADVISORY COUNCIL ON INDIAN EDUCATION 
ADVISORY TO THE BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND 
SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION 

Montana Board of Public Education 
MACIE Summary 

July 2024 

Presentation MACIE Report  

Presenter Jordann Lankford Forster 

Position Title MACIE Chair 

Overview The purpose of MACIE is to provide 
recommendations and guidance to the Board of 
Public Education and the Office of Public 
Instruction on initiatives and actions aimed at 
increasing American Indian student achievement. 
As your advisory board, and partner in American 
Indian education improvement, we offer the 
following report: 

Requested Decision Approve Fort Peck Tribal Representative 

Related Issue(s) June MACIE Meeting 

Recommendations Approve Fort Peck Tribal Representative 
(information below) 

Fort Peck Tribal Representative 
Rena Lambert 
Poplar, MT 

Rena Lambert serves as the Education Director for the Fort Peck Tribes. She is excited to 
participate in MACIE on behalf of the tribe. 



ITEM 15 

AMERICAN INDIAN STUDENT 
ACHIEVEMENT PANEL AND DISCUSSION 

Jordann Lankford Forster, Ivan Small, 
Carrie Kouba, Crystal Hickman 



1 
 

 
Montana American Indian Student 

Achievement Data  
 

 
 
Explanation of Data Used: 
 

• The data used in this report comes from the statewide assessments given in the 2018, 
2019, 2021, 2022, and 2023 school years. 

• SBAC – The Smarter Balanced assessment serves as the Math and English Language 
Arts(ELA) assessments for Grades 3-8. 

• ACT – The ACT is used as the statewide assessment for Grade 11 for English and 
Math. 

• There are four proficiency levels for each test, two below obtaining proficiency in a 
subject -Novice and Nearing Proficiency – and two at proficient or above –Proficient and 
Advanced. 

• Cohort Dropout Rate – High School Dropout rates are calculated by taking the number 
of students who dropped out in four years or less, divided by the total number of 
students in their anticipated graduation year. 

• Cohort Graduation Rate – Graduation rates are calculated by taking the number of 
students who graduate (1) in four years or less with a regular high school diploma, or (2) 
a State-defined alternate high school diploma for students with the most significant 
cognitive disabilities, divided by the number of students in their expected graduation 
year. 

Areas of success: 
Reading and ELA: 

• Overall reading proficiency for high school students grew by 5% points between 2022 
and 2023 and has surpassed pre-pandemic levels reaching 21% in 2023 as compared to 
18% in 2019.  

• Advanced reading proficiency in Indian high school students doubled in the last year 
rising from 3% in 2022 to 6% in 2023.  

• All students in grades 3-8, Indian and non-Indian, experienced an increase in reading 
proficiency between 2022 and 2023.   

 
 Math: 

• High school math proficiency for Indian students increased between 2022 and 2023 and 
has reached pre-pandemic levels of proficiency.  

• In 2018, non-Indian high school students had a proficiency rate in math that was 26 
percentage points higher than Indian high school students. In 2023, that difference is 
now 20 percentage points, showing a 6% decrease in the gap in math proficiency 
between Indian and non-Indian high school students.  



2 
 

• Math proficiency for Indian students in grades 3-8 is beginning to tend upwards after a 
decline during the pandemic between 2018 and 2021. 

 
Science: 

• ACT science proficiency for Indian high school students increased from 8% in 2021 to 
18% in 2023. 

 
Graduation: 

• The average four-year cohort graduation rate for Indian students in 2023 was 67.5% 
which is higher than the national graduation threshold minimum goal of 67%.  

 
Drop out:    

• Overall, dropout rates fell for Indian students between 2022 and 2023.  
• Indians on reservations are the only population showing a decreasing trend in dropout 

rate over the last six years (despite increase from 2019 to 2021).  

Areas of challenge:  
Overall challenges: Trendline data shows high school Indian students in 2023 achieved 
proficiency levels that were higher than rates seen in 2018 in both math and ELA; meaning, 
Indian high school students are achieving at a higher rate post-pandemic as compared to pre-
pandemic (the same is true for non-Indian students in ELA only) . This is not the case, however, 
for students in grades 3-8. Both Indian and non-Indian students are showing lower levels of 
proficiency in 2023 in both math and ELA, as compared to levels in 2018. This may indicate 
both Indian and non-Indian students in grades 3-8 are still recovering from the effects of the 
Covid pandemic, while older students (high school students) may be more fully recovered from 
the pandemic’s effects.   
 
 
Reading and ELA: 

• Forty-nine percent of non-Indian students in grades 3-8 are proficient in reading 
compared to 19% of Indian students, a difference of 30 percentage points. 

• Fifty-one percent of non-Indian high school students are proficient in reading compared 
to 21% of Indian students, a difference of 30 percentage points. 

• All students in grades 3-8, Indian and non-Indian, show decreasing rates of reading 
proficiency between 2018 and 2023 and increasing rates of students scoring in the 
novice category.  

 
 Math: 

• Forty-one percent of non-Indian students in grades 3-8 are proficient in math compared 
to 14% of Indian students, a difference of 27 percentage points. 

• Thirty percent of non-Indian high school students are proficient in math compared to 
10% of Indian students, a difference of 20 percentage points. 

 
Science: 

• Forty-five percent of non-Indian students in grades 3-8 are proficient in science 
compared to 18% of Indian students, a difference of 27 percentage points. 

• Forty-five percent of non-Indian high school students are proficient in science compared 
to 18% of Indian students, a difference of 27 percentage points. 

 
 



3 
 

Graduation: 
• The average graduation rate for non-Indian students in 2023 was 89.5% compared to 

67.5% for Indian students, a difference of 22 percentage points.  
 
Drop out:    

• The average dropout rate for non-Indian students in 2023 was 1.7% compared to 5% for 
Indian students. 

Academic Achievement, Graduation, and Dropout Data 
Smarter Balanced ELA Proficiency:  
 
Graph 1 

 
Graph1: shows the percentages of students scoring in each proficiency level for the Smarter 
Balance ELA assessment. This data is broken out by years 2018, 2019, 2021, 2022, and 2023. 
The comparison of Indian and non-Indian student ELA achievement data displays a gap with 
20% of Indian students scoring at a proficient level compared to 49% of non-Indian students. 
Likewise, the average percentage of students falling in the novice category from 2018-2023 for 
Indian students is 54%, as compared to non-Indian students who show an average novice rate 
of 23.8% during that same time frame. The  percentage of Indian students testing at the novice 
level has been increasing over the past 5 years and ELA proficiency has not yet recovered to 
pre-pandemic levels.  
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 
 
 
Smarter Balanced Reading  
 
Graph 2 

 
Graph 2 illustrates the percentages of students considered proficient in reading between 2018 
and 2023. The proficiency gap between Indian and non-Indian students fell by two percentage 
points in the time frame displayed. In 2018, the rate of non-Indian students considered proficient 
was 31 percentage points higher than that of non-Indian students; in 2023 this difference 
between non-Indian and Indian students was 29 percentage points.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

 
 
 
 
ACT Reading 
 
Graph 3 

 
Graph 3 shows the percentages of high school students scoring in each proficiency level for the 
ACT Reading Assessment. This data is broken out by years 2018, 2019, 2021, 2022 and 2023. 
Fifty-two percent of non-Indian students were deemed proficient in reading in 2023 while 21% of 
Indian students scored in the proficient category that same year.The percentage of Indian 
students scoring at the novice level decreased from 71% in 2022 to 62% in 2023, which is six 
percentage points lower than the pre-pandemic novice percentage of 68% in 2018. By 
comparison, the percentage of novice non-Indian students in 2018 was 32%, which is equal to 
the percentage of  non-Indian students falling in the novice category in 2023.      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
High School Reading Trends 
 
Graph 4 
 

 
Graph 4 illustrates the percentages of high school students considered proficient in reading for 
the years 2018, 2019, 2021, 2022, and 2023. Both Indian and non-Indian students show an 
increase in reading proficiency between 2018 and 2023, with a noticeable rise between 2022 
and 2023. Both Indian and non-Indian students are displaying reading proficiency rates that 
surpass pre-pandemic proficiency numbers. As of 2023, non-Indian students are testing 
proficiently at a rate 30 percentage points higher than Indian students; this is a decrease of 1 
percentage point when compared to 2018.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
SBAC Math 
 
Graph 5 

 
Graph 5 shows the percentages of students scoring in each proficiency level for the Smarter 
Balance Math assessment. This data is broken out by years 2018, 2019, 2021, 2022, and 2023. 
Twenty-nine perfect of non-Indian students were considered novice in 2023, as compared to 
63% of Indian students. The average percentage of novice students between 2018-2023 is 
27.7% for non-Indian students and 60.8% for Indian students.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Math Trends Grades 3-8 
 
Graph 6

 
Graph 6 illustrates the percentages of students considered proficient.  The gap in proficiency is 
more evident between non-Indian and Indian American students.  In the year 2023 the non-
Indian American population percentage of proficiency is 41%. Indian American students scored 
14% in 2023. Since 2018 the average for Indian American students scoring proficient or 
advanced is 15%.  The Non-Indian American student average for the same time period was 
41.8%.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
ACT Math 
 
Graph 7

 
 
Graph 7 illustrates the percentages of high school students considered proficient in math for the 
years 2018, 2019, 2021, 2022 and 2023. In 2023, 10% of Indian students were proficient while 
30% of non-Indian students were proficient. In 2023, the percentage of Indian students scoring 
in the novice category was down by 5 percentage points, as compared to 2022 with 73% of 
Indian students scoring as novice compared to 78% the year prior. The average percentage of 
students scoring as novice in math between 2018 and 2023 is 40% for non-Indian students, and 
73.6% for Indian students.    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
High School Math Trends 
 
Graph 8

 
Graph 8 indicates a 4% improvement in Indian students scoring proficient or advanced in math 
between 2022 and 2023.  Non-Indian American students scoring proficient or advanced also 
made a 4% gain. In 2023, non-Indian students scored at a proficient rate that was 20 
percentage points higher than non-Indian students; this is an improvement as the difference in 
2018 was 26 percentage points, meaning the gap between Indian and non-Indian students has 
decreased by 6%.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 
 

 
 
 
 
 
MSA Science  
 
Graph 9 

 
Graph 9 illustrates the percentages of students considered proficient in science for the years 
2022 and 2023. There has been very little difference between the percentages of students 
scoring in each category from 2022 to 2023. In 2023, 46% of Indian students scored as novices 
compared to19% of non-Indian students.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Science Trends Grades 5 and 8 
 
Graph 10

 
Graph 10 shows the number of students scoring as proficient in science in 2022 and 2023. 
There has been no change in the number of students scoring as proficient, with 18% of Indian 
students scoring proficient in 2022 and 2023 and 45% of non-Indian students scoring proficient 
during the same years.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 
 

 
 
 
 
 
ACT Science  
 
Graph 11 

 
Graph 11 illustrates the percentages of high school students considered proficient in science for 
the years 2021, 2022 and 2023. The number of Indian students scoring in the novice category 
has decreased from 69% in 2021 to 62% in 2023, a decrease of 7 percentage points. The 
number of non-Indian students scoring as novice also fell between 2021 and 2023 from 35% to 
33%.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



14 
 

 
 
 
 
 
ACT Science Trends 
 
Graph 12

 
Graph 12 shows the number of high school students scoring proficient in science in the years 
2021, 2022, and 2023. The number of Indian students scoring proficient in science increased by 
10 percentage points between 2021 and 2023. The number of non-Indian students proficient in 
science also increased between 2021 and 2023. In 2023, 18% of Indian students were proficient 
in science as compared to 45% of non-Indian students.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Graduation  
 
Graph 13

 
Graph 13 illustrates the percentages of students who graduated in 4 years for the years 2018, 
2019, 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023. The 4-year graduation rate of Indian students has fallen 
since 2020, with 71% of Indian students graduating in 2020 compared to 68% of Indian students 
in 2023. By contrast, the number of non-Indian students has remained nearly consistent 
between 2018 and 2023 at 88% or 89% of students graduating in four years.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



16 
 

 
 
 
 
Graduation Rates  
 
Graph 14 

 
Graph 14 illustrates the graduation rates for six student groups for the years 2018, 2019, 2020, 
2021, 2022, and 2023. For all years represented, the student group with the highest four-year 
graduation rate are students on a reservation and non-Indian. This is followed by non-Indian 
students not on a reservation for years 2018-2023. For all years except 2020, Indian students 
living on a reservation had the lowest four-year graduation rate followed by Indian students not 
on a reservation; in 2020, Indian students not on a reservation had a graduation rate slightly 
lower than Indian students on a reservation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



17 
 

 
 
 
 
Graduation Rate Trends 
 
Graph 15

 
Graph 15 shows the graduation rates for four student groups for the years 2018 to 2023. Over 
the last 5 years, the graduation rates for all students groups has stayed relatively the same 
though a slight decrease in graduation was present for Indian students on and off reservations 
between 2022 and 2023.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



18 
 

 
 
 
 
Dropout  
 
Graph 16

 
Graph 16 displays the group out rate for four student groups for years 2018- 2023. In all years 
except for 2021, Indian students on a reservation show the highest rate of drop out, followed by 
Indian students not on a reservation. In 2021, Indian students on a reservation displayed the 
highest dropout rate. Overall, the rate of dropout for all student groups in 2023 is similar to the 
dropout rates in 2018.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



19 
 

 
 
 
 
Dropout Rate Trends 
 
Graph 17 

 
Graph 17 displays the dropout rate for four student groups for years 2018- 2023. Between 2022 
and 2023, the dropout rate for Indian students not on a reservation fell from 5.62% to 4.69%. 
Likewise, the dropout rate for Indian students on a reservation fell from 5.8% in 2022 to 5.34% 
in 2023.  
 

 

   

 



ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – (Items 16-22)

Madalyn Quinlan 

ITEM 16 

REVIEW OF SUPERINTENDENT’S 
PROPOSED REVISIONS TO ARM TITLE 10, 
CHAPTER 53, MATHEMATICS CONTENT 

STANDARDS 

Dr. Julie Murgel 
 Marie Judisch 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: July 2024 

Presentation Mathematics Content Standards Revision 

Presenter Marie Judisch 

Position Title Senior Manager of Teaching and Learning 
Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Overview Review of Proposed Rules: Math Content 
Standards – Title 10, Chapter 53, Subchapter 5 

- Amend K-12 Mathematical Practices
- Amend K-8 Content Standards
- Repeal Former 9-12 Content Standards
- Adopt New 9-12 Content Standards

Requested Decision(s) 
 Informational Item 

Related Issue(s) 
Content Standards, Accreditation 

Recommendation(s) 
None 



Proposed Amendments to the Administrative Rules of Montana
Mathematics Content Standards, Chapter 10.53 Subchapter 5

Submitted [date], 2024 by the Superintendent of Public Instruction

Prepared for: The Montana Board of Public Education

Prepared by:

· Marie Judisch, Senior Manager, Montana Office of Public Instruction
· Katrina Engeldrum, Math Instructional Coordinator, Montana Office of Public Instruction

Overview
The Superintendent of Public Instruction, with approval from the Montana Board of Public Education (BPE), in late 2022 opened for review the
Montana Mathematics Standards detailed in Chapter 10.53.5 of the Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM)1. The purpose of the review is to ensure
that Montana public schools are setting high academic standards for all children of our state. The goal is to serve our Montana students and
educators with the best possible mathematics standards to guide instruction and prepare our students for their lives beyond the classroom. This
document provides for consideration of the BPE the Superintendent’s recommended amendments and updates to the Math Standards. It includes
an introduction to Montana’s math content standards; a summary of the research and review and revision activities that informed the
Superintendent’s consideration and deliberation with instructional partners; the Superintendent’s proposed changes, consisting of both the
rationales for the changes and their proposed specific language (i.e., ARM “redlines”); and a draft economic impact statement for the proposed
amendments as required by Montana Code Annotated (MCA) 2021 2-4.405.

1 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/Subchapterhome.asp?scn=10%2E53.5

1

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/Subchapterhome.asp?scn=10%2E53.5


Table of Contents
Overview 1
Table of Contents 2
Introduction 4

Historical Context 4
Summary of Research and Review Activities 5

Research and Review Phase 5
Revision Phase 7
Negotiated Rulemaking 8

Superintendent’s Recommended Revisions to Montana Math Standards 9
Instructions for navigating this document: 9
2024 Proposal Overview 11
ARM 10.53.501: Montana K-12 Mathematical Practices 13
ARM 10.53.502: Montana Kindergarten Mathematics Standards 19
ARM 10.53.503: Montana Grade 1 Mathematics Standards 25
ARM 10.53.504: Montana Grade 2 Mathematics Standards 32
ARM 10.53.505: Montana Grade 3 Mathematics Standards 40
ARM 10.53.506: Montana Grade 4 Mathematics Standards 50
ARM 10.53.507: Montana Grade 5 Mathematics Standards 60
ARM 10.53.508: Montana Grade 6 Mathematics Standards 71
ARM 10.53.509: Montana Grade 7 Mathematics Standards 83
ARM 10.53.510: Montana Grade 8 Mathematics Standards 95
Montana High School Mathematics Standards: 105
ARM 10.53.511: Symbols 109
ARM 10.53.512: Montana High School Mathematics Number and Quantity Standards 111
ARM 10.53.513: Montana High School Mathematics Algebra Standards 116
ARM 10.53.514: Montana High School Mathematics Functions Standards 122
ARM 10.53.515: Montana High School Mathematics Modeling Standards 130
ARM 10.53.516: Montana High School Mathematics Geometry Standards 132
ARM 10.53.517: Montana High School Mathematics Statistics and Probability Standards 140

Draft - January 30th, 2024 2



ARM 10.53.518: Montana High School Mathematics Core Numeric Reasoning Standards 147
ARM 10.53.519: Montana High School Mathematics Core Algebraic and Functional Reasoning Standards 149
ARM 10.53.520: Montana High School Mathematics Core Data Reasoning And Probability Standards 158
ARM 10.53.521: Montana High School Mathematics Core Geometric Reasoning Standards 163
ARM 10.53.522: Montana High School Mathematics Core Plus Number and Quantity Standards 168
ARM 10.53.523: Montana High School Mathematics Core Plus Algebraic and Functional Reasoning Standards 170
ARM 10.53.524: Montana High School Mathematics Core Plus Data Reasoning Standards 178

Appendices: 183
Appendix A: Math Standards Revision Task Force Members 183
Appendix B: Math Standards Revision Tribal Panel Members 184
Appendix C: Math Standards Revision Review Team Members 184
Appendix D: Math Standards Revision Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 185
Appendix E: Montana Office of Public Instruction Project Leadership 186
Appendix F: High School Standards Crosswalk 187
Appendix G: Guidance Documents 194
Appendix H: Financial Literacy Within the Montana Mathematics Standards 195

Draft - January 30th, 2024 3



Introduction
The Superintendent of Public Instruction, supported by staff of the Montana Office of Public Instruction (OPI), launched a comprehensive process to
review, revise, and update Montana’s Math Standards. The Superintendent’s vision was to both respond to the declining performance of Montana
students on math assessments, particularly since the COVID-19 pandemic, and to make the Math Standards more approachable and
understandable by families and other non-educators while retaining rigor and high expectations for students. Specifically, the Superintendent sought
to improve the standards to provide simplicity, practicality, and clarity. Montana’s Math Standards should consist of fewer standards focused on
specific learning goals and written in clear and concise language for students, parents/guardians, and educators. The Superintendent also sought to
increase a focus on critical concepts and mathematical practices, authentically integrate the cultural heritage of Montana Indigenous Peoples,
and identify ways to more effectively integrate early numeracy and number sense at the K-5 level, as well as consider the inclusion of data
science, financial literacy, and new math pathways at the secondary level. The Superintendent seeks to foster increased educator confidence,
student capacity, and parent/guardian/community understanding of math teaching and learning in Montana.

Historical Context
Montana educators have worked since the 1980s to develop statewide standards in math and other subject areas, informed by work by national
professional associations such as the National Council for Teachers of Mathematics. This work was periodically given extra impetus through federal
influence or requirements. For example, the federal Title 1 program for low-income students who needed additional help in reading and math
required all states to have state standards in reading and math by 1998. In 2011, again with pressure from the federal government and with input
from Montana educators, the BPE adopted math standards based on the Common Core¹. Details of Montana’s current Math Standards can be
found in ARM Chapter 10.53.51, as well as in guidance documents provided by OPI2.

The Math Standards influence and guide such matters as the preparation and professional, curriculum adoption, assessment, and math pathways
for older students. The amendments and updates proposed in this document are focused on keeping the legacy of this thoughtful work by earlier
educators and instructional partners while evolving Montana’s Math Standards to be more approachable for the public and supporting teachers and
schools to continually improve to put Montana students first.

2 See
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/School%20Accreditation/N%20Rulemaking%2010.55.701/Negotiated%20Rulemaking%20Process%20Overview%20
1-17-2019.pdf?ver=2019-01-23-133811-320

Draft - January 30th, 2024 4

https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/School%20Accreditation/N%20Rulemaking%2010.55.701/Negotiated%20Rulemaking%20Process%20Overview%201-17-2019.pdf?ver=2019-01-23-133811-320
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/School%20Accreditation/N%20Rulemaking%2010.55.701/Negotiated%20Rulemaking%20Process%20Overview%201-17-2019.pdf?ver=2019-01-23-133811-320
https://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/School%20Accreditation/N%20Rulemaking%2010.55.701/Negotiated%20Rulemaking%20Process%20Overview%201-17-2019.pdf?ver=2019-01-23-133811-320


Summary of Research and Review Activities
As guided by the rulemaking policy of OPI² and summarized in Table 1 below, the Superintendent and OPI staff organized and implemented a series
of formal and informal, internal and external research and instructional partner engagement activities to facilitate the development of proposed
revisions to Montana’s Math Standards.

Table 1: ARM Ch. 55 Amendment Timeline3

Research and
Review
(OPI)

Revision
(OPI)

Negotiated
Rulemaking
(OPI, BPE)

Adoption Phase
(OPI, BPE)

Adoption
(BPE)

Implementation

October 2022
through March

2023

April through
August 2023

September through
December 2023

January through
June 2024

September 2024 July 2025

The first three steps (Research and Review, Revision, and Negotiated Rulemaking) are described in detail below. The remaining steps in the
process are under the purview of the BPE, although OPI staff will support the BPE as it carries out its responsibilities in considering the
Superintendent’s proposed changes and moving forward with those recommendations that they accept.

Research and Review Phase
Beginning in the fall of 2022, the Montana Office of Public Instruction (OPI) conducted preliminary research to guide the review and revision
process. This included OPI staff engaging staff of the Regional Educational Laboratory Northwest (REL Northwest) to prepare summaries of
research and evidence on math teaching and learning and collecting samples of math standards used in other U.S. states and Canadian provinces.
Through this review, opportunities for enhancements to Montana’s accreditation standards were identified. Specifically, four key opportunities were
articulated:

3 Shared as information item at BPE meeting on 11/18/21

Draft - January 30th, 2024 5



1. Promote simplicity, clarity, and practicality in Montana Math Standards.

Content standards are of greatest interest and utility to professional educators and the organizations that prepare and employ them. That
said, the Superintendent felt the standards had more detail than was necessary in places. Streamlining the standards to remove any
duplication or unnecessary detail would make them not only more useful for educators but would also make them more easily understood
and approachable by parents and members of the community. Detailed guidance and examples of math concepts could be retained and
offered to educators in OPI guidance documents as elaborations of the standards while keeping the most essential language in ARM. This is
an approach taken by several states and Canadian provinces that makes their math standards easier to parse and understand by both
professional educators and the public.

2. Revisit and refresh mathematical practices.

In adopting the Common Core State Standards for Mathematics in 2011, Montana also adopted the Common Core’s standards for
mathematical practice4. Mathematical practices refer to the habits, skills, and ways of thinking that are essential for effectively engaging with
mathematics. They are meant to promote a deeper understanding of mathematics rather than just rote memorization of procedures. These
practices help students become more proficient in math and better equipped to solve complex problems. They are designed to be integrated
into the teaching and learning of mathematics, providing students with a deeper understanding of the subject and the ability to apply
mathematical concepts in various contexts. They promote mathematical thinking and problem-solving skills that are essential in both
educational and real-world settings. Mathematics professional groups have continued to research ways to improve math teaching and
learning and have proposed updated configurations of mathematical practices. Reviewing Montana’s Math Standards would provide an
opportunity to review the original eight Mathematical Practices of the Common Core and see if there were any desirable updates or
adjustments. The task force reviewed the recent work completed by the National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP) and
discussed strategies to integrate the five mathematical practices they established in 2022.

4 See ARM 10.53.501.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 6

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E501


3. Update standards to include the most recent research and evidence on effective math teaching and learning.

As Montana’s Math Standards were last updated in 2011, the Superintendent felt it was timely to review the standards for opportunities to
incorporate the latest research on math teaching and learning. One specific example is an opportunity to integrate research on early
numeracy and number sense at the K-5 level. At the secondary level, the Superintendent asked the Revision Task Force to consider if data
science and financial literacy could be included in the standards as specific applications of math that are of growing statewide and national
interest. Similarly, the Superintendent encouraged the Revision Task Force to consider ways secondary math pathways could better fit the
college and career goals of Montana high schoolers.

4. Authentically integrate IEFA into Montana’s Math Standards.

Montana’s current math standards include references to IEFA, but they can feel added as an afterthought. The Superintendent charged with
the Revision Task Force to find ways to more authentically integrate math examples and practices that honor the diverse and rich legacy of
Indigenous peoples in Montana. To that end, the OPI Indian Education for All and The Tribal Student Achievement, Relations, and Resiliency
staff participated in convenings of the Revision Task Force and OPI set up a special working group to engage Tribal Education Department
liaisons as advisors to the standards-writing process.

Revision Phase
Informed by the research and opportunities for revision identified in the research and review phase described above, the Superintendent and OPI
staff launched a Math Standards Revision Task Force. The Task Force consisted of both a Development Team and a Review Team composed of
current and former Montana math teachers, higher education faculty, and other instructional partners (See Appendix A, B and C for a complete list).
OPI recruited Task Force members from schools, institutions, and communities across the state to get a broad representation of school communities
and sizes as well as a broad range of professional expertise in K-12 math instruction. The Development Team was tasked with using the research
and data collected in the Research and Review phase to propose revisions to the Montana Math Standards. The Review Team was tasked with
reviewing the work of the Development team and providing feedback that would inform the Negotiated Rulemaking Committee convened during the
Negotiated Rulemaking phase.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 7



OPI convened the Development Team several times virtually between May and November of 2023 and in person in Helena July 19-21, 2023. OPI
convened the Review Team virtually several times between May and October. OPI used a specially developed course on the Teacher Learning Hub
to train and connect members of the Task Force and provide a common workspace and file repository. OPI also posted information about the
Revision Phase and the work of the Task Force on the OPI website. OPI staff worked with staff from the Region 17 Comprehensive Center at
Education Northwest to design and facilitate inclusive, collaborative, and productive in-person and virtual work sessions. Subgroups of the
Development Team periodically met on their own time without OPI presence or facilitation to continue their discussions and reviews of standards.
OPI also worked with ad-hoc workgroups of Development and Review Team members to complete specific revision and review tasks, such as:

● Proposing a new set of Montana-specific mathematical practices;

● Designing guidance documents for OPI to use to provide educators with elaborations and detailed
examples that support each standard that did not need to be added to ARM; and

● Aligning proposed revisions between different levels of standards (e.g., between K-5 and 6-8 standards
and between 6-8 and 9-12 standards).

The Task Force generated a set of proposed revisions to the Montana State Math Standards with accompanying rationales for the changes. These
included a new proposed set of mathematical practices that includes IEFA, added focus on early numeracy in the elementary grades, and a
proposed reworking of course pathways in grades 9-12. The Content Standards Revision Team from OPI shared the drafted standards with the
Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education (MACIE), asking for feedback on the general standards and specifically the task force’s approach to
authentic integration of Indian Education for All. OPI staff worked with members of the Task Force to refine their recommendations and rationales
and prepare detailed ARM language (i.e., “redlines”). The proposed changes and rationales can be found in the “Superintendent’s Recommended
Revisions to Montana Math Standards” section.

Negotiated Rulemaking
As required by (MCA) 2021 2.4.405 and building on the contributions and outputs of the research and review and revision phases, the
Superintendent will convene a Negotiated Rulemaking Committee (NRC) to undertake an expanded public-engagement and fact-finding process to
inform the articulation of her recommended revisions to the Montana Math Standards. The NRC consisted of the twelve members fulfilling the
required roles, as listed in MCA (See Appendix D for a complete list)

Draft - January 30th, 2024 8



Superintendent’s Recommended Revisions to Montana Math
Standards

The Superintendent’s recommended revisions to Montana’s math standards are based on a thoughtful consideration of the myriad and intersecting
conditions, inputs, challenges, and opportunities confronting public schools in Montana. They are informed by the research and instructional partner
input collected through the methods described above, as well as the contributions of the Math Standards Task Force. The following sections provide
the Superintendent’s final recommended revisions, including both proposed detailed revision language (i.e., “redlines”) and a rationale for each
articulated by the Task Force and/or the Superintendent. It should be noted that the recommended revisions are ultimately the Superintendent’s and
reflect her prerogative and responsibility to present to the BPE those that she deems worth moving forward.

Instructions for navigating this document:

Structure:

Each grade level has a table presenting the proposed revisions.

In the K-8 standards, this information is presented in three columns. On the left, you will find the standard language as it currently exists in ARM.
The center column presents the proposed revisions from the Superintendent, based on the work conducted by the Task Force and Negotiated
Rulemaking Committee (NRC). The column located on the right presents the rationale for the changes. This rationale combines the reasoning from
the two committee groups.

In the 9-12 standards, this information is presented in two columns. In addition to revising the individual standards, the 9-12 task force
recommended a restructuring of the standards. When reviewing this set, you will notice that there are two groups of standards. The 2011 set, which
has been proposed to be repealed, presents the previous standards from ARM in the left column. In the right column, you will find information
regarding each standard’s retention or omission from the proposed set of new standards, along with the rationale provided by the Task Force.
Similarly, the proposed set of standards appears in two columns. The left column contains the proposed language and the right informs the reader
whether the standard was adapted from the 2011 set or is a new standard and also provides a rationale for the proposals.

It is important to note that the structure of the standards as they are given in ARM, and how they are given in teacher guidance documents are
significantly different.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 9



While the teacher guidance documents from 2011 provide ‘clusters' that group certain standards by their shared core concepts, the ARM language
from 2011 does not. You may also notice that the sentence structure in ARM presents a different format than the guidance documents. ARM utilizes
semicolons and presents the standards as a list, while the guidance documents provide the standards in formal sentence structure using capitals
and varying punctuation. The last thing you will notice is that the guidance documents utilize a coding system for the standards to help with the
organization of the standards. It is not necessary for the standards presented in guidance documents to have the same structure as appears in
ARM. It should be noted that throughout revisions, the task force referred to the guidance documents that are primarily used by educators in the
field and do not match the ARM structure. The development teams across K-12 intend to create dynamic guidance documents that present the
standards in a clear and easy-to-follow way for educators and families. The following figures from the two types of documents illustrate this
distinction:

Figure 15: Montana Kindergarten Standards ARM 10.53.502 Figure 26: Guidance Document Presentation of Standards

Additional Considerations:
Each grade-level proposal will begin with an overview statement. This will prepare you for reading each set of standards and provide additional
guidance from the Task Force where provided. You will begin to notice trends that consistently appear in each set of standards. They have been
summarized for you in the 2024 Proposal Overview.

It is also important to note that the OPI intends to provide many and varying guidance documents to support educators and families throughout the
implementation process. For more information regarding the implementation plans of OPI, please refer to appendix G.

6 https://opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=Uq0l_VnbWzs%3D&portalid=182

5 https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E502

Draft - January 30th, 2024 10

https://opi.mt.gov/LinkClick.aspx?fileticket=Uq0l_VnbWzs%3D&portalid=182
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E502


2024 Proposal Overview

K-8 vs. 9-12
The proposed set of standards for K-12 is best examined in two parts, taking one part to contain all K-8 standards, and the other containing all 9-12
standards. This is recommended due to the 9-12 Task Force’s decision to revise and restructure the standards for high school mathematics. While
necessary, it does create some additional considerations that must be had unique to the considerations within K-8.

Guidance Documents:
The Superintendent, Negotiated Rulemaking Committee, Task Force, OPI Staff, and Educators all agree that robust and dynamic guidance
documents must be created to ensure the successful implementation of the proposed standards. This work began in November 2023 and will
continue to progress and adapt as needs continue to appear. These documents have been proposed to support a variety of instructional partners,
from families to educators and everyone in between. The proposed documents also contain recommendations from IEFA integration to strategies for
mathematical conversations at home. The guidance documents list is vast and growing. The Superintendent and OPI do not intend to abandon
educators to their own devices during implementation and will support the process thoroughly. For more information regarding the implementation
plan, please refer toappendix G.

Common Trends Throughout the Standards:
Many trends emerged that were consistent throughout the grade levels, K-12. A list and brief description of each has been provided here:

Cultural Connections Statement:
The 2011 set of standards often presented the Indian Education For All statement in the middle of a standard. The Tribal Panel, Task Force, and
NRC all agreed that a new place should be found for this statement to provide more prominence and to increase the clarity of the concept contained
within the standard. Furthermore, the language was expanded to include relevant and culturally responsive language when referring to Indigenous
populations and to include local communities. The NRC weighed the use of “Indigenous Peoples” against “American Indian” extensively. While
“American Indian” is the federally adopted language, the NRC felt that “Indigenous Peoples” was more respectful and more adequately
communicated the dynamic cultures present in Indigenous Populations, underlining that “American Indian(s)” implies one group alone while
“Indigenous Peoples” communicates that many cultural groups exist within Indigenous Populations. They agreed on the use of “Indigenous
Peoples”, challenging Montana to pave the way for the adoption of this language. Where appropriate, the sentence: “This standard should

Draft - January 30th, 2024 11



incorporate cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and local communities” was added as a clause to the end of a standard. This
language and placement is used consistently throughout the K-12 items. It is the intent to provide a guide for how this incorporation could occur in a
classroom setting.

Listing Language Update:
Many grade levels inconsistently listed standards in 2011. The Task Force and NRC made efforts to include the word “by:” at the end of a standard
that contained substandard as well as change the subsequent verbs to “ing” verbs in compliance.

“Word Problems” or “Real-Life Problems” replaced with “Problems In Context”:
The NRC determined that consistency in the wording of application expectations should occur. Where standards indicate the specific necessity of
application (though not limited to these standards alone), the phrase “problems in context” has replaced inconsistent language in the 2011
standards.

Removal of Examples and Elaborations:
The Task Force and NRC made efforts to significantly reduce the number of instances where specific examples appear in the ARM language for
standards. This is not to say that they believe them unnecessary. The recommendation is that examples and elaborations appear in guidance
documents, rather than in ARM, to free up instruction for educators rather than dictate a list of specific examples that must be utilized.

Revision for Clarity and Reducing Length:
Many of the standards were revised with the intent to reduce the use of unnecessary language and to provide clarity to the concept contained
therein. Often, revisions did not change the standard’s intent, but did shorten its length, and utilized language more familiar to families and
educators.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 12



ARM 10.53.5017: Montana K-12 Mathematical Practices
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:

In assessing the research compiled for the revision of mathematics standards and mathematical practices, the Mathematical Practices Task Force
identified that the eight mathematical practices utilized in Montana are no longer aligned with those tested within the National Assessment of
Educational Progress (NAEP). While the task force recognized the importance of the five mathematical practices outlined by NAEP, the task force
also identified the diverse and unique needs of Montana learners and determined that a full adoption would not be the best course of action.

They determined that a revision of the Montana Mathematical Practices was necessary and that in some way, efforts should be made to ensure that
current mathematical practices align with the language used by NAEP and that the needs of Montana learners must also be represented within the
mathematical practices. Therefore, what has been proposed is a modification of the 5 NAEP Mathematical Practices8, and a proposal of additional
practices that, as a package, the task force believes will be a more authentic foundation for an essential understanding of mathematics in Montana.

8 See
https://www.nagb.gov/content/dam/nagb/en/documents/publications/frameworks/mathematics/2026-math-frameowork/2022-NAGB-Mathematics-On
e-Pager-508.pdf

7 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E501

Draft - January 30th, 2024 13

https://www.nagb.gov/content/dam/nagb/en/documents/publications/frameworks/mathematics/2026-math-frameowork/2022-NAGB-Mathematics-One-Pager-508.pdf
https://www.nagb.gov/content/dam/nagb/en/documents/publications/frameworks/mathematics/2026-math-frameowork/2022-NAGB-Mathematics-One-Pager-508.pdf
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E501


Proposed Mathematical Practices:

Math Practices 2011 Proposed Math Practices 2024 Rationale
10.53.501 STANDARDS FOR
MATHEMATICAL PRACTICE FOR GRADES
K-12

(1) Mathematical practice standard 1 is to make
sense of problems and persevere in solving them.
Mathematically proficient students:

(a) explain the meaning of a problem and restate it
in their words;

(b) analyze given information to develop possible
strategies for solving the problem;

(c) identify and execute appropriate strategies to
solve the problem;

(d) evaluate progress toward the solution and make
revisions if necessary; and

(e) check their answers using a different method
and continually ask "Does this make sense?".

10.53.501 STANDARDS FOR
MATHEMATICAL PRACTICE FOR
GRADES K-12

(1) Mathematical practice standard 1 is to
problem solve and persevere.
Mathematically proficient students:

(a) make conjectures, plan, and follow
solution strategies;

(b) evaluate their progress and accuracy;

(c) engage in sense-making and
self-monitoring; and

(d) persevere in seeking solutions, and value
alternative approaches.

Efforts were made to condense wording
and increase comprehension.

(2) Mathematical practice standard 2 is to reason
abstractly and quantitatively. Mathematically
proficient students:

(a) make sense of quantities and their relationships
in problem situations;

(2) Mathematical practice standard 2 is to
abstract and generalize. Mathematically
proficient students are able to
decontextualize and symbolically represent
both mathematical and non-mathematical

Efforts were made to increase compatibility
with NAEP math practices language. 2011
MP7 (item 10.53.501 (7))and 2011 MP8
(item 10.53.501 (8)) were condensed into
the 2024 proposed (item 10.53.501 (2))

Draft - January 30th, 2024 14

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E501
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E501


(b) use varied representations and approaches
when solving problems;

(c) know and flexibly use different properties of
operations and objects; and

(d) change perspectives, generate alternatives, and
consider different options.

situations to search for and analyze
regularities, patterns, and structures.

(3) Mathematical practice standard 3 is to construct
viable arguments and critique the reasoning of
others. Mathematically proficient students:

(a) understand and use prior learning in
constructing arguments;

(b) habitually ask "why" and seek an answer to that
question;

(c) question and problem-pose;

(d) develop questioning strategies to generate
information;

(e) seek to understand alternative approaches
suggested by others and as a result, adopt better
approaches;

(f) justify their conclusions, communicate them to
others, and respond to the arguments of others; and

(g) compare the effectiveness of two plausible
arguments, distinguish correct logic or reasoning
from that which is flawed, and if there is a flaw in an

(3) Mathematical practice standard 3 is to
justify and prove. Mathematically proficient
students create, evaluate, justify, and refute
mathematical claims in developmentally and
mathematically appropriate ways.

Efforts were made to increase compatibility
with NAEP math practices language. 2011
MP6 (item 10.53.501 (6)) was condensed
into 2024 MP3 (item 10.53.501(3))

Draft - January 30th, 2024 15



argument, explain what it is.

(4) Mathematical practice standard 4 is to model
with mathematics. Mathematically proficient
students:
(a) apply the mathematics they know to solve
problems arising in everyday life, society, and the
workplace;
(b) make assumptions and approximations to
simplify a complicated situation, realizing that these
may need revision later;
(c) identify important quantities in a practical
situation and map their relationships using such
tools as diagrams, two-way tables, graphs,
flowcharts, and formulas; and
(d) analyze mathematical relationships to draw
conclusions.

(4) Mathematical practice standard 4 is to
model with mathematics. Mathematically
proficient students:

(a) make sense of a scenario;

(b) identify a problem to be solved, and
mathematize it; and

(c) apply a mathematical model to reach a
solution and verify its viability.

This is a revision of the original statement
for clarity, that aligns with the NAEP math
practices language.

(5) Mathematical practice standard 5 is to use
appropriate tools strategically. Mathematically
proficient students:

(a) use tools when solving a mathematical problem
and to deepen their understanding of concepts (e.g.,
pencil and paper, physical models, geometric
construction and measurement devices, graph
paper, calculators, computer-based algebra, or
geometry systems); and

(b) make sound decisions about when each of
these tools might be helpful, recognizing both the
insight to be gained and their limitations and detect
possible errors by strategically using estimation and
other mathematical knowledge.

(5) Mathematical practice standard 5 is to
represent. Mathematically proficient
students:

(a) recognize, use, create, interpret, and
translate representations using appropriate
methods and tools; and

(b) understand multiple ways of
representing mathematical ideas and how
they are related.

Efforts were made to increase compatibility
with NAEP math practices language.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 16



(6) Mathematical practice standard 6 is to attend to
precision. Mathematically proficient students:

(a) communicate their understanding of
mathematics to others;

(b) use clear definitions and state the meaning of
the symbols they choose, including using the equal
sign consistently and appropriately;

(c) specify units of measure and use label parts of
graphs and charts; and

(d) strive for accuracy.

(6) Mathematical practice standard 6 is to
collaborate mathematically. Mathematically
proficient students engage in mathematics
as a social enterprise through discussion
and collaborative inquiry where ideas are
offered, debated, connected, and built upon
toward solutions, shared understanding, and
appreciation of other perspectives.

Mathematics is improved with collaboration
between individuals. There has been a
long-standing spirit of collaboration and
healthy discourse in the mathematical
community, dating back to its infancy. The
committee felt that this was a vital practice
for math learners to engage within and
essential to the progression of the field.

Efforts were made to increase compatibility
with NAEP math practices language. 2011
MP6 (item 10.53.501 (6)) was condensed
into 2024 MP3 (item 10.53.501(3))

(7) Mathematical practice standard 7 is to look for
and make use of structure. Mathematically proficient
students:

(a) look for, develop, generalize, and describe a
pattern orally, symbolically, graphically, and in
written form; and

(b) apply and discuss properties.

(7) Mathematical practice standard 7 is to
culturally connect. Mathematically proficient
students:

(a) recognize cultural connections and
contributions to mathematics; and

(b) appreciate the role of mathematics in
various cultural contexts, including those of
tribally-specific Montana Indigenous
Peoples.

Connecting mathematics to our
circumstances, histories, and communities,
roots it in existence. This cultural
connections math practice also allows for
honoring Indigenous and cultural ways of
knowing. It is vital for students to see how
math relates to the world and communities
they belong to, along with the histories of
people. The committee felt that connecting
to community culture generates a pathway
for improving student engagement with
mathematical concepts in meaningful ways
that can have positive long-term effects.

Efforts were made to increase compatibility
with NAEP math practices language. 2011
MP7 (item 10.53.501 (7)) was condensed
into 2024 proposed (item 10.53.501 (2))

Draft - January 30th, 2024 17



(8) Mathematical practice standard 8 is to look for
and express regularity in repeated reasoning.
Mathematically proficient students:

(a) look for mathematically sound shortcuts; and

(b) use repeated applications to generalize
properties.

Efforts were made to increase compatibility
with NAEP math practices language. 2011
MP8 (item 10.53.501 (8)) was condensed
into 2024 proposed (item 10.53.501 (2))

Draft - January 30th, 2024 18



ARM 10.53.5029: Montana Kindergarten Mathematics Standards
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:

● Total number of standards in 2011: 25
● Total number of standards proposed for 2024: 25
● Standards removed: 3

Each of these removed standards were condensed into one standard.
● New standards proposed: 3

One additional standard expands knowledge to better prepare students for 1st grade expectations.
One additional standard adds financial literacy expectations to the standards.
One additional standard adds expectations relating to time knowledge.

● Standards identified as high cultural connections priorities: 4
● Common updates:

○ Expansion of fluency language - Previous standards used the broad word “fluently” which was vague and difficult to quantify. These
standards now use variations of “flexibly”, “accurately”, and/or “efficiently” where appropriate to provide more clarity regarding the
specific way students can demonstrate fluency.

○ Use of common language - Previous standards sometimes used complex or lengthy sentences to describe the skill. These proposals
have been simplified, where possible, to use common language more easily understood by all.

○ Removal of examples - The examples have been removed from the official language presented in ARM. All parties involved in the
revision of these standards agree that educators and families need examples to support instruction. These will be present in
guidance documents, rather than within the ARM. This will allow teachers to choose their own examples for instruction, rather than
risk mandating specific examples to be used within the classroom under law.

○ Update for IEFA language - Previously, the cultural connections, or IEFA statements, existed in the middle of individual standards.
These statements now appear as their own clauses at the end of some standards. This placement provides more emphasis on the
IEFA component and contributes to the increased clarity of the standard itself. The statements have also been updated to include
culturally responsive language and expanded to emphasize local communities, highlighting the intention that these standards relate
to the community and culture(s) of the Indigenous Tribal Nations that exist, or historically existed, in the geographical region in which
they are taught.

9 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E502

Draft - January 30th, 2024 19

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E502


Proposed Montana Kindergarten Mathematics Standards:

Kindergarten Standards 2011 Kindergarten Standards 2024 Rationale
10.53.502 MONTANA KINDERGARTEN
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics counting and cardinality
standards for kindergarten are:

(a) flexibly count to 100 by ones and by tens;

(b) count forward beginning from a given
number within the known sequence (instead of
having to begin at 1);

(c) write numbers from 0-20 and represent a
number of objects with a written numeral 0-20
(with 0 representing a count of no objects);

(d) understand the relationship between
numbers and quantities and connect counting
to cardinality by recognizing that each
successive number name refers to a quantity
that is one larger within a normal counting
sequence;

(d.i) when counting objects, say the number
names in the standard order, pairing each
object with one and only one number name
and each number name with one and only one
object from a variety of cultural contexts,
including those of Montana American Indians;

(d.ii) understand that the last number name
said tells the number of objects counted and
the number of objects is the same regardless

(1) Mathematics counting and cardinality
standards for kindergarten are:

(a) flexibly count to 100 by ones and by tens;

(b) count beginning from a given number
within the known sequence;

(c) write numbers from 0-20 and represent a
number of objects with a written numeral 0-20;

(d) understand the relationship between
numbers and quantities and connect counting
to cardinality by recognizing that each
successive number name refers to a quantity
that is one larger within a normal counting
sequence;

(1) No change

(a) add: “flexibly”

(b) Delete: "forward" to broaden the standard to
include backward counting; pull parenthetical
clause to elaborations

(c) Delete: parenthetical clause, may appear in
guidance documents.

(d) Addition of the word "by:" and consolidated
content from (1)(d)(iii) and included the phrase
“within a normal counting sequence”

(d.i) Redundancy in (1)(d), included in the
elaboration.

(d.ii) Redundancy in (1)(d), included in the
elaboration.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 20

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E502


of their arrangement or the order in which they
were counted;

(d.iii) understand that each successive number
name refers to a quantity that is one larger;

(e) count to answer "how many?" questions
about as many as 20 things arranged in a line,
a rectangular array, or a circle, or as many as
10 things in a scattered configuration and
given a number from 1-20, count out that
many objects from a variety of cultural
contexts, including those of Montana American
Indians in a variety of arrangements and,
given a number, produce a set within 20;

(f) identify whether the number of objects in
one group is greater than, less than, or equal
to the number of objects in another group,
e.g., by using matching and counting
strategies; and

(g) compare two numbers between 1 and 10
presented as written numerals.

(e) count to answer "how many?" in a variety
of arrangements and, given a number,
produce a set within 20;

(f) identify whether the number of objects in
one group is greater than, less than, or equal
to the number of objects in another group; and

(g) compare two numbers between 1 and 10
presented as written numerals.

(d.iii) Condense into item 1(d)

(e) Delete additional information to get down to
the specific task asked for.

(f) Example may appear in guidance
documents, removed for clarity.

(g) No change

(2) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for
kindergarten are:

(a) represent addition and subtraction with
objects, fingers, mental images, drawings,
sounds (e.g., claps), acting out situations,
verbal explanations, expressions, or equations
in multiple ways;

(b) solve addition and subtraction word
problems from a variety of cultural contexts,

.(2) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for
kindergarten are:

(a) represent addition and subtraction in
multiple ways;

(b) solve addition and subtraction problems in
context within 10; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to

(2) No change

(a) Examples may appear in guidance
documents, removed for clarity.

(b) Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 21



including those of Montana American Indians,
and add and subtract within 10, e.g., by using
objects or drawings to represent the problem
problems in context within 10; this standard
should incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous People and local
communities;

(c) decompose numbers less than or equal to
10 into pairs in more than one way, e.g., by
using objects or drawings, and record each
decomposition by a drawing or equation (e.g.,
5 = 2 + 3 and 5 = 4 + 1) multiple ways;

(d) for any number from 1 to 9, find the
number that makes 10 when added to the
given number, e.g., by using objects or
drawings, and record the answer with a
drawing or equation; and

(e) fluently flexibly, accurately add and
subtract within 5.; and

(f) recognize the characteristics of the
commutative property in addition.

Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(c) decompose numbers less than or equal to
10 into pairs in multiple ways;

(d) for any number from 1 to 9, find the
number that makes 10 when added to the
given number;

(e) flexibly and accurately add and subtract
within 5; and

(f) recognize the characteristics of the
commutative property in addition.

Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC. Examples were
removed for clarity, but may appear in
guidance documents.

(c) Add: “in multiple ways”. Examples may
appear in guidance documents, removed for
clarity.

(d) Examples may appear in guidance
documents, removed for clarity.

(e) Delete: "Fluently" Add: "Flexibly and
accurately" to define what fluency looks like.

(f) Add this standard to connect concepts to
the commutative property.

(3) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standard for kindergarten
is:

(a) compose and decompose numbers from
11-19 into ten ones and some further ones,
e.g., by using objects or drawings; in multiple
ways and record each composition or
decomposition by a drawing or an equation
(such as 18 = 10 + 8); and understand that
these numbers are composed of ten ones and

(3) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standard for kindergarten
is:

(a) compose and decompose numbers from
11-19 into ten ones and further ones, in
multiple ways, and record each composition or
decomposition by a drawing or an equation.

(3) No change

(a) Delete: in more than one way, e.g., by
using objects or drawings, and record each
decomposition by a drawing or equation (e.g.,
5 = 2 + 3 and 5 = 4 + 1).
Add: in multiple ways. Further examples may
appear in guidance documents but were
removed for clarity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 22



one, two, three, four, five, six, seven, eight, or
nine ones.

(4) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for kindergarten are:

(a) describe several measurable attributes of
objects, such as length or weight and describe
several measurable attributes of a single
object;

(b) directly compare two objects with a
measurable attribute in common, to see which
object has "more of"/"less of" the attribute and
describe the difference; for example, directly
compare the heights of two children and
describe one child as taller/shorter; and using
comparative language;

(c) classify, count, and sort objects from a
variety of cultural contexts, including those of
Montana American Indians, into given
categories, count the numbers of objects in
each category, and sort the categories by
count.; this standard should incorporate
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(d) describe attributes and identify the names
of coins; and

(e) explain time in days, months, years, and
seasons.

(4) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for kindergarten are:

(a) describe several measurable attributes of a
single object;

(b) directly compare two objects with a
measurable attribute in common using
comparative language;

(c) classify, count, and sort objects into
categories; this standard should incorporate
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(d) describe attributes and identify the names
of coins; and

(e) explain time in days, months, years, and
seasons.

(4) No change

(a) Add: "several" and "a single" for clarity.
Elaborations may appear in guidance
documents, removed for clarity.

(b) Add: "comparative language" for clarity.
Examples may appear in guidance documents,
removed for clarity.

(c) Rewritten for clarity and modified based on
consultation with the Tribal panel, task force,
and NRC.

(d) New standard

(e) New standard

(5) Mathematics geometry content
standards for kindergarten are:

(5) Mathematics geometry content
standards for kindergarten are:

(5) No change

Draft - January 30th, 2024 23



(a) describe the relative positions of objects,
including those of Montana American Indians,
in the their environment using names of
shapes and describe the relative positions of
these objects using terms such as: above,
below, beside, in front of, behind, and next to;
this standard should incorporate a cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(b) correctly name shapes regardless of their
orientations or overall size;

(c) identify shapes as two-dimensional (lying in
a plane, "flat") or three-dimensional ("solid");

(d) analyze and compare two- and
three-dimensional shapes, in different sizes
and orientations, using informal language to
describe their similarities, differences, parts
(e.g., number of sides and vertices/"corners"),
and other attributes (e.g., having sides of
equal length);

(e) model shapes in the world from a variety of
cultural contexts, including those of Montana
American Indians, by building shapes from
components (e.g., sticks and clay balls) and
drawing shapes environment; this standard
should incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities; and

(f) compose simple shapes to form larger
shapes; for example, "Can you join these two
triangles with full sides touching to make a
rectangle?".

(a) describe the relative positions of objects, in
their environment; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(b) correctly name shapes regardless of their
orientations or overall size;

(c) identify shapes as two-dimensional or
three-dimensional;

(d) analyze and compare two- and
three-dimensional shapes using informal
language and other attributes;

(e) model shapes in the environment; this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities; and

(f) compose simple shapes to form larger
shapes.

(a) Rewritten for clarity. Modified based on
consultation with the Tribal panel, task force,
and NRC. Delete descriptive language.
Elaborations may appear in guidance
documents, removed for clarity.

(b) No change

(c) Delete descriptive language for clarity, may
appear in guidance documents.

(d) Delete descriptive language for clarity
Add: "and other attributes". Elaborations may
appear in guidance documents.

(e) Rewritten for clarity. Modified based on
consultation with the Tribal panel, task force,
and NRC. Delete descriptive language.
Elaborations may appear in guidance
documents.

(f) Delete: example, may appear in guidance
documents

Draft - January 30th, 2024 24



Draft - January 30th, 2024 25



ARM 10.53.50310: Montana Grade 1 Mathematics Standards
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:

● Total number of standards in 2011: 24
● Total number of standards proposed for 2024: 29
● Standards removed: 3

Each of these removed standards were considered elaborative and it has been requested that they be moved to guidance documents.
● New standards proposed: 8

Seven additional standards are the result of separating concepts from previous standards into distinct and separate items.
One additional standard adds financial literacy expectations to the standards.

● Standards identified as high cultural connections priorities: 3
● Common updates:

○ Expansion of fluency language - Previous standards used the broad word “fluently” which was vague and difficult to quantify. These standards now
use variations of “flexibly”, “accurately”, and/or “efficiently” where appropriate to provide more clarity regarding the specific way students can
demonstrate fluency.

○ Use of common language - Previous standards sometimes used complex or lengthy sentences to describe the skill. These proposals have been
simplified, where possible, to use common language more easily understood by all.

○ Removal of examples - The examples have been removed from the official language presented in ARM. All parties involved in the revision of these
standards agree that educators and families need examples to support instruction. These will be present in guidance documents, rather than
within the ARM. This will allow teachers to choose their own examples for instruction, rather than risk mandating specific examples to be used
within the classroom under law.

○ Update for IEFA language - Previously, the cultural connections, or IEFA statements, existed in the middle of individual standards. These
statements now appear as their own clauses at the end of some standards. This placement provides more emphasis on the IEFA component and
contributes to the increased clarity of the standard itself. The statements have also been updated to include culturally responsive language and
expanded to emphasize local communities, highlighting the intention that these standards relate to the community and culture(s) of the Indigenous
Tribal Nations that exist, or historically existed, in the geographical region in which they are taught.

○ Separation of concepts - Many “additional standards” in 1st grade are not additional concepts or expectations for 1st grade students. Rather, they
are the result of taking standards where multiple concepts are present, and separating each concept into its own distinct standard. There is only
one new concept added to the standards and it deals with financial literacy.

10 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E503

Draft - January 30th, 2024 26

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E503


Proposed Montana Grade 1 Mathematics Standards:
1st Grade Standards 2011 1st Grade Standards 2024 Rationale

10.53.503 MONTANA GRADE 1
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for Grade 1 are:

(a) use addition and subtraction within 20 to
solve word problems within a cultural in
context, including those of Montana American
Indians, involving situations of adding to,
taking from, putting together, taking apart, and
comparing with unknowns in all positions, e.g.,
by using objects, drawings, and equations with
a symbol for the unknown number to represent
the problem of all types; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(b) solve word problems within a cultural in
context, including those of Montana American
Indians, that call for addition of three whole
numbers whose with a sum is less than or
equal to 20, e.g., by using objects, drawings,
and equations with a symbol for the unknown
number to represent the problem in context of
all types; this standard should incorporate
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(c) apply properties of operations as strategies
flexibly compose and decompose numbers to
add and subtract; for example: if 8 + 3 = 11 is
known, then 3 + 8 = 11 is also known
(commutative property of addition); to add 2 +

(1) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for Grade 1 are:

(a) use addition and subtraction within 20 to
solve problems in context of all types; this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

(b) solve problems in context that call for
addition of three whole numbers with a sum
less than or equal to 20; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(c) flexibly compose and decompose numbers
to add and subtract;

(1) No change

(a) Elaboration removed for clarity, yet may still
appear in guidance documents. Modified
based on consultation with the Tribal panel,
task force, and NRC. Change “word problems”
to “problems in context” to align with NAEP
and NCTM.

(b) Elaboration removed for clarity, yet may still
appear in guidance documents. Modified
based on consultation with the Tribal panel,
task force, and NRC. Change “word problems”
to “problems in context” to align with NAEP
and MCTM.

(c) Revision of standard to highlight
mathematical properties taught throughout
k-12 math. Examples were removed for clarity,
yet may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 27

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E503


6 + 4, the second two numbers can be added
to make a ten, so 2 + 6 + 4 = 2 + 10 = 12
(associative property of addition);

(d) understand subtraction as an
unknown-addend problem; for example,
subtract 10 - 8 by finding the number that
makes 10 when added to 8;

(e) relate counting to addition and subtraction
(e.g., by counting on 2 to add 2);

(f) flexibly, accurately, and efficiently add and
subtract within 20 demonstrating fluency for
addition and subtraction within 10; use
strategies such as counting on; making ten
(e.g., 8 + 6 = 8 + 2 + 4 = 10 + 4 = 14);
decomposing a number leading to a ten (e.g.,
13 – 4 = 13 – 3 – 1 = 10 – 1 = 9); using the
relationship between addition and subtraction
(e.g., knowing that 8 + 4 = 12, one knows 12 –
8 = 4); and creating equivalent but easier or
known sums (e.g., adding 6 + 7 by creating the
known equivalent 6 + 6 + 1 = 12 + 1 = 13);

(f.i) use multiple strategies to add and subtract
within 20;

(g) understand the meaning of the equal sign
and determine if equations involving addition
and subtraction are true or false; for example,
which of the following equations are true and
which are false? 6 = 6, 7 = 8 – 1, 5 + 2 = 2 + 5,
4 + 1 = 5 + 2; and

(h) determine the unknown whole number in
an addition or subtraction equation relating to
three whole numbers; for example, determine
the unknown number that makes the equation

(d) understand subtraction as an
unknown-addend problem;

(e) relate counting to addition and subtraction;

(f) flexibly, accurately, and efficiently add and
subtract within 10;

(f.i) use multiple strategies to add and subtract
within 20;

(g) understand the meaning of the equal sign
and determine if equations are true or false;
and

(h) determine the unknown number in an
addition or subtraction equation relating to
three numbers.

(d) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(e) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(f) Add: Expand expectations of what fluency
looks like. Separate addition/subtraction within
10 and 20 as two distinct standards. Examples
were removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(f.i) Addition of standard. Originates from
separation of two concepts in (f)

(g) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(h) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 28



true in each of the equations: 8 + ? = 11, 5 = ?
- 3, 6 + 6 = ?.

(2) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standards for Grade 1 are:

(a) count to 120, starting at any number less
than 120 and read and write numerals and
represent a number of objects with a written
numeral in this range; flexibly count, read,
write, and represent numbers to 120;

(b) understand that the two digits of a two-digit
number represent amounts of tens and ones
and understand the following as special cases
ten is a unit composed of ten ones and that a
two-digit number represents tens and ones;

(b.i) 10 can be thought of as a bundle of ten
ones called a "ten";

(b.ii) the numbers from 11 to 19 are composed
of a ten and one, two, three, four, five, six,
seven, eight, or nine ones;

(b.iii) the numbers 10, 20, 30, 40, 50, 60, 70,
80, 90 refer to one, two, three, four, five, six,
seven, eight, or nine tens (and 0 ones);

(c) compare two two-digit numbers based on
meanings of the tens and ones digits,
recording the results of comparisons with the
using comparison symbols >, =, and <;

(d) add within 100, including adding a two-digit
number and a one-digit number, and adding a
two-digit number and a multiple of 10, using
concrete models or drawings and strategies

(2) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standards for Grade 1 are:

(a) flexibly count, read, write, and represent
numbers to 120;

(b) understand that ten is a unit composed of
ten ones and that a two-digit number
represents tens and ones;

(c) compare two-digit numbers using
comparison symbols >, =, and <;

(d) build a foundation for addition within 100
by:

(2) No change

(a) Simplify wording for clarity.

(b) Simplify for clarity. Expand in guidance
documents.

(b.i) Delete. Move to guidance documents.

(b.ii) Delete. Move to guidance documents.

(b.iii) Delete. Move to guidance documents.

(c) Delete: "two" - redundancy. Simplify for
clarity.

(d) Make the distinction clear. Simplify for
clarity, and use listing (i) and (ii) to make the
standard more clear.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 29



based on place value, properties of operations,
and/or the relationship between addition and
subtraction; relate the strategy to a written
method and explain the reasoning used;
understand that in adding two-digit numbers,
one adds tens and tens, ones and ones; and
sometimes it is necessary to compose a
ten;build a foundation for addition within 100
by:

(d.i) adding two-digit to one-digit numbers; and

(d.ii) adding multiples of 10 to two-digit
numbers;

(e) using place value, given a two-digit
number, mentally find 10 more or 10 less than
the number, without having to count; explain
the reasoning used; and

(f) subtract multiples of 10 in the range 10-90
from multiples of 10 in the range 10-90
(positive or zero differences) using concrete
models or drawings and strategies based on
place value, properties of operations, and/or
the relationship between addition and
subtraction, relate the strategy to a written
method, and explain the reasoning used. from
a two-digit number.

(d.i) adding two-digit to one-digit numbers; and

(d.ii) adding multiples of 10 to two-digit
numbers;

(e) using place value, given a two-digit
number, find 10 more or 10 less than the
number; and

(f) subtract multiples of 10 from a two-digit
number.

(d.i) Use listing language to make this standard
more clear.

(d.ii) Use listing language to make this
standard more clear.

(e) Simplify wording for clarity. Reasoning
implied in Mathematical Practices.

(f) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(3) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for Grade 1 are:

(a) order three objects from a variety of cultural
contexts, including those of Montana American
Indians, by length and compare the lengths of
two objects indirectly by using a third object;

(3) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for Grade 1 are:

(a) order three objects by length and compare
the lengths of two objects indirectly by using a
third object; this standard should incorporate

(3) No change

(a) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 30



this standard should incorporate cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(b) express the length of an object as a whole
number of length units, by laying multiple
copies of a shorter object (the length unit) end
to end; understand that the length
measurement of an object is the number of
same-size length units that span it with no
gaps or overlaps and limit to contexts where
the object being measured is spanned by a
whole number of length units with no gaps or
overlaps;

(c) tell and write time in hours and half-hours
using analog and digital clocks; and

(d) identify the value of coins; and

(d) (e) organize, represent, and interpret data
with up to three categories and ask and
answer questions about the total number of
data points, how many in each category, and
how many more or less are in one category
than in another. by:

(e.i) asking and answering questions about the
total number of data points;

(e.ii) identifying how many are in each
category; and

(e.iii) analyzing differences between
categories.

cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(b) express the length of an object as a whole
number of length units; understand that the
measurement of an object is the number of
same-size length units that span it with no
gaps or overlaps;

(c) tell and write time in hours and half-hours
using analog and digital clocks;

(d) identify the value of coins; and

(e) organize, represent, and interpret data with
up to three categories by:

(e.i) asking and answering questions about
the total number of data points;

(e.ii) identifying how many are in each
category; and

(e.iii) analyzing differences between
categories.

(b) Delete phrases to eliminate redundancy.

(c) No change, remove “and” for ARM
language purposes.

(d) New standard, building knowledge present
in Kindergarten.

(e) Delete elaborations and build them into
their own sub-standards to increase clarity.

(e.i) Building off of (e)

(e.ii)Building off of (e)

(e.iii) Building off of (e)

Draft - January 30th, 2024 31



(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 1 are:

(a) distinguish between defining attributes
(e.g., triangles are closed and three-sided)
versus nondefining attributes (e.g., color,
orientation, overall size) and build and draw
shapes to possess defining attributes;

(b) build and draw shapes to possess defining
attributes;

(b) (c) compose two-dimensional shapes
(rectangles, squares, trapezoids, triangles,
half-circles, and quarter-circles) or
three-dimensional shapes (cubes, right
rectangular prisms, right circular cones, and
right circular cylinders) to create a composite
shape, and compose new shapes from the
composite shape new shapes using two- and
three-dimensional shapes; and

(c) (d) partition circles and rectangles into two
and four equal shares; describe the shares
using the words: halves, fourths, and quarters,
and use the phrases half of, fourth of, and
quarter of; describe the whole as two of, or
four of the shares; and understand for these
examples that decomposing into more equal
shares creates smaller shares.

(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 1 are:

(a) distinguish between defining attributes
versus nondefining attributes;

(b) build and draw shapes to possess defining
attributes;

(c) compose new shapes using two- and
three-dimensional shapes; and

(d) partition circles and rectangles into two and
four equal shares; describe the shares using
the words: halves, fourths, and quarters.

(4) No change

(a) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(b) Building off of (a)

(c) Listing indicator changed due to addition of
standard. Examples were removed for clarity,
yet may still appear in guidance documents.

(d) Examples and elaborations were removed
for clarity, yet may still appear in guidance
documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 32



ARM 10.53.50411: Montana Grade 2 Mathematics Standards
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:

● Total number of standards in 2011: 28
● Total number of standards proposed for 2024: 27
● Standards removed: 2

Each of these removed standards were considered elaborative and it has been requested that they be moved to guidance documents.
● New standards proposed: 1

One additional standard is the result of separating concepts from a previous standard into distinct and separate items.
● Standards identified as high cultural connections priorities: 4
● Common updates:

○ Expansion of fluency language - Previous standards used the broad word “fluently” which was vague and difficult to quantify. These
standards now use variations of “flexibly”, “accurately”, and/or “efficiently” where appropriate to provide more clarity regarding the
specific way students can demonstrate fluency.

○ Use of common language - Previous standards sometimes used complex or lengthy sentences to describe the skill. These proposals
have been simplified, where possible, to use common language more easily understood by all.

○ Removal of examples - The examples have been removed from the official language presented in ARM. All parties involved in the
revision of these standards agree that educators and families need examples to support instruction. These will be present in
guidance documents, rather than within the ARM. This will allow teachers to choose their own examples for instruction, rather than
risk mandating specific examples to be used within the classroom under law.

○ Update for IEFA language - Previously, the cultural connections, or IEFA statements, existed in the middle of individual standards.
These statements now appear as their own clauses at the end of some standards. This placement provides more emphasis on the
IEFA component and contributes to the increased clarity of the standard itself. The statements have also been updated to include
culturally responsive language and expanded to emphasize local communities, highlighting the intention that these standards relate
to the community and culture(s) of the Indigenous Tribal Nations that exist, or historically existed, in the geographical region in which
they are taught.

○ Separation of concepts - The “additional standard” in 2nd grade is not an additional concept or expectation for 2nd grade students.
Rather, it is the result of taking a standard where multiple concepts were present, and separating each concept into its own distinct
standard. There are no new conceptual expectations added to 2nd grade.

11 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E504

Draft - January 30th, 2024 33

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E504


Proposed Montana Grade 2 Mathematics Standards:

2nd Grade Standards 2011 2nd Grade Standards 2024 Rationale
10.53.504 MONTANA GRADE 2
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for Grade 2 are:

(a) use addition and subtraction within 100 to
solve one- and two-step word problems
involving situations within a cultural in context,
including those of Montana American Indians,
of adding to, taking from, putting together,
taking apart, and comparing, with unknowns in
all positions, e.g., by using drawings and
equations with a symbol for the unknown
number to represent the problem involving all
problem types; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(b) fluently flexibly, accurately, and efficiently
add and subtract within 20 using mental
strategies and by the end of Grade 2, know
from memory all sums of two one-digit
numbers;

(c) determine whether a group of objects, (up
to 20), has an odd or even number of
members, e.g., by pairing objects or counting
them by 2s and write an equation to express

10.53.504 MONTANA GRADE 2
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for Grade 2 are:

(a) use addition and subtraction within 100 to
solve one- and two-step problems in context
involving all problem types; this standard
should incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(b) flexibly, accurately, and efficiently add and
subtract within 20 using mental strategies;

(c) determine whether a group of objects, up to
20, has an odd or even number of members;
and

10.53.504 MONTANA GRADE 2
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) No change

(a) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC. Change “word
problems” to “problems in context” to align with
NAEP and NCTM.

(b) Changed fluently to "flexibly, accurately,
and efficiently"; pulled memory expectation
with recommendation that it be added to
guidance documents.

(c) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 34

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E504
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E504
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E504


an even number as a sum of two equal
addends; and

(d) use addition to find the total number of
objects arranged in rectangular arrays with up
to five rows and up to five columns and write
an equation to express the total as a sum of
equal addends.

(d) use addition to find the total number of
objects arranged in rectangular arrays.

(d) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(2) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standards for Grade 2 are:

(a) understand one hundred is a unit
composed of ten tens and that the three digits
of a three-digit number numbers represent
amounts of hundreds, tens, and ones, e.g.,
706 equals 7 hundreds, 0 tens, and 6 ones
and understand the following special cases:;

(a.i) 100 can be thought of a s a bundle of ten
tens – called a "hundred;" and

(a.ii) the numbers 100, 200, 300, 400, 500,
600, 700, 800, and 900 refer to one, two,
three, four, five, six, seven, eight, or nine
hundreds (and 0 tens and 0 ones);

(b) count within 1000; skip-count by 5s, 10s,
and 100s;

(c) read and write flexibly count, read, write,
and represent numbers to 1000 using base-ten
numerals, number names, and expanded form;

(2) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standards for Grade 2 are:

(a) understand one hundred is a unit
composed of ten tens and that three-digit
numbers represent amounts of hundreds, tens,
and ones;

(b) skip-count by 5s, 10s, and 100s;

(c) flexibly count, read, write, and represent
numbers to 1000;

(2) No change

(a) Removing special cases. Elaboration was
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(a.i) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(a.ii) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(b) Clarification on standard skill intent.

(c) Add flexibly, and specific methods of
demonstrating fluency.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 35



(d) compare two three-digit numbers based on
meanings of the hundreds, tens, and ones
digits, using >, =, and < symbols to record the
results of comparisons;

(e) fluently flexibly, accurately, and efficiently
add and subtract within 100 using multiple
strategies based on place value, properties of
operations, and/or the relationship between
addition and subtraction;

(f) add up to four two-digit numbers using
multiple strategies based on place value and
properties of operations;

(g) add and subtract within 1000 using
concrete models or drawings and multiple
strategies based on place value, properties of
operations, and/or the relationship between
addition and subtraction; relate the strategy to
a written method; understand that in adding or
subtracting three-digit numbers, one adds or
subtracts hundreds and hundreds, tens and
tens, ones and ones, and sometimes it is
necessary to compose or decompose tens or
hundreds;

(h) mentally add 10 or 100 to a given number
100-900 and mentally subtract 10 or 100 from
a given number 100-900 using place value,
add or subtract 10 or 100 from a given
number; and

(d) compare two three-digit numbers using
comparison symbols: >, =, and < ;

(e) flexibly, accurately, and efficiently add and
subtract within 100 using multiple strategies;

(f) add up to four two-digit numbers using
multiple strategies;

(g) add and subtract within 1000 using multiple
strategies;

(h) using place value, add or subtract 10 or
100 from a given number; and

(d) Shorten for clarity.

(e) Broaden language for multiple modalities.

(f) Broaden language for multiple modalities.

(g) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(h) Rewording for clarity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 36



(i) explain why addition and subtraction
strategies work using place value and the
properties of operations. Understand and
make connections between different strategies
for addition and subtraction.

(i) understand and make connections between
different strategies for addition and
subtraction. (i) Rewording for clarity.

(3) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for Grade 2 are:

(a) measure the length of an object by
selecting and using appropriate tools such as
rulers, yardsticks, meter sticks, and measuring
tapes;

(b) measure the length of an object twice,
using length units of different lengths for the
two measurements and describe how the two
measurements relate to the size of the unit
chosen; understand the relationship between
unit sizes and number of units by measuring a
single object using two different units of
common measurement;

(c) estimate lengths using units of inches, feet,
centimeters, and meters common
measurement;

(d) measure to determine how much longer
one object is than another, expressing the

(3) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for Grade 2 are:

(a) measure the length of an object by
selecting and using appropriate tools;

(b) understand the relationship between unit
sizes and number of units by measuring a
single object using two different units of
common measurement;

(c) estimate lengths using units of common
measurement;

(d) measure to determine how much longer
one object is than another, expressing the

(3) No change

(a) appropriate tools may have many forms.
An exhaustive list cannot be created. However,
these may be elaborated on in guidance
documents.

(b)Delete specifications; implied in primary
statement. Addition of “units of common
measurement” to align with language used in
other standards.

(c) Shortened for clarity. Added phrase
“common measurement” to encompass the
previously listed examples. This may be
defined further in guidance documents.

(d) No change

Draft - January 30th, 2024 37



length difference in terms of a standard length
unit;

(e) use addition and subtraction within 100 to
solve word problems within a cultural in
context, including those of Montana American
Indians, involving lengths that are given in the
same units, e.g., by using drawings (such as
drawings of rulers) and equations with a
symbol for the unknown number to represent
the problem ; this standard should incorporate
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(f) represent whole numbers as lengths from 0
on a number line diagram with equally spaced
points corresponding to the numbers 0, 1, 2, ...
and represent whole-number sums and
differences within 100 on a number line
diagram;

(g) tell and write time from analog and digital
clocks to the nearest five minutes using a.m.
and p.m.;

(h) solve word problems in context involving
dollar bills, quarters, dimes, nickels, and
pennies, using $ and ¢ symbols appropriately;
for example: if you have two dimes and three
pennies, how many cents do you have?;

(i) generate measurement data by measuring
lengths of several objects to the nearest whole

length difference in terms of a standard-length
unit;

(e) use addition and subtraction within 100 to
solve problems in context involving lengths
that are given in the same units; this standard
should incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(f) represent whole numbers as lengths from 0
and represent sums and differences within 100
on a number line;

(g) tell and write time from analog and digital
clocks to the nearest five minutes using a.m.
and p.m.;

(h) solve problems in context involving dollar
bills, quarters, dimes, nickels, and pennies,
using $ and ¢ symbols appropriately;

(i) generate measurement data and present
the data in multiple ways; this standard should

(e) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC. Change “word
problems” to “problems in context” to align with
NAEP and NCTM.

(f) Simplified for clarity.

(g)No change

(h) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

(i) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC. Revised
wording for clarity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 38



unit or by making repeated measurements of
the same object and show the measurements
by making a line plot, where the horizontal
scale is marked off in whole-number units; and
present the data in multiple ways; this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

(j) draw a picture graph and a bar graph (with
single unit scale) to represent a data set from
a variety of cultural contexts, including those of
Montana American Indians, with up to four
categories and solve simple put together, take
apart and compare problems using information
presented in a bar graph. organize, represent,
and interpret data with up to four categories;
this standard should incorporate cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities; and

(k) solve addition and subtraction problems of
all types using data presented.

incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(j) organize, represent, and interpret data with
up to four categories; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities; and

(k) solve addition and subtraction problems of
all types using data presented.

(j) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC. Additional
concept separated into new standard (see
below)

(k) Add standard to accommodate for items
taken from (j), separating concepts.

(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 2 are:

(a) recognize and draw shapes having
specified attributes, such as a given number of
angles or a given number of equal faces and
identify triangles, quadrilaterals, pentagons,
hexagons, and cubes;

(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 2 are:

(a) recognize and draw shapes having
specified attributes;

(4) No change

(a) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 39



(b) partition a rectangle into rows and columns
of same size squares and count to find the
total number of them; and

(c) partition circles and rectangles into two,
three, or four equal shares; describe the
shares using the words halves, thirds, half of,
a third of, etc.; describe the whole as two
halves, three thirds, four fourths; and,
recognize that equal shares of identical wholes
need not have the same shape, and express
the shares in two-halves, three-thirds, and four
fourths.

(b) partition a rectangle into rows and columns
of same-size squares and find the total
number; and

(c) partition circles and rectangles into equal
shares, recognize that equal shares need not
have the same shape, and express the shares
in two halves, three-thirds, and four-fourths.

(b) Removal of unnecessary language.

(c) Rewording for clarity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 40



ARM 10.53.50512: Montana Grade 3 Mathematics Standards
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:

● Total number of standards in 2011: 37
● Total number of standards proposed for 2024: 41
● Standards removed: 0
● New standards proposed: 4

Four additional standards are the result of separating concepts from previous standards into distinct and separate items.
● Standards identified as high cultural connections priorities: 3
● Common updates:

○ Expansion of fluency language - Previous standards used the broad word “fluently” which was vague and difficult to quantify. These
standards now use variations of “flexibly”, “accurately”, and/or “efficiently” where appropriate to provide more clarity regarding the
specific way students can demonstrate fluency.

○ Use of common language - Previous standards sometimes used complex or lengthy sentences to describe the skill. These proposals
have been simplified, where possible, to use common language more easily understood by all.

○ Removal of examples - The examples have been removed from the official language presented in ARM. All parties involved in the
revision of these standards agree that educators and families need examples to support instruction. These will be present in
guidance documents, rather than within the ARM. This will allow teachers to choose their own examples for instruction, rather than
risk mandating specific examples to be used within the classroom under law.

○ Update for IEFA language - Previously, the cultural connections, or IEFA statements, existed in the middle of individual standards.
These statements now appear as their own clauses at the end of some standards. This placement provides more emphasis on the
IEFA component and contributes to the increased clarity of the standard itself. The statements have also been updated to include
culturally responsive language and expanded to emphasize local communities, highlighting the intention that these standards relate
to the community and culture(s) of the Indigenous Tribal Nations that exist, or historically existed, in the geographical region in which
they are taught.

○ Separation of concepts - Each “additional standard” in 3rd grade are not additional concepts or expectations for 3rd grade students.
Rather, they are the result of taking standards where multiple concepts are present, and separating each concept into its own distinct
standard. There are no new conceptual expectations added to 3rd grade.

12 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E505

Draft - January 30th, 2024 41

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E505


Proposed Montana Grade 3 Mathematics Standards:

3rd Grade Standards 2011 3rd Grade Standards 2024 Rationale
10.53.505 MONTANA GRADE 3
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for Grade 3 are:

(a) interpret understand products of whole
numbers, e.g., interpret 5 × 7 as the total
number of objects in 5 groups of 7 objects
each; for example, describe a context in which
a total number of objects can be expressed as
5 × 7; as the total number found by multiplying
a number of groups by the number of objects
per group;

(b) interpret understand whole-number
quotients of whole numbers:, e.g., interpret 56
÷ 8 as the number of objects in each share
when 56 objects are partitioned equally into 8
shares, or as a number of shares when 56
objects are partitioned into equal shares of 8
objects each; for example, describe a context
in which a number of shares or a number of
groups can be expressed as 56 ÷ 8;

(b.i) as the number of objects in each group
with the total quantity divided equally into a
number of shares; and

(b.ii) as the number of shares when a total
number of objects is partitioned into
equal-sized groups;

10.53.505 MONTANA GRADE 3
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for Grade 3 are:

(a) understand products of whole numbers as
the total number found by multiplying a
number of groups by the number of objects per
group;

(b) understand whole-number quotients of
whole numbers:

(b.i) as the number of objects in each group
with the total quantity divided equally into a
number of shares; and

(b.ii) as the number of shares when a total
number of objects is partitioned into
equal-sized groups;

10.53.505 MONTANA GRADE 3
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) No change

(a) Change to "understand" because
application standards come later and
"interpret" was a confusing verb in this context.

(b) Adding in elaboration and reworking
examples for clarity. Efforts made to use
language families would be more familiar with.
Recommendation that the following be added
to guidance documents to overcome the loss
of example given in the previous standard:
“when sharing, the quotient represents the
number of shared objects in a group. When
grouping, the quotient represents the amount
of groups within the shared quantity”.

(b.i) separation of concept from (b) to make
distinction clear.

(b.ii) separation of concept from (b) to make
distinction clear.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 42

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E505
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E505
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E505


(c) use multiplication and division within 100 to
solve word problems in context in situations
involving equal groups, arrays, and
measurement quantities, e.g., by using
drawings and equations with a symbol for the
unknown number to represent the problem;

(d) determine the unknown whole number in a
multiplication or division equation relating three
whole numbers; for example, determine the
unknown number that makes the equation true
in each of the equations 8 × ? = 48, 5 = ? ÷ 3,
6 × 6 = ?;

(e) apply properties of operations as strategies
to multiply and divide; for example: if 6 × 4 =
24 is known, then 4 × 6 = 24 is also known
(commutative property of multiplication); 3 × 5
× 2 can be found by 3 × 5 = 15, then 15 × 2 =
30, or by 5 × 2 = 10, then 3 × 10 = 30
(associative property of multiplication);
knowing that 8 × 5 = 40 and 8 × 2 = 16, one
can find 8 × 7 as 8 × (5 + 2) = (8 × 5) + (8 × 2)
= 40 + 16 = 56 (distributive property) the
commutative property of multiplication,
associative property of multiplication, and
distributive property of multiplication over
addition on whole numbers as strategies to
multiply;

(f) understand use division as an unknown
factor problem; for example, find 32 ÷ 8 by
finding the number that makes 32 when
multiplied by 8;

(g) fluently flexibly, accurately, and efficiently
multiply and divide within 100, using strategies
such as the relationship between multiplication
and division (e.g., knowing that 8 × 5 = 40, one

(c) use multiplication and division within 100 to
solve problems in context in situations
involving equal groups, arrays, and
measurement quantities;

(d) determine the unknown whole number in a
multiplication or division equation relating three
whole numbers;

(e) apply the commutative property of
multiplication, associative property of
multiplication, and distributive property of
multiplication over addition on whole numbers
as strategies to multiply;

(f) use division as an unknown factor problem;

(g) flexibly, accurately, and efficiently multiply
and divide within 100, using strategies such as
the relationship between multiplication and
division or properties of operations;

(c) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents. Change
“word problems” to “problems in context” to
align with NAEP and NCTM.

(d) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(e) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Rewritten for clarity.

(f) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(g) Define what mathematical fluency looks
like by adding "Flexibly, accurately and
efficiently". Removal of memory expectation.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 43



knows 40 ÷ 5 = 8) or properties of operations
and by the end of Grade 3, know from memory
all products of two one-digit numbers;

(h) solve two step word problems in context
using the four operations within cultural
contexts, including those of Montana American
Indians; represent these problems using
equations with a letter standing for the
unknown quantity; and assess the
reasonableness of answers using mental
computation and estimation strategies
including rounding ; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities; and

(i) identify arithmetic patterns (including
patterns in the addition table or multiplication
table) and explain them using properties of
operations; for example, observe that four
times a number is always even, and explain
why four times a number can be decomposed
into two equal addends.

(h) solve two step problems in context using
the four operations; represent these problems
using equations with a letter standing for the
unknown quantity; and assess the
reasonableness of answers using mental
computation and estimation strategies; this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities; and

(i) identify arithmetic patterns and explain them
using properties of operations.

Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(h) Elimination of "including rounding".
Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

(i) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.
Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(2) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standards for Grade 3 are:

(a) use place value understanding to round
whole numbers to the nearest 10 or 100;

(b) fluently flexibly, accurately, and efficiently
add and subtract within 1000 using strategies
and algorithms based on place value,
properties of operations, and/or the
relationship between addition and subtraction;
and

(2) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standards for Grade 3 are:

(a) use place value understanding to round
whole numbers to the nearest 10 or 100;

(b) flexibly, accurately, and efficiently add and
subtract within 1000 using strategies and
algorithms based on place value, properties of
operations, and/or the relationship between
addition and subtraction; and

(2) No change

(a) No change

(b) Addition of "flexibly, accurately, and
efficiently" to align with the definition of fluency.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 44



(c) multiply one-digit whole numbers by
multiples of 10 in the range 10-90 (e.g., 9 × 80,
5 × 60) using strategies based on place value
and properties of operations.

(c) multiply one-digit whole numbers by
multiples of 10 in the range 10-90 using
strategies based on place value and properties
of operations.

(c) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(3) Mathematics number and operations
fractions content standards for Grade 3
are:

(a) understand a fraction 1/b as the quantity
formed by 1 part when a whole is partitioned
into b equal parts and understand a fraction
a/b as the quantity formed by a parts of size
1/b;

(b) understand a fraction as a number on the
number line and represent fractions on a
number line diagram; by:

(b.i) representing a unit fraction 1/b on a
number line diagram by defining the interval
from 0 to 1 as the whole and partitioning it into
b equal parts, recognize that each part has
size 1/b, and that the endpoint of the part
based at 0 locates the number 1/b on the
number line; and

(b.ii) representing a fraction a/b on a number
line diagram by marking off a lengths 1/b from
0 and recognize that the resulting interval has
size a/b and that its endpoint locates the
number a/b on the number line as multiple
copies of a unit fraction on a number line; and

(b.iii) representing fractions on a number line;

(3) Mathematics number and operations
fractions content standards for Grade 3
are:

(a) understand a fraction 1/b as the quantity
formed by 1 part when a whole is partitioned
into b equal parts and understand a fraction
a/b as the quantity formed by a parts of size
1/b;

(b) understand a fraction as a number on the
number line by:

(b.i) representing a unit fraction on a number
line;

(b.ii) representing a fraction as multiple copies
of a unit fraction; and

(b.iii) representing fractions on a number line;

(3) No change.

(a) No change

(b) Simplified for clarity, addition of the word
“by”

(b.i) Grammatical changes and separating
elements into other sub-standards below.

(b.ii) Simplified for clarity, grammatical
changes. Separating elements into other
sub-standards below.

(b.iii) elements taken from (b.i) and (b.ii)
incorporated here.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 45



(c) explain understand the equivalence of
fractions in special cases and compare
fractions by reasoning about their size; by:

(c.i) understand understanding two fractions
as equivalent (equal) if they are the same size
or the same point on a number line;

(c.ii) recognize recognizing and generate
generating simple equivalent fractions, e.g.,
1/2 = 2/4, 4/6 = 2/3 and explain why the
fractions are equivalent, e.g., by using a visual
fraction model; and by demonstrating or
justifying why the fractions are equivalent;

(c.iii) express writing whole numbers as
fractions, and recognize recognizing fractions
that are equivalent to whole numbers; for
example: express 3 in the form 3 = 3/1;
recognize that 6/1 = 6; , and locate 4/4 and 1
at the same point of a locating them on the
number line diagram; and

(c.iv) compare comparing two fractions with
the same numerator or the same denominator
by reasoning about their size; recognize and
recognizing that comparisons are valid only
when the two fractions refer to the same
whole; record the results of comparisons with
the symbols >, =, or <; and justify the
conclusions, e.g., by using a visual fraction
model.; and

(c.v) recording the results of fraction
comparisons with the symbols >, =, or < and
justifying the conclusions.

(c) understand the equivalence of fractions in
special cases and compare fractions by
reasoning about their size by:

(c.i) understanding two fractions as equivalent
if they are the same size of the same point on
a number line;

(c.ii) recognizing and generating simple
equivalent fractions; and by demonstrating or
justifying why the fractions are equivalent;

(c.iii) writing whole numbers as fractions,
recognizing fractions that are equivalent to
whole numbers, and locating them on the
number line;

(c.iv) comparing two fractions with the same
numerator or the same denominator by
reasoning about their size and recognizing that
comparisons are valid only when the two
fractions refer to the same whole; and

(c.v) recording the results of fraction
comparisons with the symbols >, =, or < and
justifying the conclusions.

(c) Grammatical changes.

(c.i) Grammatical changes. Remove the word
“equal” due to redundancy.

(c.ii) Grammatical changes. Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(c.iii) Grammatical changes. Removed
example.

(c.iv) Pulling the final statement into its own
standard.

(c.v) Taking the final statement from (iv) and
creating a new standard.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 46



(4) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for Grade 3 are:

(a) tell and write time on an analog and digital
clock to the nearest minute and measure time
intervals in minutes and solve word problems
in context involving addition and subtraction of
time intervals in minutes, e.g., by representing
the problem on a number line diagram;

(b) measure and estimate liquid volumes and
masses of objects using standard units of
grams (g), kilograms (kg), and liters (l) and
customary and metric units by adding,
subtracting, multiplying, or divide and dividing
to solve one step word problems in context
involving masses or volumes that are given in
the same units, e.g., by using drawings (such
as a beaker with a measurement scale) to
represent the problem;

(c) draw a scaled picture graph and a scaled
bar graph to represent a data set with several
categories, within cultural contexts including
those of Montana American Indians; solve
one- and two-step "how many more" and "how
many less" problems using information
presented in scaled bar graphs; for example,
draw a bar graph in which each square in the
bar graph might represent five pets this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

(d) generate measurement data by measuring
lengths using rulers marked with halves and
fourths of an inch and show the data by
making a line plot where the horizontal scale is

(4) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for Grade 3 are:

(a) tell and write time on an analog and digital
clock to the nearest minute and measure time
intervals in minutes and solve problems in
context involving addition and subtraction of
time intervals in minutes;

(b) measure and estimate liquid volumes and
masses of objects using customary and metric
units by adding, subtracting, multiplying, and
dividing to solve one step problems in context
involving masses or volumes that are given in
the same units;

(c) draw a scaled picture graph and a scaled
bar graph to represent a data set with several
categories; solve one- and two-step "how
many more" and "how many less" problems
using information presented in scaled bar
graphs; this standard should incorporate
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(d) generate measurement data by measuring
lengths using rulers marked with halves and
fourths of an inch and show the data by
making a line plot where the horizontal scale is
marked off in appropriate units;

(4) No change

(a) Consistency with 2nd grade standard.
Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

(b) Inclusion of customary units. Revision for
clarity. Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(c) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC.

(d) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 47



marked off in appropriate units, i.e. whole
numbers, halves, or quarters;

(e) recognize area as an attribute of plane
figures and understand concepts of area
measurement; by:

(e.i) understanding that a square with side
length 1 unit, called "a unit square," is said to
have "one square unit" of area and can be
used to measure area; and

(e.ii) understanding that a plane figure which
can be covered without gaps or overlaps by n
unit squares is said to have an area of n
square units;

(f) measure areas by counting unit squares
(square cm, square m, square in, square ft,
and improvised units);

(g) relate area to the operations of
multiplication and addition; by:

(g.i) find finding the area of a rectangle with
whole-number side lengths by tiling it, and
showing that the area is the same as would be
found by multiplying the side lengths;

(g.ii) multiply multiplying side lengths to find
areas of rectangles with whole-number side
lengths in the context of while solving
real-world and mathematical problems in
context and represent representing
whole-number products as rectangular areas
in mathematical reasoning;

(g.iii) use using tiling to show in a concrete
case that the and area models to represent the

(e) recognize area as an attribute of plane
figures and understand concepts of area
measurement by:

(e.i) understanding that a square with side
length 1 unit, called "a unit square," is said to
have "one square unit" of area and can be
used to measure area; and

(e.ii) understanding that a plane figure which
can be covered without gaps or overlaps by n
unit squares is said to have an area of n
square units;

(f) measure areas by counting unit squares;

(g) relate area to the operations of
multiplication and addition by:

(g.i) finding the area of a rectangle with
whole-number side lengths by tiling it, and
showing that the area is the same as would be
found by multiplying the side lengths;

(g.ii) multiplying side lengths to find areas of
rectangles with whole-number side lengths
while solving problems in context and
representing whole-number products as
rectangular areas;

(g.iii) using tiling and area models to represent
the distributive property in finding the area of a

(e) Added the word "by:"

(e.i) Grammatical changes

(e.ii) Grammatical changes

(f) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(g) Added the word "by:"

(g.i) Grammatical changes

(g.ii) Grammatical changes. Change “word
problems” to “problems in context” to align with
NAEP and NCTM.

(g.iii) Grammatical changes. Use of “area
models” to demonstrate development of

Draft - January 30th, 2024 48



distributive property in finding area of a
rectangle with whole-number side lengths a
and b + c is the sum of a × b and a × c and
use area models to represent the distributive
property in mathematical reasoning;

(g.iv) recognize recognizing area as additive;
finding areas of rectilinear straight-line figures
by decomposing them into nonoverlapping
rectangles and adding the areas of the
nonoverlapping parts; and apply this technique
to solve real-world problems, including those
of Montana American Indians this standard
should incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities; and

(h) solve real-world and mathematical
problems in context involving perimeters of
polygons, including finding the perimeter given
the side lengths, finding an unknown side
length, and exhibiting rectangles with the same
perimeter and different areas or with the same
area and different perimeters.

rectangle with whole-number side lengths a
and b + c is the sum of a × b and a × c;

(g.iv) recognizing area as additive; finding
areas of straight-line figures by decomposing
them into nonoverlapping rectangles and
adding the areas of the nonoverlapping parts;
this standard should incorporate cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities; and

(h) solve problems in context involving
perimeters of polygons, including finding the
perimeter given the side lengths, finding an
unknown side length, and exhibiting rectangles
with the same perimeter and different areas or
with the same area and different perimeters.

distributive property, a foundational
understanding for higher grade levels.

(g.iv) Grammatical changes, clarifying
language. Modified based on consultation with
the Tribal panel, task force, and NRC.

(h) Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.
Grammatical changes.

(5) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 3 are:

(a) understand that shapes in different
categories (e.g., rhombuses, rectangles, and
others) may share attributes (e.g., having four
sides) and that the shared attributes can
define a larger category (e.g., quadrilaterals);
recognize rhombuses, rectangles, and squares
as examples of quadrilaterals; and draw
examples of quadrilaterals that do not belong
to any of these subcategories; and

(5) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 3 are:

(a) understand that shapes in different
categories may share attributes and that the
shared attributes can define a larger category;
recognize rhombuses, rectangles, and squares
as examples of quadrilaterals; and draw
examples of quadrilaterals that do not belong
to any of these subcategories; and

(5) No change

(a) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 49



(b) partition shapes into parts with equal areas;
express the area of each part as a unit fraction
of the whole; for example, partition a shape
into four parts with equal area, and describe
the area of each part as 1/4 of the area of the
shape.

(b) partition shapes into parts with equal areas;
express the area of each part as a unit fraction
of the whole;

(b) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 50



ARM 10.53.50613: Montana Grade 4 Mathematics Standards
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:

● Total number of standards in 2011: 37
● Total number of standards proposed for 2024: 37
● Standards removed: 0
● New standards proposed: 0
● Standards identified as high cultural connections priorities: 5
● Common updates:

○ Expansion of fluency language - Previous standards used the broad word “fluently” which was vague and difficult to quantify. These
standards now use variations of “flexibly”, “accurately”, and/or “efficiently” where appropriate to provide more clarity regarding the
specific way students can demonstrate fluency.

○ Use of common language - Previous standards sometimes used complex or lengthy sentences to describe the skill. These proposals
have been simplified, where possible, to use common language more easily understood by all.

○ Removal of examples - The examples have been removed from the official language presented in ARM. All parties involved in the
revision of these standards agree that educators and families need examples to support instruction. These will be present in
guidance documents, rather than within the ARM. This will allow teachers to choose their own examples for instruction, rather than
risk mandating specific examples to be used within the classroom under law.

○ Update for IEFA language - Previously, the cultural connections, or IEFA statements, existed in the middle of individual standards.
These statements now appear as their own clauses at the end of some standards. This placement provides more emphasis on the
IEFA component and contributes to the increased clarity of the standard itself. The statements have also been updated to include
culturally responsive language and expanded to emphasize local communities, highlighting the intention that these standards relate
to the community and culture(s) of the Indigenous Tribal Nations that exist, or historically existed, in the geographical region in which
they are taught.

○ Use of “problems in context” - The use of “word problems”, “real-world problems” or other variations, were replaced with “problems in
context”. This was done to provide the use of consistent language throughout the K-12 standards.

13 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E506

Draft - January 30th, 2024 51

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E506


Proposed Montana Grade 4 Mathematics Standards:
4th Grade Standards 2011 4th Grade Standards 2024 Rationale

10.53.506 MONTANA GRADE 4
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for Grade 4 are:

(a) interpret a multiplication equation as a
multiplicative comparison, e.g., interpret 35 = 5
× 7 as a statement that 35 is 5 times as many
as 7 and 7 times as many as 5 and represent
verbal statements of multiplicative
comparisons as multiplication equations;

(b) multiply or divide to solve word problems in
context involving multiplicative comparison,
e.g., by using drawings and equations with a
symbol for the unknown number to represent
the problem, and distinguishing multiplicative
comparison from additive comparison;

(c) solve multistep word problems in context
within cultural contexts, including those of
Montana American Indians, with whole
numbers and having whole-number answers
using the four operations, including problems
in which remainders must be interpreted;
represent these problems using equations with
a letter standing for the unknown quantity; and
assess the reasonableness of answers using
mental computation and estimation strategies
including rounding; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

10.53.506 MONTANA GRADE 4
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for Grade 4 are:

(a) interpret a multiplication equation as a
multiplicative comparison and represent verbal
statements of multiplicative comparisons as
multiplication equations;

(b) multiply or divide to solve problems in
context involving multiplicative comparison and
distinguish multiplicative comparison from
additive comparison;

(c) solve multistep problems in context with
whole numbers and having whole-number
answers using the four operations, including
problems in which remainders must be
interpreted; represent these problems using
equations with a letter standing for the
unknown quantity; and assess the
reasonableness of answers using mental
computation and estimation strategies; this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

10.53.506 MONTANA GRADE 4
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) No change

(a) Add: "multiplicative" for consistency with
other standards. Examples were removed for
clarity, yet may still appear in guidance
documents. Specifically, non-prime examples
are recommended for addition to guidance.

(b) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.
Grammatical changes.

(c) Remove: "including rounding" Add: "i.e.; a
variable" to use the proper term. Change “word
problems” to “problems in context” to align with
NAEP and NCTM. Modified based on
consultation with the Tribal panel, task force,
and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 52

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E506
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E506
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E506


(d) find all factor pairs for a whole number in
the range 1-100; recognize that a whole
number is a multiple of each of its factors;
determine whether a given whole number in
the range 1-1000 is a multiple of a given
one-digit number; and determine whether a
given whole number in the range 1-100 is
prime or composite; and

(e) generate analyze a number or shape
patterns that follows a given rule; identify
apparent and explain informally, features of
the pattern that were not explicit in the rule
itself; for example, given the rule "add 3" and
the starting number 1, generate terms in the
resulting sequence and observe that the terms
appear to alternate between odd and even
numbers; explain informally why the numbers
will continue to alternate in this way the
pattern.

(d) find all factor pairs for a whole number in
the range 1-100; recognize that a whole
number is a multiple of each of its factors;
determine whether a given whole number in
the range 1-1000 is a multiple of a given
one-digit number; and determine whether a
given whole number in the range 1-100 is
prime or composite; and

(e) analyze a number or shape pattern that
follows a given rule; identify and explain
informally, features of the pattern that were not
explicit in the rule itself; generate terms in the
resulting sequence and observe the pattern.

(d) No change

(e) Replace: "generate" with "analyze". Clarify
multiple ways of knowing with a swap of
"apparent" and "and explain informally".
Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(2) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standards for Grade 4 are:

(a) recognize that in a multi-digit whole
number, a digit in one each place represents
ten times what it represents in than the the
place to its right; for example, recognize that
700 ÷ 70 = 10 by applying concepts of place
value and division;

(b) read and write multi-digit whole numbers
using base ten numerals, number
names,standard form, word form, and
expanded form and compare two multi-digit

(2) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standards for Grade 4 are:

(a) recognize that in a multi-digit whole
number, each place represents ten times more
than the place to its right;

(b) read and write multi-digit whole numbers
using standard form, word form, and expanded
form and compare two multi-digit numbers

(2) No change

(a) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(b) Clarifying language.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 53



numbers based on meanings the value of the
digits in each place, using >, =, and < symbols
to record the results of comparisons;

(c) use place value understanding to round
multi-digit whole numbers to any place;

(d) fluently accurately and efficiently add and
subtract multi-digit whole numbers using the
standard algorithm;

(e) multiply a whole number of up to four digits
by a one-digit whole number; multiply two
two-digit numbers, flexibly using strategies
based on place value and the properties of
operations; and illustrate and explain the
calculation by using equations, rectangular
arrays, and/or area models; and

(f) find whole number quotients and
remainders with up to four-digit dividends and
one-digit divisors, flexibly using strategies
based on place value, the properties of
operations, and/or the relationship between
multiplication and division and illustrate and
explain the calculation by using equations,
rectangular arrays, and/or area models.

based on the value of the digits in each place,
using >, =, and < symbols;

(c) use place value understanding to round
multi-digit whole numbers to any place;

(d) accurately and efficiently add and subtract
multi-digit whole numbers using the standard
algorithm;

(e) multiply a whole number of up to four digits
by a one-digit whole number; multiply two
two-digit numbers, flexibly using strategies
based on place value and the properties of
operations; and illustrate and explain the
calculation by using equations, rectangular
arrays, and/or area models; and

(f) find whole number quotients and
remainders with up to four-digit dividends and
one-digit divisors, flexibly using strategies
based on place value, the properties of
operations, and/or the relationship between
multiplication and division and illustrate and
explain the calculation by using equations,
rectangular arrays, and/or area models.

(c) No change

(d) Utilize “accurately and efficiently” to replace
“fluently”.

(e) Addition of word "flexibly"

(f) Addition of word "flexibly"

(3) Mathematics number and operations -
fractions content standards for Grade 4
are:

(a) explain why a fraction a/b is equivalent to a
fraction (n × a)/(n × b) by using visual fraction
models with attention to how the number and
size of the parts differ even though the two
fractions themselves are the same size and

(3) Mathematics number and operations -
fractions content standards for Grade 4
are:

(a) explain why a fraction a/b is equivalent to a
fraction (n × a)/(n × b) by using visual fraction
models and use this principle to recognize and
generate equivalent fractions;

(3) No change

(a) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 54



use this principle to recognize and generate
equivalent fractions;

(b) compare two fractions with different
numerators and different denominators, e.g.,
by creating common denominators or
numerators, or by comparing to a benchmark
fraction such as 1/2; recognize that
comparisons are valid only when the two
fractions refer to the same whole; record the
results of comparisons with symbols >, =, or <;
and justify the conclusions, e.g., by using a
visual fraction model;

(c) understand a fraction a/b with a > 1 as a
sum of fractions 1/b; by:

(c.i) understanding addition and subtraction of
fractions as joining and separating parts
referring to the same whole;

(c.ii) decompose decomposing a fraction into a
sum of fractions with the same denominator in
more than one way, recording each
decomposition by an equation; justify
decompositions, e.g., by using a visual fraction
model; for example: 3/8 = 1/8 + 1/8 + 1/8 ; 3/8
= 1/8 + 2/8 ; 2 1/8 = 1 + 1 + 1/8 = 8/8 + 8/8 +
1/8;

(c.iii) add adding and subtract subtracting
mixed numbers with like denominators, e.g.,
by replacing each mixed number with an
equivalent improper fraction, and/or by using
properties of operations and the relationship
between addition and subtraction or other
efficient strategies; and

(b) compare two fractions with different
numerators and different denominators by
creating common denominators or numerators,
or by comparing to a benchmark fraction;
recognize that comparisons are valid only
when the two fractions refer to the same
whole; record the results of comparisons with
symbols >, =, or <; and justify the conclusions;

(c) understand a fraction a/b with a > 1 as a
sum of fractions 1/b by:

(c.i) understanding addition and subtraction of
fractions as joining and separating parts
referring to the same whole;

(c.ii) decomposing a fraction into a sum of
fractions with the same denominator in more
than one way, recording each decomposition
by an equation;

(c.iii) adding and subtracting mixed numbers
with like denominators, by replacing each
mixed number with an equivalent improper
fraction or other efficient strategies; and

(b) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(c) Inclusion of the word “by:”

(c.i) Grammatical changes

(c.ii) Grammatical changes. Remove
expectation of justification. Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(c.iii) Clarifying language. Elaboration on other
efficient strategies may appear in guidance
documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 55



(c.iv) solve solving word problems within
cultural contexts, including those of Montana
American Indians, in context involving addition
and subtraction of fractions referring to the
same whole and having like denominators,
e.g., by using visual fraction models and
equations to represent the problem; this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

(d) apply and extend previous understandings
of multiplication to multiply a fraction by a
whole number; by:

(d.i) understand understanding a fraction a/b
as a multiple of 1/b; for example, use a visual
fraction model to represent 5/4 as the product
5 × (1/4), and recording the conclusion by the
equation 5/4 = 5 × (1/4) a/b = a*(1/b);

(d.ii) understand understanding a multiple of
a/b as a multiple of 1/b, and use using this
understanding to multiply a fraction by a whole
number; for example, use a visual fraction
model to express 3 × (2/5) as 6 × (1/5), and
recognizing this product as 6/5 (in general, n ×
(a/b) = (n × a)/b);

(d.iii) solve word solving problems within
cultural contexts, including those of Montana
American Indians, in context involving
multiplication of a fraction by a whole number,
e.g., by using visual fraction models and
equations to represent the problem; for
example, if each person at a party will eat 3/8
of a pound of roast beef and there will be five
people at the party, how many pounds of roast
beef will be needed? Between what two whole

(c.iv) solving problems in context involving
addition and subtraction of fractions referring
to the same whole and having like
denominators; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(d) apply and extend previous understandings
of multiplication to multiply a fraction by a
whole number by:

(d.i) understanding a fraction a/b as a multiple
of 1/b and recording the conclusion by the
equation a/b = a × (1/b));

(d.ii) understanding a multiple of a/b as a
multiple of 1/b, using this to multiply a fraction
by a whole number and recognizing n × (a/b) =
(n × a)/b; and

(d.iii) solving problems in context involving
multiplication of a fraction by a whole number;
this standard should incorporate cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(c.iv) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC.
Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

(d) Addition of the word "by:"

(d.i) Grammatical changes. Example was
generalized. Specific examples were removed
for clarity, yet may still appear in guidance
documents.

(d.ii) Grammatical changes. Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents. Generalized example
retained.

(d.iii) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC.
Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 56



numbers does your answer lie? As a
contemporary American Indian example, for
family/cultural gatherings, the Canadian and
Montana Cree bake bannock made from flour,
salt, grease, and baking soda, in addition to
3/4 cup water per pan. When making four
pans, how much water will be needed?; this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

(e) express a fraction with denominator 10 as
an equivalent fraction with denominator 100,
and use this technique to add two fractions
with respective denominators 10 and 100; for
example, express 3/10 as 30/100, and add
3/10 + 4/100 = 34/100;

(f) use decimal notation for fractions with
denominators 10 or 100; for example, rewrite
0.62 as 62/100; describe a length as 0.62
meters; and locate 0.62 on a number line
diagram; and

(g) compare two decimals to hundredths by
reasoning about their size; recognize that
comparisons are valid only when the two
decimals refer to the same whole; record the
results of comparisons with the symbols >, =,
or <; and justify the conclusions, e.g., by using
a visual model.

(e) express a fraction with denominator 10 as
an equivalent fraction with denominator 100,
and use this technique to add two fractions
with respective denominators 10 and 100;

(f) use decimal notation for fractions with
denominators 10 or 100; and

(g) compare two decimals to hundredths by
reasoning about their size; recognize that
comparisons are valid only when the two
decimals refer to the same whole; record the
results of comparisons with the symbols >, =,
or <; and justify the conclusions.

(e) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(f) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(g) Removal of "visual model" allows for
multiple ways of representing justification.

(4) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for Grade 4 are:

(a) know relative sizes of measurement units
within one system of units including km, m,
cm, kg, g, lb., oz., l, ml, hr, min., and sec.;

(4) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for Grade 4 are:

(a) know the relative sizes of units within one
system of measurement and within the

(4) No change

(a) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 57



within a single system of measurement, and
within the system, express measurements in of
a larger unit in terms of a smaller unit; record
measurement equivalents in a two-column
table; for example know that 1 ft is 12 times as
long as 1 in.; express the length of a four ft
snake as 48 in.; generate a conversion table
for feet and inches listing the number pairs (1,
12), (2, 24), (3, 36), ...;

(b) use the four operations to solve word
problems within cultural contexts, including
those of Montana American Indians, involving
in context of distances, intervals of time, liquid
volumes, masses of objects, and money;,
including problems involving with simple
fractions or decimals and problems that
require expressing measurements given in a
larger unit in terms of a smaller unit, represent
measurement quantities using diagrams such
as number line diagrams that feature a
measurement scale; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(c) apply the area and perimeter formulas for
rectangles in real-world and mathematical
problems; for example, find the width of a
rectangular room given the area of the flooring
and the length by viewing the area formula as
a multiplication equation with an unknown
factor including problems in context;

(d) make a line plot to display a data set of
measurements in fractions of a unit (1/2, 1/4,
1/8); and solve problems involving addition
and subtraction of fractions by using
information presented in line plots; for

system, express measurements of a larger unit
in terms of a smaller unit;

(b) use the four operations to solve problems
in context of distances, intervals of time, liquid
volumes, masses of objects, and money,
including problems with simple fractions or
decimals and problems that require expressing
measurements given in a larger unit in terms
of a smaller unit, represent measurement
quantities using diagrams that feature a
measurement scale; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(c) apply area and perimeter formulas for
rectangles including problems in context;

(d) make a line plot to display a data set of
measurements in fractions of a unit and solve
problems involving addition and subtraction of

(b) Grammatical changes. Modified based on
consultation with the Tribal panel, task force,
and NRC.Change “word problems” to
“problems in context” to align with NAEP and
NCTM.

(c) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents. Change
“word problems” to “problems in context” to
align with NAEP and NCTM.

(d) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 58



example, from a line plot find and interpret the
difference in length between the longest and
shortest specimens in an insect or
arrow/spearhead collection;

(e) recognize angles as geometric shapes that
are formed wherever two rays share a
common endpoint and understand concepts of
angle measurement by:

(e.i) an angle is measured with reference to a
circle with its center at the common endpoint
of the rays; by considering the fraction of the
circular arc between the points where the two
rays intersect the circle, an angle that turns
through 1/360 of a circle is called a
"one-degree angle" and can be used to
measure angles understanding that an angle is
formed by two rays with a common endpoint at
the center of a circle that measures a total of
360 degrees, and a single-degree unit
measure is equal to 1/360th of the circle; and

(e.ii) understanding that an angle that turns
through n one-degree angles is said to have
an angle measure of n degrees;

(f) measure angles in whole-number degrees
using a protractor and sketch angles of
specified measure; and

(g) recognize angle measure as additive; when
an angle is decomposed into nonoverlapping
parts, the angle measure of the whole is the
sum of the angle measurers of the parts; solve
addition and subtraction problems to find
unknown angles on a diagram in real-world
and mathematical including problems in

fractions by using information presented in line
plots;

(e) recognize angles as geometric shapes that
are formed wherever two rays share a
common endpoint and understand concepts of
angle measurement by:

(e.i) understanding that an angle is formed by
two rays with a common endpoint at the center
of a circle that measures a total of 360
degrees, and a single-degree unit measure is
equal to 1/360th of the circle; and

(e.ii) understanding that an angle that turns
through n one-degree angles is said to have
an angle measure of n degrees;

(f) measure angles in whole-number degrees
using a protractor and sketch angles of
specified measure; and

(g) recognize angle measure as additive; when
an angle is decomposed into nonoverlapping
parts, the angle measure of the whole is the
sum of the angle measurers of the parts; solve
addition and subtraction problems to find

(e) Inclusion of the word "by:"

(e.i) Revision of wording of standard to use
clarifying language that families and teachers
will better understand. Concept retained.

(e.ii) Clarifying language.

(f) Addition of “and” to match arm language.

(g) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 59



context; e.g., by using an equation with a
symbol for the unknown angle measure.

unknown angles on a diagram including
problems in context.

(5) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 4 are:

(a) draw points, lines, line segments, rays,
angles (right, acute, obtuse), and
perpendicular and parallel lines and identify
these in two-dimensional figures;

(b) classify two-dimensional figures based on
the presence or absence of parallel or
perpendicular lines or the presence or
absence of angles of a specified size;
recognize right triangles as a category; and
identify right triangles; and

(c) recognize a line of symmetry for a
two-dimensional figure, including those found
in Montana American Indian designs, as a line
across the figure such that the figure can be
folded along the line into matching parts;,
identify line-symmetric figures;, and draw lines
of symmetry; this standard should incorporate
designs and cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities.

(5) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 4 are:

(a) draw points, lines, line segments, rays,
angles (right, acute, obtuse), and
perpendicular and parallel lines and identify
these in two-dimensional figures;

(b) classify two-dimensional figures based on
the presence or absence of parallel or
perpendicular lines or the presence or
absence of angles of a specified size;
recognize right triangles as a category; and
identify right triangles; and

(c) recognize a line of symmetry for a
two-dimensional figure as a line across the
figure such that the figure can be folded along
the line into matching parts, identify
line-symmetric figures, and draw lines of
symmetry; this standard should incorporate
designs and cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities.

(5) No change

(a) No change

(b) No change

(c) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 60



ARM 10.53.50714: Montana Grade 5 Mathematics Standards
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:

● Total number of standards in 2011: 40
● Total number of standards proposed for 2024: 40
● Standards removed: 0
● New standards proposed: 0
● Standards identified as high cultural connections priorities: 6
● Common updates:

○ Expansion of fluency language - Previous standards used the broad word “fluently” which was vague and difficult to quantify. These
standards now use variations of “flexibly”, “accurately”, and/or “efficiently” where appropriate to provide more clarity regarding the
specific way students can demonstrate fluency.

○ Use of common language - Previous standards sometimes used complex or lengthy sentences to describe the skill. These proposals
have been simplified, where possible, to use common language more easily understood by all.

○ Removal of examples - The examples have been removed from the official language presented in ARM. All parties involved in the
revision of these standards agree that educators and families need examples to support instruction. These will be present in
guidance documents, rather than within the ARM. This will allow teachers to choose their own examples for instruction, rather than
risk mandating specific examples to be used within the classroom under law.

○ Update for IEFA language - Previously, the cultural connections, or IEFA statements, existed in the middle of individual standards.
These statements now appear as their own clauses at the end of some standards. This placement provides more emphasis on the
IEFA component and contributes to the increased clarity of the standard itself. The statements have also been updated to include
culturally responsive language and expanded to emphasize local communities, highlighting the intention that these standards relate
to the community and culture(s) of the Indigenous Tribal Nations that exist, or historically existed, in the geographical region in which
they are taught.

○ Use of “problems in context” - The use of “word problems”, “real-world problems” or other variations, were replaced with “problems in
context”. This was done to provide the use of consistent language throughout the K-12 standards.

14 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E507

Draft - January 30th, 2024 61

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E507


Proposed Montana Grade 5 Mathematics Standards:
5th Grade Standards 2011 5th Grade Standards 2024 Rationale

10.53.507 MONTANA GRADE 5
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for Grade 5 are:

(a) use parentheses, brackets, or braces in
numerical expressions and evaluate
expressions with these symbols using the
order of operations;

(b) write simple expressions that record
calculations with numbers and interpret
numerical expressions without evaluating
them; for example, express the calculation
"add 8 and 7, then multiply by 2" as 2 × (8 +
7); recognize that 3 × (18932 + 921) is three
times as large as 18932 + 921, without having
to calculate the indicated sum or product; and

(c) generate two numerical patterns using two
given rules and complete an input-output table
for the data; identify apparent relationships
between corresponding terms; form ordered
pairs consisting of corresponding terms from
the two patterns and graph the ordered pairs
from the values in the input-output table and
graph them on a coordinate plane; for
example, given the rule "add 3" and the
starting number 0, and given the rule "add 6"
and the starting number 0, generate terms in
the resulting sequences and observe that the
terms in one sequence are twice the
corresponding terms in the other sequence;
and explain informally why this is so.

10.53.507 MONTANA GRADE 5
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics operations and algebraic
thinking content standards for Grade 5 are:

(a) use parentheses, brackets, or braces in
numerical expressions and evaluate
expressions with these symbols using the
order of operations;

(b) write simple expressions that record
calculations with numbers and interpret
numerical expressions without evaluating
them; and

(c) generate numerical patterns using given
rules and complete an input-output table for
the data; identify apparent relationships
between corresponding terms; form ordered
pairs from the values in the input-output table
and graph them on a coordinate plane.

10.53.507 MONTANA GRADE 5
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) No change

(a) Clarifying language.

(b) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(c) Clarifying language, simplified. Examples
were removed for clarity, yet may still appear
in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 62

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E507
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E507
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E507


(2) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standards for Grade 5 are:

(a) recognize that in a multidigit number, a digit
in one place represents 10 times as much as it
represents in the place to its right and 1/10 of
what it represents in the place to its left;

(b) explain patterns in the number of zeros of
the product when multiplying a number by
powers of 10; explain patterns in the
placement of the decimal point when a decimal
is multiplied or divided by a power of 10; and
use whole-number exponents to denote
powers of 10;

(c) read, write, and compare decimals to
thousandths; by:

(c.i) read reading and write writing decimals to
thousandths using base ten numerals, number
names, standard form, word form, and
expanded form, e.g. 347.392 = 3 × 100 +4 ×
10 + 7 × 1 + 3 × (1/10) + 9 × (1/100) + 2 ×
(1/1000); and

(c.ii) compare comparing two decimals to
thousandths based on meanings of the digits
in each place using >, =, and < symbols to
record the results of comparisons;

(d) use place value understandings to round
decimals to any place;

(2) Mathematics number and operations in
base ten content standards for Grade 5 are:

(a) recognize that in a multidigit number, a digit
in one place represents 10 times as much as it
represents in the place to its right and 1/10 of
what it represents in the place to its left;

(b) explain patterns in the number of zeros of
the product when multiplying a number by
powers of 10; explain patterns in the
placement of the decimal point when a decimal
is multiplied or divided by a power of 10; and
use whole-number exponents to denote
powers of 10;

(c) read, write, and compare decimals to
thousandths by:

(c.i) reading and writing decimals to
thousandths using standard form, word form,
and expanded form; and

(c.ii) comparing two decimals to thousandths
based on meanings of the digits in each place
using >, =, and < symbols;

(d) use place value understandings to round
decimals to any place;

(2) No change

(a) No change

(b) No change

(c) Addition of the word "by"

(c.i) Grammatical changes and clarifying
language. Examples were removed for clarity,
yet may still appear in guidance documents.

(c.ii) Grammatical changes. Removed “to
record the results of comparisons” due to
redundancy.

(d) No change

(e) Addition of “accurately and efficiently"

Draft - January 30th, 2024 63



(e) fluently accurately and efficiently multiply
multi-digit whole numbers using the standard
algorithm;

(f) flexibly, accurately, and efficiently find
whole-number quotients of whole numbers
with up to four-digit dividends and two-digit
divisors using strategies based on place value,
the properties of operations, and/or the
relationship between multiplication and division
and illustrate and explain the calculation by
using equations, rectangular arrays, and/or
area models; and

(g) add, subtract, multiply, and divide decimals
to hundredths using concrete models or
drawings within cultural contexts, including
those of Montana American Indians, and
strategies based on place value, properties of
operations, and/or the relationship between
addition and subtraction; relate the strategy to
a written method; and explain the reasoning
used ; this standard should incorporate
designs and cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities.

(e) accurately and efficiently multiply
multi-digit whole numbers using the standard
algorithm;

(f) flexibly, accurately, and efficiently find
whole-number quotients of whole numbers
with up to four-digit dividends and two-digit
divisors using strategies based on place value,
the properties of operations, and/or the
relationship between multiplication and division
and illustrate and explain the calculation by
using equations, rectangular arrays, and/or
area models; and

(g) add, subtract, multiply, and divide decimals
to hundredths using concrete models or
drawings; this standard should incorporate
designs and cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities.

(f) Addition of "flexibly, accurately, and
efficiently"

(g) Adjusted for grade level expectations.
Removed IEFA statement. Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(3) Mathematics number and operations –
fractions content standards for Grade 5
are:

(a) add and subtract fractions with unlike
denominators (including mixed numbers) by
replacing given fractions with equivalent
fractions in such a way as to produce an
equivalent sum or difference of fractions with
like denominators; for example, 2/3 + 5/4 =
8/12 + 15/12 = 23/12 (in general, a/b + c/d =
(ad + bc)/bd);

(3) Mathematics number and operations –
fractions content standards for Grade 5
are:

(a) add and subtract fractions with unlike
denominators (including mixed numbers) by
replacing given fractions with equivalent
fractions;

(3) No change

(a) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 64



(b) solve word problems in context involving
addition and subtraction of fractions referring
to the same whole, including cases of unlike
denominators, e.g., by using visual fraction
models or equations to represent the problem;
and use benchmark fractions and number
sense of fractions to estimate mentally and
assess the reasonableness of answers; for
example, recognize an incorrect result 2/5 +
1/2 = 3/7, by observing that 3/7 < 1/2;

(c) interpret a fraction as division of the
numerator by the denominator (a/b = a ÷ b);
and solve word problems in context involving
division of whole numbers leading to answers
in the form of fractions or mixed numbers, e.g.,
by using visual fraction models or equations to
represent the problem; for example, interpret
3/4 as the result of dividing 3 by 4, noting that
3/4 multiplied by 4 equals 3 and that when 3
wholes are shared equally among 4 people
each person has a share of size 3/4; if 9
people want to share a 50-pound sack of rice
equally by weight, how many pounds of rice
should each person get? Between what two
whole numbers does your answer lie?;

(d) apply and extend previous understandings
of multiplication to multiply a fraction or whole
number by a fraction; by:

(d.i) interpret expressing the product (a/b) × q
as “a” parts of a partition of q into b equal
parts; equivalently, as the result of a sequence
of operations a × q ÷ b; for example, use a
visual fraction model to show (2/3) × 4 = 8/3,
and create a story context for this equation
within cultural contexts, including those of

(b) solve problems in context involving addition
and subtraction of fractions referring to the
same whole, including cases of unlike
denominators and use benchmark fractions
and number sense of fractions to estimate
mentally and assess the reasonableness of
answers;

(c) interpret a fraction as division of the
numerator by the denominator (a/b = a ÷ b)
and solve problems in context involving
division of whole numbers leading to answers
in the form of fractions or mixed numbers;

(d) apply and extend previous understandings
of multiplication to multiply a fraction or whole
number by a fraction by:

(d.i) expressing the product (a/b) × q as “a”
parts of a partition of q into b equal parts;
equivalently, as the result of a sequence of
operations a × q ÷ b; and

(b) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.
Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

(c) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

(d) Addition of the word "by"

(d.i) Grammatical change, removal of example.
Redundancy removal of IEFA statement.
(Present in (f))

Draft - January 30th, 2024 65



Montana American Indians; and do the same
with (2/3) × (4/5) = 8/15 (in general, (a/b) ×
(c/d) = ac/bd); and

(d.ii) find finding the area of a rectangle with
fractional side lengths by tiling it with unit
squares of the appropriate unit fraction side
lengths; show that the area is the same as
would be found by multiplying the side lengths;
multiply fractional side lengths to find areas of
rectangles; and represent fraction products as
rectangular areas;

(e) interpret multiplication as scaling (resizing),
by:

(e.i) comparing the size of a product to the size
of one factor on the basis of the size of the
other factor without performing the indicated
multiplication; and

(e.ii) explaining why multiplying a given
number by a fraction greater than 1 results in a
product greater than the given number
(recognizing multiplication by whole numbers
greater than 1 as a familiar case); explaining
why multiplying a given number by a fraction
less than 1 results in a product smaller than
the given number; and relating the principle of
fraction equivalence a/b = (n × a)/(n × b) to the
effect of multiplying a/b by 1;

(f) solve real-world problems in context
involving multiplication of fractions and mixed
numbers, e.g., by using visual fraction models
or equations to represent the problem within
cultural contexts, including those of Montana
American Indians; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to

(d.ii) finding the area of a rectangle with
fractional side lengths by tiling it with unit
squares of the appropriate unit fraction side
lengths; show that the area is the same as
would be found by multiplying the side lengths;
multiply fractional side lengths to find areas of
rectangles; and represent fraction products as
rectangular areas;

(e) interpret multiplication as scaling (resizing),
by:

(e.i) comparing the size of a product to the size
of one factor on the basis of the size of the
other factor without performing the indicated
multiplication; and

(e.ii) explaining why multiplying a given
number by a fraction greater than 1 results in a
product greater than the given number;
explaining why multiplying a given number by
a fraction less than 1 results in a product
smaller than the given number; and relating
the principle of fraction equivalence a/b = (n ×
a)/(n × b) to the effect of multiplying a/b by 1;

(f) solve problems in context involving
multiplication of fractions and mixed numbers;
this standard should incorporate cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(d.ii) Grammatical change.

(e) No change

(e.i) No change

(e.ii) No change

(f) Elaboration was removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 66



Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(g) apply and extend previous understandings
of division to divide unit fractions by whole
numbers and whole numbers by unit fractions;
by:

(g.i) interpret expressing division of a unit
fraction by a nonzero whole number and
compute such quotients; for example, create a
story context within cultural contexts, including
those of Montana American Indians, for (1/3) ÷
4, and use a visual fraction model to show the
quotient; use the relationship between
multiplication and division to explain that (1/3)
÷ 4 = 1/12 because (1/12) × 4 = 1/3;

(g.ii) interpret expressing division of a whole
number by a unit fraction and compute such
quotients; for example, create a story context
within cultural contexts, including those of
Montana American Indians, for 4 ÷ (1/5), and
use a visual fraction model to show the
quotient; and use the relationship between
multiplication and division to explain that 4 ÷
(1/5) = 20 because 20 × (1/5) = 4; and

(g.iii) solve solving real-world problems in
context involving division of unit fractions by
nonzero whole numbers and division of whole
numbers by unit fractions, e.g., by using visual
fraction models and equations to represent the
problem; for example, how much chocolate will
each person get if 3 people share 1/2 lb of
chocolate equally? How many 1/3-cup
servings are in 2 cups of raisins?.; this
standard should incorporate cultural context

(g) apply and extend previous understandings
of division to divide unit fractions by whole
numbers and whole numbers by unit fractions
by:

(g.i) expressing division of a unit fraction by a
nonzero whole number and compute such
quotients;

(g.ii) expressing division of a whole number by
a unit fraction and compute such quotients;
and

(g.iii) solving problems in context involving
division of unit fractions by nonzero whole
numbers and division of whole numbers by
unit fractions; this standard should incorporate
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities.

(g) Addition of the word “by”:

(g.i) IEFA statement removed due to
redundancy in (iii). Elaboration was removed
for clarity, yet may still appear in guidance
documents.

(g.ii) IEFA statement removed due to
redundancy in (iii) Elaboration was removed
for clarity, yet may still appear in guidance
documents.

(g.iii) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 67



relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities.

(4) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for Grade 5 are:

(a) convert among different-sized standard
measurement units within a given
measurement system (e.g., convert 5 cm to
0.05 m) and use these conversions in solving
multi-step, real-world problems within a
cultural context, including those of Montana
American Indians; in context; this standard
should incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(b) make a line plot to display a data set of
measurements in fractions of a unit (1/2, 1/4,
1/8); and use operations on fractions for this
grade to solve problems involving information
presented in line plots; for example, given
different measurements of liquid in identical
beakers, find the amount of liquid each beaker
would contain if the total amount in all the
beakers were redistributed equally;

(c) recognize volume as an attribute of solid
figures and understand concepts of volume
measurement; by:

(c.i) understanding that a cube with side length
1 unit, called a "unit cube," is said to have "one
cubic unit" of volume and can be used to
measure volume; and

(c.ii) understanding that a solid figure which
can be packed without gaps or overlaps using

(4) Mathematics measurement and data
content standards for Grade 5 are:

(a) convert among different-sized standard
measurement units within a given
measurement system and use these
conversions in solving multi-step problems in
context; this standard should incorporate
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(b) make a line plot to display a data set of
measurements in fractions of a unit and use
operations on fractions to solve problems
involving information presented in line plots;

(c) recognize volume as an attribute of solid
figures and understand concepts of volume
measurement by:

(c.i) understanding that a cube with side length
1 unit, called a "unit cube," is said to have "one
cubic unit" of volume and can be used to
measure volume; and

(c.ii) understanding that a solid figure can be
packed without gaps or overlaps using n unit

(4) No change

(a) Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC.

(b) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(c) Addition of the word "by"

(c.i) Grammatical changes

(c.ii) Grammatical changes

Draft - January 30th, 2024 68



n unit cubes is said to have a volume of n
cubic units;

(d) measure volumes by counting unit cubes,
using cubic cm, cubic in, cubic ft, and
improvised non-standard units;

(e) relate volume to the operations of
multiplication and addition and solve real-world
and mathematical problems involving volume
within cultural contexts, including those of
Montana American Indians; volume problems
including problems in context by:

(e.i) find finding the volume of a right
rectangular prism with whole-number side
lengths by packing it with unit cubes and
showing that the volume is the same as would
be found by multiplying the edge lengths,
equivalently by multiplying the height by the
area of the base; and represent representing
threefold whole-number products as volumes,
e.g., to represent the product of three whole
numbers using the associative property of
multiplication;

(e.ii) apply applying the formulas V = l × w × h
and V = bB × h for rectangular prisms to find
volumes of right rectangular prisms with
whole-number edge lengths in the context of
solving real-world and mathematical problems
including problems in context; and

(e.iii) recognize recognizing volume as additive
and find finding volumes of solid figures
composed of two nonoverlapping right
rectangular prisms by adding the volumes of
the nonoverlapping parts, applying this
technique to solve real-world problems in

cubes is said to have a volume of n cubic
units;

(d) measure volumes by counting unit cubes,
using cubic cm, cubic in, cubic ft, and
non-standard units;

(e) relate volume to the operations of
multiplication and addition and volume
problems including problems in context by:

(e.i) finding the volume of a right rectangular
prism with whole-number side lengths by
packing it with unit cubes and showing that the
volume is the same as would be found by
multiplying the edge lengths, equivalently by
multiplying the height by the area of the base
and representing the product of three whole
numbers using the associative property of
multiplication;

(e.ii) applying the formulas V = l × w × h and V
= B × h for rectangular prisms to find volumes
of right rectangular prisms with whole-number
edge lengths problems including problems in
context; and

(e.iii) recognizing volume as additive and
finding volumes of solid figures composed of
two nonoverlapping right rectangular prisms by
adding the volumes of the nonoverlapping
parts, applying this technique to solve
problems in context; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to

(d) Language change for clarity.

(e) Addition of the word "by". Transference of
IEFA statement to item 4.e.iii. Change “word
problems” to “problems in context” to align with
NAEP and NCTM.

(e.i) Grammatical changes and clarifying
language.

(e.ii) Grammatical changes. Change “word
problems” to “problems in context” to align with
NAEP and NCTM.

(e.iii) Grammatical changes. Change “word
problems” to “problems in context” to align with
NAEP and NCTM. Modified based on
consultation with the Tribal panel, task force,
and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 69



context; this standard should incorporate
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities.

Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities.

(5) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 5 are:

(a) use a pair of perpendicular number lines,
called axes, to define a coordinate system with
the intersection of the lines (at the origin)
arranged to coincide with the 0 on each line
and a given point in the plane located by using
an ordered pair of numbers, called its
coordinates; understand that the x-coordinate,
the first number, indicates how far to travel
from the origin in the direction of one the x-axis
and the y-coordinate, the second number,
indicates how far to travel in the direction of
the second y-axis, with the convention that the
names of the two axes and the coordinates
correspond (e.g., x-axis and x-coordinate,
y-axis and y-coordinate);

(b) represent real-world and mathematical
problems including problems in context by
graphing points in the first quadrant of the
coordinate plane and interpret coordinate
values of points in the context of the situation,
including those found in Montana American
Indian designs; this standard should
incorporate designs and cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

(c) understand that attributes belonging to a
category of two-dimensional figures also
belong to all subcategories of that category; for
example, all rectangles have four right angles

(5) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 5 are:

(a) use a pair of perpendicular number lines,
called axes, to define a coordinate system with
the intersection of the lines at the origin
arranged to coincide with the 0 on each line
and a given point in the plane located by using
an ordered pair of numbers, called its
coordinates; understand that the x-coordinate,
the first number, indicates how far to travel
from the origin in the direction of the x-axis and
the y-coordinate, the second number, indicates
how far to travel in the direction of the y-axis;

(b) represent problems including problems in
context by graphing points in the first quadrant
of the coordinate plane and interpret
coordinate values of points in the context of
the situation; this standard should incorporate
designs and cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(c) understand that attributes belonging to a
category of two-dimensional figures also
belong to all subcategories of that category;
and

(5) No change

(a) Clarifying language used.

(b) Change “word problems” to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC.

(c) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 70



and squares are rectangles, so all squares
have four right angles; and

(d) classify two-dimensional figures in a
hierarchy based on properties.

(d) classify two-dimensional figures in a
hierarchy based on properties. (d) No change

Draft - January 30th, 2024 71



ARM 10.53.50815: Montana Grade 6 Mathematics Standards
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:

● Total number of standards in 2011: 47
● Total number of standards proposed for 2024: 41
● Standards removed: 6

Five standards were condensed into other standards. While the overall number was reduced, these concepts are retained.
One standard was considered redundant and removed from the standards. It was felt that this concept was covered in another standard.

● New standards proposed: 0
● Standards identified as high cultural connections priorities: 6
● Common updates:

○ Expansion of fluency language - Previous standards used the broad word “fluently” which was vague and difficult to quantify. These
standards now use variations of “flexibly”, “accurately”, and/or “efficiently” where appropriate to provide more clarity regarding the
specific way students can demonstrate fluency.

○ Use of common language - Previous standards sometimes used complex or lengthy sentences to describe the skill. These proposals
have been simplified, where possible, to use common language more easily understood by all.

○ Removal of examples - The examples have been removed from the official language presented in ARM. All parties involved in the
revision of these standards agree that educators and families need examples to support instruction. These will be present in
guidance documents, rather than within the ARM. This will allow teachers to choose their own examples for instruction, rather than
risk mandating specific examples to be used within the classroom under law.

○ Update for IEFA language - Previously, the cultural connections, or IEFA statements, existed in the middle of individual standards.
These statements now appear as their own clauses at the end of some standards. This placement provides more emphasis on the
IEFA component and contributes to the increased clarity of the standard itself. The statements have also been updated to include
culturally responsive language and expanded to emphasize local communities, highlighting the intention that these standards relate
to the community and culture(s) of the Indigenous Tribal Nations that exist, or historically existed, in the geographical region in which
they are taught.

○ Use of “problems in context” - The use of “word problems”, “real-world problems” or other variations, were replaced with “problems in
context”. This was done to provide the use of consistent language throughout the K-12 standards.

15 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E508

Draft - January 30th, 2024 72

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E508


Proposed Montana Grade 6 Mathematics Standards:
6th Grade Standards 2011 6th Grade Standards 2024 Rationale

10.53.508 MONTANA GRADE 6
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics ratios and proportional
relationship content standards for Grade 6
are:

(a) understand the concept of a ratio and use
ratio language to describe a ratio relationship
between two quantities; for example, "The ratio
of wings to beaks in the bird house at the zoo
was 2:1, because for every 2 wings there was
1 beak." "For every vote candidate A received,
candidate C received nearly three votes."

(b) understand the concept of a unit rate a/b
associated with a ratio a:b with b ≠ 0, and use
rate language in the context of a ratio
relationship; for example, "This recipe has a
ratio of 3 cups of flour to 4 cups of sugar, so
there is 3/4 cup of flour for each cup of sugar."
"We paid $75 for 15 hamburgers, which is a
rate of $5 per hamburger."

(c) use ratio and rate reasoning to solve
real-world and mathematical proportional
problems from a variety of cultural contexts,
including those of Montana American Indians,
e.g., by reasoning about tables of equivalent
ratios, tape diagrams, double number line
diagrams, or equations in context about unit
rates, percentages (as a rate per 100), and/or
measurement units using tables or equations;
this standard should incorporate cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous

10.53.508 MONTANA GRADE 6
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics ratios and proportional
relationship content standards for Grade 6
are:

(a) understand the concept of a ratio and use
ratio language to describe a ratio relationship
between two quantities;

(b) understand the concept of a unit rate a/b
associated with a ratio a:b with b ≠ 0, and use
rate language in the context of a ratio
relationship; and

(c) use ratio and rate reasoning to solve
proportional problems including problems in
context about unit rates, percentages (as a
rate per 100), and/or measurement units using
tables or equations; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities.

10.53.508 MONTANA GRADE 6
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) No change

(a) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(b) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(c) Condensed (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv).
Elaborations and examples were removed for
clarity, yet may still appear in guidance
documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 73

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E508
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E508
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E508


Peoples and local communities.

(c.i) make tables of equivalent ratios relating
quantities with whole-number measurements,
find missing values in the tables, plot the pairs
of values on the coordinate plane, and use
tables to compare ratios;

(c.ii) solve unit rate problems including those
involving unit pricing and constant speed; for
example, if it took 7 hours to mow 4 lawns,
then at that rate, how many lawns could be
mowed in 35 hours? At what rate were lawns
being mowed? As a contemporary American
Indian example, it takes at least 16 hours to
bead a Crow floral design on moccasins for
two children. How many pairs of moccasins
can be completed in 72 hours?;

(c.iii) find a percent of a quantity as a rate per
100 (e.g., 30% of a quantity means 30/100
times the quantity) and solve problems
involving finding the whole, given a part and
the percent;

(c.iv) use ratio reasoning to convert
measurement units and manipulate and
transform units appropriately when multiplying
or dividing quantities.

(c.i) Condensed into (c)

(c.ii) Condensed into (c)

(c.iii) Condensed into (c)

(c.iv) Condensed into (c)

(2) Mathematics number system content
standards for Grade 6 are:

(a) represent, interpret, and compute quotients
of fractions and solve word problems in context
involving division of fractions by fractions, e.g.,
by using visual fraction models and equations

(2) Mathematics number system content
standards for Grade 6 are:

(a) represent, interpret, and compute quotients
of fractions and solve problems in context
involving division of fractions by fractions;

(2) No change

(a) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 74



to represent the problem; for example, create a
story context for (2/3) ÷ (3/4) and use a visual
fraction model to show the quotient; use the
relationship between multiplication and division
to explain that (2/3) ÷ (3/4) = 8/9 because 3/4
of 8/9 is 2/3. (In general, (a/b) ÷ (c/d) = ad/bc.)
How much chocolate will each person get if 3
people share 1/2 lb of chocolate equally? How
many 3/4-cup servings are in 2/3 of a cup of
yogurt? How wide is a rectangular strip of land
with length 3/4 mi and area 1/2 square mi?;

(b) fluently accurately and efficiently divide
multi-digit numbers using the standard
algorithm;

(c) fluently accurately and efficiently add,
subtract, multiply, and divide multi-digit
decimals using the standard algorithm for each
operation;

(d) find the greatest common factor of two
whole numbers less than or equal to 100 and
the least common multiple of two whole
numbers less than or equal to 12; use the
distributive property to express a sum of two
whole numbers 1-100 with a common factor as
a multiple of a sum of two whole numbers with
no common factor; for example, express 36 +
8 as 4 (9 + 2);

(e) understand that positive and negative
numbers are used together to describe
quantities having opposite directions or values
(e.g., temperature above/below zero, elevation
above/below sea level, credits/debits,
positive/negative electric charge) and use
positive and negative numbers to represent
quantities in real-world problems in contexts,

(b) accurately and efficiently divide multi-digit
numbers using the standard algorithm;

(c) accurately and efficiently add, subtract,
multiply, and divide multi-digit decimals using
the standard algorithm for each operation;

(d) find the greatest common factor of two
whole numbers less than or equal to 100 and
the least common multiple of two whole
numbers less than or equal to 12; use the
distributive property to express a sum of two
whole numbers 1-100 with a common factor as
a multiple of a sum of two whole numbers with
no common factor;

(e) understand that positive and negative
numbers are used together to describe
quantities having opposite directions or values
and use positive and negative numbers to
represent quantities in problems in context,
explaining the meaning of 0 in each situation;

(b) update fluency language

(c) update fluency language

(d) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(e) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 75



explaining the meaning of 0 in each situation;

(f) understand a rational number as a point on
the number line and extend number line
diagrams and coordinate axes familiar from
previous grades to represent points on the line
and in the plane with negative number
coordinates; by:

(f.i) recognize recognizing opposite signs of
numbers as indicating locations on opposite
sides of 0 on the number line; recognize
recognizing that the opposite of the opposite of
a number is the number itself, e.g., - (-3) = 3;
and that 0 is its own opposite;

(f.ii) understand understanding signs of
numbers in ordered pairs as indicating
locations in quadrants of the coordinate plane
and recognize recognizing that when two
ordered pairs differ only by signs, the locations
of the points are related by reflections across
one or both axes; and

(f.iii) find finding and position positioning
integers and other rational numbers on a
horizontal or vertical number line diagram and
find finding and position positioning pairs of
integers and other rational numbers on a
coordinate plane;

(g) understand ordering and absolute value of
rational numbers; by:

(g.i) interpret interpreting statements of
inequality as statements about the relative
position of two numbers on a number line
diagram; for example, interpret -3 > -7 as a

(f) understand a rational number as a point on
the number line and extend number line
diagrams and coordinate axes by:

(f.i) recognizing opposite signs of numbers as
indicating locations on opposite sides of 0 on
the number line; recognizing that the opposite
of the opposite of a number is the number
itself, and that 0 is its own opposite;

(f.ii) understanding signs of numbers in
ordered pairs as indicating locations in
quadrants of the coordinate plane and
recognizing that when two ordered pairs differ
only by signs, the locations of the points are
related by reflections across one or both axes;
and

(f.iii) finding and positioning integers and other
rational numbers on a horizontal or vertical
number line diagram and finding and
positioning pairs of integers and other rational
numbers on a coordinate plane;

(g) understand ordering and absolute value of
rational numbers by:

(g.i) interpreting statements of inequality as
statements about the relative position of two
numbers on a number line diagram;

(f) revised for clarity and inclusion of the word
“by” for consistent vertical alignment.

(f.i) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Grammatical changes occurred.

(f.ii) Grammatical changes.

(f.iii) Grammatical changes occurred.

(g) Inclusion of the word “by” for consistent
vertical alignment.

(g.i) Grammatical changes. Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 76



statement that -3 is located to the right of -7 on
a number line oriented from left to right;

(g.ii) write writing, interpret interpreting, and
explain explaining statements of order for
rational numbers in real-world contexts; for
example, write -3o C > -7o C to express the
fact that -3o C is warmer than -7o C problems
in context;

(g.iii) understand understanding the absolute
value of a rational number as its distance from
0 on the number line; and interpret interpreting,
absolute value as magnitude for a positive or
negative quantity in a real-world situation; for
example, for an account balance of -30 dollars,
write |-30| = 30 to describe the size of the debt
in dollars problems in context; and

(g.iv) distinguish distinguishing comparisons of
absolute value from statements about order;
for example, recognize that an account
balance less than -30 dollars represents a debt
greater than 30 dollars;

(h) solve real-world and mathematical
problems from a variety of cultural contexts,
including those of Montana American Indians,
by graphing graph points in all four quadrants
of the coordinate plane and include the use of
coordinates and absolute value to find
distances between points with the same first
coordinate or the same second coordinate; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities.

(g.ii) writing, interpreting, and explaining
statements of order for rational numbers in
problems in context;

(g.iii) understanding the absolute value of a
rational number as its distance from 0 on the
number line and interpreting absolute value as
magnitude for a positive or negative quantity in
problems in context; and

(g.iv) distinguishing comparisons of absolute
value from statements about order;

(h) graph points in all four quadrants of the
coordinate plane and include the use of
coordinates and absolute value to find
distances between points with the same first
coordinate or the same second coordinate; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities.

(g.ii) Grammatical changes. Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(g.iii) Change “word problems” or "real-world"
to “problems in context” to align with NAEP
and NCTM. Examples were removed for
clarity, yet may still appear in guidance
documents. Grammatical changes.

(g.iv) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Grammatical changes.

(h) Reduced "real world" requirement to
emphasize the mathematical tool of graphing
and analysis. Modified based on consultation
with the Tribal panel, task force, and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 77



(3) Mathematics expressions and equations
content standards for Grade 6 are:

(a) write and evaluate numerical expressions
involving whole-number bases and exponents;

(b) write, read, and evaluate expressions in
which letters stand for numbers; with variables
by:

(b.i) write writing expressions that record
operations with numbers and with letters
standing for numbers; for example, express
the calculation "subtract y from 5" as 5 - y
variables;

(b.ii) identify identifying parts of an expression
using mathematical terms (sum, term, product,
factor, quotient, coefficient); view one or more
parts of an expression as a single entity; for
example, describe the expression 2 (8 + 7) as
a product of two factors; and view (8 + 7) as
both a single entity and a sum of two terms;
and (sum, product, difference, quotient, term,
factor, coefficient, variable) and writing
expressions that represent verbal descriptions
of problems in context; and

(b.iii) evaluate evaluating expressions at
specific values of their variables; include
including expressions that arise from formulas
used in real-world problems;, perform
performing arithmetic operations, including
those involving whole-number exponents in the
conventional order when there are no
parentheses to specify a particular order (, and
using the order of operations); for example,
use the formulas V = s3 and A = 6 s2 to find

(3) Mathematics expressions and equations
content standards for Grade 6 are:

(a) write and evaluate numerical expressions
involving whole-number bases and exponents;

(b) write, read, and evaluate expressions with
variables by:

(b.i) writing expressions that record operations
with numbers and with variables;

(b.ii) identifying parts of an expression using
mathematical terms (sum, product, difference,
quotient, term, factor, coefficient, variable), and
writing expressions that represent verbal
descriptions of problems in context; and

(b.iii) evaluating expressions at specific values
of their variables, including expressions that
arise from formulas, performing arithmetic
operations, including those involving
whole-number exponents, and using the order
of operations;

(3) No change

(a) Addition of words "bases and"

(b) Use of appropriate vocabulary word
“variables” to replace “letters stand for
numbers”. Use of the word "by" for vertical
alignment consistency.

(b.i) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Grammatical changes. Use of appropriate
vocabulary word “variables”.

(b.ii) Changed student action from "describe"
to "write" implying a written rather than a
verbal activity. Team believed this is a
standard that can be supported by real world
applications. Examples were removed for
clarity, yet may still appear in guidance
documents. Grammatical changes.

(b.iii) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Grammatical changes.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 78



the volume and surface area of a cube with
sides of length s = 1/2;

(c) apply the properties of operations including
the distributive property, to generate equivalent
expressions; for example, apply the distributive
property to the expression 3 (2 + x) to produce
the equivalent expression 6 + 3x; apply the
distributive property to the expression 24x +
18y to produce the equivalent expression 6 (4x
+ 3y); and apply properties of operations to y +
y + y to produce the equivalent expression 3y;
and determine when two expressions are
equivalent;

(d) identify when two expressions are
equivalent (i.e., when the two expressions
name the same number regardless of which
value is substituted into them); for example,
the expressions y + y + y and 3y are
equivalent because they name the same
number regardless of which number y stands
for;

(e)(d) understand solving how to solve an
equation or inequality as a process of
answering a question: which values from a
specified set, if any, make the equation or
inequality true? Use by using substitution to
determine whether a given number in a
specified set makes an equation or inequality
true;

(f)(e) use variables to represent numbers and
write expressions when solving a real-world or
mathematical problem problems in context and
understand that a variable can represent an

(c) apply the properties of operations, including
the distributive property, to generate equivalent
expressions, and determine when two
expressions are equivalent;

(d) understand how to solve an equation or
inequality as a process by using substitution to
determine whether a given number in a
specified set makes an equation or inequality
true;

(e) write expressions when solving problems
in context and understand that a variable can
represent an unknown number, or any number
in a specified set;

(c) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.
Grammatical and punctuation changes.

(d) Standard removed due to redundancy

(d) Make a statement rather than a question to
make it clearer.

(e) Change “word problems” or "real-world" to
“problems in context” to align with NAEP and
NCTM. Use clarifying language.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 79



unknown number, or, depending on the
purpose at hand, any number in a specified
set;

(g)(f) solve real-world and mathematical
problems including problems in context by
writing and solving equations of the form x + p
= q and px = q for cases in which p, q, and x
are all nonnegative rational numbers;

(h)(g) write an inequality of the form x > c or x
< c to represent a constraint or condition in a
real-world or mathematical problem; recognize
that inequalities of the form x > c or x < c have
infinitely many solutions; and represent
problems including problems in context; graph
and describe solutions of such inequalities on
number line diagrams; and

(i)(h) use variables to represent two quantities
in a real-world problem from a variety of
cultural contexts, including those of Montana
American Indians, that change in relationship
to one another; write an equation to express
one quantity, thought of as the dependent
variable, in terms of the other quantity, thought
of as the independent variable; analyze the
relationship between the dependent and
independent variables using graphs and
tables, and relate these to the equation; for
example, in a problem involving motion at
constant speed, list and graph ordered pairs of
distances and times and write the equation d =
65t to represent the relationship between
distance and time. and write an equation to
express one quantity in terms of the other; this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and

(f) solve problems including problems in
context by writing and solving equations of the
form x + p = q and px = q for cases in which p,
q, and x are all nonnegative rational numbers;

(g) write an inequality of the form x > c or x < c
to represent a constraint or condition in
problems including problems in context; graph
and describe solutions of such inequalities on
number line diagrams; and

(h) use variables to represent two quantities
that change in relationship to one another;
analyze the relationship between the
dependent and independent variables using
graphs and tables, and write an equation to
express one quantity in terms of the other; this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities.

(f) Change “word problems” or "real-world" to
“problems in context” to align with NAEP and
NCTM.

(g) Changed the action verb or expectation to
make the student outcome measurable.
"Graph and describe" rather than "recognize".

(h) Changed the order of the first line for
clarity. Changed the student outcome to "write
an equation to express" rather than the less
measurable verbiage "analyze" and "relate".
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 80



local communities.

(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 6 are:

(a) find the area of right triangles, other
triangles, special quadrilaterals, and other
polygons by composing them into rectangles
or decomposing them into triangles and other
shapes; apply these techniques in the context
of solving real-world and mathematical
problems within cultural contexts, including
those of Montana American Indians; for
example, use Montana American Indian
designs to decompose shapes and find the
area; this standard should incorporate cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(b) find the volume of a right rectangular prism
with fractional edge lengths by packing filling it
with unit cubes of the appropriate unit fraction
edge lengths and show that the volume is the
same as would be found by multiplying the
edge lengths of the prism and connect and
apply the formulas V = l w h and V = b B h to
find volumes of right rectangular prisms with
fractional edge lengths in the context of solving
real-world and mathematical problems to solve
problems in context;

(c) draw polygons in the coordinate plane
given coordinates for the vertices; use
coordinates to, find the length of a side joining

(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 6 are:

(a) find the area of triangles, quadrilaterals,
and polygons by composing them into
rectangles or decomposing them into triangles
and other shapes; this standard should
incorporate cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(b) find the volume of a right rectangular prism
with fractional edge lengths by filling it with unit
cubes of the appropriate unit fraction edge
lengths and connect and apply the formulas V
= l w h and V = B h to find volumes of right
rectangular prisms with fractional edge lengths
to solve problems in context;

(c) draw polygons in the four-quadrant
coordinate plane given coordinates for the
vertices, find the length of a horizontal or

(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 6 are:

(a) Reduced repetitive language. This item
could benefit from a tribal-specific example in
the guidance documents. Modified based on
consultation with the Tribal panel, task force,
and NRC.

(b) Simplified for clarity. Change volume
formula to remedy mistakes in 2011. The
previous edition erroneously recorded volume
as being equal to bh, which is the formula for
area. V=Bh were B refers to the area of the
base of a solid.

(c) Simplified for clarity. Change “word
problems” or "real-world" to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM

Draft - January 30th, 2024 81



points with the same first coordinate or the
same second coordinate; horizontal or vertical
side and apply these techniques in the context
of solving real-world and mathematical
problems in context; and

(d) represent three-dimensional figures using
nets made up of rectangles and triangles and
use the nets to find the surface area of these
figures and apply these techniques in the
context of solving real-world and mathematical
problems within cultural contexts, including
those of Montana American Indians. in
problems including problems in context; this
standard should incorporate cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities.

vertical side, and apply these techniques to
solve problems in context; and

(d) represent three-dimensional figures using
nets made up of rectangles and triangles and
use the nets to find the surface area of these
figures in a mathematical and real-world
context; this standard should incorporate a
cultural context relating to Montana American
Indians and local communities.

(d) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC. Change
“word problems” or "real-world" to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM

(5) Mathematics statistics and probability
content standards for Grade 6 are:

(a) recognize a statistical question as one that
anticipates variability in the data related to the
question and accounts for it in the answers; for
example, "How old am I?" is not a statistical
question, but "How old are the students in my
school?" is a statistical question because one
anticipates variability in students' ages;

(b) understand that a set of data collected
(including Montana American Indian
demographic data) to answer a statistical
question has a distribution which that can be
described by its center, spread, and overall
shape; this standard should incorporate
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities;

(5) Mathematics statistics and probability
content standards for Grade 6 are:

(a) recognize a statistical question as one that
anticipates variability in the data related to the
question and accounts for it in the answers;

(b) understand that a set of data collected to
answer a statistical question has a distribution
that can be described by its center, spread,
and overall shape; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(5) No change

(a) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(b) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 82



(c) recognize that a measures measures of
center central tendency for a numerical data
set summarizes all of its values with a single
number, while a measure of variation
describes how its values vary with a single
number;

(d) display numerical data in plots on a number
line, including dot plots, histograms, and box
plots and describe any overall pattern and any
striking deviations from the overall pattern with
reference to the context which the data were
gathered; and

(e) summarize characterize numerical data
sets from a sample in relation to their context,
such as by:

(e.i) reporting the number of observations;

(e.ii) describing the nature of the attribute
under investigation, including how it was
measured and its units of measurement; and

(e.iii) giving finding quantitative measures of
center central tendency (mode, median and/or
mean) and variability (interquartile range
and/or mean absolute deviation), as well as
describing any overall pattern and any striking
deviations from the overall pattern with
reference to for numerical data sets and
relating the choice of measures of central
tendency and variability to the shape of the
data distribution and the context in which the
data were gathered; and

(e.iv) relating the choice of measures of center
and variability to the shape of the data
distribution and the context in which the data

(c) recognize that a measures of central
tendency for a numerical data set summarizes
all of its values with a single number, while a
measure of variation describes how its values
vary with a single number;

(d) display numerical data in plots on a number
line, including dot plots, histograms, and box
plots and describe any overall pattern and any
striking deviations from the overall pattern with
reference to the context which the data were
gathered; and

(e) characterize numerical data sets from a
sample in relation to their context by:

(e.i) reporting the number of observations;

(e.ii) describing the nature of the attribute
under investigation, including how it was
measured and its units of measurement; and

(e.iii) finding quantitative measures of central
tendency (mode, median and/or mean) and
variability (interquartile range and/or mean
absolute deviation), for numerical data sets
and relating the choice of measures of central
tendency and variability to the shape of the
data distribution and the context in which the
data were gathered.

(c) Use of the appropriate vocabulary word
“central tendency” to replace “center”.

(d) Display and describe data distributions

(e) Link data to the context from which it is
drawn

(e.i) No change

(e.ii) No change

(e.iii) Numerically summarize center and
spread. Use of the appropriate vocabulary
word “central tendency” to replace “center”.

(e.iv) Combined (iv) to (iii) for practicality

Draft - January 30th, 2024 83



were gathered.

ARM 10.53.50916: Montana Grade 7 Mathematics Standards
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:

● Total number of standards in 2011: 42
● Total number of standards proposed for 2024: 27
● Standards removed: 16

Six standards were condensed into other standards. While the overall number was reduced, these concepts are retained.
Ten standards were removed as expectations from the 7th grade standards. These may still appear in guidance documents as elaborations.

● New standards proposed: 0
● Standards identified as high cultural connections priorities: 7
● Common updates:

○ Expansion of fluency language - Previous standards used the broad word “fluently” which was vague and difficult to quantify. These
standards now use variations of “flexibly”, “accurately”, and/or “efficiently” where appropriate to provide more clarity regarding the
specific way students can demonstrate fluency.

○ Use of common language - Previous standards sometimes used complex or lengthy sentences to describe the skill. These proposals
have been simplified, where possible, to use common language more easily understood by all.

○ Removal of examples - The examples have been removed from the official language presented in ARM. All parties involved in the
revision of these standards agree that educators and families need examples to support instruction. These will be present in
guidance documents, rather than within the ARM. This will allow teachers to choose their own examples for instruction, rather than
risk mandating specific examples to be used within the classroom under law.

○ Update for IEFA language - Previously, the cultural connections, or IEFA statements, existed in the middle of individual standards.
These statements now appear as their own clauses at the end of some standards. This placement provides more emphasis on the
IEFA component and contributes to the increased clarity of the standard itself. The statements have also been updated to include
culturally responsive language and expanded to emphasize local communities, highlighting the intention that these standards relate

16 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E509

Draft - January 30th, 2024 84

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E509


to the community and culture(s) of the Indigenous Tribal Nations that exist, or historically existed, in the geographical region in which
they are taught.

○ Use of “problems in context” - The use of “word problems”, “real-world problems” or other variations, were replaced with “problems in
context”. This was done to provide the use of consistent language throughout the K-12 standards.

Proposed Montana Grade 7 Mathematics Standards:
7th Grade Standards 2011 7th Grade Standards 2024 Rationale

10.53.509 MONTANA GRADE 7
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics ratios and proportional
relationship content standards for Grade 7
are:

(a) compute unit rates associated with ratios of
fractions, including ratios of lengths, areas and
other quantities measured in like or different
units; for example, if a person walks 1/2 mile in
each 1/4 hour, compute the unit rate as the
complex fraction 1/2 / 1/4 miles per hour,
equivalently 2 miles per hour;

(b) recognize and represent proportional
relationships between quantities, including
those represented in Montana American Indian
cultural contexts; using tables, graphs, and
equations by:

(b.i) decide deciding whether two a table
represents quantities are in a proportional
relationship, e.g., by testing for equivalent
ratios in a table or graphing on a coordinate
plane and observing and deciding whether a
graph represents quantities in a proportional

10.53.509 MONTANA GRADE 7
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics ratios and proportional
relationship content standards for Grade 7
are:

(a) compute unit rates associated with ratios of
fractions, measured in like or different units;

(b) recognize and represent proportional
relationships between quantities, using tables,
graphs, and equations by:

(b.i) deciding whether a table represents
quantities in a proportional relationship by
testing for equivalent ratios and deciding
whether a graph represents quantities in a
proportional relationship if the graph is a
straight line through the origin; and

10.53.509 MONTANA GRADE 7
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) No change

(a) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents. Used
clarifying language

(b) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC. Contextualized
settings as "table, graph and equation”. Use of
the word "by" for vertical alignment
consistency.

(b.i) Split the two settings up: table and graph.
Grammatical changes.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 85

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E509
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E509
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E509


relationship if the graph is a straight line
through the origin; and

(b.ii) identify identifying the constant of
proportionality (unit rate) in tables, graphs, and
equations, diagrams, and verbal descriptions
of proportional relationships; and

(b.iii) represent proportional relationships by
equations; for example, if total cost t is
proportional to the number n of items
purchased at a constant price p, the
relationship between the total cost and the
number of items can be expressed as t = pn;
as a contemporary American Indian example,
analyze cost of beading materials; cost of
cooking ingredients for family gatherings,
community celebrations, etc.; and

(b.iv) explain what a point (x, y) on the graph
of a proportional relationship means in terms
of the situation, with special attention to the
points (0, 0) and (1, r) where r is the unit rate;

(c) use proportional relationships to solve
multistep ratio and percent problems within
cultural contexts, including those of Montana
American Indians (e.g., percent of increase
and decrease of tribal land); for example:
including problems in context involving simple
interest, tax, markups and markdowns,
gratuities and commissions, fees, and percent
increase and decrease, percent error; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities.

(b.ii) identifying the constant of proportionality
(unit rate) in tables, graphs, and equations of
proportional relationships; and

(c) use proportional relationships to solve
multi-step ratio and percent problems including
problems in context involving simple interest,
tax, markups and markdowns, gratuities and
commissions, fees, percent increase and
decrease, and percent error; this standard
should incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities.

(b.ii) Removed diagrams and verbal
descriptions.

(b.iii) Omitted

(b.iv) Omitted

(c) Modification of real-world connections
statement. Change “word problems” or
"real-world" to “problems in context” to align
with NAEP and NCTM. Grammatical change.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 86



(2) Mathematics number system content
standards for Grade 7 are:

(a) apply and extend previous understandings
of addition and subtraction to add and subtract
rational numbers, and represent addition and
subtraction on a horizontal or vertical number
line diagram, and understand subtraction as
adding the additive inverse p - q = p + (-q);

(a.i) describe situations in which opposite
quantities combine to make 0; for example, a
hydrogen atom has 0 charge because its two
constituents are oppositely charged;

(a.ii) understand p + q as the number located a
distance |q| from p, in the positive or negative
direction depending on whether q is positive or
negative; show that a number and its opposite
have a sum of 0 (are additive inverses); and
interpret sums of rational numbers by
describing real-world contexts;

(a.iii) understand subtraction of rational
numbers as adding the additive inverse, p – q
= p + (–q); show that the distance between two
rational numbers on the number line is the
absolute value of their difference; and apply
this principle in real-world contexts; and

(a.iv) apply properties of operations as
strategies to add and subtract rational
numbers;

(b) apply and extend previous understandings
of multiplication and division and of fractions to
multiply and divide rational numbers; and use
operations of rational numbers to solve
problems in context; this standard should

(2) Mathematics number system content
standards for Grade 7 are:

(a) add and subtract rational numbers,
represent addition and subtraction on a
horizontal or vertical number line diagram, and
understand subtraction as adding the additive
inverse, p – q = p + (-q);

(b) multiply and divide rational numbers and
use operations of rational numbers to solve
problems in context; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to

(2) No change

(a) Reduced the number of sub-standards by
clarifying within the standard itself.
Redundancy.

(a.i) Omitted

(a.ii) Omitted

(a.iii) Omitted

(a.iv) Omitted

(b) Combine the third standard and condensed
sub-standards into this standard, and use
Oregon as a model.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 87



incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities; and

(b.i) understand that multiplication is extended
from fractions to rational numbers by requiring
that operations continue to satisfy the
properties of operations, particularly the
distributive property, leading to products such
as (–1)(–1) = 1 and the rules for multiplying
signed numbers; and interpret products of
rational numbers by describing real-world
contexts;

(b.ii) understand that integers can be divided,
provided that the divisor is not zero, and every
quotient of integers (with nonzero divisor) is a
rational number, i.e. if p and q are integers,
then –(p/q) = (–p)/q = p/(–q); and interpret
quotients of rational numbers by describing
real-world contexts;

(b.iii) apply properties of operations as
strategies to multiply and divide rational
numbers; and

(b.iv)(c) convert a write any rational number to
as a fraction, decimal, and percent using long
division; and know that the decimal form of a
rational number terminates in 0s or eventually
repeats;

(c) solve real-world and mathematical
problems from a variety of cultural contexts,
including those of Montana American Indians,
involving the four operations with rational
numbers.

Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities; and

(c) write any rational number as a fraction,
decimal, and percent using long division and
know that the decimal form of a rational
number terminates or repeats;

(b.i) Omitted

(b.ii) Omitted

(b.iii) Omitted

(b.iv)(c) Changed verb to
measurable/accessible action, added other
forms of rational numbers. Updated numbering
to reflect deletion of other standards.

(c) Culturally responsive language added to
item (b)

Draft - January 30th, 2024 88



(3) Mathematics expressions and equations
content standards for Grade 7 are:

(a) apply use properties of operations as
strategies to add, subtract, factor, and expand
linear expressions with rational coefficients
and generate equivalent expressions;

(b) understand that rewriting an expression in
different forms in a problem in context can
shed light on the problem and show how the
quantities in it are related; for example, a +
0.05a = 1.05a means that "increase by 5%" is
the same as "multiply by 1.05;"

(c) write and solve multistep real-life and
mathematical one- and two-step equations
including problems posed with positive and
negative in context with rational numbers, in
any form (whole numbers, fractions, and
decimals), using tools strategically; apply
properties of operations to calculate with
numbers in any form; convert between forms
as appropriate;, and assess the
reasonableness of answers using mental
computation and estimation strategies; for
example: if a woman making $25 an hour gets
a 10% raise, she will make an additional 1/10
of her salary an hour, or $2.50, for a new
salary of $27.50 and if you want to place a
towel bar 9 3/4 inches long in the center of a
door that is 27 1/2 inches wide, you will need
to place the bar about 9 inches from each
edge; this estimate can be used as a check on
the exact computation; and

(d) use variables to represent quantities in a
real-world or mathematical problems, including

(3) Mathematics expressions and equations
content standards for Grade 7 are:

(a) use properties of operations to add,
subtract, factor and expand linear expressions
with rational coefficients and generate
equivalent expressions;

(b) understand that rewriting an expression in
different forms in a problem in context can
show how the quantities are related;

(c) write and solve one- and two-step
equations including problems in context with
rational numbers, convert between forms as
appropriate, and assess the reasonableness of
answers; and

(d) use variables to represent quantities and
construct simple equations and inequalities to
solve problems in context; this standard should

(3) No change

(a) expanded to include generation of
equivalent expressions.

(b) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents. Open
to wording of "shed light"...used Oregon as an
example.

(c) Examples and elaborations were removed
for clarity, yet may still appear in guidance
documents. Reduce language. Change “word
problems” or "real-world" to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

(d) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC. Change
“word problems” or "real-world" to “problems in

Draft - January 30th, 2024 89



those represented in Montana American Indian
cultural contexts, and construct simple
equations and inequalities to solve problems
by reasoning about the quantities in context;
this standard should incorporate a cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities by:

(d.i) solve word solving, accurately and
efficiently, problems in context leading to
equations of the form px + q = r and p(x + q) =
r, where p, q, and r are specific rational
numbers; solve equations of these forms
fluently;, compare comparing an algebraic
solution to an arithmetic solution, and
identifying the sequence of the operations
used in each approach; for example, the
perimeter of a rectangle is 54 cm. and its
length is 6 cm. What is its width?; and

(d.ii) solve word solving problems in context
leading to inequalities of the form px + q > r or
px + q < r, where p, q, and r are specific
rational numbers; graph, graphing the solution
set of the inequality, and interpret interpreting
it in the context of the problem the solution in
context; for example: as a salesperson, you
are paid $50 per week plus $3 per sale; this
week you want your pay to be at least $100;
write an inequality for the number of sales you
need to make and describe the solutions.

incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities by:

(d.i) solving, accurately and efficiently,
problems in context leading to equations of the
form px + q = r and p(x + q) = r, where p, q,
and r are specific rational numbers, comparing
an algebraic solution to an arithmetic solution,
and identifying the sequence of the operations
used in each approach; and

(d.ii) solving problems in context leading to
inequalities of the form px + q > r or px + q < r,
where p, q, and r are specific rational
numbers, graphing the solution set of the
inequality, and interpreting the solution in
context.

context” to align with NAEP and NCTM. Use of
the word "by" for vertical alignment
consistency.

(d.i) Addition of fluency language. Change
“word problems” or "real-world" to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.
Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents
Grammatical changes.

(d.ii) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Change “word problems” or "real-world" to
“problems in context” to align with NAEP and
NCTM. Grammatical changes.

(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 7 are:

(a) solve problems involving scale drawings of
geometric figures, including computing actual
lengths and areas from a scale drawing and

(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 7 are:

(a) solve problems involving scale drawings of
geometric figures, including computing actual
lengths and areas from a scale drawing and

(4) No change

(a) No change

Draft - January 30th, 2024 90



reproducing a scale drawing at a different
scale;

(b) draw (freehand, with ruler and protractor,
and with technology) geometric shapes with
given conditions; focus on constructing
triangles from three measures of angles or
sides, noticing when the conditions determine
a unique triangle, more than one triangle, or no
triangle;

(c) describe the two-dimensional figures that
result from slicing three-dimensional figures,
as in plane sections of right rectangular prisms
and right rectangular pyramids;

(d)(c) know and use the formulas for the area
and circumference of a circle and use them to
solve problems from a variety of cultural
contexts, including those of Montana American
Indians and give an informal derivation of the
relationship between the circumference and
area of a circle; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(e)(d) use facts about supplementary,
complementary, vertical, and adjacent angles
in a multistep problem to write and solve
simple equations for an unknown angle in a
figure; and

(f)(e) solve real-world and mathematical
problems from a variety of cultural contexts,
including those of Montana American Indians,
geometrical problems including problems in
context involving area, volume, and surface
area of two- and three-dimensional objects

reproducing a scale drawing at a different
scale;

(b) draw (freehand, with ruler and protractor,
and with technology) geometric shapes with
given conditions; focus on constructing
triangles from three measures of angles or
sides, noticing when the conditions determine
a unique triangle, more than one triangle, or no
triangle;

(c) know and use the formulas for the area and
circumference of a circle and give an informal
derivation of the relationship between the
circumference and area of a circle; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

(d) use facts about supplementary,
complementary, vertical, and adjacent angles
in a multi-step problem to write and solve
simple equations for an unknown angle in a
figure; and

(e) solve geometrical problems including
problems in context involving area, volume,
and surface area of two- and
three-dimensional objects composed of
triangles, quadrilaterals, polygons, cubes, and
right prisms; this standard should incorporate a

(b) No change

(c) Removed standard, limited applications.

(c) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC. Addition of
expectation to use what the student knows.
Update coding system with removal of
previous item (c)

(d) Update coding system with removal of
previous item (c)

(e) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC. Change
“word problems” or "real-world" to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.
Grammatical changes. Update coding system
with removal of previous item (c)

Draft - January 30th, 2024 91



composed of triangles, quadrilaterals,
polygons, cubes, and right prisms; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities.

cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous
Peoples and local communities.

(5) Mathematics statistics and probability
content standards for Grade 7 are:

(a) understand that statistics can be used to
gain information about a population by
examining a representative sample of the
population; generalizations about a population
from a sample are valid only if the sample is
representative of that population; and
understand that random sampling tends to
produce representative samples and support
valid inferences;

(b) use data, including Montana American
Indian demographics data, from a random
sample to draw inferences about a population
with an unknown characteristic of interest; and
generate or simulate multiple samples (or
simulated samples) of the same size to gauge
the variation in estimates or predictions; for
example, estimate the mean word length in a
book by randomly sampling words from the
book; predict the winner of a school election
based on randomly sampled survey data;
predict how many text messages your
classmates receive in a day and gauge how
far off the estimate or prediction might be; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

(5) Mathematics statistics and probability
content standards for Grade 7 are:

(a) understand statistics can be used to gain
information about a population by examining a
representative sample of the population;

(b) use data, from a random sample to draw
inferences about a population with an
unknown characteristic of interest and
generate or simulate multiple samples of the
same size to gauge the variation in estimates
or predictions; this standard should incorporate
a cultural context relating to Montana
Indigenous Peoples and local communities;

(5) No change

(a) Utilization of “representative” to distinguish
the type of sampling to be used, and to cover
the statement that “generalizations about a
population from a sample are valid if…” in
order to shorten the standard for clarity.
Elaborations may appear in guidance
documents.

(b) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents. Use
clarifying language. Modified based on
consultation with the Tribal panel, task force,
and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 92



(c) informally assess the degree of visual
overlap of two numerical data distributions with
similar variabilities, measuring the difference
between the centers by expressing it as a
multiple of a measure of variability; for
example, the mean height of players on the
basketball team is 10 cm greater than the
mean height of players on the soccer team,
about twice the variability (mean absolute
deviation) on either team; on a dot plot, the
separation between the two distributions of
heights is noticeable; visually analyze two data
distributions to compare measures of central
tendency and variability;

(d) use measures of center central tendency
and measures of variability for numerical data
from random samples to draw informal
comparative inferences about two populations;
for example, decide whether the words in a
chapter of a seventh-grade science book are
generally longer than the words in a chapter of
a fourth-grade science book;

(e) understand that the probability of a chance
event is a number between 0 and 1 that
expresses the likelihood of the event
occurring; larger numbers indicate greater
likelihood; a probability near 0 indicates an
unlikely event; a probability around 1/2
indicates an event that is neither unlikely nor
likely; and a probability near 1 indicates a likely
event;

(f) approximate the find the experimental
probability of a chance event by collecting data
on the chance process that produces it and
observing its long-run relative frequency and
predict the approximate relative frequency

(c) visually analyze two data distributions to
compare measures of central tendency and
variability;

(d) use measures of central tendency and
measures of variability for numerical data from
random samples to draw comparative
inferences about two populations;

(e) understand that the probability of a chance
event is a number between 0 and 1 that
expresses the likelihood of the event
occurring;

(f) find the experimental probability of a chance
event by collecting data on the chance process
that produces it and observing its long-run
relative frequency; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to

(c) Complete rewrite using Oregon. Use of
appropriate vocabulary “central tendency”.

(d) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(e) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(f) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC. Examples
were removed for clarity, yet may still appear
in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 93



given the probability; for example, when rolling
a number cube 600 times, predict that a 3 or 6
would be rolled roughly 200 times, but
probably not exactly 200 times and when
playing Montana American Indian hand/stick
games, you can predict the approximate
number of accurate guesses; this standard
should incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(g) develop a theoretical probability model and
use it to find probabilities of events;, compare
theoretical and experimental probabilities, from
a model to observed frequencies; and if the
agreement is not good, and explain possible
sources of the discrepancy, if any exist; and

(g.i) develop a uniform probability model by
assigning equal probability to all outcomes and
use the model to determine probabilities of
events; for example, if a student is selected at
random from a class, find the probability that
Jane will be selected and the probability that a
girl will be selected; and

(g.ii) develop a probability model (which may
not be uniform) by observing frequencies in
data generated from a chance process; for
example, find the approximate probability that
a spinning penny will land heads up or that a
tossed paper cup will land open-end down; do
the outcomes for the spinning penny appear to
be equally likely based on the observed
frequencies?;

(h) represent sample spaces for compound
events, identify the desired outcomes in the
sample spaces, and find probabilities of

Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(g) develop a theoretical probability model and
use it to find probabilities of events, compare
theoretical and experimental probabilities, and
explain possible sources of discrepancy, if any
exist; and

(h) represent sample spaces for compound
events, identify the desired outcomes in the
sample spaces, and find probabilities of events

(g) Complete rewrite using Oregon. Heavy
condensing of three parts into one.

(g.i) Condensed into (g)

(g.ii) Condensed into (g)

(h) Complete rewrite and heavy condensing of
four parts into one.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 94



compound events using organized lists, tables,
tree diagrams, and simulation;s.

(h.i) understand that, just as with simple
events, the probability of a compound event is
the fraction of outcomes in the sample space
for which the compound event occurs;

(h.ii) represent sample spaces for compound
events using methods such as organized lists,
tables and tree diagrams; for an event
described in everyday language (e.g., "rolling
double sixes"), identify the outcomes in the
sample space which compose the event; and

(h.iii) design and use a simulation to generate
frequencies for compound events; for
example, use random digits as a simulation
tool to approximate the answer to the question:
If 40% of donors have type A blood, what is
the probability that it will take at least 4 donors
to find one with type A blood?.

using organized lists, tables, tree diagrams,
and simulations.

(h.i) Condensed into (h). Elaborations were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(h.ii) Condensed into (h). Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(h.iii) Condensed into (h). Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 95



ARM 10.53.51017: Montana Grade 8 Mathematics Standards
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:

● Total number of standards in 2011: 36
● Total number of standards proposed for 2024: 33
● Standards removed: 3

Three standards were condensed into other standards. While the overall number was reduced, these concepts are retained.
● New standards proposed: 0
● Standards identified as high cultural connections priorities: 5
● Common updates:

○ Expansion of fluency language - Previous standards used the broad word “fluently” which was vague and difficult to quantify. These
standards now use variations of “flexibly”, “accurately”, and/or “efficiently” where appropriate to provide more clarity regarding the
specific way students can demonstrate fluency.

○ Use of common language - Previous standards sometimes used complex or lengthy sentences to describe the skill. These proposals
have been simplified, where possible, to use common language more easily understood by all.

○ Removal of examples - The examples have been removed from the official language presented in ARM. All parties involved in the
revision of these standards agree that educators and families need examples to support instruction. These will be present in
guidance documents, rather than within the ARM. This will allow teachers to choose their own examples for instruction, rather than
risk mandating specific examples to be used within the classroom under law.

○ Update for IEFA language - Previously, the cultural connections, or IEFA statements, existed in the middle of individual standards.
These statements now appear as their own clauses at the end of some standards. This placement provides more emphasis on the
IEFA component and contributes to the increased clarity of the standard itself. The statements have also been updated to include
culturally responsive language and expanded to emphasize local communities, highlighting the intention that these standards relate
to the community and culture(s) of the Indigenous Tribal Nations that exist, or historically existed, in the geographical region in which
they are taught.

○ Use of “problems in context” - The use of “word problems”, “real-world problems” or other variations, were replaced with “problems in
context”. This was done to provide the use of consistent language throughout the K-12 standards

17 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E510

Draft - January 30th, 2024 96

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E510


Proposed Montana Grade 8 Mathematics Standards:
8th Grade Standards 2011 8th Grade Standards 2024 Rationale

10.53.510 MONTANA GRADE 8
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics number system content
standards for Grade 8 are:

(a) know real numbers are made up of rational
and irrational numbers, understand informally
that every number has a decimal expansion;
for rational numbers show that the decimal
expansion repeats eventually; and convert a
decimal expansion which repeats eventually
into a rational number; and

(b) use rational approximations of irrational
numbers to compare the size value of irrational
numbers;, locate them approximately on a
number line diagram;, and estimate the value
of expressions (e.g., π2); for example, by
truncating the decimal expansion of √2, show
that √2 is between 1 and 2, then between 1.4
and 1.5, and explain how to continue on to get
better approximations.

10.53.510 MONTANA GRADE 8
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) Mathematics number system content
standards for Grade 8 are:

(a) know real numbers are made up of rational
and irrational numbers, understand informally
that every real number has a decimal
expansion, and convert a decimal expansion
which repeats eventually into a rational
number; and

(b) use rational approximations of irrational
numbers to compare the value of irrational
numbers, locate them approximately on a
number line diagram, and estimate the value
of expressions.

10.53.510 MONTANA GRADE 8
MATHEMATICS CONTENT STANDARDS

(1) No change

(a) Added clarifying language. Simplified for
clarity.

(b) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(2) Mathematics expressions and equations
content standards for Grade 8 are:

(a) know and apply the properties of integer
exponents to generate equivalent numerical
expressions; for example, 32 × 3–5 = 3–3 =
1/33 = 1/27;

(b) use square root and cube root symbols to
represent solutions to equations of the form x2

(2) Mathematics expressions and equations
content standards for Grade 8 are:

(a) know and apply the properties of integer
exponents to generate equivalent numerical
expressions;

(b) use square root and cube root symbols to
represent solutions to equations of the form x2

(2) No change

(a) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(b) repeated in 1(a)

Draft - January 30th, 2024 97

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E510
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E510
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E510


= p and x3 = p, where p is a positive rational
number; evaluate square roots of small perfect
squares and cube roots of small perfect cubes;
and know that √2 is irrational;

(c) use numbers expressed in the form of a
single digit times a whole-number power of 10
to estimate represent very large or very small
quantities and to express how many times as
much one is than the other; for example,
estimate the population of the United States as
3 times 108 and the population of the world as
7 times 109 and determine that the world
population is more than 20 times larger;, using
scientific notation, limited to a single digit times
an integer power of ten;

(d) perform operations with numbers
expressed in scientific notation, including
problems where both decimal and scientific
notation are used; use scientific notation and
choose units of appropriate size for
measurements of very large or very small
quantities (e.g., use millimeters per year for
seafloor spreading); and interpret scientific
notation that has been generated by
technology;

(e) graph proportional relationships,
interpreting the unit rate as the slope of the
graph; and compare two different proportional
relationships represented in different ways; for
example, compare a distance-time graph to a
distance-time equation to determine which of
two moving objects has greater speed as
tables, graphs, and equations;

(f) use similar triangles to explain why the
slope m is the same between any two distinct

= p and x3 = p, where p is a positive rational
number; evaluate square roots of small perfect
squares and cube roots of small perfect cubes;

(c) represent very large or very small
quantities, using scientific notation, limited to a
single digit times an integer power of ten;

(d) perform operations with numbers
expressed in scientific notation;

(e) graph proportional relationships,
interpreting the unit rate as the slope of the
graph and compare two different proportional
relationships as tables, graphs, and equations;

(c) Simplified for clarity. Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.
.

(d) Simplified for clarity. Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(e) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(f) Punctuation changes.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 98



points on a nonvertical line in the coordinate
plane; and derive the equation y = mx for a
line through the origin and the equation y = mx
+ b for a line intercepting the vertical axis at b;

(g) solve linear equations in one variable; by:

(g.i) give giving examples of linear equations in
one variable with one solution, infinitely many
solutions, or no solutions and show showing
which of these possibilities is the case by
successively transforming the given equation
into simpler forms, until an equivalent equation
of the form x = a, a = a, or a = b results (where
a and b are different numbers); and

(g.ii) solve solving linear equations with
rational number coefficients, including
equations whose solutions require expanding
expressions using the distributive property and
collecting like terms; and

(h) analyze and solve pairs of simultaneous
linear equations; by:

(h.i) understand understanding that solutions
to a system of two linear equations in two
variables correspond to points of intersection
of their graphs, because points of intersection
satisfy both equations simultaneously;

(h.ii) solve solving systems of two linear
equations in two variables algebraically and
estimate, estimating solutions by graphing the
equations; solve, and solving simple cases by
inspection; for example, 3x + 2y = 5 and 3x +
2y = 6 have no solution because 3x + 2y
cannot simultaneously be 5 and 6; and

(f) use similar triangles to explain why the
slope m is the same between any two distinct
points on a nonvertical line in the coordinate
plane and derive the equation y = mx for a line
through the origin and the equation y = mx + b
for a line intercepting the vertical axis at b;

(g) solve linear equations in one variable by:

(g.i) giving examples of linear equations in one
variable with one solution, infinitely many
solutions, or no solutions and showing which
of these possibilities is the case by
successively transforming the given equation
into simpler forms, until an equivalent equation
of the form x = a, a = a, or a = b results (where
a and b are different numbers); and

(g.ii) solving linear equations with rational
number coefficients, including equations
whose solutions require expanding
expressions using the distributive property and
collecting like terms; and

(h) analyze and solve pairs of simultaneous
linear equations by:

(h.i) understanding that solutions to a system
of two linear equations in two variables
correspond to points of intersection of their
graphs, because points of intersection satisfy
both equations simultaneously;

(h.ii) solving systems of two linear equations in
two variables algebraically, estimating
solutions by graphing the equations, and
solving simple cases by inspection; and

(g) Use of the word "by" for vertical alignment
consistency.

(g.i) Grammatical and punctuation changes.

(g.ii) Grammatical and punctuation changes.

(h) Use of the word "by" for vertical alignment
consistency.

(h.i) Grammatical and punctuation changes.

(h.ii) Grammatical and punctuation changes.
Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 99



(h.iii) solve real-world and mathematical
problems from a variety of cultural contexts,
including those of Montana American Indians,
leading solving problems in context that lead to
two linear equations in two variables; for
example, given coordinates for two pairs of
points, determine whether the line through the
first pair of points intersects the line through
the second pair this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities.

(h.iii) solving problems in context that lead to
two linear equations in two variables; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities.

(h.iii) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.
Modified based on consultation with the Tribal
panel, task force, and NRC.

(3) Mathematics functions content
standards for Grade 8 are:

(a) understand that a function is a rule that
assigns to each input exactly one output and
the graph of a function is the set of ordered
pairs (x,y) each consisting of an input, x, and
the corresponding output, y;

(b) compare properties of two functions each
represented in a different way (algebraically,
graphically, numerically in tables, or by verbal
descriptions); for example, given a linear
function represented by a table of values and a
linear function represented by an algebraic
expression, determine which function has the
greater rate of change using tables, graphs,
and equations;

(c) interpret the equation y = mx + b as
defining a linear function whose graph is a
straight line; give examples of functions that
are not linear; for example, the function A = s2
giving the area of a square as a function of its

(3) Mathematics functions content
standards for Grade 8 are:

(a) understand that a function is a rule that
assigns to each input exactly one output and
the graph of a function is the set of ordered
pairs (x, y) each consisting of an input, x, and
the corresponding output, y;

(b) compare properties of two functions using
tables, graphs, and equations;

(c) interpret the equation y = mx + b as
defining a linear function whose graph is a
straight line with slope m passing through the
point (0, b);

(3) No change

(a) Elaborated the definition of a graph of a
function.

(b) Elaborations and examples were removed
for clarity, yet may still appear in guidance
documents. Generalized representation to
possibly include functions in the same form
(i.e. both in table form or both in equation
form)

(c) Added specification for slope and
y-intercept. Removed the necessity of
identification of non-linear equations which is
implied by the ability to recognize linear
equations. Examples and elaborations were

Draft - January 30th, 2024 100



side length is not linear because its graph
contains the points (1,1), (2,4), and (3,9),
which are not on a straight line with slope m
passing through the point (0, b);

(d) given linear data relating two quantities,
construct a linear function to model a linear
relationship between two quantities; determine
the rate of change and initial value of the
function from a description of a relationship or
from two (x, y) values, including reading these
from a table or from a graph; that models the
data and interpret the rate of change and initial
value of a linear function in terms of the
situation it models and in terms of its graph or
a table of values; and

(e) given the graph of a function, describe
qualitatively the functional relationship
between two quantities by analyzing a graph
(e.g., where the function is increasing or
decreasing, linear or nonlinear) and given a
verbal description of a functional relationship,
sketch a graph that exhibits the qualitative
features of a function that has been described
verbally.

(d) given linear data relating two quantities,
construct a linear function that models the data
and interpret the rate of change and initial
value of the linear function in terms of the
situation it models; and

(e) given the graph of a function, describe
qualitatively the functional relationship
between quantities and given a verbal
description of a functional relationship, sketch
a graph that exhibits the qualitative features of
a function.

removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(d) Rewritten for clarity. Elaborations were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents.

(e) Rewritten for clarity. Elaborations were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents. Including verbal
description expectation.

(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 8 are:

(a) verify experimentally the properties of
rotations, reflections, and translations from a
variety of cultural contexts, including those of
Montana American Indians: and understand
that these are rigid transformations, lines are
taken to lines, line segments to line segments
of the same length, angles are taken to angles
of the same measure, and parallel lines are

(4) Mathematics geometry content
standards for Grade 8 are:

(a) verify experimentally the properties of
rotations, reflections, and translations and
understand that these are rigid
transformations, lines are taken to lines, line
segments to line segments of the same length,
angles are taken to angles of the same
measure, and parallel lines are taken to
parallel lines; this standard should incorporate

(4) No change

(a) Condensing language from 4 standards
into one.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 101



taken to parallel lines; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(a.i) lines are taken to lines and line segments
to line segments of the same length;

(a.ii) angles are taken to angles of the same
measure; and

(a.iii) parallel lines are taken to parallel lines;

(b) understand that a two-dimensional figure is
congruent to another if the second can be
obtained from the first by a sequence of
rotations, reflections, and translations by a
sequence of rigid transformations and given
two congruent figures, describe a sequence
that exhibits the congruence between them;

(c) describe the effect of dilations, translations,
rotations, and reflections on two-dimensional
figures from a variety of cultural contexts,
including those of Montana American Indians,
using coordinates; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(d) understand that a two-dimensional figure is
similar to another if the second can be
obtained from the first by a sequence of
rotations, reflections, translations, and dilations
and given two similar two-dimensional figures,
describe a sequence that exhibits the similarity
between them;

a cultural context relating to Montana
Indigenous Peoples and local communities;

(b) understand that a two-dimensional figure is
congruent to another if the second can be
obtained by a sequence of rigid
transformations and given two congruent
figures, describe a sequence that exhibits the
congruence between them;

(c) describe the effect of dilations, translations,
rotations, and reflections on two-dimensional
figures using coordinates; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(d) understand that a two-dimensional figure is
similar to another if the second can be
obtained from the first by a sequence of
rotations, reflections, translations, and dilations
and given two similar two-dimensional figures,
describe a sequence that exhibits the similarity
between them;

(a.i) Removal, condensed into (a)

(a.ii) Removal, condensed into (a)

(a.iii)Removal, condensed into (a)

(b) Clarifying language, and appropriate
vocabulary utilized.

(c) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC.

(d) No change

Draft - January 30th, 2024 102



(e) use informal arguments to establish facts
about the angle sum and exterior angle of
triangles, about the angles created when
parallel lines are cut by a transversal, and the
angle-angle criterion for similarity of triangles;
for example, arrange three copies of the same
triangle so that the sum of the three angles
appears to form a line and give an argument in
terms of transversals why this is so;

(f) explain a proof of the Pythagorean Theorem
and its converse;

(g) apply the Pythagorean Theorem to
determine unknown side lengths in right
triangles in real-world and mathematical
problems including problems in context in two
and three dimensions; for example, determine
the unknown height of a Plains Indian tipi
when given the side length and radius; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

(h) apply the Pythagorean Theorem to find the
distance between two points in a coordinate
system; and

(i) know, use, and apply the formulas for the
volumes of cones, cylinders, and spheres and
use them to solve real-world and mathematical
problems, including problems in context.

(e) use informal arguments to establish facts
about the angle sum and exterior angle of
triangles, about the angles created when
parallel lines are cut by a transversal, and the
angle-angle criterion for similarity of triangles;

(f) explain a proof of the Pythagorean Theorem
and its converse;

(g) apply the Pythagorean Theorem to
determine unknown side lengths in right
triangles problems including problems in
context in two and three dimensions; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities;

(h) apply the Pythagorean Theorem to find the
distance between two points in a coordinate
system; and

(i) know, use, and apply the formulas for the
volumes of cones, cylinders, and spheres to
solve problems, including problems in context.

(e) Examples were removed for clarity, yet
may still appear in guidance documents.

(f) No change

(g) Modified based on consultation with the
Tribal panel, task force, and NRC. Change
“word problems” or "real-world" to “problems in
context” to align with NAEP and NCTM.

(h) No change

(i) Move “use” to the front. Addition of
expectation to apply. Change “word problems”
or "real-world" to “problems in context” to align
with NAEP and NCTM.

(5) Mathematics statistics and probability
content standards for Grade 8 are:

(5) Mathematics statistics and probability
content standards for Grade 8 are:

(5) No change

Draft - January 30th, 2024 103



(a) construct and interpret scatter plots for
bivariate measurement data to investigate
patterns of association between two quantities
and describe patterns such as clustering,
outliers, positive or negative association, linear
association, and nonlinear association;

(b) know that straight lines are widely used to
model relationships between two quantitative
variables and for scatter plots that suggest a
linear association, informally fit a straight line
and informally assess the model fit by judging
the closeness of the data points to the line;

(c) use the equation of a linear model to solve
problems in the context of bivariate
measurement data, interpreting and interpret
the slope and intercept; for example, in a linear
model for a biology experiment, interpret a
slope of 1.5 cm/hr as meaning that an
additional hour of sunlight each day is
associated with an additional 1.5 cm in mature
plant height;

(d) understand that patterns of association can
also be seen in bivariate categorical data by
displaying frequencies and relative frequencies
in a two-way table; construct and interpret a
two-way table summarizing data including data
from Montana American Indian sources on two
categorical variables collected from the same
subjects; use relative frequencies calculated
for rows or columns to describe possible
association between the two variables; for
example, collect data from students in your
class on whether or not they have a curfew on
school nights and whether or not they have
assigned chores at home. Is there evidence
that those who have a curfew also tend to

(a) construct and interpret scatter plots for
bivariate measurement data to investigate
patterns of association between two quantities
and describe patterns such as clustering,
outliers, positive or negative association, linear
association, and nonlinear association;

(b) know that straight lines are widely used to
model relationships between two quantitative
variables and for scatter plots that suggest a
linear association, informally fit a straight line
and informally assess the model fit by judging
the closeness of the data points to the line;

(c) use the equation of a linear model to solve
problems in the context of bivariate
measurement data and interpret the slope and
intercept; and

(d) construct and interpret frequencies and
relative frequencies for bivariate categorical
data in a two-way table to investigate patterns
of association; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities.

(a) No change

(b) No change

(c) Examples were removed for clarity, yet may
still appear in guidance documents.
Grammatical changes.

(d) Complete rewrite for clarity. Examples were
removed for clarity, yet may still appear in
guidance documents. Modified based on
consultation with the Tribal panel, task force,
and NRC.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 104



have chores? construct and interpret
frequencies and relative frequencies for
bivariate categorical data in a two-way table to
investigate patterns of association; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and
local communities.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 105



Montana High School Mathematics Standards:

Summary:

The following actions have been proposed to each ARM item under the high school standards:

Item Description Proposed Action
10.53.511 - S D Symbols Definitions of the 9-12 Math Content Standards Amend

10.53.512 - HSNQS Montana High School Mathematics Number and Quantity Standards Repeal

10.53.513 - HSA Montana High School Mathematics Algebra Standards Repeal

10.53.514 - HSF Montana High School Mathematics Functions Standards Repeal

10.53.515 - HSM Montana High School Mathematics Modeling Standards Repeal

10.53.516 - HSG Montana High School Mathematics Geometry Standards Repeal

10.53.517 - HSSP Montana High School Mathematics Statistics and Probability Standards Repeal

10.53.518 - CNR Montana High School Mathematics Core Numeric Reasoning Standards Adopt

10.53.519 - CAF Montana High School Mathematics Core Algebraic and Functional Reasoning Standards Adopt

10.53.520 - CDRP Montana High School Mathematics Core Data Reasoning and Probability Standards Adopt

10.53.521 - CGR Montana High School Mathematics Core Geometric Reasoning Standards Adopt

10.53.522 - CPNQ Montana High School Mathematics Core Plus Number and Quantity Standards Adopt

10.53.523 - CPAFR Montana High School Mathematics Core Plus Algebraic and Functional Reasoning Standards Adopt

10.53.524 - CPDR Montana High School Mathematics Core Plus Data Reasoning Standards Adopt

Draft - January 30th, 2024 106

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E511
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E512
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E513
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E514
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E515
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E516
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E517


Task Force Rationale: Package Overview

The Task Force offers the following statement as rationale for the overall work they have presented:

“Let us be honest. The 2011 Montana High School Math Standards were a mess. We knew this as users of the standards, and it was reinforced by
the research conducted by the Northwest Regional Education Laboratory (NREL), which was contracted by OPI to provide research to guide the
standards revision. The research, combined with our own experience as teachers and mentors of teachers, highlighted four issues with the 2011
standards:

1. Scope: There were too many standards to be covered in four years, let alone the two years of high school math
that are required by state law, or the three years that are required by many districts.

2. Wording: The standards used complicated language that was familiar to professional mathematicians, but which
was confusing to teachers, students, and families.

3. Organization: Mathematics is a web-like structure of interconnected topics. Standards are organized into a
hierarchy of domains and clusters. There are many “correct” ways to slice the mathematical web into an organized
hierarchy, each of which will have different utility for different communities. Unfortunately, the organization chosen for
the 2011 standards was simply not useful for teachers because it did not match the ways that modern curricula or
courses were structured. Thus, for example, a single standard may have spanned multiple instructional units, or, in
many cases, multiple courses.

4. Rigidity: The standards prescribed the same 4-year math pathway for all students. This pathway prioritized
algebraic symbol manipulation and abstract geometrical reasoning, often at the expense of more applied mathematical
concepts such as mathematical modeling and data science.

The net effect was that teachers were confused and overwhelmed by the standards. Teachers had to spend inordinate time to understand the
standards and reorganize them into a useful structure that matched their curriculum. Even then, teachers were so overwhelmed by the scope of the
standards that they had no choice but to prioritize coverage over understanding, leading to instruction that was “a mile wide and an inch deep.”
Schools, too, were constrained to funnel all students into the same pathway, leading many students to take math courses that were simply not
relevant or useful to their lives and careers.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 107



The situation was untenable, making Superintendent Arntzen’s call for simplicity, practicality, and clarity especially urgent and germane for the high
school math standards. To respond to Superintendent Arntzen’s call, we had to address all four of the issues highlighted above.

To address Superintendent Arntzen’s call for simplicity, we addressed the scope and organization issues, as follows:

1. Organization: We organized the standards into two sets: (1) a CORE set, which details that standards that all
Montana math students should learn upon graduation of high school; and (2) a third year of standards called CORE
PLUS, which details the additional standards that Montana Universities expect a student with three years of
mathematics to have learned (often in a course called “Algebra II”). This “two plus” model was recommended in the
research from NREL.

2. Scope: Within each set we were very careful to ensure that there were few enough standards so as to be
achievable in the given time frame (2 years for CORE and 1 year for CORE PLUS). We drew on our decades of
combined experience in teaching high school mathematics to make these judgements.

To address Superintendent Arntzen’s call for practicality, we addressed the organization and rigidity issues, as follows:

1. Organization: We organized the standards into domains and clusters that match common instructional units. This
makes it easy for teachers to know what their students are expected to know, do, and understand in a given unit or
class. Of course, the standards do not prescribe a particular instructional organization, and teachers can make
decisions on how to organize the standards into instructional units that fit their contexts.

2. Rigidity: In the CORE standards, we struck a careful balance between abstract and applied mathematics, including
data science. This way the CORE standards provide a rigorous grounding in mathematics for diverse purposes,
including college and career readiness, and quantitative literacy for citizenship in the modern world. This grounding, in
turn, enables flexibility, as the CORE opens the door for students to pursue different pathways in the remaining years
of high school (including pathways that incorporate the CORE PLUS standards, for students that are planning to
attend a 4-year university).

To address Superintendent Arntzen’s call for clarity, we addressed the wording issue.

We maintained the mathematical rigor of the standards without using unnecessarily-technical terms or overly-wordy language. The resulting
standards are understandable to teachers, students, and families.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 108



Given the breadth of issues that we faced, we had to reimagine the high school standards in order to adequately respond to Superintendent
Arntzen’s call. But we did not start from scratch. We drew on resources, including research from NREL, guidance from professional organizations
such as the National Council of Teachers of Mathematics, and modern standards from states that addressed similar issues including Alabama,
Utah, and Oregon. We also drew on our own experience as teachers in Montana. Thus, although the standards incorporate wisdom from across the
country, they are unique to Montana, both in wording and organization. We believe that they will serve as a model for other states. Most importantly,
they will empower Montana teachers to offer mathematical experiences to their students that expand their professional opportunities, support their
engagement in civic life, and foster an appreciation for the beauty, joy, and wonder of mathematics (cf., NCTM 2018).”

- 9-12 Development Team Task Force (2023)

In addition to the above statement, the Task Force has also provided rationale for why certain items were adjusted and these rationale have been
provided in each of the tables presenting the 9-12 proposals. The task force also provided overview statements for each proposal, which the reader
will find in the summary of each ARM Item Proposal for the 9-12 standards.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 109



ARM 10.53.51118: Symbols
Proposed Action: Revision

Summary of Proposed Changes:
The previous item, titled symbols, is no longer applicable to the proposed set of standards. Therefore, it is proposed that this item title be revised to
“ARM 10.53.511 Definitions” and that the following language be adopted.

18 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E511

Draft - January 30th, 2024 110

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E511


Proposed Montana Mathematics Definitions:

10.53.511 – Symbols Definitions 10.53.511 – Definitions Rationale

(1) The symbol "+" denotes science,
technology, engineering, mathematics (STEM)
standards that students should learn in order
to take advanced courses such as calculus,
advanced statistics, or discrete mathematics.
The Montana High School Math Standards are
broken into two groups, Core and Core Plus.
Together these standards cover all Essential
Concepts for high school. These terms are
defined in the following manner:

(1) The Montana High School Math Standards
are broken into two groups, Core and Core
Plus. Together these standards cover all
Essential Concepts for high school
mathematics. These terms are defined in the
following manner:

The spirit of the former "symbols" section was
to provide clarification on the format and
structure of the standards. Symbols are no
longer utilized in the recommended standards
for 9-12. The proposed "Definitions" serve the
same purpose but with the structure of the
proposed 9-12 standards in mind. It is,
therefore, reasonable to utilize the same ARM
Rule, 10.53.511, in a way that establishes this
foundation of understanding.

(2) The symbol "*" denotes specific modeling
standards appearing throughout the high
school mathematics standards. (a) Core
standards: foundational standards that all
Montana students should know and be able to
do upon graduation of High School; and

(a) Core standards: foundational standards
that all Montana students should know and be
able to do upon graduation of High School;
and

(b) Core Plus: Additional standards that all
Montana students can pursue to prepare for
postsecondary education and careers.

(b) Core Plus: Additional standards that all
Montana students can pursue to prepare for
postsecondary education and careers.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 111



ARM 10.53.51219: Montana High School Mathematics Number and Quantity Standards
Proposed Action: Repeal

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:
There are two major improvements to the Number & Quantity standards:

1. Simplicity: To improve simplicity, the proposed standards focus only on Essential Concepts related to number
and quantity. In practice, this means that the proposed standards do not include standards related to matrices and
vectors, nor advanced operations with complex numbers. Teachers may still include these concepts in advanced math
courses or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

2. Organization: the Number & Quantity standards are split between Core and Core Plus as follows:
● Standards related to exponents and scientific notation are grouped in the Core standards
● Standards related to complex numbers are grouped in the Core Plus standards
● Standards related to modeling are grouped in sections specific to modeling in both the Core and Core

Plus standards.

Data Summary:
● Total number of standards 2011: 32
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained: 10
● Number of standards where the concepts have been omitted from the 2024 proposed package with the recommendation that teachers consider including

these concepts in advanced courses: 22

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the previous set of standards. These are entirely struck out in red due to the motion to repeal
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard in the
newly proposed 2024 standards. “Concept retained with revisions” indicates that the concept contained within the standard is also present in the
2024 proposed set, but has undergone revisions. “Concept omitted” indicates that the concept is no longer a standard for high school mathematics.
Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

19 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E512

Draft - January 30th, 2024 112

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E512


Proposed Repeals and Justifications:

Previous 2011 – 10.53.512 HSNQS - REPEAL Rationale and Notes
(1) Mathematics number and quantity: the real number system
content standards for high school are:

(a) explain how the definition of the meaning of rational exponents
follows from extending the properties of integer exponents to those
values, allowing for a notation for radicals in terms of rational
exponents; for example, we define 51/3 to be the cube root of 5
because we want (51/3)3 = 5(1/3)3 to hold, so (51/3)3 must equal 5;

(b) rewrite expressions involving radicals and rational exponents using
the properties of exponents; and

(c) explain why the sum or product of two rational numbers is rational;
that the sum of a rational number and an irrational number is irrational;
and that the product of a nonzero rational number and an irrational
number is irrational.

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions - Reworded for clarity, including
removing the example. Consolidated with (1)(b) for simplicity

(b) Concept retained with revisions - Reworded for clarity. Consolidated
with (1)(a) for simplicity

(c) Concept retained with revisions - Reworded for clarity. Moreover,
the focus of the new standards is understanding rational and
irrational numbers in context and applications, whereas the current
standard is focused on abstract number theory. The revised focus
improves the practicality of the standard.

(2) Mathematics number and quantity: quantities content
standards for high school are:

(a) use units as a way to understand problems from a variety of
contexts (e.g., science, history, and culture), including those of Montana
American Indians, and to guide the solution of multistep problems;
choose and interpret units consistently in formulas; and choose and
interpret the scale and the origin in graphs and data displays;

(b) define appropriate quantities for the purpose of descriptive
modeling; and

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions – Reworded for clarity. Consolidated
with (2)(b) and moved to a section on mathematical modeling, which
helps to clarify the intent of the standard.

(b) Concept retained with revisions – Reworded for clarity. Consolidated
with (2)(b) and moved to a section on mathematical modeling, which
helps to clarify the intent of the standard.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 113



(c) choose a level of accuracy appropriate to limitations on
measurement when reporting quantities.

(c) Concept retained with revisions – Reworded for clarity. Moved to a
section on mathematical modeling, which helps to clarify the intent of
the standard.

(3) Mathematics number and quantity: the complex number
system content standards for high school are:

(a) know there is a complex number i such that i2 = จC1 and every
complex number has the form a + bi with a and b real;

(b) use the relation i2 = จC1 and the commutative, associative, and
distributive properties to add, subtract, and multiply complex numbers;

(c) (+) find the conjugate of a complex number and use conjugates to
find moduli and quotients of complex numbers;

(d) (+) represent complex numbers on the complex plane in rectangular
and polar form (including real and imaginary numbers) and explain why
the rectangular and polar forms of a given complex number represent
the same number;

(e) (+) represent addition, subtraction, multiplication, and conjugation of
complex numbers geometrically on the complex plane; use properties
of this representation for computation; for example, (-1 + กฬ3 i)3 = 8
because (-1 + กฬ3 i) has modulus 2 and argument 120กใ;

(f) (+) calculate the distance between numbers in the complex plane as
the modulus of the difference and the midpoint of a segment as the
average of the numbers at its endpoints;

(g) solve quadratic equations with real coefficients that have complex
solutions;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions – This standard is retained
verbatim.

(b) Concept retained with revisions – Reworded for clarity.

(c) Concept retained with revisions – Reworded for clarity.

(d) Concept omitted – The proposed standards include only the
essential, core understandings and operations with complex numbers.
Advanced skills and concepts related to complex numbers were
removed for simplicity, as these are not included in NCTM's Essential
Concepts, nor are they in the core of many modern state standards.
Teachers may still include this concept in advanced math courses or to
deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(e) Concept omitted – See (3)(d). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses or to
deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(f) Concept omitted - See (3)(d). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses or to
deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(g) Concept retained with revisions – Added a connection to conjugate
pairs to facilitate deeper understanding.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 114



(h) (+) extend polynomial identities to the complex numbers and for
example, rewrite x2 + 4 as (x + 2i)(x จC 2i); and

(i) (+) know the Fundamental Theorem of Algebra and show that it is
true for quadratic polynomials.

(h) Concept omitted– See (3)(d). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses or to
deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(i) Concept omitted– See (3)(d). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses or to
deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(4) Mathematics number and quantity: vector and matrix quantities
content standards for high school are:

(a) (+) recognize vector quantities as having both magnitude and
direction; represent vector quantities by directed line segments; and
use appropriate symbols for vectors and their magnitudes (e.g., v, |v|,
||v||, v);

(b) (+) find the components of a vector by subtracting the coordinates of
an initial point from the coordinates of a terminal point;

(c) (+) solve problems from a variety of contexts (e.g., science, history,
and culture), including those of Montana American Indians, involving
velocity and other quantities that can be represented by vectors;

(d) (+) add and subtract vectors;

(d.i) add vectors end-to-end, component-wise, and by the parallelogram
rule and understand that the magnitude of a sum of two vectors is
typically not the sum of the magnitudes;

(d.ii) given two vectors in magnitude and direction form, determine the
magnitude and direction of their sum; and

(d.iii) understand vector subtraction v จC w as v + (จCw) where จCw is
the additive inverse of w, with the same magnitude as w and pointing in
the opposite direction and represent vector subtraction graphically by

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept omitted – Standards related to matrices and vectors were
removed for simplicity, based on an analysis of Essential Concepts and
other state standards. Teachers may still include in advanced math
courses.

(b) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(c) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(d) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(d.i) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(d.ii) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(d.iii) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 115



connecting the tips in the appropriate order and perform vector
subtraction component-wise;

(e) (+) multiply a vector by a scalar;

(e.i) represent scalar multiplication graphically by scaling vectors and
possibly reversing their direction and perform scalar multiplication
component-wise, e.g., as c(vx, vy) = (cvx, cvy); and

(e.ii) compute the magnitude of a scalar multiple cv using ||cv|| = |c|v
and compute the direction of cv knowing that when |c|v กู 0, the
direction of cv is either along v (for c > 0) or against v (for c < 0);

(f) (+) use matrices to represent and manipulate data, e.g., to represent
payoffs or incidence relationships in a network;

(g) (+) multiply matrices by scalars to produce new matrices, e.g., as
when all of the payoffs in a game are doubled;

(h) (+) add, subtract, and multiply matrices of appropriate dimensions;

(i) (+) understand that, unlike multiplication of numbers, matrix
multiplication for square matrices is not a commutative operation, but
still satisfies the associative and distributive properties;

(j) (+) understand that the zero and identity matrices play a role in
matrix addition and multiplication similar to the role of 0 and 1 in the real
numbers and the determinant of a square matrix is nonzero if and only
if the matrix has a multiplicative inverse;

(k) (+) multiply a vector (regarded as a matrix with one column) by a
matrix of suitable dimensions to produce another vector and work with
matrices as transformations of vectors; and

(l) (+) work with 2 กม 2 matrices as transformations of the plane and
interpret the absolute value of the determinant in terms of area.

(e) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(e.i) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(e.ii) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(f) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(g) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(h) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(i) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(j) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(k) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(l) Concept omitted – See (4)(a). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 116



ARM 10.53.51320: Montana High School Mathematics Algebra Standards
Proposed Action: Repeal

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:
There are two major improvements to the Algebra standards:

1. Simplicity: We believe algebraic skills are very important. When there are too many standards, students
"learn" algebra purely as rules for symbol manipulation without understanding. To improve students' algebra skills, the
proposed standards are simplified to focus on Essential Concepts and skills, rather than a long list of esoteric
concepts and techniques.

2. Organization: The algebra standards are combined with the function standards, and grouped by function
family (e.g., linear, quadratic, etc). This improves the practicality of the standards because the groupings match
common instructional units.

Data Summary:
● Total number of standards 2011: 34
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained: 21
● Number of standards where the concepts have been omitted from the 2024 proposed package with the recommendation that teachers consider including

these concepts in advanced courses: 13

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the previous set of standards. These are entirely struck out in red due to the motion to repeal
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard in the
newly proposed 2024 standards. “Concept retained with revisions” indicates that the concept contained within the standard is also present in the
2024 proposed set, but has undergone revisions. “Concept omitted” indicates that the concept is no longer a standard for high school mathematics.
Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

20 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E513

Draft - January 30th, 2024 117

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E513


Proposed Repeals and Justifications:
Previous 2011 – 10.53.513 HSA - REPEAL Rationale and Notes

(1) Mathematics algebra: seeing structure in expressions content
standards for high school are:

(a) interpret expressions that represent a quantity in terms of its
context;*

(a.i) interpret parts of an expression, such as terms, factors, and
coefficients; and

(a.ii) interpret complicated expressions by viewing one or more of their
parts as a single entity; for example, interpret P(1+r)n as the product of
P and a factor not depending on P;

(b) use the structure of an expression to identify ways to rewrite it; for
example, see x4 – y4 as (x2)2 – (y2)2, thus recognizing it as a
difference of squares that can be factored as (x2 – y2)(x2 + y2);

(c) choose and produce an equivalent form of an expression to reveal
and explain properties of the quantity represented by the expression;*

(c.i) factor a quadratic expression to reveal the zeros of the function it
defines;

(c.ii) complete the square in a quadratic expression to reveal the
maximum or minimum value of the function it defines; and

(c.iii) use the properties of exponents to transform expressions for
exponential functions; for example the expression 1.15t can be

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity, removing
unnecessarily technical language. Moved to a section on mathematical
modeling for practicality.

(a.i) Concept retained with revisions – This standard is unchanged in
the proposed 2024 standards.

(a.ii) Concept retained with revisions – For practicality, this was revised
to be specific to polynomials.

(b) Concept retained with revisions – The proposed standards are more
explicit about the types of expressions that students are expected to be
able to rewrite, with each organized into common instructional units
(e.g., linear, quadratic, etc.). This improves the practicality of the
standards.

(c) Concept retained with revisions – The proposed standards are more
explicit about the types of expressions that students are expected to be
able to rewrite, with each organized into common instructional units
(e.g., linear, quadratic, etc.). This improves the practicality of the
standards.

(c.i) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity, and moved to
a section on quadratic functions for practicality.

(c.ii) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity, and moved to
a section on quadratic functions for practicality.

(c.iii) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity, and moved
to a section on quadratic functions for practicality.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 118



rewritten as (1.151/12)12t ≈ 1.01212t to reveal the approximate
equivalent monthly interest rate if the annual rate is 15%;

(d) derive the formula for the sum of a finite geometric series (when the
common ratio is not 1) and use the formula to solve problems; for
example, calculate mortgage payments.*

(d) Concept omitted - Standards related to sequences and series were
removed for simplicity, as these are not included in NCTM's Essential
Concepts, nor are they in the core of many modern state standards.
Teachers may still include in advanced math courses or to deepen
students' understanding of other standards.

(2) Mathematics algebra: arithmetic with polynomials and rational
expressions content standards for high school are:

(a) understand that polynomials form a system analogous to the
integers, namely, they are closed under the operations of addition,
subtraction, and multiplication and add, subtract, and multiply
polynomials;

(b) know and apply the Remainder Theorem: for a polynomial p(x) and
a number a, the remainder on division by x – a is p(a), so p(a) = 0 if and
only if (x – a) is a factor of p(x);

(c) identify zeros of polynomials when suitable factorizations are
available and use the zeros to construct a rough graph of the function
defined by the polynomial;

(d) prove polynomial identities and use them to describe numerical
relationships; for example, the polynomial identity (x2 + y2)2 = (x2 –
y2)2 + (2xy)2 can be used to generate Pythagorean triples;

(e) (+) know and apply the Binomial Theorem for the expansion of (x +
y)n in powers of x and y for a positive integer n, where x and y are any
numbers, with coefficients determined for example by Pascal's Triangle;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept omitted - Removed for simplicity, as this concept is more
appropriate for a university-level abstract algebra course. Teachers may
still include this concept in advanced math courses or to deepen
students' understanding of other standards.

(b) Concept omitted - Removed for simplicity, based on an analysis of
Essential Concepts and other state standards. Teachers may still
include in advanced math courses or to deepen students'
understanding of other standards.

(c) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity, and to focus on
*understanding the relationships* between factors and zeros of
polynomials, rather than solely the skill of identifying zeros in factored
form.

(d) Concept omitted - Esoteric algebraic manipulations like this were
removed for simplicity, based on an analysis of Essential Concepts and
other state standards. Teachers may still include in advanced math
courses or to deepen students' understanding of other standards

(e) Concept omitted - See (2)(d). This is a non-essential, esoteric
algebraic manipulation, so removed for simplicity. Teachers may still
include in advanced math courses or to deepen students'
understanding of other standards.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 119



(f) rewrite simple rational expressions in different forms; write a(x)/b(x)
in the form q(x) + r(x)/b(x), where a(x), b(x), q(x), and r(x) are
polynomials with the degree of r(x) less than the degree of b(x), using
inspection, long division, or, for the more complicated examples, a
computer algebra system; and

(g) (+) understand that rational expressions form a system analogous
to the rational numbers, closed under addition, subtraction,
multiplication, and division by a nonzero rational expression and add,
subtract, multiply, and divide rational expressions.

(f) Concept omitted - Standards related to rational functions were
removed for simplicity, based on an analysis of Essential Concepts and
other state standards. Teachers may still include this concept in
advanced math courses.

(g) Concept omitted - See (2)(a). Removed for simplicity, as this
concept is more appropriate for a university-level abstract algebra
course in college. Teachers may still include this concept in advanced
math courses.

(3) Mathematics algebra: creating equations content standards for
high school are:

(a) create equations and inequalities in one variable and use them to
solve problems from a variety of contexts (e.g., science, history, and
culture, including those of Montana American Indians) and include
equations arising from linear and quadratic functions, and simple
rational and exponential functions;

(b) create equations in two or more variables to represent relationships
between quantities and graph equations on coordinate axes with labels
and scales;

(c) represent constraints by equations or inequalities and by systems
of equations and/or inequalities and interpret solutions as viable or
nonviable options in a modeling context; for example, represent
inequalities describing nutritional and cost constraints on combinations
of different foods; and

(d) rearrange formulas to highlight a quantity of interest using the same
reasoning as in solving equations; for example, rearrange Ohm's law V
= IR to highlight resistance R.

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity

(b) Concept retained with revisions - Revised to clarify that this
standard focuses on expressing functions in multiple representations
and translating between representations.

(c) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity

(d) Concept retained with revisions - Very slightly revised for clarity

Draft - January 30th, 2024 120



(4) Mathematics algebra: reasoning with equations and
inequalities content standards for high school are:

(a) explain each step in solving a simple equation as following from the
equality of numbers asserted at the previous step, starting from the
assumption that the original equation has a solution and construct a
viable argument to justify a solution method;

(b) solve simple rational and radical equations in one variable and give
examples showing how extraneous solutions may arise;

(c) solve linear equations and inequalities in one variable, including
equations with coefficients represented by letters;

(d) solve quadratic equations in one variable;

(d.i) use the method of completing the square to transform any
quadratic equation in x into an equation of the form (x – p)2 = q that has
the same solutions and derive the quadratic formula from this form; and

(d.ii) solve quadratic equations by inspection (e.g., for x2 = 49), taking
square roots, completing the square, the quadratic formula and
factoring, as appropriate to the initial form of the equation and
recognize when the quadratic formula gives complex solutions and
write them as a ± bi for real numbers a and b;

(e) prove that given a system of two equations in two variables,
replacing one equation by the sum of that equation and a multiple of the
other produces a system with the same solutions;

(f) solve systems of linear equations exactly and approximately (e.g.,
with graphs) focusing on pairs of linear equations in two variables;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept omitted – Removed for simplicity, as this standard is
thoroughly covered in the 6-8 standards.

(b) Concept omitted – Standards related to rational functions were
removed for simplicity, based on an analysis of Essential Concepts and
other state standards. Teachers may still include in advanced math
courses.

(c) Concept omitted – Removed for simplicity, as this standard is
thoroughly covered in the 6-8 standards.

(d) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity, including
consolidating (d), (d)(i), and (d)(ii) into a single parsimonious standard
for simplicity. Moved to a section on quadratic functions for practicality.

(d.i) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity, including
consolidating (d), (d)(i), and (d)(ii) into a single parsimonious standard
for simplicity. Moved to a section on quadratic functions for practicality.

(d.ii) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity, including
consolidating (d), (d)(i), and (d)(ii) into a single parsimonious standard
for simplicity. Moved to a section on quadratic functions for practicality.

(e) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity, using language
that teachers understand. Namely, this standard is related to solving
systems using elimination, so that language is used instead.

(f) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity, including
specifying the specific techniques that students should learn for solving
systems of linear equations.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 121



(g) solve a simple system consisting of a linear equation and a
quadratic equation in two variables algebraically and graphically; for
example, find the points of intersection between the line y = –3x and the
circle x2 + y2 = 3;

(h) (+) represent a system of linear equations as a single matrix
equation in a vector variable;

(i) (+) find the inverse of a matrix if it exists and use it to solve systems
of linear equations (using technology for matrices of dimension 3 × 3 or
greater);

(j) understand that the graph of an equation in two variables is the set
of all its solutions plotted in the coordinate plane, often forming a curve
(which could be a line);

(k) explain why the x-coordinates of the points where the graphs of the
equations y = f(x) and y = g(x) intersect are the solutions of the
equation f(x) = g(x); find the solutions approximately, e.g., using
technology to graph the functions, make tables of values or find
successive approximations and include cases where f(x) and/or g(x) are
linear, polynomial, rational, absolute value, exponential, and logarithmic
functions;* and

(l) graph the solutions to a linear inequality in two variables as a
half-plane (excluding the boundary in the case of a strict inequality) and
graph the solution set to a system of linear inequalities in two variables
as the intersection of the corresponding half-planes.

(g) Concept omitted - See (2)(d). This is a non-essential, esoteric
algebraic manipulation, so removed for simplicity. Teachers may still
include in advanced math courses or to deepen students'
understanding of other standards.

(h) Concept omitted - Standards related to matrices and vectors were
removed for simplicity, based on an analysis of Essential Concepts and
other state standards. Teachers may still include in advanced math
courses or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(i) Concept omitted - See (4)(h). Non-essential, so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math courses.

(j) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity

(k) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity, including
removing unnecessarily technical language.

(l) Revised to focus on understanding the meaning of inequalities in
context. Modern students should learn to use technology to produce
graphs, switching the focus from the skill of graphing by hand to
interpreting the meaning of the graphs produced by technology. The
revised focus improves the practicality of the standard.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 122



ARM 10.53.51421: Montana High School Mathematics Functions Standards
Proposed Action: Repeal

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:
There are two major improvements to the Functions standards:

1. The functions standards are split between Core and Core Plus as follows:
● Standards related to linear, exponential, and quadratic functions are in the Core standards
● Standards related to polynomials, logarithmic functions, and trigonometric functions are in the Core

Plus standards.
This improves the simplicity of the standards because it provides guidance to teachers.

2. Within the Core and Core Plus, the function standards are grouped by function family (e.g., linear, quadratic, etc.).
This improves the practicality of the standards because the groupings match common instructional units.

Data Summary:
● Total number of standards 2011: 45
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained: 34
● Number of standards where the concepts have been omitted from the 2024 proposed package with the recommendation that teachers consider including

these concepts in advanced courses: 11

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the previous set of standards. These are entirely struck out in red due to the motion to repeal
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard in the
newly proposed 2024 standards. “Concept retained with revisions” indicates that the concept contained within the standard is also present in the
2024 proposed set, but has undergone revisions. “Concept omitted” indicates that the concept is no longer a standard for high school mathematics.
Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

21 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E514

Draft - January 30th, 2024 123

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E514


Proposed Repeals and Justifications:
Previous 2011 – 10.53.514 HSF - REPEAL Rationale and Notes

(1) Mathematics functions: interpreting functions content
standards for high school are:

(a) understand that a function from one set (called the domain) to
another set (called the range) assigns to each element of the domain
exactly one element of the range; if f is a function and x is an element
of its domain, then f(x) denotes the output of f corresponding to the
input x; and the graph of f is the graph of the equation y = f(x);

(b) use function notation, evaluate functions for inputs in their domains,
and interpret statements that use function notation in terms of a
context;

(c) recognize that sequences are functions, sometimes defined
recursively, whose domain is a subset of the integers; for example, the
Fibonacci sequence is defined recursively by f(0) = f(1) = 1, f(n+1) = f(n)
+ f(n-1) for n ≥ 1;

(d) for a function that models a relationship between two quantities,
interpret key features of graphs and tables in terms of the quantities
and sketch graphs showing key features given a verbal description of
the relationship; key features include: intercepts; intervals where the
function is increasing, decreasing, positive, or negative; relative
maximums and minimums; symmetries; end behavior; and periodicity;*

(e) relate the domain of a function to its graph and, where applicable, to
the quantitative relationship it describes; for example, if the function
h(n) gives the number of person-hours it takes to assemble n engines in
a factory, then the positive integers would be an appropriate domain for
the function;*

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions – This standard covered two
important concepts: The definition of function and function notation.
Combining both into one standard is confusing. The proposed
standards split these into separate standards. Both are revised for
clarity, including removing unnecessarily technical language

(b) Concept retained with revisions – Very slightly revised for
clarity—removed the unnecessary clarifier, "for inputs in their domains."

(c) Concept omitted – Standards related to sequences and series were
removed for simplicity, as these are not included in NCTM's Essential
Concepts, nor are they in the core of many modern state standards.
Teachers may still include in advanced math courses or to deepen
students' understanding of other standards.

(d) Concept retained with revisions – The proposed standards make
two key revisions. First, this standard was very broad. The proposed
standards are more specific and are organized by function family, to
match common instructional units. This improves the clarity and
practicality of the standards. Second, the proposed standards clarify
that students should use technology strategically to produce graphs,
rather than graphing by hand. This improves the practicality of the
standards, as using technology is a more important skill for modern
students than graphing by hand.

(e) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity, including
removing the example.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 124



(f) calculate and interpret the average rate of change of a function
(presented symbolically or as a table) over a specified interval and
estimate the rate of change from a graph;*

(g) graph functions expressed symbolically and show key features of
the graph, by hand in simple cases and using technology for more
complicated cases;*

(g.i) graph linear and quadratic functions and show intercepts, maxima,
and minima;

(g.ii) graph square root, cube root, and piecewise-defined functions,
including step functions and absolute value functions;

(g.iii) graph polynomial functions, identifying zeros when suitable
factorizations are available, and showing end behavior;

(g.iv) (+) graph rational functions, identifying zeros and asymptotes
when suitable factorizations are available and showing end behavior;
and

(g.v) graph exponential and logarithmic functions, showing intercepts
and end behavior, and trigonometric functions, showing period, midline,
and amplitude;

(f) Concept retained with revisions – Revised to focus specifically on
linear functions, which have a constant rate of change. Other proposed
standards address rates of change for nonlinear functions. This
improves the simplicity of the standards.

(g) Concept retained with revisions – Revised to state that students
should be able to translate between multiple representations (not just
symbolic to graphical), and that students should use technology
strategically when doing so. This improves the practicality of the
standards. Moreover, specific standards are written for each function
family. This improves the clarity and practicality of the standards
because it matches the organization of common instructional units.

(g.i) Concept retained with revisions – Revised to state that students
should be able to translate between multiple representations (not just
symbolic to graphical), and that students should use technology
strategically when doing so. This improves the practicality of the
standards. Moreover, specific standards are written for each function
family. This improves the clarity and practicality of the standards
because it matches the organization of common instructional units.

(g.ii) Concept omitted - Standards related to radical and step functions
were removed for simplicity, based on an analysis of Essential
Concepts and other state standards. Teachers may still include this
concept in advanced math courses.

(g.iii) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity and
practicality as described in (1)(g).

(g.iv) Concept omitted - Standards related to rational functions were
removed for simplicity, based on an analysis of Essential Concepts and
other state standards. Teachers may still include this concept in
advanced math courses.

(g.v) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity and
practicality as described in (1)(g).

Draft - January 30th, 2024 125



(h) write a function defined by an expression in different but equivalent
forms to reveal and explain different properties of the function;

(h.i) use the process of factoring and completing the square in a
quadratic function to show zeros, extreme values, and symmetry of the
graph and interpret these in terms of a context; and

(h.ii) use the properties of exponents to interpret expressions for
exponential functions; for example, identify percent rate of change in
functions such as y = (1.02)t, y = (0.97)t, y = (1.01)12t, y = (1.2)t/10 and
classify them as representing exponential growth or decay; and

(i) compare properties of two functions each represented in a different
way (algebraically, graphically, numerically in tables, or by verbal
descriptions); for example, given a graph of one quadratic function and
an algebraic expression for another, say which has the larger
maximum.

(h) Concept retained with revisions – Revised to focus on
understanding that different forms reveal different aspects, and the
strategic skill of choosing the form that best suits the given information
and intended use. This improves the practicality of the standards.
Moreover, specific standards are written for each function family. This
improves the clarity and practicality of the standards because it
provides specificity for teachers, and matches the organization of
common instructional units.

(h.i) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity

(h.ii) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity, including
removing the example and unnecessary technical language.

(i) Concept retained with revisions – Very slightly revised for clarity.

(2) Mathematics functions: building functions content standards
for high school are:

(a) write a function that describes a relationship between two
quantities;*

(a.i) determine an explicit expression, a recursive process, or steps for
calculation from a context;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity, including
replacing unnecessarily technical language with the simpler phrase
"mathematical modeling." Moved to a section on mathematical
modeling, which helps to clarify the intent of the standard.

(a.i) Concept retained with revisions - See (2)(a): Revised for clarity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 126



(a.ii) combine standard function types using arithmetic operations; for
example, build a function that models the temperature of a cooling body
by adding a constant function to a decaying exponential and relate
these functions to the model; and

(a.iii) (+) compose functions; for example, if T(y) is the temperature in
the atmosphere as a function of height and h(t) is the height of a
weather balloon as a function of time, then T(h(t)) is the temperature at
the location of the weather balloon as a function of time;

(b) write arithmetic and geometric sequences both recursively and with
an explicit formula; use them to model situations from a variety of
contexts (e.g., science, history, and culture, including those of the
Montana American Indian); and translate between the two forms;*

(c) identify the effect on the graph of replacing f(x) by f(x) + k, k f(x),
f(kx), and f(x + k) for specific values of k (both positive and negative);
find the value of k given the graphs; experiment with cases and
illustrate an explanation of the effects on the graph using technology;
and include recognizing even and odd functions from their graphs and
algebraic expressions for them;

(d) find inverse functions;

(d.i) solve an equation of the form f(x) = c for a simple function f that
has an inverse and write an expression for the inverse; for example, f(x)
=2 x3 or f(x) = (x+1)/(x–1) for x ≠ 1;

(d.ii) (+) verify by composition that one function is the inverse of
another;

(d.iii) (+) read values of an inverse function from a graph or a table,
given that the function has an inverse; and

(a.ii) Concept omitted – Removed for simplicity based on an analysis of
Essential Concepts and other state standards. Teachers may still
include this concept in advanced math courses or to deepen students'
understanding of other standards.

(a.iii) Concept omitted – Removed for simplicity based on an analysis of
Essential Concepts and other state standards. Teachers may still
include this concept in advanced math courses or to deepen students'
understanding of other standards.

(b) Concept omitted – Standards related to sequences and series were
removed for simplicity, based on an analysis of Essential Concepts and
other state standards. Teachers may still include this concept in
advanced math courses or to deepen students' understanding of other
standards.

(c) Concept retained with revisions – The first part of the standard is
kept verbatim. The remaining parts were removed. This simplifies the
standard to focus on the core ideas.

(d) Concept retained with revisions – Revised to focus on
understanding the meaning of an inverse function, which is more
important for modern students. This improves the practicality of the
standard.

(d.i) Concept retained with revisions – See (2)(d): Revised to focus on
understanding.

(d.ii) Concept retained with revisions – See (2)(d): Revised to focus on
understanding.

(d.iii) Concept retained with revisions – See (2)(d): Revised to focus on
understanding.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 127



(d.iv) (+) produce an invertible function from a noninvertible function by
restricting the domain;

(e) (+) understand the inverse relationship between exponents and
logarithms and use this relationship to solve problems involving
logarithms and exponents.

(d.iv) Concept retained with revisions – See (2)(d): Revised to focus on
understanding.

(e) Concept retained with revisions – This standard was moved to a
section on exponential and logarithmic functions, which improves
practicality because it matches common instructional units. Also,
broken into two standards as the core understanding of the inverse
relationship is distinct from the skill of solving problems.

(3) Mathematics functions: linear, quadratic, and exponential
models content standards for high school are:

(a) distinguish between situations that can be modeled with linear
functions and with exponential functions;

(a.i) prove that linear functions grow by equal differences over equal
intervals and that exponential functions grow by equal factors over
equal intervals;

(a.ii) recognize situations in which one quantity changes at a constant
rate per unit interval relative to another; and

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions – Some of the standards in this
section were revised for clarity, but the main revision in this section is
organizational. First, linear and core exponential functions are in the
CORE standards, while advanced exponential and logarithmic functions
are in the CORE PLUS standards. This improves the simplicity of the
standards by distinguishing between the standards that all Montana
students should learn upon graduation (linear and core exponential
functions in the CORE) and the additional standards that Montana
Universities expect a student with three years of mathematics to have
learned (logarithmic and advanced exponential, in the CORE PLUS).
Second, the standards are organized by function family: linear
(CORE.ALG.LIN) and exponential (CORE.ALG.EXP) in the CORE
standards, and advanced exponential and logarithmic
(PLUS.ALG.LOG) in the CORE PLUS standards. This organization
improves the practicality of the standards because it matches the
organization of common instructional units. Some standards were also
moved to a dedicated section on mathematical modeling, which clarifies
the intent of the standards.

(a.i) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(a): Revised for clarity
and reorganized for simplicity and practicality.

(a.ii) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(a): Revised for clarity
and reorganized for simplicity and practicality.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 128



(a.iii) recognize situations in which a quantity grows or decays by a
constant percent rate per unit interval relative to another;

(b) construct linear and exponential functions, including arithmetic and
geometric sequences, given a graph, a description of a relationship, or
two input-output pairs (include reading these from a table);

(c) observe using graphs and tables that a quantity increasing
exponentially eventually exceeds a quantity increasing linearly,
quadratically, or (more generally) as a polynomial function;

(d) for exponential models, express as a logarithm the solution to abct =
d where a, c, and d are numbers and the base b is 2, 10, or e and
evaluate the logarithm using technology; and

(e) interpret the parameters in a linear or exponential function in terms
of a context.

(a.iii) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(a): Revised for clarity
and reorganized for simplicity and practicality.

(b) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(a): Revised for clarity and
reorganized for simplicity and practicality. Removed aspects related to
sequences and series for simplicity, based on an analysis of Essential
Concepts and other state standards. Teachers may still include this
concept in advanced math courses or to deepen students'
understanding of other standards.

(c) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(a): Revised for clarity and
reorganized for simplicity and practicality. The revision shifts the focus
to understanding the rates of change in each function family, rather than
the end behavior. This shift in emphasis improves the practicality of the
standards because rates of changes are a unifying concept across
middle- and high school mathematics.

(d) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(a): Revised for clarity and
reorganized for simplicity and practicality.

(e) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(a): Revised for clarity and
reorganized for simplicity and practicality.

(4) Mathematics functions: trigonometric functions content
standards for high school are:

(a) understand radian measure of an angle as the length of the arc on
the unit circle subtended by the angle;

(b) explain how the unit circle in the coordinate plane enables the
extension of trigonometric functions to all real numbers, interpreted as
radian measures of angles traversed counterclockwise around the unit
circle;

(c) (+) use special triangles to determine geometrically the values of
sine, cosine, tangent for π/3, π/4 and π/6 and use the unit circle to

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions – Very slightly revised for clarity,
removing unnecessarily technical language.

(b) Concept retained with revisions – Very slightly revised for clarity,
removing unnecessarily technical language.

(c) Concept retained with revisions – Revised to focus on special right
triangles with the angle measures indicated.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 129



express the values of sine, cosines, and tangent for x, π + x, and 2π –
x in terms of their values for x, where x is any real number;

(d) (+) use the unit circle to explain symmetry (odd and even) and
periodicity of trigonometric functions;

(e) choose trigonometric functions to model periodic phenomena from a
variety of contexts (e.g. science, history, and culture, including those of
the Montana American Indian) with specified amplitude, frequency, and
midline;*

(f) (+) understand that restricting a trigonometric function to a domain
on which it is always increasing or always decreasing allows its inverse
to be constructed;

(g) (+) use inverse functions to solve trigonometric equations that arise
in modeling contexts; evaluate the solutions using technology; and
interpret them in terms of the context;*

(h) prove the Pythagorean identity sin2(θ) + cos2(θ) = 1 and use it to
calculate trigonometric ratios; and

(i) (+) prove the addition and subtraction formulas for sine, cosine, and
tangent and use them to solve problems.

(d) Concept omitted – Removed for simplicity, based on an analysis of
Essential Concepts and other state standards. Teachers may still
include this concept in advanced math courses or to deepen students'
understanding of other standards.

(e) Concept retained with revisions – Moved to a section on
mathematical modeling for clarity, and consolidated with other modeling
standards for simplicity.

(f) Concept omitted – Advanced concepts related to trigonometric
functions, including inverse trig functions and trigonometric identities
were removed for simplicity, as these are not Essential Concepts, nor
are they in the core of many modern state standards. Teachers may still
include these concepts in advanced math courses or to deepen
students' understanding of other standards.

(g) Concept omitted – See (4)(f): Non-essential so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include these concepts in advanced math
courses or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(h) Concept omitted – See (4)(f): Non-essential so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include these concepts in advanced math
courses or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(i) Concept omitted – See (4)(f): Non-essential so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include these concepts in advanced math
courses or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 130



ARM 10.53.51522: Montana High School Mathematics Modeling Standards
Proposed Action: Repeal

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:

The major improvement in the proposed standards is that modeling standards are now grouped together in dedicated sections in
the algebra and geometry standards, rather than being distributed throughout the standards. In the time since the adoption of the previous
standards, modeling has grown in importance. Having dedicated sections for modeling helps to underscore its importance, which modernizes
the standards. The dedicated sections also improve the simplicity for teachers because they can see all modeling standards at once, rather
than having to flip between many pages of standards.

Data Summary:

A data summary cannot be provided for this standards set due to the nature of expression of symbols that are not utilized in the proposed 2011
standards. It is worth noting that, while this standard is not formally retained in the proposed standards, elements of modeling concepts can be
found in multiple proposed standards and that there are specific modeling standard clusters given within each domain. These are given through the
use of explicit language rather than through the use of symbols.

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the previous set of standards. These are entirely struck out in red due to the motion to repeal
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard in the
newly proposed 2024 standards. “Concept retained with revisions” indicates that the concept contained within the standard is also present in the
2024 proposed set, but has undergone revisions. “Concept omitted” indicates that the concept is no longer a standard for high school mathematics.
Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

22 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E515

Draft - January 30th, 2024 131

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E515


Proposed Repeals and Justifications:

Previous 2011 – 10.53.515 HSM - REPEAL Rationale and Notes

(1) Mathematics modeling content standards for high school are best
interpreted in relation to other standards. Specific standards for
modeling are indicated by a "*" symbol and appear throughout the high
school standards.

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(1) REPEAL - As described in the package overview, the proposed
standards group the modeling standards in dedicated sections to
underscore the importance of modeling for modern students, and to
improve simplicity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 132



ARM 10.53.51623: Montana High School Mathematics Geometry Standards
Proposed Action: Repeal

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:

The major improvement to the geometry standards is that they are simplified to focus on Essential Concepts related to geometry. This is in line with
modern state standards and the research from NREL, which de-emphasize learning a long list of geometric facts and techniques for their own sake
in favor of engaging students fully in the geometric reasoning process. Thus, rather than treating transformations, constructions, and proof as
discrete concepts and skills, the proposed standards unify them into a geometric reasoning process of exploring, conjecturing, and proving. To
enable full engagement in the process, the facts and theorems to be explored and proven are streamlined.

Organizationally, the geometry standards are largely grouped in the CORE standards, with only a few of the more-advanced trigonometry standards
in the CORE PLUS standards. This improves the simplicity of the standards by providing guidance to teachers.

Data Summary:
● Total number of standards 2011: 45
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained: 26
● Number of standards where the concepts have been omitted from the 2024 proposed package with the recommendation that teachers consider including

these concepts in advanced courses: 19

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the previous set of standards. These are entirely struck out in red due to the motion to repeal
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard in the
newly proposed 2024 standards. “Concept retained with revisions” indicates that the concept contained within the standard is also present in the
2024 proposed set, but has undergone revisions. “Concept omitted” indicates that the concept is no longer a standard for high school mathematics.
Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

23 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E516

Draft - January 30th, 2024 133

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E516


Proposed Repeals and Justifications:
Previous 2011 – 10.53.516 HSG - REPEAL Rationale and Notes

(1) Mathematics geometry: congruence content standards for high
school are:

(a) know precise definitions of angle, circle, perpendicular line, parallel
line, and line segment based on the undefined notions of point, line,
distance along a line, and distance around a circular arc;

(b) represent transformations in the plane using transparencies and
geometry software; describe transformations as functions that take
points in the plane as inputs and give other points as outputs; and
compare transformations that preserve distance and angle to those that
do not (e.g., translation versus horizontal stretch);

(c) given a rectangle, parallelogram, trapezoid, or regular polygon,
describe the rotations and reflections that carry it onto itself;

(d) develop definitions of rotations, reflections, and translations in terms
of angles, circles, perpendicular lines, parallel lines, and line segments;

(e) given a geometric figure and a rotation, reflection, or translation,
draw the transformed figure using, e.g., graph paper, tracing paper, or
geometry software and specify a sequence of transformations that will
carry a given figure onto another;

(f) use geometric descriptions of rigid motions to transform figures and
to predict the effect of a given rigid motion on a given figure and given
two figures, use the definition of congruence in terms of rigid motions to
decide if they are congruent;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept omitted – The proposed standards focus on application of
the definitions. This improves the practicality of the standards.

(b) Concept retained with revisions – This standard was simplified to
focus on representing transformations. Describing transformations as
functions was removed for simplicity, as this is not included in NCTM's
Essential Concepts, nor is it in the core of other modern state
standards. Teachers may still include this concept in advanced math
courses, although it is likely more suited to a university-level course in
abstract algebra.

(c) Concept retained with revisions – Rather than transformation for
"transformations" sake, the proposed standards clarify that students
should use transformations to demonstrate congruence or similarity.
This improves the practicality of the standards. This particular standard
was revised to clarify that its focus is on using transformations to
demonstrate congruence.

(d) Concept omitted – See (1)(a). The proposed standards focus on the
application of the definitions.

(e) Concept retained with revisions – See (1)(c). This standard was
revised to clarify the focus on congruence, and consolidated with (1)(f)
for simplicity.

(f) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity and
consolidated with (1)(e) for simplicity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 134



(g) use the definition of congruence in terms of rigid motions to show
that two triangles are congruent if and only if corresponding pairs of
sides and corresponding pairs of angles are congruent;

(h) explain how the criteria for triangle congruence (ASA, SAS, and
SSS) follow from the definition of congruence in terms of rigid motions;

(i) prove theorems about lines and angles; theorems include: vertical
angles are congruent, when a transversal crosses parallel lines,
alternate interior angles are congruent, corresponding angles are
congruent, and points on a perpendicular bisector of a line segment are
exactly those equidistant from the segment's endpoints;

(j) prove theorems about triangles; theorems include: measures of
interior angles of a triangle sum to 180°, base angles of isosceles
triangles are congruent, the segment joining midpoints of two sides of a
triangle is parallel to the third side and half the length, and the medians
of a triangle meet at a point;

(k) prove theorems about parallelograms; theorems include: opposite
sides are congruent, opposite angles are congruent, the diagonals of a
parallelogram bisect each other, and conversely, rectangles are
parallelograms with congruent diagonals;

(l) make formal geometric constructions, including those representing
Montana American Indians, with a variety of tools and methods
(compass and straightedge, string, reflective devices, paper folding,
dynamic geometric software, etc.); copying a segment; copying an
angle; bisecting a segment; bisecting an angle; constructing
perpendicular lines, including the perpendicular bisector of a line
segment; and constructing a line parallel to a given line through a point
not on the line; and

(m) construct an equilateral triangle, a square, and a regular hexagon
inscribed in a circle.

(g) Concept retained with revisions – This standard is kept verbatim.

(h) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity.

(i) Concept retained with revisions – The proposed standards related to
proof were moved to a dedicated section on geometric arguments. This
improves the simplicity of the standards. The proposed standards also
situate proof within a broader process of geometric reasoning that
includes investigating figures, making conjectures, and proving
theorems—not just proving statements that are given to them.

(j) Concept retained with revisions – See (1)(i): Moved to a section on
geometric arguments for simplicity, and clarified to include explore and
conjecture in addition to proof. Also consolidated with (2)(d) for
simplicity, with the list of theorems condensed to focus on those that are
important for modeling. This improves the practicality of the standard.

(k) Concept retained with revisions – See (1)(i): Moved to a section on
geometric arguments for simplicity, and clarified to include explore and
conjecture in addition to proof. Also, this standard was broadened to
include other quadrilaterals, with a focus on the theorems that are
important for modeling. This improves the practicality.

(l) Concept retained with revisions – Rather than construction for
"constructions" sake, the proposed standards clarify that students
should use constructions to explore, conjecture, and prove theorems.
This simplifies the standards. Moreover, to modernize the standards,
the proposed standards emphasize the strategic use of technology for
constructions. This improves the practicality.

(m) Concept omitted - See (1)(l). Constructions using technology or
other tools to support exploration, conjectures, and proofs, instead of
for "construction" sake.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 135



(2) Mathematics geometry: similarity, right triangles, and
trigonometry content standards for high school are:

(a) verify experimentally the properties of dilations given by a center
and a scale factor:

(a.i) a dilation takes a line not passing through the center of the dilation
to a parallel line and leaves a line passing through the center
unchanged; and

(a.ii) the dilation of a line segment is longer or shorter in the ratio given
by the scale factor;

(b) given two figures, use the definition of similarity in terms of similarity
transformations to decide if they are similar and explain using similarity
transformations the meaning of similarity for triangles as the equality of
all corresponding pairs of angles and the proportionality of all
corresponding pairs of sides;

(c) use the properties of similarity transformations to establish the AA
criterion for two triangles to be similar;

(d) prove theorems about triangles; theorems include: a line parallel to
one side of a triangle divides the other two proportionally and,
conversely, the Pythagorean Theorem proved using triangle similarity;

(e) use congruence and similarity criteria for triangles to solve problems
and to prove relationships in geometric figures;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept omitted – This standard was removed for simplicity and
practicality. As described in (1)(c), rather than transformations for
"transformations" sake, the proposed standards focus on using
transformations (including dilations) to demonstrate congruence or
similarity. Teachers may still include this concept in advanced math
courses, or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(a.i) Concept omitted – See (2)(a): Removed for simplicity and
practicality. Teachers may still include this concept in advanced math
courses, or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(a.ii) Concept omitted – See (2)(a): Removed for simplicity and
practicality. Teachers may still include this concept in advanced math
courses, or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(b) Concept retained with revisions – This standard covers two
concepts: Using transformations to determine similarity, and the criteria
for triangle similarity. To improve clarity, this was split into two standards
in the proposed.

(c) Concept retained with revisions – Kept nearly verbatim, but with a
clarification that AA means "Angle-Angle".

(d) Concept retained with revisions – Consolidated with (1)(j) and
moved to a dedicated section on geometric arguments for simplicity.
The list of theorems was condensed to focus on those that are
important for modeling. This improves the practicality of the standard.

(e) Concept retained with revisions – This standard was redundant, so
removed for simplicity. Using triangles as a tool is implicit in the
proposed standards related to proof and problem solving.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 136



(f) understand that by similarity, side ratios in right triangles are
properties of the angles in the triangle, leading to definitions of
trigonometric ratios for acute angles;

(g) explain and use the relationship between the sine and cosine of
complementary angles;

(h) use trigonometric ratios and the Pythagorean Theorem to solve right
triangles in applied problems;

(i) (+) derive the formula A = 1/2 ab sin(C) for the area of a triangle by
drawing an auxiliary line from a vertex perpendicular to the opposite
side;

(j) (+) prove the Laws of Sines and Cosines and use them to solve
problems; and

(k) (+) understand and apply the Laws of Sines and Cosines to find
unknown measurements in right and nonright triangles (e.g., surveying
problems, resultant forces).

(f) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity.

(g) Concept omitted – Advanced concepts related to trigonometry,
including trigonometric identities like this, were removed for simplicity,
as these are not Essential Concepts, nor are they in the core of many
modern state standards. Teachers may still include these concepts in
advanced math courses or to deepen students' understanding of other
standards.

(h) Concept retained with revisions – Kept nearly verbatim, but removed
the restriction to "applied problems."

(i) Concept omitted – See (2)(g). Non-essential so removed for
simplicity. Teachers may still include this concept in advanced math
courses, or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(j) Concept retained with revisions – Consolidated with (2)(k) for
simplicity. Revised to focus on application of the Laws (removed the
part requiring students to prove the laws). The focus on application
improves the practicality of the standard.

(k) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity: removed "right
triangles" as the Laws are redundant in right triangles, and removed
example contexts. Consolidated with (2)(j) for simplicity.

(3) Mathematics geometry: circles content standards for high
school are:

(a) prove that all circles are similar;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept omitted – Removed for simplicity, to keep the amount of
theorems to be proven at a reasonable level. Teachers may still include
this concept in advanced math courses, or to deepen students'
understanding of other standards.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 137



(b) identify and describe relationships among inscribed angles, radii,
and chords; include the relationship between central, inscribed, and
circumscribed angles; inscribed angles on a diameter are right angles;
and the radius of a circle is perpendicular to the tangent where the
radius intersects the circle;

(c) construct the inscribed and circumscribed circles of a triangle and
prove properties of angles for a quadrilateral inscribed in a circle;

(d) (+) construct a tangent line from a point outside a given circle to the
circle; and

(e) derive, using similarity, the fact that the length of the arc intercepted
by an angle is proportional to the radius; define the radian measure of
the angle as the constant of proportionality; and derive the formula for
the area of a sector.

(b) Concept retained with revisions – See (1)(i). Moved to a dedicated
section on geometric arguments for simplicity. The list of theorems was
kept verbatim.

(c) Concept omitted - Removed for simplicity. The first part of the
standard describes construction for "construction" sake, which is not
included in the proposed standards—see (1)(l). The second part of the
standard was removed to keep the amount of theorems to be proven at
a reasonable level. Teachers may still include these concepts in
advanced math courses, or to deepen students' understanding of other
standards.

(d) Concept omitted - See (1)(l). Construction for "construction" sake,
so removed for simplicity. Teachers may still include in advanced math
courses, or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(e) Concept retained with revisions - This standard covers two
concepts. The first concept is related to the definition of radian
measure. This concept was retained but the standard was revised for
clarity, removing unnecessary technical language. The second concept
is the area of a sector. This was removed for simplicity, as it is not an
Essential Concept, nor is it in the core of many modern state standards.
Teachers may still include this concept in advanced math courses or to
deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(4) Mathematics geometry: expressing geometric properties with
equations content standards for high school are:

(a) derive the equation of a circle of given center and radius using the
Pythagorean Theorem and complete the square to find the center and
radius of a circle given by an equation;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions –The first part is included verbatim.
The second part was removed for simplicity, as it is not an Essential
Concept, nor is it at the core of many modern state standards. Teachers
may still include this concept in advanced math courses or to deepen
students' understanding of other standards.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 138



(b) derive the equation of a parabola given a focus and directrix;

(c) (+) derive the equations of ellipses and hyperbolas given the foci
and directrices;

(d) use coordinates to prove simple geometric theorems algebraically;
for example, prove or disprove that a figure defined by four given points
in the coordinate plane is a rectangle and prove or disprove that the
point (1, √3) lies on the circle centered at the origin and containing the
point (0, 2);

(e) prove the slope criteria for parallel and perpendicular lines and use
them to solve geometric problems (e.g., find the equation of a line
parallel or perpendicular to a given line that passes through a given
point);

(f) find the point on a directed line segment between two given points
that partitions the segment in a given ratio; and

(g) use coordinates to compute perimeters of polygons and areas of
triangles and rectangles, e.g., using the distance formula.*

(b) Concept omitted – Advanced concepts related to conic sections
were removed for simplicity, as these are not Essential Concepts, nor
are they in the core of many modern state standards. Teachers may still
include these concepts in advanced math courses or to deepen
students' understanding of other standards.

(c) Concept omitted – See (4)(b). Non-essential, so removed. Teachers
may still include this concept in advanced math courses or to deepen
students' understanding of other standards.

(d) Concept omitted – Removed for simplicity, to keep the amount of
theorems to be proven at a reasonable level. Teachers may still include
this concept in advanced math courses, or to deepen students'
understanding of other standards.

(e) Concept retained with revisions – Moved to a section on linear
functions, to match common instructional units. Revised to focus on
applications of the slope criteria, rather than proof. These changes
improve the practicality of the standard.

(f) Concept omitted – Removed for simplicity, as this is not an Essential
Concepts, nor is it in the core of many modern state standards.
Teachers may still include this concept in advanced math courses or to
deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(g) Concept retained with revisions – Revised for clarity.

(5) Mathematics geometry: geometric measurement and
dimension content standards for high school are:

(a) give an informal argument for the formulas for the circumference of
a circle, area of a circle, volume of a cylinder, pyramid, and cone and
use dissection arguments, Cavalieri's principle, and informal limit
arguments;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept omitted - Removed because students learn these formulas
in 6-8, and they should learn justifications for the formulas then.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 139



(b) (+) give an informal argument using Cavalieri's principle for the
formulas for the volume of a sphere and other solid figures;

(c) use volume formulas for cylinders, pyramids, cones, and spheres to
solve problems;* and

(d) identify the shapes of two-dimensional cross-sections of
three-dimensional objects and identify three-dimensional objects
generated by rotations of two-dimensional objects.

(b) Concept omitted - Removed for simplicity, as this is not an Essential
Concept, nor is it in the core of many modern state standards. Teachers
may still include this concept in advanced math courses or to deepen
students' understanding of other standards.

(c) Concept retained with revisions - Revised for clarity, specifying that
problems may include composite shapes.

(d) Concept omitted - Removed for simplicity. While interesting, this is
not an Essential Concept, nor is it in the core of many modern state
standards. Teachers may still include this concept in advanced math
courses or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(6) Mathematics Geometry: modeling with geometry content
standards for high school are:

(a) use geometric shapes, their measures, and their properties to
describe objects (e.g., modeling a tree trunk or a human torso as a
cylinder; modeling a Montana American Indian tipi as a cone);*

(b) apply concepts of density based on area and volume in modeling
situations (e.g., persons per square mile, BTUs per cubic foot);* and

(c) apply geometric methods to solve design problems (e.g., designing
an object or structure to satisfy physical constraints or minimize cost;
working with typographic grid systems based on ratios).*

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions - Kept nearly verbatim, but removed
the examples and included the updated IEFA language. Consolidated
with (6)(c) for simplicity.

(b) Concept omitted - Removed for simplicity, as this is not an Essential
Concept, nor is it in the core of many modern state standards. Teachers
may still include this concept in advanced math courses or to deepen
students' understanding of other standards.

(c) Concept retained with revisions - Consolidated with (6)(a) for
simplicity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 140



ARM 10.53.51724: Montana High School Mathematics Statistics and Probability Standards
Proposed Action: Repeal

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:

There are two major improvements to the Statistics and Probability standards:

1. Focus: In line with modern recommendations around data science, the proposed standards focus on reasoning
with data in context, rather than abstract probability theory. This improves the practicality of the standards.

2. Organization: Concepts in the proposed standards are split between Core and Core Plus as follows:
● Descriptive analyses (representing, describing, and interpreting data) are grouped in the Core standards
● Inferential statistics are grouped in the Core Plus standards.

This improves the simplicity of the standards because it provides guidance to teachers.

Data Summary:
● Total number of standards 2011: 35
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained: 23
● Number of standards where the concepts have been omitted from the 2024 proposed package with the recommendation that teachers consider including

these concepts in advanced courses: 12

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the previous set of standards. These are entirely struck out in red due to the motion to repeal
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard in the
newly proposed 2024 standards. “Concept retained with revisions” indicates that the concept contained within the standard is also present in the
2024 proposed set, but has undergone revisions. “Concept omitted” indicates that the concept is no longer a standard for high school mathematics.
Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

24 See https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E517

Draft - January 30th, 2024 141

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E53%2E517


Proposed Repeals and Justifications:

Previous 2011 – 10.53.517 HSSP - REPEAL Rationale and Notes
(1) Mathematics statistics and probability: interpreting categorical
and quantitative data content standards for high school are:

(a) represent data with plots on the real number line (dot plots,
histograms, and box plots);

(b) use statistics appropriate to the shape of the data distribution to
compare center (median, mean) and spread (interquartile range,
standard deviation) of two or more different data sets;

(c) interpret differences in shape, center, and spread in the context of
the data sets, accounting for possible effects of extreme data points
(outliers);

(d) use the mean and standard deviation of a data set to fit it to a
normal distribution and to estimate population percentages; recognize
that there are data sets for which such a procedure is not appropriate;
and use calculators, spreadsheets, tables, and Montana American
Indian data sources to estimate areas under the normal curve;

(e) summarize categorical data for two categories in two-way frequency
tables;interpret relative frequencies in the context of the data (including
joint, marginal, and conditional relative frequencies); and recognize
possible associations and trends in the data;

(f) represent data on two quantitative variables on a scatter plot and
describe how the variables are related;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions – This standard is kept nearly
verbatim, but consolidated with (1)(f) for simplicity

(b) Concept retained with revisions – Kept nearly verbatim, with slight
revision for clarity

(c) Concept retained with revisions – Kept nearly verbatim.

(d) Concept retained with revisions – Split into three standards to clarify
precisely what students are expected to do. Also specified that students
should use technology for fitting and interacting with normal
distributions. This improves the practicality for modern students.

(e) Concept retained with revisions – This standard covered many
skills. The proposed standards keep the same skills but split them into
sub-standards for clarity. Each is slightly revised for clarity. Moreover,
they are grouped into a super-ordinate standard that clarifies the intent
of these skills is to analyze categorical data in context.

(f) Concept retained with revisions – In the CORE data standards, this
standard was revised to focus on the statistics of linear models, as
linear models are the primary models used by statisticians to analyze
bivariate data (quadratic and exponential models are included in the
CORE modeling standards). Also, clarified that the purpose of these
skills is to analyze bivariate quantitative data in context.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 142



(f.i) fit a function to the data; use functions fitted to data to solve
problems in the context of the data; use given functions or choose a
function suggested by the context; and emphasize linear, quadratic,
and exponential models;

(f.ii) informally assess the fit of a function by plotting and analyzing
residuals; and

(f.iii) fit a linear function for a scatter plot that suggests a linear
association;

(g) interpret the slope (rate of change) and the intercept (constant term)
of a linear model in the context of the data;

(h) compute (using technology) and interpret the correlation coefficient
of a linear fit; and

(i) distinguish between correlation and causation.

(f.i) Concept retained with revisions – Moved to a section on modeling,
so that the statistics standards can focus on linear models.

(f.ii) Concept omitted – Removed for simplicity, as this is not included in
NCTM's Essential Concepts, nor is it in the core of other modern state
standards. Teachers may still include this concept in advanced math
courses or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

(f.iii) Concept retained with revisions – Revised to clarify that
technology should be used to fit linear functions. This improves the
practicality of the standard.

(g) Concept retained with revisions – Moved to a section on linear
functions, as this standard applies to all linear functions, not just those
derived from linear models.

(h) Concept retained with revisions – Revised very slightly for clarity.

(i) Concept retained with revisions – Mostly kept verbatim, with the
following changes: Moved to a section on data literacy. Changed
"correlation: to "association", as "correlation" is too narrow of a term.

(2) Mathematics statistics and probability: making inferences and
justifying conclusions content standards for high school are:

(a) understand statistics as a process for making inferences about
population parameters based on a random sample from that population;

(b) decide if a specified model is consistent with results from a given
data-generating process, e.g., using simulation; for example, a model
says a spinning coin falls heads up with probability 0.5. Would a result
of 5 tails in a row cause you to question the model?;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions – Revised slightly to focus on the
activity of making inferences.

(b) Concept retained with revisions – The main concept is retained, but
the focus is different. Broadly, this is about hypothesis testing through
simulation, which is captured in a specific form in the proposed
standard PLUS.DATA.INF.3.b (the current standard exemplifies the
concept in terms of a test of a single proportion, while the proposed

Draft - January 30th, 2024 143



(c) recognize the purposes of and differences among sample surveys,
experiments, and observational studies and explain how randomization
relates to each;

(d) use data from a sample survey to estimate a population mean or
proportion and develop a margin of error through the use of simulation
models for random sampling;

(e) use data from a randomized experiment to compare two treatments
and use simulations to decide if differences between parameters are
significant; and

(f) evaluate reports based on data.

standard discusses the same concept in terms of comparing two
groups)

(c) Concept retained with revisions – Standard is kept verbatim

(d) Concept retained with revisions – Statistical estimation is a HUGE
concept in modern data science, but it tends to get lost with only this
one small standard. In the proposed standards, this concept is
elaborated to clarify precisely what students should understand and be
able to do.

(e) Concept retained with revisions – Similar to (2)(d), this concept is
retained and elaborated, given its importance in modern data science.

(f) Concept retained with revisions – This standard was very broad. The
proposed standards clarify the specific aspects of reports that students
are expected to evaluate, including experimental design, sampling
strategy, and bias.

(3) Mathematics statistics and probability: conditional probability
and the rules of probability content standards for high school are:

(a) describe events as subsets of a sample space (the set of outcomes)
using characteristics (or categories) of the outcomes, or as unions,
intersections, or complements of other events ("or," "and," "not");

(b) understand that two events A and B are independent if the
probability of A and B occurring together is the product of their
probabilities and use this characterization to determine if they are
independent;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept retained with revisions - Revised to improve clarity,
including removing overly-technical language.

(b) Concept retained with revisions – The concepts of independence
and conditional probability—expressed in standards (3)(b)-(3)(f)—were
retained in the proposed standards, as these are Essential Concepts
that appear in the core of many modern state standards. However,
current standards are repetitive and wordy. The proposed standards are
revised and consolidated to improve clarity, including removing lots of
unnecessarily-technical language. The proposed standards also

Draft - January 30th, 2024 144



(c) understand the conditional probability of A given B as P(A and
B)/P(B) and interpret independence of A and B as saying that the
conditional probability of A given B is the same as the probability of A,
and the conditional probability of B given A is the same as the
probability of B;

(d) construct and interpret two-way frequency tables of data, including
information from Montana American Indian data sources, when two
categories are associated with each object being classified; use the
two-way table as a sample space to decide if events are independent
and to approximate conditional probabilities; for example, collect data
from a random sample of students in your school on their favorite
subject among math, science, and English; estimate the probability that
a randomly selected student from your school will favor science given
that the student is in tenth grade; and do the same for other subjects
and compare the results;

(e) recognize and explain the concepts of conditional probability and
independence in everyday language and everyday situations; for
example, compare the chance of having lung cancer if you are a
smoker with the chance of being a smoker if you have lung cancer;

(f) find the conditional probability of A given B as the fraction of B's
outcomes that also belong to A and interpret the answer in terms of the
model;

(g) apply the Addition Rule, P(A or B) = P(A) + P(B) – P(A and B) and
interpret the answer in terms of the model;

emphasize the use of representations, which improves the practicality
of the standards.

(c) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(b): Revised for clarity and
practicality.

(d) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(b): Revised for clarity and
practicality.

(e) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(b): Revised for clarity and
practicality.

(f) Concept retained with revisions – See (3)(b): Revised for clarity and
practicality.

(g) Concept omitted – In line with modern standards and research
provided by NREL, the proposed standards prioritize data science over
abstract probability theory, thus standards that focus on probability
theory, including this one, are removed. For students, this increases the
practicality of the standards. For teachers, removing abstract probability
theory standards improves the simplicity of the standards. Teachers
may still include probability theory in more advanced math courses, or
to deepen students' understanding of existing standards.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 145



(h) (+) apply the general Multiplication Rule in a uniform probability
model, P(A and B) = P(A)P(B|A) = P(B)P(A|B), and interpret the answer
in terms of the model; and

(i) (+) use permutations and combinations to compute probabilities of
compound events and solve problems.

(h) Concept omitted – See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
were removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

(i) Concept omitted – See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
were removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

(4) Mathematics statistics and probability: using probability to
make decisions content standards for high school are:

(a) (+) define a random variable for a quantity of interest by assigning a
numerical value to each event in a sample space and graph the
corresponding probability distribution using the same graphical displays
as for data distributions;

(b) (+) calculate the expected value of a random variable and interpret it
as the mean of the probability distribution;

(c) (+) develop a probability distribution for a random variable defined
for a sample space in which theoretical probabilities can be calculated
and find the expected value; for example, find the theoretical probability
distribution for the number of correct answers obtained by guessing on
all five questions of a multiple-choice test where each question has four
choices and find the expected grade under various grading schemes;

(d) (+) develop a probability distribution for a random variable defined
for a sample space in which probabilities are assigned empirically and
find the expected value; for example, find a current data distribution on
the number of TV sets per household in the United States and calculate
the expected number of sets per household. How many TV sets would
you expect to find in 100 randomly selected households?;

Although it has been proposed that these standards be repealed,
the concepts of these standards have the following presentation in
the newly proposed standards with the provided rationale:

(a) Concept omitted - See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

(b) Concept omitted - See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

(c) Concept omitted - See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

(d) Concept omitted - See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 146



(e) (+) weigh the possible outcomes of a decision by assigning
probabilities to payoff values and finding expected values;

(e.i) find the expected payoff for a game of chance; for example, find
the expected winnings from a state lottery ticket or a game at a
fast-food restaurant; and

(e.ii) evaluate and compare strategies on the basis of expected values;
for example, compare a high-deductible versus a low-deductible
automobile insurance policy using various, but reasonable, chances of
having a minor or a major accident;

(f) (+) use probabilities to make fair decisions (e.g., drawing by lots,
using a random number generator); and

(g) (+) analyze decisions and strategies using probability concepts
(e.g., product testing, medical testing, pulling a hockey goalie at the end
of a game).

(e) Concept omitted - See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

(e.i) Concept omitted - See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

(e.ii) Concept omitted - See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

(f) Concept omitted - See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

(g) Concept omitted - See (3)(g). Abstract probability theory standards
removed for practicality and simplicity. Teachers may still include
probability theory in more advanced math courses, or to deepen
students' understanding of existing standards.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 147



ARM 10.53.518: Montana High School Mathematics Core Numeric Reasoning Standards
Proposed Action: Adopt

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:

There are two major improvements to the Numeric Reasoning standards:

1. Simplicity: To improve simplicity, the proposed standards focus only on Essential Concepts related to number
and quantity. In practice, this means that the proposed standards do not include standards related to matrices and
vectors, nor advanced operations with complex numbers. Teachers may still include these concepts in advanced math
courses or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

2. Organization: the Number & Quantity standards are split between Core and Core Plus as follows:
● Standards related to exponents and scientific notation are grouped in the Core standards
● Standards related to complex numbers are grouped in the Core Plus standards
● Standards related to modeling are grouped in sections specific to modeling in both the Core and Core Plus standards.

Data Summary:

● Total number of standards 2024: 3
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained from previous standards: 1
● Number of standards where the concepts are newly added and were not present in previous standards: 2

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the proposed set of standards. These are entirely underlined in red due to the motion to adopt
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard from the
previous 2011 standards. Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 148



Proposed Repeals and Justifications:
Proposed 2024 – 10.53.518 CORE NUMERIC

REASONING STANDARDS
Rationale and Notes

(1) Mathematics numeric reasoning: understand and apply the real
number system content standards for high school are:

(a) use reasoning to establish properties of integer exponents,
including scientific notation;

(b) represent and perform operations within very large and very small
numbers using scientific notation; and

(c) define, manipulate, interpret, and compare real numbers presented
through different representations, including both rational and irrational
numbers and apply comparisons in context; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples
and local communities.

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) New Concept - The 2011 standards had scientific notation
completely contained in 8th grade. In the proposed standards, the
8th-grade standards were revised such that scientific notation is only
introduced in 8th grade. Hence we added this standard and (1)(a)(i) to
the high school set to ensure students have a complete treatment of
scientific notation.

(b) New Concept - See (1)(a): Added to ensure students have a
complete treatment of scientific notation.

(c) Adapted from previous standards with revisions - Reworded for
clarity. Moreover, the focus of the proposed standards is understanding
rational and irrational numbers in context and applications, whereas the
previous standard is focused on abstract number theory. The revised
focus improves the practicality of the standard.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 149



ARM 10.53.519: Montana High School Mathematics Core Algebraic and Functional
Reasoning Standards
Proposed Action: Adopt

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:

There are two major improvements to the Algebraic and Functional Reasoning standards:

1. Simplicity: We believe algebraic skills are very important. When there are too many standards, students "learn"
algebra purely as rules for symbol manipulation without understanding. To improve students' algebra skills, the
proposed standards are simplified to focus on Essential Concepts and skills, rather than a long list of esoteric
concepts and techniques.

2. Practicality: In the previous standards, there was a lot of overlap between the algebra and the function standards
and the groupings did not match typical instructional units. In the proposed, the algebra and functions standards are
combined to eliminate redundancy. They are organized by a function family (e.g., linear, quadratic, etc) to match
common instructional units, with a common structure across groups. Finally, they are split between Core and Core
Plus to provide further guidance to teachers, as follows:

● Standards related to linear, exponential, and quadratic functions are in the Core standards.
● Standards related to polynomials, logarithmic functions, and trigonometric functions are in the Core Plus standards.

Data Summary:

● Total number of standards 2024: 43
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained from previous standards: 39
● Number of standards where the concepts are newly added and were not present in previous standards: 4

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the proposed set of standards. These are entirely underlined in red due to the motion to adopt
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard from the
previous 2011 standards. Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 150



Proposed Repeals and Justifications:

Proposed 2024 – 10.53.519 CORE ALGEBRAIC AND
FUNCTIONAL REASONING STANDARDS Rationale and Notes

(1) Mathematics algebraic and functional reasoning: understand
and express functions content standards for high school are:

(a) interpret parts of an expression, such as terms, factors, and
coefficients;

(b) understand the definition of a function and distinguish between
functions and relations;

(c) represent functions using tables, graphs with appropriate scales and
labels, equations, and verbal situations; using technology strategically
by:

(c.i) understanding that different representations highlight different
aspects of functions, and choosing the representation that is
appropriate for the context; and

(c.ii) comparing properties of two functions, including when each is
represented in a different way;

(d) use function notation, evaluate functions, and interpret statements
that use function notation in context; this standard should incorporate a
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(e) identify the domain and range of a function, including considering
the constraints imposed by context; this standard should incorporate a
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - This part
of the current standard is unchanged.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
for clarity, including making a dedicated standard for the definition of
function, and removing unnecessarily-technical language.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
to clarify that this standard focuses on expressing functions in multiple
representations (.the old standard only included graphs and equations).

(c.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - This
standard is included to ensure that students do not just learn
representations for "representations" sake, but rather because each
representation highlights different aspects of functions.

(c.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - This is
kept verbatim, with one grammatical change.

(d) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
for clarity, including making a dedicated standard for function notation
and removing unnecessarily technical language.

(e) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Added
Range (current standard only includes domain), and revised for clarity,
including removing an example and removing unnecessarily technical
language.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 151



(f) understand that a graph of an equation in two variables is the set of
all of its solutions plotted in a coordinate plane;

(g) understand that expressions can be rewritten in equivalent forms to
make different characteristics or features visible; and

(h) rearrange literal equations to highlight quantities of interest.

(f) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
slightly for clarity.

(g) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
slightly for clarity. Also, the current standard has two sub-standards that
discuss rewriting quadratic and exponential expressions. The proposed
standards are more explicit about the types of expressions that
students are expected to be able to rewrite, with each organized into
common instructional units (e.g., linear, quadratic, etc.). This improves
the practicality of the standards.

(h) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
very slightly for clarity, replacing "formula" with "literal equation" as this
is the more accurate term. Examples removed, but may yet appear in
guidance documents.

(2) Mathematics algebraic and functional reasoning: linear
functions content standards for high school are:

(a) understand that linear functions have a constant rate of change;

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - The next
sets of standards (sets 2, 3, and 4) are grouped by function family:
linear, quadratic, and exponential. This increases the practicality of the
standards because it matches common instructional units.

Within each family, the standards are generally adapted from previous
standards. Except as noted, they are primarily revised for clarity and to
fit the organizational scheme described below. The major improvement
is that they are arranged with an eye toward simplicity. For each family,
the structure of the standards is repeated:

1. Understand key features of the function family including
understanding how the variables change together, and the meaning of
key features of the family (e.g., slope and y-intercept).

2. Using and converting between multiple representations of the
function family and converting between them.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 152



(b) understand slope as a rate of change and y-intercept as initial value;

(c) represent linear functions using tables, graphs, equations, and
verbal situations; using technology strategically; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples
and local communities by:

(c.i) identifying the rate of change and initial value in each
representation;

(c.ii) converting between representations; and

(c.iii) writing equations for a line perpendicular or parallel to a given line
that passes through a given point;

(d) understand that linear equations can be represented in multiple
forms and the specific features of each form by:

3. Rewriting algebraic expressions/equations in forms that are specific
to each family, with a focus on understanding the affordances of each
form and strategically choosing the form that is best suited to the use.

4. Solving equations using techniques that are appropriate to each
family.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to linear functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a common
organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to linear functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a common
organizational scheme for simplicity

(c.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to linear functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a common
organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to linear functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a common
organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c.iii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to linear functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a common
organizational scheme for simplicity.

(d) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to linear functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a common
organizational scheme for simplicity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 153



(d.i) choosing the form strategically when writing an equation based on
given information and intended use;

(d.ii) converting between slope-intercept, point-slope, and standard
form symbolically;

(d.iii) understanding the relationship between slope-intercept form, the
rate of change, and the initial value;

(d.iv) understanding the relationship between point-slope form, the rate
of change, and a given point; and

(d.v) understanding the relationship between standard form and the x-
and y-intercepts.

(e) understand that a solution to a system of equations is a coordinate
pair that makes both equations true; and

(f) solve systems of linear equations by graphing, substitution, and
elimination, including systems with zero, one, or infinite solutions; using
technology and representations strategically.

(d.i) New Concept - This standard is included to ensure that students do
not just learn to rewrite expressions for its own sake, but rather
because each form highlights different aspects.

(d.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to linear functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a common
organizational scheme for simplicity.

(d.iii) New Concept - Although rewriting linear expressions was implicit
in the previous standards, the particular forms were never explicitly
listed. The proposed standards clarify the different forms that students
should learn and what they should "see" in each form.

(d.iv) New Concept - See (2).(d).(iii): Added for clarity.

(d.v) New Concept - See (2).(d).(iii): Added for clarity.

(e) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to linear functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a common
organizational scheme for simplicity.

(f) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See (2)(a):
grouped into a common section with all other standards related to linear
functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a common
organizational scheme for simplicity.

(3) Mathematics algebraic and functional reasoning: quadratic
functions and expressions content standards for high school are:

(a) understand that quadratic functions do not have a constant rate of
change but have a constant second difference over equal intervals and
identify the constant second difference in tables;

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a). The standards in this section are generally adapted from
previous standards. Except as noted, they are primarily revised for

Draft - January 30th, 2024 154



(b) represent quadratic functions using tables, graphs, equations, and
verbal situations, using technology strategically; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples
and local communities;

(c) understand that quadratic expressions can be represented in
multiple forms and the specific features of each form by:

(c.i) choosing the form strategically when writing an expression based
on given information and intended use;

(c.ii) converting between factored, standard, and vertex form
symbolically and using representations;

(c.iii) understanding the relationship between factored form and the
zeros of the function; and

(c.iv) understanding the relationship between vertex form and the vertex
of the function.

clarity and to fit the organizational scheme described below. The major
improvement is that they are organized to improve practicality and
simplicity by grouping all standards related to quadratic functions
together, and by following the pattern established in set 2:
1. Understand key features of quadratic functions, including how the
variables change together.
2. Using and converting between multiple representations.
3. Rewriting algebraic expressions/equations.
4. Solving equations.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to quadratic functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to quadratic functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to quadratic functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to quadratic functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity. The revised standard
also emphasizes the use of representations (e.g., area model). This
improves the practicality of the standard.

(c.iii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to quadratic functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c.iv) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related

Draft - January 30th, 2024 155



(d) solve quadratic equations by factoring, graphing, completing the
square and using inverse operations, and the quadratic formula; use
technology and representations strategically.

to quadratic functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(d) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to quadratic functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity. The revised standards
also emphasize technology and representations as tools for solving
equations. This improves the practicality of the standard.

(4) Mathematics algebraic and functional reasoning: exponential
functions and expressions content standards for high school are:

(a) understand that exponential functions have a constant common
ratio over equal intervals, and identify the common ratio in tables and
equations;

(b) understand a as the initial value and b as the growth/decay factor
for an exponential function written in standard form, y=a*b^x;

(c) understand the relationship between growth/decay factor and
growth/decay rate;

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a). The standards in this section are generally adapted from
previous standards. Except as noted, they are primarily revised for
clarity and to fit the organizational scheme described below. The major
improvement is that they are organized to improve practicality and
simplicity by grouping all standards related to exponential functions
together, and by following the pattern established in set 2:

1. Understand key features of exponential functions, including how the
variables change together and the meaning of parameters (initial value,
growth/decay factor)
2. Using and converting between multiple representations
3. Rewriting algebraic expressions/equations (this is an advanced skill
and is in CORE PLUS rather than CORE)
4. Solving equations

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to exponential functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related

Draft - January 30th, 2024 156



(d) represent exponential functions using tables, graphs, equations, and
verbal situations; using technology strategically; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples
and local communities; and

(e) solve exponential equations graphically; using technology
strategically.

to exponential functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(d) See (4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards
related to exponential functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to
fit a common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(e) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to exponential functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity. The revised standard
also clarifies that in the CORE standards, students should use
technology to solve exponential equations. (Solving algebraically
requires logarithms, which are in the CORE PLUS standards)

(5) Mathematics algebraic and functional reasoning: modeling with
functions content standards for high school are:

(a) model situations in context, with linear, quadratic, and exponential
functions; this standard should incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local communities by:

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - The
standards in this section are all revised for clarity, but the major
improvement is related to organization. The previous standards did not
include a dedicated section on modeling, instead using a * symbol to
indicate standards that were related to modeling. Since then, modeling
has grown in importance, so having this dedicated section for modeling
helps to modernize the standards. Having a dedicated section also
improves the simplicity for teachers so they can see all modeling
standards at once, rather than having to flip between many pages of
standards.
The CORE PLUS standards also have a modeling section that follows
the same organization as this section, but which focuses on the
additional functions introduced in CORE PLUS,

Draft - January 30th, 2024 157



(a.i) determining if a set of data is best modeled by a linear function,
quadratic function, exponential function, or none, and explaining why;
and

(a.ii) understanding that there are contexts where solutions may not lie
on the curve;

(b) interpret the coefficients in a linear, quadratic, and exponential
model in context; this standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and local communities;

(c) choose and interpret measurement units in formulas, graphs, and
data displays to understand problems and to guide problem-solving in
modeling situations; this standard should incorporate a cultural context
relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and local communities; and

(d) choose a level of accuracy appropriate to limitations on
measurement when reporting quantities in modeling situations; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context relating to Montana
Indigenous Peoples and local communities.

(a.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(5)(a): Revised for clarity and grouped into a dedicated section on
modeling to improve simplicity.

(a.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(5)(a): Revised for clarity and grouped into a dedicated section on
modeling to improve simplicity.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(5)(a): Revised for clarity and grouped into a dedicated section on
modeling to improve simplicity.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(5)(a): Revised for clarity and grouped into a dedicated section on
modeling to improve simplicity.

(d) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(5)(a): Revised for clarity and grouped into a dedicated section on
modeling to improve simplicity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 158



ARM 10.53.520: Montana High School Mathematics Core Data Reasoning And Probability
Standards
Proposed Action: Adopt

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:

There are two major improvements to the Data Reasoning and Probability standards:

1. Focus: In line with modern recommendations around data science, the proposed standards focus on reasoning
with data in context, rather than abstract probability theory. This improves the practicality of the standards.

2. Organization: Concepts in the proposed standards are split between Core and Core Plus as follows:
● Descriptive analyses (representing, describing, and interpreting data) are grouped in the Core standards
● Inferential statistics (statistical estimation and hypothesis testing) are grouped in the Core Plus standards.

Data Summary:

● Total number of standards 2024: 20
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained from previous standards: 19
● Number of standards where the concepts are newly added and were not present in previous standards: 1

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the proposed set of standards. These are entirely underlined in red due to the motion to adopt
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard from the
previous 2011 standards. Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 159



Proposed Repeals and Justifications:

Proposed 2024 – 10.53.520 CORE DATA REASONING
AND PROBABILITY STANDARDS Rationale and Notes

(1) Mathematics data reasoning and probability: quantitative
literacy content standards for high school are:

(a) distinguish between quantitative and categorical data and use
representations and analysis techniques that are appropriate for each
type;

(b) ask a statistical question to determine whether there appears to be
an association between two variables, design and carry out an
investigation, and write a persuasive argument based on the results of
the investigation; and

(c) distinguish between association and causation.

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Although
the previous standards discussed categorical and quantitative data,
there was not an explicit standard about understanding these data
types and distinguishing between them.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - The
previous standards were focused on analysis techniques for data that
was already given. In line with modern data science recommendations,
this standard clarifies that students should participate in the entire
statistical problem-solving process, including asking statistical
questions, collecting data, analyzing data, and reporting results.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Mostly
kept verbatim, with the following changes: Moved to a section on data
literacy (as this is a key aspect of data literacy). Changed "correlation"
to "association", as "correlation" is too narrow of a term (it only refers to
linear association).

(2) Mathematics data reasoning and probability: visualizing,
summarizing, and interpreting data content standards for high
school are:

(a) use technology to organize data, including very large data sets, into
a useful and manageable structure;

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) New concept - With the rise of big data, organizing and "cleaning"
large data sets using technology has become more prominent.
Including this standard modernizes the standards to be in line with
modern recommendations for data science, which improves the
practicality.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 160



(b) represent the distribution of univariate quantitative data with plots on
the real number line, choosing a format most appropriate to the data
set, and representing the distribution of bivariate quantitative data with
a scatter plot;

(c) understand that standard deviation measures the variability of a
data distribution, and calculate standard deviation using technology;

(d) interpret differences in the shape, center, and spread of quantitative
data distributions, in context, accounting for possible effects of outliers
on measures of central tendency and variability;

(e) compare and contrast two or more quantitative data distributions,
using shape, center, and spread in context; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples
and local communities;

(f) analyze the relationship between two quantitative data distributions
in context that have a linear association; this standard should
incorporate a cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples
and local communities by:

(f.i) using technology strategically, represent two quantitative data
distributions on scatter plots;

(f.ii) describing verbally how the variables are related;

(f.iii) using technology to find the least-squares regression line (line of
best) fit for two quantitative variables; and

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Mostly
kept verbatim, but consolidates two previous standards for simplicity.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Although
the previous standards mentioned standard deviation, there was not a
standard that focused on understanding and calculating SD. This
standard clarifies what students should understand about the SD, and
that they should calculate SD using technology rather than by hand.
Including this standard modernizes the standards to be in line with
modern recommendations for data science, which improves the
practicality.

(d) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Kept
nearly verbatim with removal of redundant definitions and use of
appropriate vocabulary.

(e) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Kept
nearly verbatim, with slight revision for clarity.

(f) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised to
focus on linear models in context, which improves the practicality of the
standard.

(f.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
to clarify that technology should be used to make the plot.

(f.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
for clarity.

(f.iii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
to clarify that technology should be used to find the line of best fit.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 161



(f.iv) understanding that the line of best fit minimizes the square of the
residuals; and

(f.v) understanding correlation as a measure of linear association and
using technology, compute the correlation coefficient of a linear
relationship; and

(g) analyze the relationship between two categorical variables in
context; this standard should incorporate a cultural context relating to
Montana Indigenous Peoples and local communities by:

(g.i) summarizing categorical data for two categories in two-way
frequency tables and visual representations;

(g.ii) interpreting relative frequencies for categorical data in context; and

(g.iii) identifying possible associations and trends in categorical data.

(f.iv) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
very slightly for clarity.

(f.v) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
very slightly for clarity.

(g) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - The
related previous standard covered multiple skills in a single standard.
The proposed standards keep the same skills but with the following
improvements:
1. The discrete skills are split into sub-standards (i), (ii), and (iii) under
(g) for clarity.
2. The sub-standards are grouped under this super-ordinate standard
(g) that clarifies the intent of these skills is to analyze categorical data in
context.

(g.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(g): Discrete skills are split into sub-standards for clarity.

(g.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(g): Discrete skills are split into sub-standards for clarity.

(g.iii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(g): Discrete skills are split into sub-standards for clarity.

(3) Mathematics data reasoning and probability: probability
content standards for high school are:

(a) understand the concept of a sample space and describe events as
subsets of a sample space; and

(b) understand the concepts of conditional probability and
independence in context; this standard should incorporate a cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and local communities
by:

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
for clarity, removing unnecessarily-technical language.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Although
most of the proposed standards focus on data science rather than
abstract probability theory, two probability concepts—independence
and conditional probability—were retained, as these are Essential

Draft - January 30th, 2024 162



(b.i) determining whether two events, A and B, are independent by
using two-way tables, tree diagrams, and/or Venn diagrams, and
interpreting the answer in context; and

(b.ii) computing the conditional probability of event A given event B by
using two-way tables, tree diagrams, and/or Venn diagrams, and
interpreting the answer in context.

Concepts that appear in the core of many modern state standards. The
previous standards related to these concepts were repetitive and wordy.
The proposed standards are revised and consolidated to improve
clarity, including removing lots of unnecessarily-technical language. The
proposed standards also emphasize the use of representations, and
that the concepts should be understood in context. These
recommendations bring the standards in line with modern data science
recommendations, which improves the practicality of the standards.

(b.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(3)(b): Revised for clarity and practicality.

(b.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(3)(b): Revised for clarity and practicality

Draft - January 30th, 2024 163



ARM 10.53.521: Montana High School Mathematics Core Geometric Reasoning
Standards
Proposed Action: Adopt

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:

The major improvement to the Geometric Reasoning standards is that they are simplified to focus on Essential Concepts related to geometry.
This is in line with modern state standards and the research from NREL, which de-emphasize learning a long list of geometric facts and techniques
for their own sake in favor of engaging students fully in the geometric reasoning process. Thus, rather than treating transformations, constructions,
and proof as discrete concepts and skills, the proposed standards unify them into a geometric reasoning process of exploring, conjecturing, and
proving. To enable full engagement in the process, the facts and theorems to be explored and proven are streamlined.

Organizationally, the geometry standards are largely grouped in the CORE standards, with only a few of the more-advanced trigonometry standards
in the CORE PLUS standards. This improves the simplicity of the standards by providing guidance to teachers.

Data Summary:

● Total number of standards 2024: 21
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained from previous standards: 20
● Number of standards where the concepts are newly added and were not present in previous standards: 1

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the proposed set of standards. These are entirely underlined in red due to the motion to adopt
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard from the
previous 2011 standards. Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 164



Proposed Repeals and Justifications:
Proposed 2024 – 10.53.521 CORE GEOMETRIC

REASONING STANDARDS
Rationale and Notes

(1) Mathematics geometric reasoning: transformations content
standards for high school are:

(a) represent transformations in the plane using a variety of methods;

(b) define the congruence of two and show that two figures are
congruent by finding a sequence of rigid motions that maps one figure
to the other by:

(b.i) using the definition of congruence in terms of rigid motions to show
that two triangles are congruent if, and only if, corresponding pairs of
sides and corresponding pairs of angles are congruent; and

(b.ii) verifying that two triangles are congruent if, but not only if, the
following groups of corresponding parts are congruent:
angle-side-angle (ASA), side-angle-side (SAS), side-side-side (SSS);
and

(c) define the similarity of two figures in terms of similarity
transformations by:

(c.i) verifying that two triangles are similar if, and only if, corresponding
pairs of sides are proportional and corresponding pairs of angles are
congruent; and

(c.ii) using the properties of similarity transformations to establish the
Angle-Angle (AA) criterion for two triangles to be similar.

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
to focus on representing transformations.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
to clarify that the focus is on using transformations for congruence,
rather than for "transformations" sake.

(b.i) Concept adapted from previous standards - This standard is
retained verbatim.

(b.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
for clarity.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - The
previous standards combined two concepts into a single standard
(definition of similarity, and criteria for triangle similarity). The proposed
standards break these concepts into two separate standards for clarity:
(1)(c) and (1)(c)(i).

(c.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(1)(c). The concept—criteria for triangle similarity—is retained from the
previous standards, but is its own standard in the proposed.

(c.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Kept
nearly verbatim, but clarified that "AA" means "Angle-Angle."

Draft - January 30th, 2024 165



(2) Mathematics geometric reasoning: geometric arguments,
reasoning, and proof content standards for high school are:

(a) investigate, conjecture, prove theorems, and communicate the
proofs in a variety of ways by:

(a.i) proving theorems about lines and angles; theorems include:
vertical angles are congruent; when a transversal crosses parallel lines
alternate interior angles are congruent and corresponding angles are
congruent; and the points on the perpendicular bisector of a line
segment are those equidistant from the segment's endpoints;

(a.ii) proving theorems about triangles; theorems include: the sum of
the measures of the interior angles of a triangle is 180˚; the
Pythagorean Theorem; the base angles of isosceles triangles are
congruent; and a line parallel to one side of a triangle divides the other
two sides proportionally;

(a.iii) proving theorems about parallelograms and other quadrilaterals;
theorems include: necessary and sufficient conditions for rectangles,
parallelograms, rhombi, and kites; and

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is being
proposed with the following rationale and an indication regarding the
origin of the concepts contained within the newly proposed standards
has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - The
previous standards focused on proving theorems, with associated
standards in many different clusters. The proposed standards retain the
important practice of proving theorems, but with the following
improvements:

1. Situates proof within a broader process of geometric reasoning, in
which students investigate figures, make conjectures, and prove them.
This improves the practicality of the standards.
2. Groups all standards related to investigating, conjecturing, and
proving into a dedicated section. This improves the simplicity of the
standards.

(a.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): Moved to a section on geometric arguments for simplicity, and
clarified to include explore and conjecture in addition to proof. The list
of theorems is kept verbatim.

(a.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): Moved to a section on geometric arguments for simplicity, and
clarified to include explore and conjecture in addition to proof. The
standard consolidates two previous standards related to triangle
theorems; the list of theorems is condensed to focus on those that are
important for modeling. This improves the practicality of the standard.

(a.iii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - See
(2)(a): Moved to a section on geometric arguments for simplicity, and
clarified to include explore and conjecture in addition to proof. The
standard is broadened to include all quadrilaterals, with the focus on
theorems that are important for modeling. This improves the practicality
of the standard.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 166



(a.iv) proving theorems about circles; theorems include: the relationship
between central, inscribed, and circumscribed angles; inscribed angles
on a diameter are right angles; and the radius of a circle is
perpendicular to the tangent where the radius intersects the circle.

(a.iv) See (2)(a): Moved to a section on geometric arguments for
simplicity, and clarified to include explore and conjecture in addition to
proof. The list of theorems is kept verbatim.

(3) Mathematics geometric reasoning: measurement, problem
solving, and geometric modeling content standards for high
school are:

(a) use the Pythagorean Theorem to calculate distance in the
coordinate plane;

(b) derive the equation of a circle of a given center and radius using the
Pythagorean Theorem;

(c) use similarity to explore and define the sine ratio, cosine ratio, and
tangent ratio in terms of right triangles by:

(c.i) deriving and applying the trigonometric ratios in special right
triangles; and

(c.ii) using trigonometric ratios and the Pythagorean Theorem to solve
right triangles; and

(d) use geometric shapes, their measures, and their properties to model
objects and use those models to solve problems in context; this
standard should incorporate a cultural context relating to Montana
Indigenous Peoples and local communities by:

(d.i) modeling and solving problems with 2D shapes by using the
perimeter and area of polygons, circles, and composite shapes with
portions removed;

(d.ii) modeling and solving problems with 3D solids by using surface
area and volume of solids, including composite solids and solids with
portions removed; and

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is being
proposed with the following rationale and an indication regarding the
origin of the concepts contained within the newly proposed standards
has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
for clarity.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standard - This standard is kept
verbatim.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
for clarity, including removing unnecessarily technical language.

(c.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Moved
to the geometry standards, revised for clarity.

(c.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Kept
nearly verbatim. The proposed standards remove the restriction that the
triangles should be situated in a context .

(d) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - This is a
consolidation of two previous standards. The standards were repetitive,
so consolidating improves simplicity. The text was also revised for
clarity.

(d.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - This
clarifies that geometric modeling should include composite shapes.

(d.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - This
clarifies that geometric modeling should include composite shapes.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 167



(d.iii) deriving and applying the relationships between the lengths,
perimeters, areas, and volumes of similar figures in relation to their
scale factor.

(d.iii) New Concept - This concept was added based on analysis of
other modern state standards.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 168



ARM 10.53.522: Montana High School Mathematics Core Plus Number and Quantity
Standards
Proposed Action: Adopt

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:

There are two major improvements to the Number & Quantity standards:

1. Simplicity: To improve simplicity, the proposed standards focus only on Essential Concepts related to number
and quantity. In practice, this means that the proposed standards do not include standards related to matrices and
vectors, nor advanced operations with complex numbers. Teachers may still include these concepts in advanced math
courses or to deepen students' understanding of other standards.

2. Organization: the Number & Quantity standards are split between Core and Core Plus as follows:

● Standards related to exponents and scientific notation are grouped in the Core standards
● Standards related to complex numbers are grouped in the Core Plus standards
● Standards related to modeling are grouped in sections specific to modeling in both the Core and Core Plus

standards.

Data Summary:

● Total number of standards 2024: 4
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained from previous standards: 4
● Number of standards where the concepts are newly added and were not present in previous standards: 0

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the proposed set of standards. These are entirely underlined in red due to the motion to adopt
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard from the
previous 2011 standards. Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 169



Proposed Repeals and Justifications:
Proposed 2024 – 10.53.522 CORE PLUS NUMBER

AND QUANTITY STANDARDS
Rationale and Notes

(1) Mathematics number and quantity: numeric reasoning content
standards for high school are:

(a) extend the properties of exponents to rational exponents, including
converting between exponential and radical form; and

(b) understand there is a complex number i such that i² = -1, and every
complex number has the form a + bi with a and b as real numbers by:

(b.i) adding, subtracting, multiplying, and dividing complex numbers;
and

(b.ii) finding the conjugate of a complex number.

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is being
proposed with the following rationale and an indication regarding the
origin of the concepts contained within the newly proposed standards
has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
for clarity; consolidated two standards into one for simplicity.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standard - This standard is
unchanged.

(b.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
for clarity.

(b.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions - Revised
for clarity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 170



ARM 10.53.523: Montana High School Mathematics Core Plus Algebraic and Functional
Reasoning Standards
Proposed Action: Adopt

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:

There are two major improvements to the Number & Quantity standards:

1. Simplicity: We believe algebraic skills are very important. When there are too many standards, students "learn"
algebra purely as rules for symbol manipulation without understanding. To improve students' algebra skills, the
proposed standards are simplified to focus on Essential Concepts and skills, rather than a long list of esoteric
concepts and techniques.

2. Practicality: In the previous standards, there was a lot of overlap between the algebra and the function standards
and the groupings did not match typical instructional units. In the proposed, the algebra and functions standards are
combined to eliminate redundancy. They are organized by a function family (e.g., linear, quadratic, etc) to match
common instructional units, with a common structure across groups. Finally, they are split between Core and Core
Plus to provide further guidance to teachers, as follows:

● Standards related to linear, exponential, and quadratic functions are in the Core standards
● Standards related to polynomials, logarithmic functions, and trigonometric functions are in the Core Plus

standards

Data Summary:

● Total number of standards 2024: 31
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained from previous standards: 29
● Number of standards where the concepts are newly added and were not present in previous standards: 2

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the proposed set of standards. These are entirely underlined in red due to the motion to adopt
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard from the
previous 2011 standards. Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 171



Proposed Repeals and Justifications:
Proposed 2024 – 10.53.523 CORE PLUS ALGEBRAIC

AND FUNCTIONAL REASONING STANDARDS Rationale and Notes
(1) Mathematics algebraic and functional reasoning: functions,
expressions, and inequalities content standards for high school
are:

(a) identify the effect on the graph of replacing 𝑓(𝑥) by 𝑓(𝑥) + 𝑘, 𝑘 · 𝑓(𝑥), 𝑓(𝑘
· 𝑥), and 𝑓(𝑥 + 𝑘) for specific values of k (both positive and negative); and

(b) understand the relationship between a function and its inverse.

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standard– This is kept verbatim.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – Revised
to focus on understanding the meaning of an inverse function, which is
more important for modern students. This improves the practicality of
the standard.

(2) Mathematics algebraic and functional reasoning: polynomial
functions content standards for high school are:

(a) understand polynomials are created by multiplying linear factors;

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
10.53.519(2)(a): The next sets of standards (sets 2, 3, and 4) are
grouped by function family: polynomial, logarithmic & exponential, and
trigonometric. This increases the practicality of the standards because it
matches common instructional units.

Within each family, the standards are generally adapted from previous
standards. Except as noted, they are primarily revised for clarity and to
fit the organizational scheme described below. The major improvement
is that they are arranged with an eye toward simplicity. For each family,
the structure of the standards is repeated:

1. Understand key features of the function family, including how the
function families are defined and the meaning of key features of each
family.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 172



(b) understand that polynomial expressions can be represented in both
factored and standard form, and the specific features of each form by:

(b.i) choosing the form strategically based on given information and
intended use when writing an expression;

(b.ii) converting between factored and standard form symbolically and
using representations (e.g., area model); and

(b.iii) interpreting the relationship between the factored form of the
expression and the zeros of the function;

(c) graph polynomial functions with and without the use of technology,
by identifying zeros, relative maxima and minima, and end behavior;
and

2. Rewriting algebraic expressions/equations in forms that are specific
to each family, with a focus on understanding the affordances of each
form and strategically choosing the form that is best suited to the use.
3. Graphing using technology, including identifying features of the graph
that are specific to each family.
4. Solving equations using techniques that are appropriate to each
family.

(b)New concept– Although multiple forms of polynomials were implicit in
the previous standards, this makes the particular forms explicit. The
standard also fits the common organizational scheme described in
(2)(a) for simplicity.

(b.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to polynomial functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(b.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to polynomial functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(b.iii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to polynomial functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to polynomial functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.
The revised standard also emphasizes that students should use
technology for graphing, and to clarify the particular features of graphs
that are relevant to polynomial functions.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 173



(d) solve quadratic equations that have complex solutions, and
understand why the solutions form a conjugate pair.

(d) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(2)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to polynomial functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(3) Mathematics algebraic and functional reasoning: exponential
and logarithmic functions content standards for high school are:

(a) understand logarithmic functions as the inverse of exponential
functions;

(b) understand why e is defined as the natural base;

(c) understand that exponential and logarithmic functions can be
represented using multiple forms by:

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(2)(a). The standards in this section are generally adapted from
previous standards. Except as noted, they are primarily revised for
clarity and to fit the organizational scheme described below. The major
improvement is that they are organized to improve practicality and
simplicity by grouping all standards related to exponential and
logarithmic standards together, and by following the pattern established
in set 2:

1. Understand key features of logarithmic and exponential functions.
2. Rewriting algebraic expressions/equations.
3. Graphing using technology.
4. Solving equations.

ALSO: Exponential functions are introduced in the CORE standards. In
CORE PLUS, logarithmic functions are introduced, enabling more
advanced operations with exponential functions.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to exponential and logarithmic functions for practicality. Revised for
clarity and to fit a common organizational scheme for simplicity. The
revised standard also specifies the particular algebraic forms of
logarithmic functions that students should know.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related

Draft - January 30th, 2024 174



(c.i) expressing exponential functions in the form f(x)=ab^x and
f(x)=Pe^(rt); and

(c.ii) expressing logarithmic functions in base 10 and base e;

(d) graph logarithmic and exponential functions with and without the
use of technology by identifying intercepts, asymptotes, and end
behavior; and

(e) solve exponential and logarithmic equations using inverse
operations with and without the use of technology.

to exponential and logarithmic functions for practicality. Revised for
clarity and to fit a common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to exponential and logarithmic functions for practicality. Revised for
clarity and to fit a common organizational scheme for simplicity. The
revised standard also specifies the particular algebraic forms of
exponential functions that students should know.

(c.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to exponential and logarithmic functions for practicality. Revised for
clarity and to fit a common organizational scheme for simplicity.The
revised standard also specifies the particular algebraic forms of
logarithmic functions that students should know.

(d) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to exponential and logarithmic functions for practicality. Revised for
clarity and to fit a common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(e) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – The
revised standard also emphasizes that students should experience
using technology for graphing, and to clarify the particular features of
graphs that are relevant to exponential and logarithmic functions."
Solving equations is a key part of working with exponential and
logarithmic functions, but this was not explicit in the previous standards.
The proposed standard also clarifies that students should use both
algebra and technology to solve exponential and logarithmic equations.

(4) Mathematics algebraic and functional reasoning: trigonometric
functions content standards for high school are:

(a) understand how the unit circle in the coordinate plane enables the
extension of trigonometric functions to all real numbers by:

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – "See
(2)(a). The standards in this section are generally adapted from

Draft - January 30th, 2024 175



(a.i) defining the sine and cosine functions in terms of the unit circle;
and

(a.ii) defining the tangent, cotangent, secant, and cosecant functions in
terms of sin and cosine;

(b) understand and use the radian measure of an angle, and convert
between degree and radian measures;

(c) graph trigonometric functions with and without the use of technology
by:

(c.i) graphing sine and cosine functions, identifying period, midline, and
amplitude; and

previous standards. Except as noted, they are primarily revised for
clarity and to fit the organizational scheme described below. The major
improvement is that they are organized to improve practicality and
simplicity by grouping all standards related to trigonometric functions
together, and by following the pattern established in set 2:

1. Understand key features of trigonometric functions.
2. Rewriting algebraic expressions/equations.
3. Graphing using technology.
4. Solving equations.

(a.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to trigonometric functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(a.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to trigonometric functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to trigonometric functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to trigonometric functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity. The revised standard
also emphasizes that students should experience using technology for
graphing.

(c.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to trigonometric functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity.
The revised standard also clarifies the particular features of graphs that
are relevant to sine and cosine functions.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 176



(c.ii) graphing tangent functions, identifying period and asymptotes;

(d) solve trigonometric equations with and without the use of
technology; and

(e) apply the Law of Sines and the Law of Cosines to find unknown
measurements in non-right triangles.

(c.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to trigonometric functions for practicality. Revised for clarity and to fit a
common organizational scheme for simplicity. The revised standard
also clarifies the particular features of graphs that are relevant to
tangent functions.

(d) New concept - Solving equations is a key part of working with
trigonometric functions, but this was not explicit in the previous
standards. The proposed standard also clarifies that students should
experience using technology to solve trigonometric equations.

(e) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(4)(a): grouped into a common section with all other standards related
to trigonometric functions for practicality and to fit a common
organizational scheme for simplicity. Revised only very slightly for
clarity (removed "right triangles", as the Laws are only needed for
non-right triangles).

(5) Mathematics algebraic and functional reasoning: modeling
content standards for high school are:

(a) model situations in context with polynomial, exponential, logarithmic,
and trigonometric functions; this standard should incorporate a cultural
context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and local communities
by:

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
10.53.519(5)(a). The standards in this section are all revised for clarity,
but the major improvement is related to organization. The previous
standards did not include a dedicated section on modeling, instead
using a * symbol to indicate standards that were related to modeling.
Since then, modeling has grown in importance, so having this
dedicated section for modeling helps to modernize the standards.
Having a dedicated section also improves the simplicity for teachers so
they can see all modeling standards at once, rather than having to flip
between many pages of standards.

The standards in this section follow the same organization as the
modeling standards in the CORE (10.53.519(5)), however, these

Draft - January 30th, 2024 177



(a.i) determining if a set of data is best modeled by a polynomial,
exponential, logarithmic, or trigonometric function or none, and
explaining why; and

(a.ii) understanding that there are contexts where solutions may not lie
on the curve;

(b) interpret the coefficients in a polynomial, exponential, logarithmic,
and trigonometric model in context; this standard should incorporate a
cultural context relating to Montana Indigenous Peoples and local
communities;

(c) use and interpret units correctly in modeling situations; and

(d) choose a level of accuracy appropriate to limitations on
measurement when reporting quantities in modeling situations.

standards focus on modeling using the additional function families
introduced in CORE PLUS (polynomials, logarithmic & exponential, and
trigonometric).

(a.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(5)(a): Revised for clarity and grouped into a dedicated section on
modeling to improve simplicity.

(a.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(5)(a): Revised for clarity and grouped into a dedicated section on
modeling to improve simplicity.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(5)(a): Revised for clarity and grouped into a dedicated section on
modeling to improve simplicity.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(5)(a): Revised for clarity and grouped into a dedicated section on
modeling to improve simplicity.

(d) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(5)(a): Revised for clarity and grouped into a dedicated section on
modeling to improve simplicity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 178



ARM 10.53.524: Montana High School Mathematics Core Plus Data Reasoning Standards
Proposed Action: Adopt

Summary of Proposed Changes:

Package Overview Statement from the Task Force:

There are two major improvements to the Data Reasoning standards:

1. Focus: In line with modern recommendations around data science, the proposed standards focus on reasoning
with data in context, rather than abstract probability theory. This improves the practicality of the standards.

2. Organization: Concepts in the proposed standards are split between Core and Core Plus as follows:
● Descriptive analyses (representing, describing, and interpreting data) are grouped in the Core standards
● Inferential statistics (statistical estimation and hypothesis testing) are grouped in the Core Plus standards.

Data Summary:

● Total number of standards 2024: 21
● Number of standards where concepts present were retained from previous standards: 16
● Number of standards where the concepts are newly added and were not present in previous standards: 5

Be advised: The tables provided for the 9-12 standards are constructed in a different fashion than the K-8 standards proposals. You will notice that
there are two columns. The left hand column shows the proposed set of standards. These are entirely underlined in red due to the motion to adopt
the entire set of standards. The right hand column provides a rationale for each item. This rationale contains the presence of each standard from the
previous 2011 standards. Each designation is accompanied by a justification of the committee’s recommendation.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 179



Proposed Repeals and Justifications:

Proposed 2024 – 10.53.524 CORE PLUS DATA AND
REASONING STANDARDS Rationale and Notes

(1) Mathematics data reasoning and probability: normal
distribution content standards for high school are:

(a) determine if a data set is normally distributed

(b) use technology to find the mean and standard deviation of a
normally distributed data set and apply the empirical rule to estimate
population percentages; and

(c) estimate areas under a normal curve to solve problems in context,
using calculators, spreadsheets, and tables as appropriate.

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – The See
(1)(b): Revised for clarity and practicality

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – The
concept of modeling data with a normal distribution is carried from the
previous standards. The proposed standards make two improvements:
(1) The concept is split into three standards to clarify precisely what
students are expected to do. (2) The proposed standards specify that
students should use technology for fitting and interacting with normal
distributions. This improves the practicality for modern students.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – The See
(1)(a): Revised for clarity and practicality

(2) Mathematics data reasoning and probability: experimental
design content standards for high school are:

(a) describe the purposes of and differences among sample surveys,
experiments, and observational studies and explain how randomization
relates to each;

(b) describe differences between randomly selecting samples and
randomly assigning subjects to experimental treatment groups in terms
of inferences drawn regarding a population versus regarding cause and
effect by:

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – This
standard is retained verbatim.

(b) New concept - Additional focus on experiment design and data
collection, as these are key components of data literacy. This improves
the practicality of the standards for students, enabling them to interpret
data in the world.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 180



(b.i) explaining the consequences, due to uncontrolled variables, of
non-randomized assignment of subjects to groups in experiments; and

(b.ii) evaluating where bias, including sampling, response, or
nonresponse bias, may occur in surveys, and whether results are
representative of the population of interest;

(c) evaluate the effect of sample size on the expected variability in the
sampling distribution of a sample statistic by:

(c.i) simulating a sampling distribution of sample means from a
population with a known distribution, observing the effect of the sample
size on the variability; and

(c.ii) demonstrating that the standard deviation of each simulated
sampling distribution is the known standard deviation of the population
divided by the square root of the sample size.

(b.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(2)(b): stronger focus on data literacy to improve practicality.

(b.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(2)(b): stronger focus on data literacy to improve practicality.

(c) New concept - As with (2)(b), this standard is included to strengthen
students' data literacy to improve the practicality of the standards.
Specifically, these standards and the sub-standards focus on
understanding how sample size affects uncertainty when making
inferences beyond the sample.

(c.i) New concept - See (2)(c): stronger focus on data literacy to
improve practicality.

(c.ii) New concept - See (2)(c): stronger focus on data literacy to
improve practicality.

(3) Mathematics data reasoning and probability: statistical
inference using simulation content standards for high school are:

(a) distinguish between a statistic and a parameter and use statistical
processes to make inferences about population parameters based on
statistics from random samples from that population;

(b) estimate a population parameter from a representative sample by:

The following standards are proposed for adoption. Each item is
being proposed with the following rationale and an indication
regarding the origin of the concepts contained within the newly
proposed standards has been given.

(a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – Revised
slightly to focus on the activity of making inferences.

(b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – This
standard and its sub-standards focus on the process of statistical
estimation, which is a HUGE concept in modern data science. While
statistical estimation was included in the previous standards, it tended
to get lost because it was mentioned in just one small standard. In the
proposed standards, this concept is elaborated to underscore its
importance and clarify precisely what students should understand and
be able to do.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 181



(b.i) understanding why the sample statistic is the best estimate for the
associated population parameter;

(b.ii) understanding that sampling variability introduces uncertainty in
the estimate, and account for the uncertainty with a confidence interval
by:

(b.ii.A) using resampling with replacement from an observed sample to
produce a sampling distribution;

(b.ii.B) verifying that a sampling distribution is centered at the
population mean and approximately normal if the sample size is large
enough;

(b.ii.C) verify that 95% of sample means are within two standard
deviations of the sampling distribution from the population mean; and

(b.ii.D) creating and interpreting a 95% confidence interval based on an
observed mean from a sampling distribution;

(c) use data from a randomized experiment to test the hypothesis that
two groups are equal by:

(b.i) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(b): The standards related to statistical estimation are revised and
expanded to underscore the importance of the concept and improve
clarity.

(b.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(b): The standards related to statistical estimation are revised and
expanded to underscore the importance of the concept and improve
clarity.

(b.ii.a) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(b): The standards related to statistical estimation are revised and
expanded to underscore the importance of the concept and improve
clarity.

(b.ii.b) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(b): The standards related to statistical estimation are revised and
expanded to underscore the importance of the concept and improve
clarity.

(b.ii.c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(b): The standards related to statistical estimation are revised and
expanded to underscore the importance of the concept and improve
clarity.

(b.ii.d) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(b): The standards related to statistical estimation are revised and
expanded to underscore the importance of the concept and improve
clarity.

(c) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – Similar to
(3)(b), the concept of hypothesis testing is important in modern data
science. While hypothesis testing was included in the previous
standards, it tended to get lost because it was mentioned in just one
small standard. In the proposed standards, this concept is elaborated to
underscore its importance and to clarify precisely what students should
understand and be able to do.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 182



(c.i) interpreting the difference or ratio between the group means as the
observed effect between the groups; and

(c.ii) understanding that an observed effect may be due to
randomization and using a randomization test (repeatedly reshuffling
the observed data into new groups) to determine the probability that an
observed effect is due to randomization alone.

(c.i) New concept – See (3)(c): The standards related to hypothesis
testing are revised and expanded to underscore the importance of the
concept and improve clarity.

(c.ii) Concept adapted from previous standards with revisions – See
(3)(c): The standards related to hypothesis testing are revised and
expanded to underscore the importance of the concept and improve
clarity.

Draft - January 30th, 2024 183



Appendices:

Appendix A: Math Standards Revision Task Force Members
Task Force Member Name Location Assigned Roles

Nicole Casper Kalispell K-2 Development

Shay Kidd Dillon K-2 Development, Vertical
Alignment, Mathematical Practices

Andrea Meiers Lockwood K-2 Development

Thomas Redmon Hamilton K-2 Development, Mathematical
Practices

Carla Swenson Glasgow K-2 Development

Lei-Anna Bertelsen Bozeman 3-5 Development

Elizabeth Burroughs Bozeman 3-5 Development

Kris Gardner Missoula 3-5 Development

Melissa Shiffer Lambert 3-5 Development

Tina Blair Anaconda 6-8 Development, Vertical
Alignment

Jennifer Brackney Billings 6-8 Development

Jennifer Luebeck Bozeman 6-8 Development, Mathematical
Practices

Matt Roscoe Missoula 6-8 Development

Cliff Bara Troy 9-12 Development

Beth Cooney Harlowton 9-12 Development

Deanne Gemmil Billings 9-12 Development

Marisa Graybill Helena 9-12 Development

Janice Novotny Big Timber 9-12 Development

Frederick Peck Missoula 9-12 Development

Draft - January 30th, 2024 184



Appendix B: Math Standards Revision Tribal Panel Members

Panel Member Name

Roger MadPlume

Jacie Jeffers

Karry Woodard

Appendix C: Math Standards Revision Review Team Members

Review Team Member Name Location Assigned Role

Becky Berg Billings K-5 Review

Jenny Combs Laurel K-5 Review

Kayla Ryan Helena K-5 Review

Amy Jones Forsyth K-5 Review

Pat Baltzley Gardiner 6-12 Review

Sharon Carroll 6-12 Review

Lisa Scott 6-12 Review

Draft - January 30th, 2024 185



Appendix D: Math Standards Revision Negotiated Rulemaking
Committee

NRC Member Name Location Assigned Representation
Role

Teri Dierenfield Kalispell K-12 Teacher, Taxpayer

June Ellestad Lolo Retired University Faculty,
Taxpayer

Carrie Fisher Belgrade School District Business Official,
Taxpayer

Robert Griffith Great Falls Retired K-12 Teacher, Taxpayer

Katie McCrea Pryor K-12 Teacher, Taxpayer

Kath Milodragovich Butte School District Trustee, K-12
Teacher, Parent, Taxpayer

Dr. Julie Murgel Helena Office of Public Instruction,
Taxpayer

Dr. Chris Olszewski Billings K-12 School Administrator,
Taxpayer

Dr. Lynne Rider Kalispell K-12 Teacher, Taxpayer

Brooke Taylor Billings K-12 Teachers, Parent, Taxpayer

Brooke Tuft Whitefish Grandparent, Taxpayer

Draft - January 30th, 2024 186



Appendix E: Montana Office of Public Instruction Project
Leadership

Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent of Public Instruction
Christy Mock-Stutz, Assistant Superintendent
Julie Murgel, Chief Operating Officer
Marie Judisch, Teaching and Learning Senior Manager
Aimee Konzen, Professional Learning Manager
Katrina Engeldrum, Mathematics Instructional Coordinator, Mathematics Standards Revision
Project Lead
Michelle McCarthy, Science Instructional Coordinator, Standards Revision Process Consultant and
Project Support
Stephanie Swigart, English Language Arts and Literacy Specialist, Standards Revision Process
Consultant and Project Support
Matthew Bell, American Indian Culture and Language Immersion Specialist, Consultant, and Project
Development Support
Sheri Harlow, Administrative Support

Draft - January 30th, 2024 187



Appendix F: High School Standards Crosswalk
The following table presents a crosswalk mapping between the 2024 proposed and 2011 standards.

10.53.518 - Core Numeric Reasoning Standards

2024 Arm Item Code 2011 Arm Item Code

10.53.518 - 1.a NEW STANDARD

10.53.518 - 1.b NEW STANDARD

10.53.518 - 1.c Adapted from:
10.53.512 - 1.c

10.53.519 - Core Algebraic and Functional Reasoning Standards

2024 Arm Item Code 2011 Arm Item Code

10.53.519 - 1.a Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.a

10.53.519 - 1.b Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.a, 10.53.514 - 1.d

10.53.519 - 1.c Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 3.b

10.53.519 - 1.c.i NEW STANDARD

10.53.519 - 1.c.ii Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.i

10.53.519 - 1.d Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.a, 10.53.514 - 1.b, 10.53.514 - 1.e

10.53.519 - 1.e Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 3.c, 10.53.514 - 1.e

10.53.519 - 1.f Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 4.j

10.53.519 - 1.g Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.a , 10.53.513 - 1.b

10.53.519 - 1.h Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 3.d

10.53.519 - 2.a Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.f, 10.53.514 - 3.a

10.53.519 - 2.b Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.f, 10.53.517 - 1.g

10.53.519 - 2.c Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 3.b, 10.53.514 - 1.d
10.53.514 - 1.g

10.53.519 - 2.c.i Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.g

10.53.519 - 2.c.ii Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.i

10.53.519 - 2.c.iii Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 4.e

10.53.519 - 2.d Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.h

Draft - January 30th, 2024 188



10.53.519 - 2.d.i NEW STANDARD

10.53.519 - 2.d.ii Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.b

10.53.519 - 2.d.iii NEW STANDARD

10.53.519 - 2.d.iv NEW STANDARD

10.53.519 - 2.d.v NEW STANDARD

10.53.519 - 2.e Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 4.k, 10.53.513 - 4.l

10.53.519 - 2.f Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 4.e, 10.53.513 - 4.f
10.53.513 - 4.k

10.53.519 - 3.a Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 3.a, 10.53.514 - 3.c

10.53.519 - 3.b Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.c, 10.53.514 - 1.g
10.53.514 - 1.h

10.53.519 - 3.c Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.c, 10.53.514 - 1.h

10.53.519 - 3.c.i Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.c

10.53.519 - 3.c.ii Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.b, 10.53.513 - 1.c

10.53.519 - 3.c.iii Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.c

10.53.519 - 3.c.iv Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.c

10.53.519 - 3.d Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 4.d

10.53.519 - 4.a Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 3.a, 10.53.514 - 3.b

10.53.519 - 4.b Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.h

10.53.519 - 4.c Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.h, 10.53.513 - 1.c

10.53.519 - 4.d Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.g, 10.53.514 - 1.h, 10.53.514 - 3.b

10.53.519 - 4.e Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 3.a

10.53.519 - 5.a Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 2.a, 10.53.514 - 3.e, ,

10.53.519 - 5.a.i Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 3.a

10.53.519 - 5.a.ii Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 4.l

10.53.519 - 5.b Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.a, 10.53.514 - 1.d

10.53.519 - 5.c Adapted from: 10.53.512 - 2.a

10.53.519 - 5.d Adapted from: 10.53.512 - 2.c

Draft - January 30th, 2024 189



10.53.520 - Core Data Reasoning and Probability Standards

2024 Arm Item Code 2011 Arm Item Code

10.53.520 - 1.a Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.f

10.53.520 - 1.b Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.e

10.53.520 - 1.c Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.i

10.53.520 - 2.a NEW STANDARD

10.53.520 - 2.b Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.a

10.53.520 - 2.c Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.b

10.53.520 - 2.d Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.c

10.53.520 - 2.e Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.b

10.53.520 - 2.f Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.f, 10.53.517 - 1.g

10.53.520 - 2.f.i Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.f

10.53.520 - 2.f.ii Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.f

10.53.520 - 2.f.iii Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.h

10.53.520 - 2.f.iv Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.h

10.53.520 - 2.f.v Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.h

10.53.520 - 2.g Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.e

10.53.520 - 2.g.i Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.e, 10.53.517 - 3.d

10.53.520 - 2.g.ii Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.e

10.53.520 - 2.g.ii Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.e

10.53.520 - 3.a Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 3.a

10.53.520 - 3.b Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 3.b, 10.53.517 - 3.c, 10.53.517 - 3.e

10.53.520 - 3.b.i Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 3.b, 10.53.517 - 3.d

10.53.520 - 3.b.ii Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 3.c, 10.53.517 - 3.d, 10.53.517 - 3.f

Draft - January 30th, 2024 190



10.53.521 - Core Geometric Reasoning Standards

2024 Arm Item Code 2011 Arm Item Code

10.53.521 - 1.a Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 1.b, 10.53.516 - 1.e, 10.53.516 - 2.e

10.53.521 - 1.b Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 1.c, 10.53.516 - 1.f

10.53.521 - 1.b.i Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 1.f, 10.53.516 - 1.h

10.53.521 - 1.b.ii Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 1.h

10.53.521 - 1.c Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 1.b, 10.53.516 - 1.e, 10.53.516 - 2.b

10.53.521 - 1.c.i Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 2.b, 10.53.516 - 2.e

10.53.521 - 1.c.ii Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 2.c

10.53.521 - 2.a Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 1.i, 10.53.516 - 1.k, 10.53.516 - 1.l

10.53.521 - 2.a.i Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 1.i

10.53.521 - 2.a.ii Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 2.d, 10.53.516 - 1.j

10.53.521 - 2.a.iii Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 1.k

10.53.521 - 2.a.iv Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 3.b

10.53.521 - 3.a Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 4.g

10.53.521 - 3.b Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 4.a

10.53.521 - 3.c Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 2.f

10.53.521 - 3.c.i Adapted from: 10.53.515 - 4.c

10.53.521 - 3.c.ii Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 2.h

10.53.521 - 3.d Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 5.c, 10.53.516 - 6.c

10.53.521 - 3.d.i Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 6.c

10.53.521 - 3.d.ii Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 5.c, 10.53.516 - 6.a

10.53.521 - 3.d.iii NEW STANDARD

Draft - January 30th, 2024 191



10.53.522 - Core Plus Number and Quantity Standards

2024 Arm Item Code 2011 Arm Item Code

10.53.522 - 1.a Adapted from: 10.53.512 - 1.a, 10.53.512 - 1.b, 10.53.512 - 3.b

10.53.522 - 1.b Adapted from: 10.53.512 - 3.a

10.53.522 - 1.b.i Adapted from: 10.53.512 - 3.a, 10.53.512 - 3.b

10.53.522 - 1.b.ii Adapted from: 10.53.512 - 3.c

10.53.523 - Core Plus Algebraic and Functional Reasoning Standards

2024 Arm Item Code 2011 Arm Item Code

10.53.523 - 1.a Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 2.c

10.53.523 - 1.b Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 2.d

10.53.523 - 2.a Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 1.a

10.53.523 - 2.b NEW STANDARD

10.53.523 - 2.b.i Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.h

10.53.523 - 2.b.ii Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.h, 10.53.513 - 1.b

10.53.523 - 2.b.iii Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.h

10.53.523 - 2.c Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.d, 10.53.514 - 1.g

10.53.523 - 2.d Adapted from: 10.53.512 - 3.g

10.53.523 - 3.a Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 2.e

10.53.523 - 3.b Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 3.d

10.53.523 - 3.c Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 3.d

10.53.523 - 3.c.i Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 3.d

10.53.523 - 3.c.ii Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 3.d

10.53.523 - 3.d Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.d, 10.53.514 - 1.g

10.53.523 - 3.e Adapted from: 10.53.515 - 2.e

10.53.523 - 4.a Adapted from: 10.53.515 - 4.b

10.53.523 - 4.a.i Adapted from: 10.53.515 - 4.b

10.53.523 - 4.a.ii Adapted from: 10.53.515 - 4.h, 10.53.515 - 4.i

Draft - January 30th, 2024 192



10.53.523 - 4.b Adapted from: 10.53.515 - 4.a, 10.53.516 - 3.e

10.53.523 - 4.c Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.d

10.53.523 - 4.c.i Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.d

10.53.523 - 4.c.ii Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.d

10.53.523 - 4.d NEW STANDARD

10.53.523 - 4.e Adapted from: 10.53.516 - 2.j,10.53.516 - 2.k

10.53.523 - 5.a Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 2.a, 10.53.515 - 4.e

10.53.523 - 5.a.i Adapted from: 10.53.515 - 3.a, 10.53.515 - 3.e, 10.53.515 - 4.e

10.53.523 - 5.a.ii Adapted from: 10.53.513 - 3.c, 10.53.513 - 4.l

10.53.523 - 5.b Adapted from: 10.53.514 - 1.d, 10.53.514 - 4.e

10.53.523 - 5.c Adapted from: 10.53.512 - 2.a

10.53.523 - 5.d Adapted from: 10.53.512 - 2.b, 10.53.512 - 2.c

10.53.524 - Core Plus Data Reasoning Standards

2024 Arm Item Code 2011 Arm Item Code

10.53.524 - 1.a Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.d

10.53.524 - 1.b Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.d

10.53.524 - 1.c Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 1.d

10.53.524 - 2.a Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.c

10.53.524 - 2.b NEW STANDARD

10.53.524 - 2.b.i Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.f

10.53.524 - 2.b.ii Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.f

10.53.524 - 2.c NEW STANDARD

10.53.524 - 2.c.i NEW STANDARD

10.53.524 - 2.c.ii NEW STANDARD

10.53.524 - 3.a Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.a

10.53.524 - 3.b Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.a, 10.53.517 - 2.d

10.53.524 - 3.b.i Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.d

Draft - January 30th, 2024 193



10.53.524 - 3.b.ii Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.d

10.53.524 - 3.b.ii.A Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.d

10.53.524 - 3.b.ii.B Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.d

10.53.524 - 3.b.ii.C Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.d

10.53.524 - 3.b.ii.D Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.d

10.53.524 - 3.c Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.e

10.53.524 - 3.c.i NEW STANDARD

10.53.524 - 3.c.ii Adapted from: 10.53.517 - 2.c

Draft - January 30th, 2024 194



Appendix G: Guidance Documents

Summary:
Each party participating in the math standards revisions agree - guidance is necessary. Therefore, the work
has begun to develop these documents and will continue to progress as needs arise. Many documents have
been proposed, from guidance on IEFA integration to definitions and examples. It is the current intention to
create documents that support every partner group in the instruction of Montana Mathematics Students
including families, support staff, educators, and administrators. As documents are created, they will be added
to the list below.

Guidance Documents List:
Please note that, as of January 30th, 2024, the revisions have not been approved by the Board of Public
Education. Therefore, the types of documents that can be created at this time are limited. This list is not
representative of the robust list that is in planning.

Navigating the Montana Math Standards - Terms and Definitions (In Progress Draft)

As the Board of Public Education considers the proposed standards, it may be helpful to know what types of
guidance documents are being considered for creation. The list provided below gives some insight into the
documents being discussed at this time. Each has been proposed at one point or another by the Task Force,
NRC members, OPI Staff, or the Superintendent.

Examples of proposed guidance include:
1. Math Literacy Guide
2. Competency Matrix
3. Pathways for High School and Beyond
4. Understanding the Mathematical Practices
5. Math Standards Gudiance Documents
6. Cultural Connections Guidance - IEFA and Community
7. Connecting Math to Home
8. Vertical Alignment Documents
9. Examples and Elaborations - Standard by Standard
10. Grade-Appropriate Expectations
11. Utilizing Appropriate Data Sources without Perpetuating Harmful Stereotypes
12. Example Lessons
13. Financial Literacy in the Math Standards
14. And More!

Draft - January 30th, 2024 195

https://acrobat.adobe.com/link/review?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:4640871c-a2fc-3a18-b54e-c048df4d07e4


1 

Economic Impact Statement 
Administrative Rule of Montana,  

Chapter 53: Math Content Standards 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction - April 2024 



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     2 

Table of Contents 
Executive Summary ........................................................................................................ 2 
Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 3 
Economic Impact Statement Required Elements ......................................................... 4 
a) Affected Classes of Persons ......................................................................................... 4 
b) Economic Impact .......................................................................................................... 4 
Cost to State Agencies ...................................................................................................... 5 
c) Costs and Benefits of the Proposed Rule ..................................................................... 5 
d) Less Costly or Less Intrusive Methods ......................................................................... 5 
e) Selection of Proposed Rule .......................................................................................... 6 
f) Efficient Allocation of Public and Private Resources...................................................... 6 
Conclusion ....................................................................................................................... 6 
Appendix A – Economic Impact Survey Responses ......................................................... 7 
Appendix B: Math Standards Revision Task Force Members ......................................... 13 
Appendix C: Math Standards Revision Review Team Members .................................... 14 
Appendix D: Math Standards Revision Negotiated Rulemaking Committee ................... 15 
Appendix E: Montana Office of Public Instruction Project Leadership ............................ 15 



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     3 

Executive Summary 

In late 2022, the Superintendent of Public Instruction, with approval from the Montana Board of 
Public Education (BPE), initiated a review of the Montana Mathematics Standards outlined in 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) Title 10, Chapter 53, Subchapter 5, the Mathematics 
Content Standards. This review aimed to ensure that Montana's public schools maintain 
rigorous academic standards for all students in the state. The overarching goal is to provide 
Montana students and educators with updated and comprehensive mathematics standards that 
effectively guide instruction and prepare students for life beyond the classroom.  

The content standards, as part of the accreditation standards, must be adopted by the BPE 
upon the recommendation of the Superintendent developed through the negotiated rulemaking 
process, as is stated in  §20-7-101, MCA. The agency has created this economic impact 
statement in consultation with the NRC under the provisions of § 2-4-405, MCA.  

The OPI surveyed school personnel and stakeholders about the probable economic impact of 
the proposed rule amendments for ARM 10.53.5. The survey was distributed through the 
monthly OPI Compass newsletter sent to 18,116 stakeholders in the OPI bulk email system, as 
well as in a press release posted on March 13, 2024. Upon receiving too few stakeholder 
responses by the first due date, it was also sent directly to superintendents and school board 
trustees through a listserve and was left open for an additional three weeks. The OPI partnered 
with School Administrators of Montana (SAM) for distribution; they also sent the survey out in 
their weekly message to school leaders. The agency ultimately received 20 submissions to the 
economic impact survey. 

Introduction 

The Superintendent and OPI staff initiated a Math Standards Revision Task Force, comprising 
Development and Review Teams, listed in Appendix B and Appendix C. The Development 
Team proposed revisions based on research and the Superintendent’s vision, while the Review 
Team provided feedback. Members from the Development Team finalized proposed standards 
for submission to the Superintendent and the Negotiated Rulemaking Committee (NRC). The 
OPI facilitated virtual and in-person meetings, working collaboratively on digital documents.  

The agency organized the work of the task force, presented its rationale to the NRC, and sought 
feedback from the Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education (MACIE) regarding the 
integration of Indian Education for All. 

The NRC members, found in Appendix D, considered the adoptions from the task force both in 
virtual and in-person meetings. The committee worked diligently to ensure consistency of the 
format, vocabulary, and organization throughout the standards. 

The rules proposals are listed below with a summary of changes: 

- 10.53.1501- Mathematical Practices for Grades K-12 - Amend:

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/Subchapterhome.asp?scn=10%2E53.5
https://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0070/part_0010/section_0010/0200-0070-0010-0010.html
https://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/title_0020/chapter_0040/part_0040/section_0050/0020-0040-0040-0050.html


Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     4 

- Repeal all standards for revisions, update language to align with the National
Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP), and inclusion of Cultural
Connections

- 10.53.1502- 10.53.1510 - Mathematical Standards for Grades K-8 - Amend:
- Clarify language, move examples and elaborations to guidance documents,

vertical alignment.
- 10.53.1511- High School Symbols - Amend:

- Update to align with the intent of the task force on the revisions of high school
standards

- 10.53.512 - 10.53.517 - High School Content Standards - Repeal:
- Due to the vast amount of reorganization of the high school standards, it was

cleaner to repeal the current high school standards and adopt new standards
- 10.53.518-10.53.521 - High School CORE Content Standards - Adopt:

- Foundational standards that all Montana students should know and be able to do
upon graduation from High School

- 10.53.522-10.53.524 - High School CORE PLUS Content Standards - Adopt:
- Additional standards that all Montana students can pursue to prepare for

postsecondary education and careers.

Economic Impact Statement Required Elements  
As required by § 20-7-101(1), MCA, the Montana Superintendent of Public Instruction, has 
prepared this economic impact statement in consultation with the NRC under the provisions of § 
2-4-405, MCA. Each of the elements required to be addressed in the economic impact
statement is outlined below.

a) Affected Classes of Persons
Describe the classes of persons who will be affected by the proposed rule, including  
classes that will bear the costs of the proposed rule and classes that will benefit from the 
proposed rule. Refer to § 2‐4‐ 405 (2)(a), MCA. 

The classes of persons affected by the rule changes include individuals from the following 
groups: school district trustees, K-12 school administrators, K-12 teachers - particularly Math  
Educators, school counselors, school librarians, school clerks/business officials, parents, and 
taxpayers.  

Costs associated with the rule changes are the responsibility of local school districts. 

The beneficiaries of the rule changes are trustees, administrators, teachers, and students of 
local school districts, as well as Montana communities served by accredited schools.   

b) Economic Impact
Describe the probable economic impact of the proposed rule upon affected classes of 



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     5 

persons, including but not limited to providers of services under contracts with the state  
and affected small businesses, and quantify, to the extent practicable, that impact. Refer 
to § 2‐4405 (2)(b), MCA.  

The OPI surveyed school personnel and stakeholders about the probable economic impact of 
the proposed amendments for the Math Content Standards with a single survey, sent in multiple 
manners as listed previously. The 20 individuals who responded comprised of teachers, 
superintendents, building principals, district curriculum directors, a parent, a taxpayer, and a 
technology integration specialist.  

The summary results of the surveys are shown in Appendix A. 

Cost to State Agencies 
Describe and estimate the probable costs to the agency and any other agency of the 
implementation and enforcement of the proposed rule and any anticipated effect on state 
revenue. Refer to § 2‐4‐ 405 (2)(c), MCA 

The Office of Public Instruction (OPI), per § 20-7-101, MCA, has incurred costs associated with 
the standards revision task force and the negotiated rulemaking process. Convening the task 
force for in-person writing days costs the agency approximately $11,500. The negotiated 
rulemaking process costs approximately $15,000, including contracting with a facilitator and 
convening the NRC. The OPI anticipates additional costs associated with implementing the 
proposed rule changes, including the creation of guidance documents with the expertise of task 
force members, estimated at $10,000. This brings the total agency cost to about $45,500, not 
including the time that is absorbed by the staff member’s job responsibilities. 

The BPE is responsible for filing fees of notices of public hearing of proposed rule changes and 
publication fees of notices of adoption and amendments with the Secretary of State at $60 per 
page. The costs associated with board member attendance at public hearings will be paid within 
the existing budget of the BPE.  

c) Costs and Benefits of the Proposed Rule

Analyze and compare the costs and benefits of the proposed rule to the costs and 
benefits of inaction. Refer to § 2‐4‐405 (2)(d), MCA.  

The State Superintendent initiated the process of amending the accreditation and aligning 
content standards. The agency did not undertake an analysis of the costs and benefits of 
"inaction." 

d) Less Costly or Less Intrusive Methods

Are there less costly or less intrusive methods for achieving the purpose of the proposed 
rule? Refer to § 2‐4‐405 (2)(e), MCA.  

https://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0070/part_0010/section_0010/0200-0070-0010-0010.html


Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     6 

There is no less costly or less intrusive method for achieving the purpose of the proposed rule 
changes.  

e) Selection of Proposed Rule

Analyze any alternative methods for achieving the purpose of the proposed rule that 
were seriously considered by the agency and the reasons why they were rejected in 
favor of the proposed rule. Refer to § 2‐4‐405 (2)(f), MCA.  

After exploring alternative methods to achieve the proposed rule's purpose, it was determined 
that given the substantial influence of content standards on school quality and instruction, 
especially in the realm of Math Education, and the statutory requirement for negotiated 
rulemaking, no alternative method would sufficiently produce content standards based on 
learner outcomes conducive to educational excellence. 

f) Efficient Allocation of Public and Private Resources

Does the proposed rule represent an efficient allocation of public and private resources? 
Refer to § 2‐4‐405 (2)(g), MCA.  

The proposed rule amendments do not involve any specific allocation of public and private 
resources. 

Conclusion  
The NRC, through consensus, determined that the rule amendments should be surveyed for 
economic impact. Appendix A shows the responses and the demographics of those who 
submitted responses. No specific comments were made about the individual rule amendments, 
just overall impressions of the probable economic impact.   

Survey respondents shared that there are various needs and costs for implementing the 
proposed math standards. These include aligning curriculum, providing professional 
development, and acquiring support materials.  They shared that funding is needed for 
professional development focused on problem-solving, while uncertainties exist regarding 
updating existing curricula to meet proposed standards. There's a potential need to purchase 
all-new curricula if current ones don't align with standards. The estimated cost for materials 
adoption in math instruction ranges from minimal to exceeding $100,000. 

Every district has its own unique set of needs for math instructional staffing. Respondents 
expressed critical personnel needs in math education, including challenges with large class 
sizes and the absence of math intervention teachers. They highlighted the benefits of programs 
like the Math Innovation Zones grant but noted a lack of funding for intervention initiatives.  

Implementing the proposed Math Content Standards in each district involves significant time 
considerations, such as professional development and resource review. Responses from the 



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     7 

survey vary. Some note the need for staff to realign standards and emphasize the importance of 
ongoing professional development, while others cite constraints like limited interventions and 
budgetary issues. Educating math teachers on the new standards and aligning them with the 
curriculum are highlighted priorities. Planning for instructional changes is slated for the 
upcoming school year, with varying estimates of required time investment ranging from 30 to 40 
hours or more. Some express the desire for the new standards to be available in time for 
summer planning, emphasizing the importance of preparation for effective implementation by 
2025. 

The Superintendent's recommendations to the BPE will be evaluated by the BPE and then 
facilitated through the Montana Administrative Procedure Act (MAPA) process before any 
adoption of proposed standards changes are implemented. 

Appendix A – Economic Impact Survey Responses 



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     8 



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     9 



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     10 

If you answered “yes, please provide additional information: 
● Purchase of materials, professional development, and additional staff time outside the contract may be

required for realigning report cards, curriculum, and lesson plans.
● Professional Development is necessary for teachers to understand changes in vertical alignment and

specific language in the new standards.
● Re-teaching of previous concepts due to lower math abilities in students, requiring support materials.
● Staff requiring professional development for standards-based instruction and assessment realignment; K-5

needing a new math instruction resource.
● Search for a new curriculum meeting standards and school requirements, incorporating technology.
● Current math curriculum costs $13,000 annually.
● Funding is needed for updated professional development, focusing on real-world math problems.
● Existing curriculum meeting proposed standards needing updates, uncertain of costs.
● Need for a comprehensive K-8 curriculum with intervention implementation capability.
● Potential need to purchase all new curricula if standards don't align with the current curriculum.
● Professional development is required to ensure standards are fully met.
● Estimated cost of over $100,000 for materials adoption in mathematics instruction.
● Professional development on "fluency" is required.

If you answered “yes, please provide additional information: 



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     11 

● Realign standards, curriculum, and lessons
● Regular purchase of materials to support students
● Limited outside training for new curriculum preparation
● Potential increase in title needs for differentiated instruction due to rigorous proposed

standards
● Provision of advanced courses if desired
● Professional Development time for staff to introduce and realign instructional pacing and

frameworks in mathematics to revised standards

Please share any relevant information about your district's personnel needs for 
Math. 

● Large class sizes hinder individualized instruction
● Lack of math intervention and intervention teacher
● Current teachers are responsible for teaching both current and previous standards
● Lack of consistency in math instruction among teachers
● Teaching math in grades 6-8 with a teacher and a para is beneficial
● The desire for extra personnel for interventions
● Participation in the Math Innovation Zones (MIZ) grant enhances math instruction
● Funding for intervention math programs is lacking
● Shortage of two math teachers for the upcoming school year
● Gratitude for quality math teachers in high school
● One math teacher for grades 6-12, PreK-5 teachers handle elementary math instruction
● Beneficial professional development on the changes



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     12 

If yes, please explain: 
● We are currently using ESSER funds to complete the mathematics alignment to teaching

the standards and assessing using standards-based grading. It was 160 hours for 6
teachers to complete this work - costing our small district $24,000. We wouldn't have the
funding to do this again.

● It's difficult to get people to our region in a timely fashion.
● Budgets are very tight and inflation has greatly increased costs, making it difficult to fund

the basic requirements at the school much less providing professional development.
● Not sure what the funding looks like.
● We are trying to tighten up our budget as much as possible to meet budgetary cuts and

this is something we do not have adequate funding for.
● We are experiencing a budget deficit that had us look at a 4-day week to keep all our

staffing that is so vital to continued student growth. We need our budgets to be funded
100% by the state. The taxpayers are in the same bind our school is and aren't willing to
dip into their pockets to help our school and it's not that they don't want to. They do, but
everyone is experiencing tough financial times. State funding needs a hard revamp to
give schools the funds they need to do what is needed. Having us do more with less isn't
working! We are in crisis mode. That's no way to educate MT students!

● It will depend on current budget constraints in the district and whether we will be able to
afford the needed PD to make this happen.

● Curriculum content changes require several days for all instructors who teach math and
usually time with the vendor. Could be $15,000 +/-.

● We are a small school and we do not budget much for professional development

What professional development would be needed to support these rule 
amendments? 

● Explanation and time for instructors to understand changes and purpose, impacting their
instruction. Minor supplies may be needed.

● Implementing math intervention techniques while covering current standards.
● Request for a concise presentation/summary of standards instead of a lengthy

document.
● Aligning standards to state assessments and implementing standards-based grading.
● Need for all-encompassing professional development.
● Updating scope and sequence for common assessments.
● Professional development to enhance teacher ability in standards-based grading.



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     13 

● Understanding teaching requirements with new standards.
● General knowledge about amendments.
● Request for additional time to respond.
● Ensuring curriculum assessment meets new standards.
● Content-specific training and potential for new textbook material training.
● Periodic curriculum content instruction for math teachers, especially with changed

standards.
● Professional development for staff training on updated content standards and

realignment with curricula.
● Staff training is required to understand rule amendments and standards.
● Importance of memorizing math facts alongside understanding flexible and efficient

methods.
● Information on changes and best practices for implementation.

What are the time implications related to your district implementing the 
proposed Math Content Standards (professional development, reviewing 
resources, etc.)? 

● Anytime there is a change it takes time for staff to look at what we currently teach and
what's needed to realign standards. PD will be needed as well, especially for new staff
coming on board

● No
● We are a very small district. It would take a lot of human resources to complete this

change of standards and research a resource that would provide students and teachers
support in teaching and learning

● Since we have recently updated our curriculums, last year required the most time and
effort on behalf of our teachers

● The implications are great as we have just spent this year creating a standard-based
report card with current standards and adopted a new curriculum aligned to current
standards

● I am not sure
● 30 Hours
● Professional development needs to be ongoing
● Unsure
● We are trying our best to complete math standards in the current school year, but with

limited interventions in place, it's making it difficult to be able to cover all standards in the
allotted time

● No major issues are seen at this point, but more related to budget constraints to buy new
curriculum resources

● We would need to educate the math teachers on the new standards, what that means to
each grade level, and so on, and how it would pertain to our new curriculum.

● We will look at instructional changes that need to be made during the 2024-2025 school
year, so we are ready to implement them when school begins in the fall of 2025.

● Within the next two years
● 40 hours or more
● Professional development opportunities provided over the summer would be most

beneficial if this is to be implemented by 2025
● Lack of common prep times, lack of pay to do outside of school times
● Great question. There would be a decent time investment for all of the teachers to get on

the same page with the standards
● I would like the new standards available at the end of this school year so I could spend

time planning over the summer as I am responsible for teaching all high school courses



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     14 

Appendix B: Math Standards Revision Task Force Members 

Task Force Member Name Location Assigned Roles 

Nicole Casper Kalispell K-2 Development

Shay Kidd Dillon K-2 Development, Vertical Alignment,
Mathematical Practices

Andrea Meiers Lockwood K-2 Development

Thomas Redmon Hamilton K-2 Development, Mathematical Practices

Carla Swenson Glasgow K-2 Development

Lei-Anna Bertelsen Bozeman 3-5 Development

Elizabeth Burroughs Bozeman 3-5 Development

Kris Gardner Missoula 3-5 Development

Melissa Shiffer Lambert 3-5 Development

Tina Blair Anaconda 6-8 Development, Vertical Alignment

Jennifer Brackney Billings 6-8 Development

Jennifer Luebeck Bozeman 6-8 Development, Mathematical Practices

Matt Roscoe Missoula 6-8 Development

Cliff Bara Troy 9-12 Development

Beth Cooney Harlowton 9-12 Development

Deanne Gemmil Billings 9-12 Development

Marisa Graybill Helena 9-12 Development

Janice Novotny Big Timber 9-12 Development

Frederick Peck Missoula 9-12 Development



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     15 

Appendix C: Math Standards Revision Review Team Members 

Review Team Location Assigned Role 

Becky Berg Billings K-5 Review

Jenny Combs Laurel K-5 Review

Kayla Ryan Helena K-5 Review

Amy Jones Forsyth K-5 Review

Pat Baltzley Gardiner 6-12 Review

Sharon Carroll Ekalaka 6-12 Review

Lisa Scott Billings 6-12 Review



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     16 

Appendix D: Math Standards Revision Negotiated Rulemaking 

Committee 

Appendix E: Montana Office of Public Instruction Project Leadership 

Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent of Public Instruction 
Christy Mock-Stutz, Assistant Superintendent 
Julie Murgel, Chief Program Officer 
Marie Judisch, Teaching and Learning Senior Manager 
Aimee Konzen, Professional Learning Manager 
Katrina Engeldrum, Mathematics Instructional Coordinator,  Mathematics Standards 
Revision Project Lead 

Member NRC Role Location 
Teri Dierenfield Kalispell K-12 Teacher, Taxpayer

June Ellestad Lolo Retired University Faculty, Taxpayer 

Carrie Fisher Belgrade School District Business Official, Taxpayer 

Robert Griffith Great Falls Retired K-12 Teacher, Taxpayer 

Katie McCrea Pryor K-12 Teacher, Taxpayer

Kath Milodragovich Butte School District Trustee, K-12 Teacher, Parent, Taxpayer 

Dr. Julie Murgel Helena Office of Public Instruction, Taxpayer 

Dr. Chris Olszewski Billings K-12 School Administrator, Taxpayer

Dr. Lynne Rider Kalispell K-12 Teacher, Taxpayer

Brooke Taylor Billings K-12 Teachers, Parent, Taxpayer

Brooke Tuft Whitefish Grandparent, Taxpayer 



Montana Office of Public Instruction Economic Impact Statement - Math Content Standards     17 

Michelle McCarthy, Science Instructional Coordinator, Standards Revision Process 
Consultant and Project Support 
Stephanie Swigart, English Language Arts and Literacy Specialist, Standards Revision 
Process Consultant and Project Support 
Matthew Bell, American Indian Culture and Language Immersion Specialist, 
Consultant, and Project Development Support  
Sheri Harlow, Administrative Support 



ITEM 17 

REFLECTION AND REVIEW OF TITLE 10, 
CHAPTER 55, ACCREDITATION 

STANDARDS 

Crystal Andrews, Dr. Julie Murgel, Daniel 
Sybrant, Cognia; Superintendent Tanya 

Funk, Saco School District; County 
Superintendent Pam  

Birkeland, Madison County Schools; 
Superintendent Wade Sundby, Cut Bank 

School District  



Self-Assessment
SET UP FOR SUCCESS

Accreditation and Improvement

Progress
CHECK YOUR COURSE

Engagement
DEMONSTRATE YOUR STRENGTHS

© 2022 Cognia, Inc

Toward the middle of your accreditation term, 
complete the institution’s part of the Progress 
Report, describing your improvements in the areas 
outlined in your Engagement Review Report.

Your Cognia team considers your progress toward 
the expectations from the Engagement Review 
Report and responds with feedback and support.

Work with your Cognia team to determine if you 
need to take any additional steps to stay on track.

Keep up the good work! Maintain your momentum 
for continuous improvement.

Upload your Self-Assessment Diagnostics, Assurances, 
and Accreditation Portfolio to the Cognia Improvement 
Platform.

Coordinate with your Cognia evaluator to schedule and 
complete review activities.

You'll get an Engagement Review report that details 
Cognia's findings, highlights your noteworthy practices, 
and identifies areas for improvement.

If your institution successfully meets accreditation 
standards, assurances, and policies, your accreditation 
will be confirmed at the next quarterly meeting of the 
Cognia Global Commission.

Using the guidance in the 
protocol and tools, your team 
collects and analyzes data to 
complete the Self-Assessment 
Diagnostics and demonstrate 
adherence to the standards.

Your institution's leadership 
team prepares with orientation 
and training from Cognia to 
assure understanding of the 
standards and protocol.

Candidacy
LAUNCH YOUR JOURNEY

NEW MEMBERS ONLY

Become a member of the Cognia 
Improvement Network and start 
your school or system’s journey to 
continuous school improvement. 
Cognia will guide you along the 
way.

Delve into the Cognia 
Performance Standards and 
Accreditation Policies; complete 
the Candidacy Diagnostics to gain 
understanding of where your 
institution stands.

A Cognia expert responds with a 
Candidacy Review and Candidacy 
Report, outlining your 
pre-accreditation needs and 
guiding you to efforts that will 
move you forward.

 P
rogress 

 Engagem
en

t
Self-Assessment  

CONTINUOUS
IMPROVEMENT



 

 

Cognia Performance Standards and 
Montana Office of Public Instruction, 

Chapter 55: School Accreditation 
   

Standards Crosswalk 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07    1 

 

Table of Contents 
Accreditation Standards Crosswalk ....................................................................................................................... 2 

Cognia Policy ....................................................................................................................................................... 2 

OPI Requirements ................................................................................................................................................ 2 

OPI Requirement ........................................................................................................................................... 3 
OPI Requirement ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

OPI Requirement ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

OPI Requirement ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

OPI Requirement ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

Cognia Performance Standards .......................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Cognia Assurances .............................................................................................................................................. 8 

Institution Assurances ................................................................................................................................... 8 

Accreditation Documents Required by Cognia .................................................................................................... 8 

Accreditation: Three Phase Improvement Process ............................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Additional Cognia Required Diagnostics ............................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Required Analyses: Student Performance Analysis ..................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Required Analyses: Stakeholder Feedback Analysis ................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Cognia Accreditation Engagement Reviews ....................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Leadership Presentation (as needed) .......................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Evidence Review .......................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Stakeholder Interviews (as needed) ............................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Observations ................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 
 

 



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07    2 

 

Standards Crosswalk 
Cognia Accreditation and Certification Policies and Procedures 
All Chapter 55 Assurance Standards are addressed by Cognia Policy 2.2 (a) Compliance with Applicable 
Governmental Requirements. 

Cognia Policy 2.2 (a) Compliance with Applicable Governmental Requirements. The institution or system 
must comply with all applicable governmental requirements, including any requirements for 
governmental approval, recognition, or accreditation. The system must ensure that all of its institutions 
also comply with all applicable governmental requirements, including any requirements for governmental 
approval, recognition, or accreditation. An institutions or system’s loss of its governmental approval, 
recognition, accreditation, or certification may be grounds for an accreditation review, monitoring review, 
or certification review that may result in a change in accreditation or certification status in accordance 
with the procedures outlined in this document. In the absence of governmental regulations, or if 
governmental regulations are less than Cognia’s, Cognia may choose to require the institution or system 
to meet the guidelines presented in the Cognia Educational Practices Reference Guide.  

Cognia Performance Standards 
Cognia Performance Standards, effective July 1, 2022, are designed to involve the work of the institution to meet 
current and future educational contexts. First, the standards are constructed with a learner-centered focus. 
Historically, accreditation standards are institutionally centered, describing the processes and performance of the 
institution. The standards now focus on the learner and how all the processes and practices serve to support and 
ensure the learner’s journey of learning. 

Additionally, the standards now emphasize the importance and impact of ensuring equity for every learner, as well as 
the expectation that all learners, regardless of their circumstance, are included in the learning process. 

Four key characteristics are evident when institutions effectively adopt the Cognia Performance Standards and 
engage in Cognia’s peer review process for accreditation and continuous improvement.  

1. Culture of Learning: the institution’s focus on the challenges, joys, and opportunities for learning, and the 
coherence with its mission and vision  

2. Leadership for Learning: the responsibility of an institution’s leaders to influence and impact all aspects of the 
institution in positive ways  

3. Engagement of Learning: the inclusion of all learners in the learning process, and their development of 
confidence and love of learning  

4. Growth in Learning: the growth of learners in the programs and curricula provided by the institution and their 
readiness to successfully transition to next levels of learning 

Standards Rubric 
Each Cognia Performance Standard is rated using a four-point rubric. These rubrics embed the identified practices 
that institutions and systems should have in place. Level 4 of each rubric identifies the demonstration of noteworthy 
systematic and systemic practices producing clear results that positively impact learners, while Level 1 reflects areas 
with insufficient evidence and/or limited activity leading toward improvement. 

https://www.cognia.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Performance-Standards.pdf


Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07 3 

OPI Requirements 

OPI Requirement  
Assurance Standards 
School Leadership, Educational Opportunity, Academic Requirements, and Program Area Standards. Met by 
Cognia Policy 2.2 (a) 

OPI Requirement 
Comprehensive needs assessment with meaningful stakeholder input and feedback. Met by 
Cognia Policy 2.2 (a) 

OPI Requirement 
Integrated Strategic Action Plan (ISAP) embedded within ISAP. Met by Cognia Policy 2.2 (a) as well 
as Cognia Standards Listed Below. 

 Family and Community Engagement (10.55.722)

 Professional Development (10.55.714)

 Academic Programming (10.55.901, 10.55.902, and 10.55.904) including how the education program enables
students to recognize the district and unique cultural heritages of American Indians)

 Assurance checklist for required accreditation policies

Supportive Cognia Standards to Meet this Requirement. 

STANDARD 3 Leaders actively engage stakeholders to support the institution’s priorities and guiding 
principles that promote learners’ academic growth and well-being. 

Leaders establish and sustain conditions that consistently result in support and active participation among 
stakeholders. Leaders consistently collaborate with stakeholders to advance identified priorities. Institutions 
implement a formal process to choose areas of focus based on analyzed data on learners’ needs and consistent 
with guiding principles. 

STANDARD 7 Leaders guide professional staff members in the continuous improvement process 
focused on learners’ experiences and needs. 

Leaders consistently engage professional staff members in developing, communicating, implementing, 
monitoring, and adjusting the continuous improvement process. The continuous improvement process is based 
on analyzed trend and current data about learners’ academic and non-academic needs and the institution’s 
organizational effectiveness. Leaders and professional staff members consistently implement ongoing practices, 
processes, and decision making that improve learning and engage stakeholders. 

STANDARD 8 The governing authority demonstrates a commitment to learners by collaborating with 
leaders to uphold the institution’s priorities and to drive continuous improvement. 



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07    4 

 

The governing authority’s policies and decisions are regularly reviewed to ensure an uncompromised commitment 
to learners and the institution’s identified priorities. The governing authority and institution leaders use their 
respective roles and responsibilities to consistently and intentionally collaborate to further the institution’s 
improvement. 
 
STANDARD 15 Learners’ needs drive the equitable allocation and management of human, material, 
digital, and fiscal resources. 

Professional staff members engage in a systematic process to analyze learners’ needs and current trend data to 
adjust the allocation and management of human, material, digital, and fiscal resources to ensure equity for 
learning. Adjustments to resource allocation are consistently based on current data at any point in time. 
 
STANDARD 24 Leaders use data and input from a variety of sources to make decisions for learners’ 
and staff members’ growth and well-being. 

Leaders consistently demonstrate skill and insight in considering a variety of information, choosing relevant and 
timely information, and interpreting data. Leaders make intentional decisions by consistently taking into account 
data and additional factors that have an impact on learners and staff members such as institution history, recent 
experiences, and future possibilities. 
 
STANDARD 29 Understanding learners’ needs and interests drives the design, delivery, application, 
and evaluation of professional learning. 
 

Professional learning is learner-centered, customized around the needs of individuals or groups of professional 
staff members, and focuses on improving pedagogical skills and knowledge to better address learners’ needs and 
interests. A documented process to select, deliver, implement, and evaluate professional learning is being fully 
implemented and monitored for fidelity. 

 
STANDARD 30 Learners’ progress is measured through a balanced system that includes assessment 
both for learning and of learning. 

Professional staff members and learners collaborate to determine learners’ progress toward and achievement of 
intended learning objectives based on assessment data gathered through formal and informal methods. 
Assessment data are systematically used for ongoing planning, decision making, and modification of curriculum 
and instruction. 

OPI Requirement  
Graduate Profile: Centering on student experiences through the creation of a graduate profile. 
Graduate Profile is defined in ARM 10.55.602 (22) as a learner centered model(s) based on a 
shared vision of learner attributes that students should have when they graduate. The Graduate profile expands 
beyond minimum standards to the hopes, dreams and aspirations that a community has for its students. Met by 
Cognia Policy 2.2 (a) as well as Cognia Standards Listed Below. 

Supportive Cognia Standards to meet this requirement. 
 
STANDARD 3 Leaders actively engage stakeholders to support the institution’s priorities and guiding 
principles that promote learners’ academic growth and well-being. 



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07    5 

 

Leaders establish and sustain conditions that consistently result in support and active participation among 
stakeholders. Leaders consistently collaborate with stakeholders to advance identified priorities. Institutions 
implement a formal process to choose areas of focus based on analyzed data on learners’ needs and consistent 
with guiding principles. 

 

STANDARD 8 The governing authority demonstrates a commitment to learners by collaborating with 
leaders to uphold the institution’s priorities and to drive continuous improvement. 

The governing authority’s policies and decisions are regularly reviewed to ensure an uncompromised commitment 
to learners and the institution’s identified priorities. The governing authority and institution leaders use their 
respective roles and responsibilities to consistently and intentionally collaborate to further the institution’s 
improvement. 
 
STANDARD 15 Learners’ needs drive the equitable allocation and management of human, material, 
digital, and fiscal resources. 

Professional staff members engage in a systematic process to analyze learners’ needs and current trend data to 
adjust the allocation and management of human, material, digital, and fiscal resources to ensure equity for 
learning. Adjustments to resource allocation are consistently based on current data at any point in time. 
 
STANDARD 25 Leaders promote action research by professional staff members to improve their 
practice and advance learning. 

Leaders intentionally create and preserve a culture that invites inquiry, reflection, and dialogue about instructional 
problems and issues relevant to the institution and/or individual learning environments. Professional staff 
members, as a group or as individuals, consistently engage in action research using an inquiry-based process 
that includes identifying instructional areas of improvement, collecting data, and reporting results to make 
informed instructional changes. Leaders provide and engage in learning opportunities customized for professional 
staff members about action research. 
 
STANDARD 26 Leaders regularly evaluate instructional programs and organizational conditions to 
improve instruction and advance learning. 

Leaders consistently implement a documented process to determine the effectiveness of the institution’s 
curriculum and instruction, including staffing and resources. Leaders use a formal, systematic process for 
analyzing current and trend data and stakeholder input to make decisions about retaining, changing, or replacing 
programs and practices. 

OPI Requirement  
Student Performance Standards 

• Elementary and K-8 schools will submit evidence for student learning outcomes in Math and 
Reading/English Language Arts (ELA). 

• Shifting our systems of measurement to focus on assessing student learning progression, proficiency and 
growth (10.55.603). 

• Allows districts an opportunity to demonstrate the learning that is taking place and reflects what students 
can do, how much they are progressing and growing in their learning. 

• High Schools will submit evidence for postsecondary (college and career readiness) outcomes. 
• Encourages a system that is designed to provide more opportunities for learning, improve student 

outcomes, and aligns to the outcomes outlined in the district graduate profile. 
• Met by Cognia Policy 2.2 (a) as well as Cognia Standards Listed Below. 



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07    6 

 

•  
 

Supportive Cognia Standards to meet this requirement. 
Standard 2 Learners’ well-being is at the heart of the institution’s guiding principles such as mission, 
purpose, and beliefs. 

Staff members continually demonstrate commitment to learners’ academic and non-academic needs and 
interests. The institution’s practices, processes, and decisions are documented and regularly reviewed for 
consistency with its stated values. 

 

Standard 11 Leaders create and maintain institutional structures and processes that support learners 
and staff members in both stable and changing environments. 

Leaders consistently demonstrate awareness of potential influences on institution stability and engage 
stakeholders in planning and implementing strategies to maintain stability and respond to change. The institution’s 
structure and processes are documented, monitored, and thoroughly communicated so that learners and staff 
members know what to do and expect in everyday circumstances. The institution’s structure and processes 
include emergency and contingency plans that support agile and effective responses to both incremental and 
sudden change. 

Standard 14 Curriculum and instruction are augmented by reliable information resources and materials 
that advance learning and support learners’ personal interests. 

Professional staff members consistently suggest and provide thoughtfully selected information resources and 
materials for learners that broaden and enrich the learning process and support learners’ personal interests. A 
systematic process is used to identify and verify that information resources and materials are selected from 
credible sources. 

Standard 18 Learners are immersed in an environment that fosters lifelong skills including creativity, 
curiosity, risk taking, collaboration, and design thinking. 

Conditions across all aspects of the institution promote learners’ lifelong skills. Learners engage in ongoing 
experiences that develop the non-academic skills important for their next steps in learning and for future success. 
A formal structure ensures that learning experiences collectively build skills in creativity, curiosity, risk taking, 
collaboration and design thinking. 

 
Standard 19 Learners are immersed in an environment that promotes and respects student voice and 
responsibility for their learning. 

Conditions across all aspects of the institution promote learners’ active discovery and expression of their needs 
and interests. Learners give input into the instructional and learning activities they pursue and the methods in 
which they learn. Learners consistently identify their learning targets and monitor their progress. 

 
Standard 20 Learners engage in experiences that promote and develop their self-confidence and love 
of learning. 
 

Learners consistently pursue challenging opportunities that may not always result in success, knowing that they 
will be supported when needed. Learners readily and consistently show motivation, curiosity, and excitement 
about their learning. 

Standard 24 Leaders use data and input from a variety of sources to make decisions for learners’ and 
staff members’ growth and well-being. 



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07    7 

 

Leaders consistently demonstrate skill and insight in considering a variety of information, choosing relevant and 
timely information, and interpreting data. Leaders make intentional decisions by consistently taking into account 
data and additional factors that have an impact on learners and staff members such as institution history, recent 
experiences, and future possibilities. 

Standard 25 Leaders promote action research by professional staff members to improve their practice 
and advance learning. 

Leaders intentionally create and preserve a culture that invites inquiry, reflection, and dialogue about instructional 
problems and issues relevant to the institution and/or individual learning environments. Professional staff 
members, as a group or as individuals, consistently engage in action research using an inquiry-based process 
that includes identifying instructional areas of improvement, collecting data, and reporting results to make 
informed instructional changes. Leaders provide and engage in learning opportunities customized for professional 
staff members about action research. 

Standard 28 With support, learners pursue individual goals including the acquisition of academic and 
non- academic skills important for their educational futures and careers. 

Professional staff members consistently engage with learners to help them recognize their talents and potential, 
and to identify meaningful, attainable goals that support academic, career, personal, and social skills. Learners 
consistently choose activities and monitor their own progress, demonstrating active ownership of their stated 
goals. 

Standard 30 Learners’ progress is measured through a balanced system that includes assessment 
both for learning and of learning. 

Professional staff members and learners collaborate to determine learners’ progress toward and achievement of 
intended learning objectives based on assessment data gathered through formal and informal methods. 
Assessment data are systematically used for ongoing planning, decision making, and modification of curriculum 
and instruction. 

 
 

  



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07 8 

Additional Cognia Resources 

Cognia Assurances 
Assurances are requirements that accredited institutions must meet. The Assurance statements are based on the 
type of institution, and the responses are confirmed by the Accreditation Engagement Review Team. Institutions 
are expected to meet all applicable Assurances and are expected to correct any deficiencies in unmet 
Assurances. 

The following represent the Cognia Assurances that are required by all institutions, regardless of the educational 
model. 

Institution Assurances 
The institution has read, understands, and complies with the Cognia Accreditation and Certification 
Policies and Procedures.  

The institution complies with all applicable governmental laws or regulations. 

The institution adheres to ethical marketing and communication practices to transparently disclose 
current and accurate information to the public.  

The governing authority adheres to written policies that govern its conduct, decision making, ethics, 
and authority; and engages in training aligned to its roles and responsibilities.  

The institution annually submits all financial transactions for an annual audit conducted by an 
accounting authority external to the institution.  

The institution annually reviews and implements written management plans for security, crisis, safety 
and health for onsite and virtual environments that includes expectations, communications protocols, 
and training for students, staff and stakeholders.  

The institution participates in required training related to accreditation or certification by timeframes 
prescribed by Cognia.  

Accreditation Documents Required by Cognia 
The Self-Assessment Workbook: A Guide for Systems and Institutions Seeking or Continuing 
Accreditation provides institutions with comprehensive information about the Cognia approaches to 
accreditation and continuous improvement. The workbook also provides space for institutions to draft 
responses to each of the required diagnostics below, which are then transferred to the online Cognia 
Improvement Platform (myJourney™/eProve™). 
1. Standards Self-Assessment

2. Assurances

3. Executive Summary

4. Accreditation Portfolio

5. Student Performance Analysis

6. Learning Environment Observation Analysis

7. Stakeholder Feedback Analysis



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07 9 

Accreditation: Three Phase Improvement Process 
Modern accreditation is a continuous improvement process. Today, accreditation is used at all levels of education 
and is recognized for its ability to effectively drive improved learner performance and continuous improvement in 
education. 

Accreditation requires systems and institutions to continuously meet the applicable Cognia policies, standards, 
and requirements. Cognia refers to the collective efforts and actions of the institution to continuously meet 
accreditation expectations as the improvement journey. This journey should progress in ways that are 
personalized, relevant, and meaningful on behalf of the learners being served. 

At least every six years, the institution formally engages the Cognia Performance Standards to reflect and 
examine its progress toward its desired future as expressed through its mission, purpose, and strategic direction. 
Cognia’s purpose-driven, strategic process is the most widely used continuous improvement process in the world. 

The Cognia accreditation process has three phases: 1) Reflection and Analysis, also known as the Self-
Assessment process, 2) Engagement, reflected below as the Accreditation Engagement Review, and 3) Progress 
and Feedback, which is determined via the Progress Review.  

An institution that is evaluated with an Index of Educational Quality Score of below 220 is cited as Accredited 
Under Review status, and the institution must complete an on-site Monitoring Review each year until significant 
progress is found with the standards, assurances, policies and procedures.  

Engaging in Continuous Improvement 
Systems and institutions seeking to achieve or maintain accreditation understand, honor, and embrace the 
concept of continuous improvement. These systems and institutions are engaged every day in a process of 
continuous improvement. They are dynamic and continuously evolving, with an unrelenting focus on becoming 
better on behalf of the learners they serve. They operate in learning communities by demonstrating healthy 
cultures where individuals collectively analyze practices and results, engage in professional learning and 
dialogue, take meaningful action, and assume responsibility for results. 

Cognia defines continuous improvement as “an embedded behavior rooted in an institution’s culture that 
constantly focuses on conditions, processes, and practices to improve teaching and learning.” Accreditation is a 
continuous improvement process that helps an institution improve teaching and learning. Using Cognia’s 
Performance Standards, the institution examines its current effectiveness as well as its capacity and capability to 
achieve its vision and goals for the future. 



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07    10 

 

Additional Cognia Required Diagnostics  

Required Analyses: Student Performance Analysis 
Cognia requires that institutions examine and analyze student performance data to see how well the institution’s 
educational program is preparing learners for success in current and future academic work.  

Using the four evaluative criteria below, an institution can rate the “assessment package” holistically. Each 
criterion is followed by the Level 4 rating.  

Evaluative Criteria 1: Assessment Quality 
Level 4 Rating - The array of assessment devices used by the institution to determine learners' performances is 
sufficiently aligned so that valid inferences can be reached regarding learners' status with respect to the full set of 
curricular aims regarded as high-priority instructional targets. The documentation provided in support of this alignment 
is persuasive. Almost all* assessments used are accompanied by evidence demonstrating that they satisfy accepted 
technical requirements such as validity, reliability, absence of bias and instructional sensitivity. 
 
Evaluative Criteria 2: Test Administration 
Level 4 Rating - Almost all the assessments used by the institution to determine learners' performances, whether 
externally acquired or internally developed, have been administered with complete fidelity to the administrative 
procedures appropriate for each assessment. The learners to whom these assessments were administered accurately 
represent the learners served by the institution. Appropriate accommodations have been provided for all assessments 
so that valid inferences can be made about all learners' statuses with respect to all the institution's targeted curricular 
outcomes. 
 
Evaluative Criteria 3: Quality of Learning 
Level 4 Rating - Evidence of learner learning promoted by the institution is well analyzed and clearly presented. In 
comparison to institutions functioning in a similar educational context, learners’ statuses, improvement and/or growth 
evidence indicates that the level of learner learning is substantially greater than what would otherwise be expected. 
 
Evaluative Criteria 4: Equity of Learning 
Level 4 Rating - Evidence of learner learning indicates no significant achievement gaps among subpopulations of 
learners, or the achievement gaps have substantially declined. 
*Including more than 75 percent (e.g., learners, educators, programs, policies) 

  



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07    11 

 

Required Analyses: Stakeholder Feedback Analysis 
Cognia requires that institutions collect and analyze data from stakeholders; it is recommended that at least three 
populations (learners, teachers, and families) are included in the data, which Cognia believes can provide 
institutions with insights into “current reality.” Whether it is survey results, focus group results, or other types of 
perception data, analyzing perception data to make impactful changes that will result in improved stakeholder 
perceptions, ultimately will improve student performance. 

• Evaluating Student Performance Standards Rubric 

A. Learning Environment 
 

Using the four evaluative criteria below, an institution can rate the learning environments holistically. Each 
criterion is followed by the Level 4 rating.  

 
Evaluative Criteria 1: Item Quality 
Level 4 Rating - Items in almost all surveys and focus group protocols have been tested and proven as reliable and 
valid. 

Evaluative Criteria 3: Administration 
Level 4 Rating - Surveys were administered to all members of the total population of the institution. 

Evaluative Criteria 3: Number of Responses 
Level 4 Rating: The total response rate was 75% or more and all participant populations were well represented. 

Evaluative Criteria 4: Equity of Respondents 
Level 4 Rating: Results indicate no significant gaps exist among subpopulations of respondents. 

Required Analyses: Learning Environment Observation Analysis 
Cognia requires that institutions examine and analyze learning environments to determine and evaluate the overall 
environment, which focuses primarily on what learners are doing, not teachers.  

Using the three evaluative criteria below, an institution can rate the learning environments holistically. Each 
criterion is followed by the Level 4 rating.  

• Evaluating Student Performance Standards Rubric 

B. Learning Environment 

Evaluative Criteria 1: Instrument Quality 
Level 4 Rating - The specific purpose of the instrument(s) used is clearly to measure learner engagement in learning 
environments. Sufficient information has been reviewed to ensure the instrument(s) is reliable and valid. 

Evaluative Criteria 2: Certification of Observers 
Level 4 Rating - Almost all observations were conducted by observers who were trained and certified in using the 
instrument. 

Evaluative Criteria 3: Observations 
Level 4 Rating - The tool is used with fidelity for the time period indicated in the tool’s instructions (e.g., “a minimum 
of 20 minutes per observation”). Data presented are from multiple observations conducted over an extended period of 
time, such as a school year. Observations represent a broad and representative range of content, grade level, and 
time of observation (beginning, middle, end of lesson or period). 



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07    12 

 

Cognia Accreditation Engagement Reviews 
Most U.S. reviews will be conducted through a review of the evidence and analyses the institution submits. The 
Regional Accreditation Evaluator will work with the institution to schedule leadership presentations and discussions as 
needed. For states requiring an on-site component for the review, the evaluator will schedule this at any point in the 
year of the review, typically in the fall or winter of the academic year. All other review activities will be conducted 
remotely at times convenient to the institution and the evaluator. 

Leadership Presentation (as needed)  
The Regional Accreditation Evaluator may schedule a leadership presentation with the institution to expand on 
information shared in the submitted Self-Assessment diagnostics. The leadership presentation should begin with a 
brief overview of the institution community and demographics (approximately five minutes) and then address the 
following questions:  

 What are the current strategic priorities and/or key goals for the institution?  

 What data was used to identify priorities and goals?  

 How is the institution addressing these priorities and goals?  

 What results does the institution have that measures progress in meeting these priorities and goals?  
 
The leader’s overview should last no more than 30 minutes. It is helpful to provide the evaluator with a copy of the 
leader’s comments (slide deck or notes) for reference. 

Evidence Review  
The Regional Accreditation Evaluator will spend a great deal of time reviewing and evaluating evidence provided by 
the institution. Therefore, it is imperative that required documents are uploaded to Workspace in the Cognia 
Improvement Platform no later than February 1 of the review year. The Evaluator may contact the Primary Contact or 
institution leader to ask for additional specific documents based on findings from observations (as applicable) and 
review of submitted evidence. In some cases, it simply means additional documentation is needed to verify, through 
multiple sources, that certain activities or practices are in place. 

Stakeholder Interviews (as needed)  
Since the institutions are providing in-depth analysis of stakeholder feedback as part of the Self-Assessment process, 
Cognia is no longer requiring stakeholder interviews as part of the Engagement Review process. The purpose of the 
stakeholder feedback analysis is to gather information from a variety of stakeholders about their collective perceptions 
and then make decisions about the institution’s continuous improvement efforts based on that feedback in conjunction 
with other data sources. The evaluator will work with the institution to determine what stakeholder interviews are 
applicable. If needed, stakeholder interviews will be conducted remotely via Zoom. Group interviews will take 
approximately 45 minutes while individual interviews will take approximately 15 minutes. 

Selecting Interviewees (as applicable, in consultation with the evaluator). The following guidelines are designed to 
help with inviting stakeholders to be interviewed, if applicable.  

 Stakeholders should collectively reflect the institution’s broader community (socioeconomic levels, race and 
ethnicity, and geographic areas served by the institution). 

 Provide a range of viewpoints and perspectives (strong and active supporters, critics, those who are less 
involved, etc.). 

 Include families and community members who are not employed by the institution. 

 Represent all levels and departments in the institution. 

 Represent all major categories of positions in the institution (leadership, administrative, teaching, guidance, 
and support functions). 

 Include individuals who can discuss the institution’s strengths and challenges. 
 



Cognia Performance Standards and Montana Office of Public Instruction: Crosswalk v2023.06.07 13 

The overarching considerations when identifying stakeholders to be interviewed are: 

 Will the stakeholders collectively provide an accurate assessment of the institution? Will the stakeholders
collectively yield information that will prove valuable to the institution in its continuous improvement efforts?

 While it may be tempting to identify only those stakeholders who are active and strong supporters of the
institution, that approach will not maximize the insights and richness of the findings that can ultimately benefit
the institution’s improvement efforts. Therefore, Cognia recommends a random selection of participants.

Observations 
Most U.S. reviews will not have an on-site component to the review unless required by state approvals. Since the 
institution is providing in-depth analysis of learning environment observations gathered by the institution as part of the 
Self-Assessment process, Cognia is no longer requiring classroom observations as part of the Engagement Review 
process. The purpose of the Learning Environment Observation Analysis is to collect information about the learner 
experience and learner engagement in the institution and then make decisions about the continuous improvement 
efforts based on those observations in conjunction with other data sources. All observations should be conducted by 
trained observers certified in the observation tool being used. Cognia recommends use of the eleot, as membership 
provides access to this tool and certification for up to three staff annually. 

The evaluator will work with the institution to determine whether any classroom observations are applicable to the 
Engagement Review. If an on-site component to the review is applicable, an evaluator will observe throughout the 
institution. These observations may include formal observations of learning environments. 

The evaluator will work with the institution to determine whether any classroom observations are applicable to the 
Engagement Review. If an on-site component to the review is applicable, an evaluator will observe throughout the 
institution. These observations may include formal observations of learning environments using the eleot and/or other 
tools and informal observations around the institution. The Primary Contact should notify teachers that the evaluator 
may observe their classrooms during the on-site portion of the review. The institution leader and/or Primary Contact 
should explain the purpose of these observations, emphasizing that the evaluator is observing learner engagement in 
the institution, not evaluating teachers. Evaluators are instructed to be as unobtrusive as possible and to not disrupt 
the learning process. Teachers should conduct class as usual. 

General Observations Around the Institution 
In addition to the classroom observations, the evaluator may conduct informal observations throughout the institution. 
This may include system-level areas, resource rooms, media centers and technology labs, outdoor environments, and 
interactions in non-instructional environments such as hallways or the cafeteria. These general observations provide 
data regarding the overall culture and climate of the institution. 



© 2021 Cognia, Inc.

Montana Chapter 
55/Cognia Accreditation 
Crosswalk
January 18, 2024



Cognia Accredits Schools through the 
following Three Entities 
• Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Council on

Accreditation and School Improvement. SACS – CASI
• North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and

School Improvement NCA – CASI
• Northwest Accreditation Commission - NWAC
• These entities have been in existence for over 125 years



In your Packet 

• Cognia/Chapter 55 Detailed Crosswalk
• Accreditation and Improvement Infographic
• The Powerpoint for Todays Presentation



Student Population in Cognia Accredited 
Schools 
• Using FY 2022 Montana Public Student Population,

approximately 16% of Montana Students go to Cognia
Accredited Schools



Crosswalk Overview 



Paul Furthmyre – Superintendent 
Montana School for the Deaf and Blind

• Cognia Policy 2.2 
• (a) Compliance with Applicable Governmental Requirements. The institution or system 

must comply with all applicable governmental requirements, including any requirements 
for governmental approval, recognition, or accreditation. The system must ensure that 
all of its institutions also comply with all applicable governmental requirements, 
including any requirements for governmental approval, recognition, or accreditation. An 
institution’s or system’s loss of its governmental approval, recognition, accreditation, or 
certification may be grounds for an accreditation review, monitoring review, or 
certification review that may result in a change in accreditation or certification status in 
accordance with the procedures outlined in this document. In the absence of 
governmental regulations, or if governmental regulations are less than Cognia’s, Cognia 
may choose to require the institution or system to meet the guidelines presented in the 
Cognia Educational Practices Reference Guide. 



• OPI Requirements

• OPI Requirement
• Assurance Standards
• School Leadership, Educational Opportunity, Academic Requirements, and Program Area Standards. Met by Cognia Policy
2.2 (a)

• OPI Requirement
• Comprehensive needs assessment with meaningful stakeholder input and feedback. Met by Cognia Policy 2.2 (a)•
• OPI Requirement 
• Integrated Strategic Action Plan (ISAP) embedded within ISAP. Met by Cognia Policy 2.2 (a)
•
 Family and Community Engagement (10.55.722)
 Professional Development (10.55.714)
 Academic Programming (10.55.901, 10.55.902, and 10.55.904) including how the education program enables students to

recognize the district and unique cultural heritages of American Indians)
 Assurance checklist for required accreditation policies



Assurance Standards Also Supported by 
Cognia Standards 
• Standard 3
• Standard 7
• Standard 8
• Standard 15
• Standard 24
• Standard 29
• Standard 30



Brett Zanto - Principal Capital High School

• Diagnostics to Support Family and Community Engagement

• *Stakeholder Feedback Analysis
• *(Required Diagnostic for Cognia Member Schools)



• OPI Requirement
• Graduate Profile: Centering on student experiences through the creation
of a graduate profile.
• Graduate Profile is defined in ARM 10.55.602 (22) as a learner centered
model(s) based on a
• shared vision of learner attributes that students should have when they
graduate. The Graduate profile expands beyond minimum standards to the
hopes, dreams and aspirations that a community has for its students. Met
by Cognia Policy 2.2 (a) as well as Cognia Standards Listed Below.



OPI Requirement – Graduate Profile
Supported by Cognia Standards 
• Standard 3
• Standard 8
• Standard 15
• Standard 25
• Standard 26



Pete Joseph – Superintendent Corvallis 
Public Schools 

• OPI Requirement 
• Student Performance Standards
• Elementary and K-8 schools will submit evidence for student learning outcomes in Math and 

Reading/English Language Arts (ELA).
• Shifting our systems of measurement to focus on assessing student learning progression, 

proficiency and growth (10.55.603).
• Allows districts an opportunity to demonstrate the learning that is taking place and reflects what 

students can do, how much they are progressing and growing in their learning.
• High Schools will submit evidence for postsecondary (college and career readiness) outcomes.
• Encourages a system that is designed to provide more opportunities for learning, improve student 

outcomes, and aligns to the outcomes outlined in the district graduate profile.
• Met by Cognia Policy 2.2 (a) as well as Cognia Standards Listed Below.



OPI Requirement – Student Performance 
Standards Supported by Cognia Standards 
• Standard 2
• Standard 11
• Standard 14
• Standard 18
• Standard 19
• Standard 20
• Standard 24
• Standard 25
• Standard 28
• Standard 30



Tony Biesiot – Superintendent Darby 
Public Schools

Additional Cognia Diagnostics To Support Student Performance 
Standards 

• *Student Performance Analysis
1. *Learning Environment Observation Analysis
2. *(Required Diagnostics for Cognia Members)



Accreditation Portfolio

• This is an active workspace within the Cognia platform where 
Cognia Accredited Schools can upload all Chapter 55 required 
documents in adherence to required timelines along with all 
Cognia required documents. 



Rick Duncan – Superintendent Powell
County Schools

• Our Goal
• A Cognia Accredited Public School in Montana would be

considered accredited under Chapter 55.



Thank you for your consideration!

• We stand ready to assist with our policy department regarding
language and process moving forward.



Questions 



ITEM 18 

ACTION ON THE ACCREDITATION STATUS 
OF ALL SCHOOLS 

Crystal Andrews 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: July 17-19, 2024 

Presentation Recommend approval of the 2023-2024 
Accreditation Status of All Schools. 

Presenter Ellery Bresler   Crystal Andrews 

Position Title Accreditation Specialist   Director of Accreditation 
 Office of Public Instruction 

Overview The Superintendent of Public Instruction provides 
to the Board of Public Education the 2023-2024 
Annual Montana Accreditation Report. This 
presentation includes a review of the process 
used to determine accreditation status for all 
schools, analysis of the data, and a review of the 
accreditation determinations for all schools. 
Superintendent Arntzen recommends approval of 
the 2023-2024 Final Accreditation Status for All 
Accredited Schools as presented.  

The 2023-2024 Annual Montana Accreditation 
Report is embargoed until July 20, 2024. 

Requested Decision(s) Action 

Related Issue(s) None 

Recommendation(s) Approve the 2023-2024 Accreditation Status for 
All Accredited Schools as recommended by the 
State Superintendent.  



ITEM 19 

PANEL DISCUSSION AND FEEDBACK ON 
2023-2024 ACCREDITATION PROCESS 

Superintendent Elliott Crump, Shelby 
School District; Superintendent Dave Means, 

Whitefish School District; Superintendent 
Dan Rispens, East Helena Public Schools; 

Superintendent Nichole Pieper, Power 
School District 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON 2023-2024 
ACCREDITATION PROCESS



ITEM 20 

INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ON 
OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION THINK 

TANK’S RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE 
2024-2025 ACCREDITATION PROCESS 

Dr. Julie Murgel, Crystal Andrews 



 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: July 17‐19, 2024 
  

Presentation  Proposed Accreditation Process for the 2024‐25 School 
Year. 

   

Presenter  Dr. Julie Murgel; Crystal Andrews 

 

Position Title  Chief Operating Officer 
Director of Accreditation, EPPs, and Licensure 
Office of Public Instruction 

   
Overview  The purpose is to provide an overview of what the 

accreditation process will look like for the second year 
under the passage and adoption of the new Chapter 55 
rules. 

   

Requested Decision(s)  Information Only 

   

Related Issue(s)  Chapter 55; Accreditation Standards; Rulemaking; Rule 
Adoption; Implementation 

   

Recommendation(s)  None 
   



1 
       

 

 

 

 

 

 

District Accreditation Process 2024‐25 
Board of Public Education‐Information Item 

 

Year Two‐ SY 2024‐25 

 

1) Graduate Profile‐ 

● Completed Graduate Profile (602) 

○ Provide your Graduate Profile outcomes for your school climate and stakeholder involvement. 

○ List the website where the Graduate Profile is publicly available. 

○ Provide an overview of how your learning models and educational goals will ensure learners have the 
outcomes listed in your school’s or district’s Graduate Profile.  

○ Include your progress toward implementing the Graduate Profile.  
 

 

 

 

               

 



      2   

2) Educator Effectiveness‐ 

● Professional Development Plan (714) 

○ Upload your professional development plan.  

○ Outline how your district’s professional development plan builds skills by (1) identifying the skills that 
staff are acquiring, (2) describing how these skills directly impact student learning, and (3) detailing 
how these skills align to the Graduate Profile and educational goals. 

○ Identify how your district’s professional development plan builds skills that help address the safety, 
well‐being, and mental health of students and staff. Please ensure and provide evidence that all 
professional development will directly impact student learning. 

● Mentorship and Induction Program (723) 

○ Describe the district mentorship and induction programs.  

● Evaluation (724) 

○ Upload a copy of your board‐approved teacher evaluation instrument.  

 

3) Academic Programming 

● Implementation of all program area standards 

● Description of how the district is planning to tie the Graduate Profile and educational goals  to personalized 
learning‐10.55.602(31) which means: 

○ Individualized pathways for career and postsecondary educational  

○ Supports students through the development of relationships among teachers, family, peers, the 
business community, postsecondary education officials, public entities, and other community 
stakeholders. 

○ Utilizes and plans in the future to utilize community‐based, experiential, online, and work‐based 
learner‐centered opportunities. 

○ Fosters / plans to foster environments that are learner‐outcome centered that incorporates both 
face‐to‐face and virtual connections. 
 

4) Proficiency‐Based Learning Model 

● Description of planned progress toward implementing all content and program area standards. (601) 

● Description of the district curriculum and assessment development process. (603) 

● Description of how tribally specific curricula and instructional materials and resources for Indian Education 
for All (IEFA) are developed/adopted and aligned to the Essential Understandings. (603) 

● Provide an assessment plan to monitor student growth and proficiency of all content standards and content‐
specific learning progression over the next three years. (601, 603) 

● Processes to ensure that each learner has equal opportunity for access to learning. (803) 

 

5) School Climate 

● Describe how the district measured school climate through a valid and reliable tool. (801) 
● Provide a list of strengths and improvement areas identified from your district’s school climate 

measurement. (801) 
● Explain how the district utilized the results of the school climate measurement to establish action steps to 

maintain and/or enhance the school climate. (801) 

Contact 

Crystal Andrews, Director of Accreditation and Licensure, 444‐6325 crystal.andrews@mt.gov  



ITEM 21 

ACTION ON PROVISIONAL 
ACCREDITATION STATUS FOR 

NEW PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Crystal Andrews 



 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date:  July 17‐19, 2024 
  

Presentation  2024‐2025 Provisional Accreditation Status for Public 
Charter Schools 

   

Presenter  Crystal Andrews 
  

Position Title  Director of Accreditation, EPPs, and Licensure 
Office of Public Instruction 

   

Overview  This presentation provides to the Board of Public Education 
(BPE) for consideration the 2024‐2025 provisional 
accreditation status for Public Charter Schools as outlined 
in 10.55.605(1) and 10.55.605(10).  The state 
superintendent recommends approval of an accreditation 
status without Determination for 25 Public Charter Schools 
for SY 2024‐2025.  The presentation also provides an 
overview of 4 public charter schools BPE approved Variance 
to Standards as aligned with ARM 10.55.604.   
 
 
 

   

Requested Decision(s)  Action 

   

Related Issue(s)  None 

   

Recommendation(s)  The state superintendent recommends approval of an 
accreditation status without Determination for the 
attached list of Public Charter schools for SY 2024‐2025. 

   



1 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Preliminary Accreditation for New Public Charter Schools 
Board of Public Education‐Action Item 

 
 
The Office of Public Instruction (OPI) has completed the school opening process for new public charter schools. Based on 
the BPE charter applications and the documents that the districts provided to the OPI, the OPI recommends approval of 
a Provisional Accreditation Status for the 2024‐2025 school year.  Upon approval by the BPE, this status considers the 
public charter schools accredited for all purposes and the school will receive an accreditation status without a 
determination referenced as provisional accreditation.  Provisional Accreditation means the school has initially 
demonstrated alignment between the district/school basic education program, operating procedures, and the minimum 
requirements of the Chapter 55 Standards of Accreditation. To retain provisional approval of accreditation the school 
must meet accreditation status of REGULAR or REGULAR WITH MINOR DEVIATIONS for two consecutive years. 
Accreditation deviations resulting in ADVICE or DEFICIENCY status during this period will result in loss of provisional 
approval of accreditation status.  
 
List of Schools for Recommended Provisional Accreditation  
 
School  District  Grades 

Billings Early College School  Billings Public Schools   9‐12 
Billings Multilingual Academy  Billings Public Schools  6‐8 
Billings Multilingual Academy  Billings Public Schools  9‐12 
Billings Opportunity School  Billings Public Schools  9‐12 
Bozeman Bridger Charter   Bozeman Public Schools  9‐12 
Corvallis Distance Learning Center  Corvallis School District #1  K‐6 
Corvallis Distance Learning Center  Corvallis School District #1  7‐8 
Corvallis Distance Learning Center  Corvallis School District #1  9‐12 
Corvallis Pathways Learning Charter  Corvallis School District #1  K‐6 
Corvallis Pathways Learning Charter  Corvallis School District #1  7‐8 
Corvallis Pathways Learning Charter  Corvallis School District #1  9‐12 
Frenchtown Bronc Fast Track Public Charter  Frenchtown Schools  10‐12 
CORE School at Morningside Elementary  Great Falls Public Schools  K‐6 
Hamilton Bitterroot Polytech  Hamilton School District #3  7‐8 
Hamilton Bitterroot Polytech  Hamilton School District #3  9‐12 
HPSD Montessori Charter School  Helena Public School District (HPSD)  K‐5 
Helena Mount Ascension Learning Academy  Helena Public School District (HPSD)  1‐5 
Helena Mount Ascension Learning Academy  Helena Public School District (HPSD)  6‐8 
Helena Mount Ascension Learning Academy  Helena Public School District (HPSD)  9‐12 
Helena Project for Alternative Learning Academy  Helena Public School District (HPSD)  9‐12 
Kalispell Flathead PACE Academy Charter  Kalispell Public School District #5  10‐12 
Kalispell Rising Wolf Charter  Kalispell Public School District #5  9‐12 



      2   
 

Missoula CONNECT Academy  Missoula County Public Schools District 
#1 

6‐8 

Missoula CONNECT Academy  Missoula County Public Schools District 
#1 

9‐12 

Missoula TEACH Academy  Missoula County Public Schools District 
#1 

K‐5 

 
Below is a list of remaining steps leading to Full Accreditation Status:  
 

Accreditation Step  Completed By  School Year  Anticipated Date 

Report to Board of Public Education (BPE) and 
request approval of 1st year provisional 
accreditation status for 2024‐2025 
school year 

OPI Accreditation  2024‐2025  July 2024 

Complete annual accreditation report (SY 24‐
25) 

Public Charter 
School 

2024‐2025  March 2025 

Meet minimum Chapter 55 Assurance and 
Student Performance Standards  

Public Charter 
School 

2024‐2025  March 2025 

Report to the BPE on status on conditions of 
provisional accreditation status for 2024‐2025 
school year 

OPI Accreditation  2024‐2025  July 2025 

Complete annual accreditation report (SY 25‐
26) 

Public Charter 
School 

2025‐2026  March 2026 

Meet minimum Chapter 55 Assurance and 
Student Performance Standards  

Public Charter 
School 

2025‐2026  March 2026 

Report to the BPE on status on conditions of 
provisional accreditation status for 2025‐2026 
school year 

OPI Accreditation  2025‐2026  July 2026 

Recommend BPE approval of full accreditation 
status for 2025‐2026 school year 

OPI Accreditation  2025‐2026  July 2026 

 
 
Board of Public Education 
Public Charter School Variances List 
 
Billings Multilingual Academy 
Variance:  

 10.55.906 High School Credit 
 
Bitterroot Polytech  
Variances:  

 10.55.710 School Counseling 
 10.55.709  Library Media 
 10.55.705 Administrative Personnel 

 
Bridger Charter Academy (Bozeman) 
Variances:    

 10.55.710 School Counseling 
 10.55.709 Library Media 
 10.55.705 Administrative Personnel 



3 
 
 

 
Flathead PACE Academy (Kalispell) 
Variances:    

 10.55.705 Administrative Personnel 
 10.55.905 Graduation Requirements 
 10.55.906 High School Credit 

 
 
 

Contact 

Crystal Andrews, Director of Accreditation and Licensure, 444‐6325 crystal.andrews@mt.gov  



ITEM 22 

ACTION ON THE PROPOSED NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING AND TIMELINE 

PERTAINING TO RULEMAKING IN ARM 
TITLE 10, CHAPTER 54, WORLD 

LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARDS, AND 
AUTHORIZE FILING OF THE NOTICE 

WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR 
PUBLICATION IN THE MONTANA 

ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER 

Madalyn Quinlan 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-1- 

 BEFORE THE BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
 OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 
 
In the matter of the adoption of New 
Rules I-VIII; and repeal of rules 
10.54.8510, 10.54.8511, 10.54.8512, 
10.54.8513, 10.54.8520, 10.54.8521, 
10.54.8522, 10.54.8523, 10.54.8530, 
10.54.8531, 10.54.8532, 10.54.8533, 
10.54.8540, 10.54.8541, 10.54.8542, 
10.54.8543, 10.54.8550, 10.54.8551, 
10.54.8552, 10.54.8553, 10.54.8560, 
10.54.8561, 10.54.8562, 10.54.8563, 
10.54.8570, 10.54.8571, 10.54.8572, 
10.54.8573, 10.54.8580, 10.54.8581, 
10.54.8582, 10.54.8583, 10.54.8590, 
10.54.8591, 10.54.8592, 10.54.8593, 
10.54.8607, 10.54.8608, 10.54.8609, 
10.54.8610, 10.54.8611, 10.54.8612, 
10.54.8613, 10.54.8614, 10.54.8615, 
10.54.8616, 10.54.8617 and 
10.54.8618, pertaining to World 
Language Content Standards 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED ADOPTION AND 
REPEAL 
 

 
TO:  All Concerned Persons 

 
1.  On September 4, 2024, at 9:00 a.m., the Board of Public Education 

(board) will hold a virtual public hearing to consider the proposed adoption and 
repeal of the above-stated rules. Interested parties may attend the hearing 
electronically at the following zoom link: https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/82401688081 

 
2.  The board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with 

disabilities who wish to participate in this rulemaking process or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice.  If you require an accommodation, contact the board 
no later than 5:00 p.m. on August 23, 2024, to advise us of the nature of the 
accommodation that you need.  Please contact McCall Flynn, Executive Director, 46 
N Last Chance Gulch, Suite 2B, PO Box 200601, Helena, MT 59620-0601; 
telephone (406) 444-0302; or email bpe@mt.gov. 

 
3.  The rules as proposed to be adopted provide as follows: 
 
NEW RULE I  WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARD 1 - 

COMMUNICATION 
(1) Communicate effectively in more than one language in order to function in 

a variety of situations and for multiple purposes; 
(a) interpersonal communication: learners interact and negotiate meaning in 

spoken, signed, or written conversations to share: 

https://mt-gov.zoom.us/j/82401688081


 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-2- 

(i) information; 
(ii) reactions; 
(iii) feelings; and 
(iv) opinions. 
(b) interpretive communication: when learners hear, read, or view a variety of 

topics in the target language they can: 
(i) understand a variety of topics; 
(ii) interpret a variety of topics; and 
(iii) analyze a variety of topics. 
(c) presentational communication: learners present information, concepts, 

and ideas pertaining to a variety of topics using appropriate media and adapting to 
various audiences of listeners, readers, or viewers in order to: 

(i) inform; 
(ii) explain; 
(iii) persuade; and 
(iv) narrate. 
 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101 MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-3-106, 20-7-101, MCA 
 
NEW RULE II WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARD 2 - CULTURES 
(1) Interact with cultural competence and understanding; 
(a) relating cultural practices to perspectives: learners use the language to 

investigate, explain, and reflect on the relationship between the practices and 
perspectives of the cultures studied, and, where appropriate, the cultures of 
Montana Indigenous Tribes; and 

(i) relating cultural products to perspectives: learners use the language to 
investigate, explain, and reflect on the relationship between the products and 
perspectives of the cultures studied, and, where appropriate, the cultures of 
Montana Indigenous Tribes. 

 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101 MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-3-106, 20-7-101, MCA 
 
NEW RULE III WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARD 3 - 

CONNECTIONS 
(1) Connect with other disciplines and acquire information and diverse 

perspectives, including Montana Tribes, in order to use the language to function in 
academic and career-related situations; 

(a) making connections: learners build, reinforce, and expand their knowledge 
of other disciplines while using the language to develop critical thinking and solve 
problems creatively; and 

(b) acquiring information and diverse perspectives: learners access and 
evaluate information and diverse perspectives that are available through studying 
the language and its cultures. 

 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-3- 

AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101 MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-3-106, 20-7-101, MCA 
 
NEW RULE IV WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARD 4 - 

COMPARISONS 
(1) Develop insight into the nature of language and culture to interact with 

cultural competence, with a particular emphasis on Montana Indigenous cultures; 
(a) language comparisons: learners use the language to investigate, explain, 

and reflect on the nature of language through comparisons of the language studied, 
their own language, and, when appropriate, Montana Indigenous Languages; and 

(b) cultural comparisons: learners use the language to investigate, explain, 
and reflect on the concept of culture through comparisons between the cultures, 
their own way of life, and Montana Indigenous culture's history, diversity, and 
sovereignty. 

 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101 MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-3-106, 20-7-101, MCA 
 
NEW RULE V WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARD 5 - 

COMMUNITIES 
(1) Communicate and interact with cultural competence in order to participate 

in multilingual communities at home and around the world; 
(a) school, local, and global communities: learners use the language, both 

within and beyond the classroom, to interact and collaborate with their local, state, 
and global communities, including Montana Indigenous Nations.  

 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101 MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-3-106, 20-7-101, MCA 
 
NEW RULE VI WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE DESCRIPTORS AT 

THE NOVICE LEVEL 
(1) At the novice level for the interpersonal mode of communication, a 

language learner expresses self in conversations on very familiar topics using a 
variety of words, phrases, simple sentences, and questions that have been highly 
practiced and memorized. A learner: 

(a) can ask highly predictable and formulaic questions and respond to such 
questions by listing, naming, and identifying; 

(b) may show emerging evidence of the ability to engage in simple 
conversation; 

(c) is able to function in some personally relevant contexts on topics that 
relate to basic biographical information; 

(d) may show emerging evidence of the ability to communicate in highly 
practiced contexts related to oneself and one’s immediate environment; 

(e) understands and produces highly practiced words and phrases and an 
occasional sentence. Able to ask formulaic or memorized questions;  



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-4- 

(f) can usually comprehend highly practiced and basic messages when 
supported by visual or contextual clues, redundancy or restatement, and when the 
message contains familiar structures; 

(g) can control memorized language sufficiently to be appropriate to the 
context and understood by those accustomed to dealing with language learners, 
however at times with difficulty; 

(h) is able to understand and produce a number of high-frequency words, 
highly practiced expressions, and formulaic questions; 

(i) may use some or all of the following strategies to maintain communication, 
able to: 

(i) imitate modeled words; 
(ii) use facial expressions and gestures; 
(iii) repeat words; 
(iv) resort to first language; 
(v) ask for repetition; and 
(vi) indicate lack of understanding 
(j) may use culturally appropriate gestures and formulaic expressions in highly 

practiced applications. May show awareness of the most obvious cultural differences 
or prohibitions, but may often miss cues indicating miscommunication. 

(2) At the novice level for the interpretive mode of communication, a language 
learner understands words, phrases, and formulaic language that have been 
practiced and memorized to get the meaning of the main idea from simple, highly 
predictable oral or written texts, with strong visual support. A learner: 

(a) comprehends meaning through recognition of key words and phrases; 
(b) may show emerging evidence of the ability to make inferences based on 

background and prior knowledge; 
(c) comprehends texts with highly predictable, familiar contexts (those related 

to personal background, prior knowledge, or experiences); 
(d) derives meaning when authentic texts (listening, reading, or viewing) are 

supported by visuals or when the topic is very familiar; 
(e) comprehends texts ranging in length from lists, to phrases, to simple 

sentences, often with graphically organized information; 
(f) primarily relies on vocabulary to derive meaning from texts; 
(g) may derive meaning by recognizing structural patterns that have been 

used in familiar and some new contexts; 
(h) comprehends some, but not all of the time, highly predictable vocabulary, 

a limited number of words related to familiar topics, and formulaic expressions; 
(i) may use some or all of the following strategies to comprehend texts: 
(i) skim and scan; 
(ii) rely on visual support and background knowledge; 
(iii) predict meaning based on context, prior knowledge, and experience; 
(iv) for alphabetic languages: 
(A) rely on recognition of cognates; 
(B) may recognize word family roots, prefixes, and suffixes; and 
(j) uses own culture to derive meaning from texts that are heard, read, or 

viewed. 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-5- 

(3) At the novice level for the presentational mode of communication, a 
language learner communicates information on very familiar topics using a variety of 
words, phrases, and sentences that have been practiced and memorized. A learner: 

(a) presents simple, basic information on very familiar topics by producing 
words, list, notes, and formulaic language using highly practiced language; 

(b) may show emerging evidence of the ability to express own thoughts and 
preferences;  

(c) creates messages in some personally relevant contexts on topics that 
relate to basic biographical information; 

(d) may show emerging evidence of the ability to create messages in highly 
practiced contexts related to oneself and their immediate environment; 

(e) produces words and phrases and highly practiced sentences or formulaic 
questions; 

(f) produces memorized language that is appropriate to the context; limited 
language control may require a sympathetic audience to be understood; 

(g) with practice, polish, or editing, may show emerging evidence of 
Intermediate-level language control; 

(h) produces a number of high-frequency words and formulaic expressions; 
able to use a limited variety of vocabulary on familiar topics; 

(i) may use some or all of the following strategies to communicate: 
(i) rely on a practiced format; 
(ii) use facial expressions and gestures;  
(iii) repeat words; 
(iv) resort to first language; 
(v) use graphic organizers to present information; 
(vi) rely on multiple drafts and practice sessions with feedback; 
(vii) support presentational speaking with visuals and notes; and 
(viii) support presentational writing with visuals or prompts; and 
(j) may use some memorized culturally appropriate gestures, formulaic 

expressions, and basic writing conventions.  
 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101 MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-3-106, 20-7-101, MCA 
 
NEW RULE VII WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE DESCRIPTORS AT 

THE INTERMEDIATE LEVEL 
(1) At the intermediate level for the interpersonal mode of communication, a 

language learner expresses oneself and participates in conversations on familiar 
topics using sentences and series of sentences. Handles short social interactions in 
everyday situations by asking and answering a variety of questions. Can 
communicate about self, others, and everyday life. A learner:  

(a) can communicate by understanding and creating personal meaning; 
(b) can understand, ask, and answer a variety of questions; 
(c) consistently is able to initiate, maintain, and end a conversation to satisfy 

basic needs or to handle a simple transaction; 
(d) may show emerging evidence of the ability to communicate about more 

than the “here and now”; 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-6- 

(e) is able to communicate in contexts relevant to oneself and others, and 
one’s immediate environment; 

(f) may show emerging evidence of the ability to communicate in contexts of 
occasionally unfamiliar topics; 

(g) is able to understand and produce discrete sentences, strings of 
sentences, and some connected sentences. able to ask questions to initiate and 
sustain conversations; 

(h) understands straightforward language that contains mostly familiar 
structures; 

(i) has control of language sufficient to be understood by those accustomed to 
dealing with language learners; 

(j) communicates using high-frequency and personalized vocabulary within 
familiar themes or topics; 

(k) uses some of the following strategies to maintain communication, but not 
all of the time and inconsistently, able to: 

(i) ask questions; 
(ii) ask for clarification; 
(iii) self-correct or restate when not understood; and 
(iv) circumlocute; and 
(l) recognizes and uses some culturally appropriate vocabulary, expressions, 

and gestures when participating in everyday interactions. Recognizes that 
differences exist in cultural behaviors and perspectives and can conform in familiar 
situations. 

(2) At the intermediate level for the interpretive mode of communication, a 
language learner understands main ideas and some supporting details on familiar 
topics from a variety of texts. a learner: 

(a) comprehends main ideas and identifies some supporting details;  
(b) may show emerging evidence of the ability to make inferences by 

identifying key details from the text; 
(c) comprehends information related to basic personal and social needs and 

relevant to one’s immediate environment such as self and everyday life, school, 
community, and particular interests; 

(d) comprehends simple stories, routine correspondence, short descriptive 
texts, or other selections within familiar contexts; 

(e) generally comprehends connected sentences and most paragraph-like 
discourse; 

(f) comprehends information-rich texts with highly predictable order; 
(g)has sufficient control of language (vocabulary, structures, conventions of 

spoken and written language, etc.) to understand fully and with ease short, non-
complex texts on familiar topics; limited control of language to understand some 
more complex texts; 

(h) may derive meaning by: 
(i) comparing target language structures with those of their native language; 

and 
(ii) recognizing parallels in structure between new and familiar language; 
(i) comprehends high-frequency vocabulary related to everyday topics and 

high-frequency idiomatic expressions; 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-7- 

(j) uses some or all of the following strategies to comprehend texts: 
(i) skim and scan; 
(ii) use visual support and background knowledge; 
(iii) predict meaning based on context, prior ;knowledge, or experience; 
(iv) use context clues; and 
(v) recognize word family roots, prefixes, and suffixes; 
(k) for non-alphabetic languages, recognize radicals; and 
(l) generally rely heavily on knowledge of own culture with increasing 

knowledge of the target culture(s) to interpret texts that are heard, read, or viewed. 
(3) At the intermediate level for the presentational mode of communication, a 

language learner communicates information and expresses own thoughts about 
familiar topics using sentences and series of sentences. a learner:  

(a) expresses own thoughts and presents information and personal 
preferences on familiar topics by creating with language primarily in present time; 

(b) may show emerging evidence of the ability to tell or retell a story and 
provide additional description;  

(c) creates messages in contexts relevant to oneself and others, and one’s 
immediate environment; 

(d) may show emerging evidence of the ability to create messages on general 
interest and work-related topics; 

(e) produces sentences, series of sentences, and some connected 
sentences;  

(f) control of language is sufficient to be understood by audiences 
accustomed to language produced by language learners; 

(g) with practice, polish, or editing, may show emerging evidence of 
advanced-level language control;  

(h) produces vocabulary on a variety of everyday topics, topics of personal 
interest, and topics that have been studied; 

(i) may use some or all of the following strategies to communicate and 
maintain audience interest, able to: 

(i) show an increasing awareness of errors and able to self-correct or edit; 
(ii) use phrases, imagery, or content; 
(iii) simplify; 
(iv) use known language to compensate for missing vocabulary; 
(v) use graphic organizer; and 
(vi) use reference resources as appropriate; and 
(j) uses some culturally appropriate vocabulary, expressions, and gestures. 

reflects some knowledge of cultural differences related to written and spoken 
communication. 

 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101 MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-3-106, 20-7-101, MCA 
 
NEW RULE VIII WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE DESCRIPTORS 

AT THE ADVANCED LEVEL 
(1) At the advanced level for the interpersonal mode of communication, a 

language learner expresses self fully to maintain conversations on familiar topics 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-8- 

and new concrete social, academic, and work-related topics. Can communicate in 
paragraph-length conversations about events with detail and organization. 
Confidently handles situations with an unexpected complication. Shares point of 
view in discussions. A learner: 

(a) can communicate with ease and confidence by understanding and 
producing narrations and descriptions in all major time frames and deal efficiently 
with a situation with an unexpected turn of events; 

(b) may show emerging evidence of the ability to participate in discussions 
about issues beyond the concrete; 

(c) functions fully and effectively in contexts both personal and general; 
(d) content areas include topics of personal and general interest (community, 

national, and international events) as well as work-related topics and areas of 
special competence; 

(e) may show emerging evidence of the ability to communicate in more 
abstract content areas; 

(f) able to understand and produce discourse in full oral paragraphs that are 
organized, cohesive, and detailed. Able to ask questions to probe beyond basic 
details; 

(g) language control is sufficient to interact efficiently and effectively with 
those unaccustomed to dealing with language learners; 

(h) consistent control of basic high-frequency structures facilitates 
comprehension and production;  

(i) comprehends and produces a broad range of vocabulary related to school, 
employment, topics of personal interest, and generic vocabulary related to current 
events and matters of public and community interest; 

(j)uses a range of strategies to maintain communication, able to: 
(i) request clarification; 
(ii) repeat; 
(iii) restate; 
(iv) rephrase; and 
(i) circumlocute; and  
(k) understands and uses cultural knowledge to conform linguistically and 

behaviorally in many social and work-related interactions. Shows conscious 
awareness of significant cultural differences and attempts to adjust accordingly. 

(2) At the advanced level for the interpretive mode of communication, a 
learner understands main ideas and supporting details on familiar and some new, 
concrete topics from a variety of more complex texts that have a clear, organized 
structure. A learner: 

(a) comprehends the main idea and supporting details of narrative, 
descriptive, and straightforward persuasive texts; 

(b) makes inferences and derives meaning from context and linguistic 
features; 

(c) comprehends texts pertaining to real-world topics of general interest 
relevant to personal, social, work-related, community, national, and international 
contexts; 

(d) comprehends paragraph discourse such as that found in stories, 
straightforward literary works, personal and work-related correspondence, written 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-9- 

reports or instructions, oral presentations (news), anecdotes, descriptive texts, and 
other texts dealing with topics of a concrete nature; 

(e) sufficient control of language (vocabulary, structures, conventions of 
spoken and written language, etc.) to understand fully and with ease more complex 
and descriptive texts with connected language and cohesive devices; 

(f) derives meaning by: 
(i) understanding sequencing, time frames, and chronology; and 
(ii) classifying words or concepts according to word order or grammatical use; 
(g) comprehends generic and some specific vocabulary and structures, 

specialized and precise vocabulary on topics related to one’s experience, and an 
expanding number of idiomatic expressions; 

(h) comprehends fully the intent of the message adapting strategies for one’s 
own purposes; uses some or all of the following strategies, able to: 

(i) skim and scan; 
(ii) use visual support and background knowledge; 
(iii) predict meaning based on context, prior knowledge, or experience; 
(iv) use context clues; 
(v) use linguistic knowledge; 
(vi) identify the organizing principle of the text; 
(vii) create inferences; and 
(viii) differentiate main ideas from supporting details in order to verify; and 
(i) uses knowledge of cultural differences between own culture and target 

culture(s) as well as increasing knowledge of the target culture(s) to interpret texts 
that are heard, read, or viewed. 

(3) At the advanced level for the presentational mode of communication, a 
learner communicates information and expresses self with detail and organization on 
familiar and some new concrete topics using paragraphs. A learner:   

(a) produces narrations and descriptions in all major time frames on familiar 
and some unfamiliar topics; 

(b) may show emerging evidence of the ability to provide a well-supported 
argument, including detailed evidence in support of a point of view; 

(c) creates messages fully and effectively in contexts both personal and 
general; 

(d) content areas include topics of personal and general interest (community, 
national, and international events) as well as work-related topics and areas of 
special competence; 

(e) may show emerging evidence of the ability to create messages in more 
abstract content areas; 

(f) produces full paragraphs that are organized and detailed; 
(g) control of high-frequency structures is sufficient to be understood by 

audiences not accustomed to language of language learners; 
(h) with practice, polish, or editing, shows evidence of Advanced-level control 

of grammar and syntax; 
(i) produces a broad range of vocabulary related to topics of personal, public, 

and community interest, and some specific vocabulary related to areas of study or 
expertise; 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-10- 

(j) may use some or all of the following strategies to communicate and 
maintain audience interest, able to:  

(i) demonstrate conscious efforts at self-editing and correction; 
(ii) elaborate and clarify; 
(iii) provide examples, synonyms, or antonyms; 
(iv) use cohesion, chronology, and details to explain or narrate fully; and 
(v) circumlocute; and 
(k) Uses cultural knowledge appropriate to the presentational context and 

increasingly reflective or authentic cultural practices and perspectives. 
 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, 20-7-101 MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-3-106, 20-7-101, MCA 
 
4.  The Board of Public Education proposes to repeal the following rules: 
 
10.54.8510    WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 

 
10.54.8511    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 1 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 

 
10.54.8512    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 1 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 

 
10.54.8513    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 1 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 

 
10.54.8520    WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 

 
10.54.8521    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 2 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8510
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8512
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8513
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8521


 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-11- 

IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 

10.54.8522    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 
STANDARD 2 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 2 

 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8523    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 2 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8530    WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8531    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 3 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8532    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 3 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8533    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 3 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8540    WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 4 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8541    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 4 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8522
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8532
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8533
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8540
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8541


 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-12- 

 
10.54.8542    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 4 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8543    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 4 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8550    WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 5 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8551    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 5 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8552    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 5 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8553    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 5 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8560    WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 6 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8561    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 6 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8542
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8552
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8560


 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-13- 

10.54.8562    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 
STANDARD 6 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 2 

 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8563    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 6 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8570    WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 7 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8571    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 7 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8572    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 7 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8573    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 7 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8580    WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 8 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8581    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 8 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
 

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8562
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8563
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8573


 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-14- 

10.54.8582    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 
STANDARD 8 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 2 

 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8583    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 8 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8590    WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT STANDARD 9 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8591    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 9 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8592    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 9 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8593    BENCHMARK FOR WORLD LANGUAGES CONTENT 

STANDARD 9 FOR END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8607    ADVANCED WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE 

STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8608    PROFICIENT WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE 

STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8582
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8583
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8590
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8591
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8608


 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-15- 

10.54.8609    NEARING PROFICIENCY WORLD LANGUAGES 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 1 

 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8610    NOVICE WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE 

STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 1 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8611    ADVANCED WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE 

STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8612    PROFICIENT WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE 

STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8613    NEARING PROFICIENCY WORLD LANGUAGES 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8614    NOVICE WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE 

STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 2 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8615    ADVANCED WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE 

STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8616    PROFICIENT WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE 

STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8609
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8610
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8611
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8612
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8613
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8614
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8615
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8616


 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-16- 

 
10.54.8617    NEARING PROFICIENCY WORLD LANGUAGES 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 
 
10.54.8618    NOVICE WORLD LANGUAGES PERFORMANCE 

STANDARDS FOR THE END OF BENCHMARK 3 
 
AUTH: 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: 20-2-121, MCA 

 
REASON: By authority of 20-7-101, MCA, Standards of Accreditation for all schools 
are adopted by the board upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction.  The board considers recommendations for revision of the policies at any 
time it deems necessary and conducts a comprehensive review of standards of 
accreditation policies on a regular cycle to ensure that such policies are meeting the 
needs of the state.  There have been numerous revisions over the last decade, but 
the last comprehensive review was in 2013. 
  
The Office of Public Instruction proposes these amendments to the Montana World 
Languages Content Standards because these standards had not been updated in 
more 24 years. The proposed standards reflect the most current research and 
development on how students learn languages. In addition, the State Superintendent 
seeks to improve the standards to provide simplicity, practicality, and clarity. The 
proposal also includes moving the World Language Content Standards from Chapter 
54 to Chapter 53 to align with the classification and ARM location of other Montana 
Content Standards.   
 

5.  Concerned persons may submit their data, views, or arguments either 
orally or in writing at the hearing.  Written data, views, or arguments may also be 
submitted to: McCall Flynn, Executive Director, 46 N Last Chance Gulch, Suite 2B; 
PO Box 200601, Helena, MT 59620-0601; telephone (406) 444-0302; or email 
bpe@mt.gov, and must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., September 6, 2024. 
 

6.  McCall Flynn, Executive Director, has been designated to preside over 
and conduct this hearing. 

 
7.  The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive 

notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, 
email, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies for which 
program the person wishes to receive notices. Notices will be sent by email unless a 
mailing preference is noted in the request. Such written request may be mailed or 
delivered to the contact person in paragraph 5 or may be made by completing a 
request form at any rules hearing held by the board. 

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8617
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E54%2E8618
http://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0070/part_0010/section_0010/0200-0070-0010-0010.html


 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-53-140 

-17- 

 
8.  An electronic copy of this proposal notice is available through the 

Secretary of State’s web site at http://sosmt.gov/ARM/Register. 
 
9.  The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply. 
 
10.  With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has 

determined that the amendment of the above-referenced rules will not significantly 
and directly impact small businesses. 

 
 
/s/ McCall Flynn    /s/ Tim Tharp   
McCall Flynn     Tim Tharp 
Executive Director    Chair 
Board of Public Education   Board of Public Education 

   
Certified to the Secretary of State July 30, 2024. 

http://sosmt.gov/ARM/Register.


State of Montana  PO Box 200601 
  Helena, Montana 59620-0601 
  (406) 444-6576 
  www.bpe.mt.gov 

 Board of Public Education 
 
 
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION TIMELINE 
PROPOSED CHAPTER 54 RULES 

WORLD LANGUAGE CONTENT STANDARDS 
 
 

▪ Proposal notice to BPE for consideration       May 10, 2024 
 

▪ BPE approves rulemaking timeline        July 17-19, 2024 
 

▪ BPE authorization to publish proposal notice, including public hearing date  July 17-19, 2024 
 

▪ Proposal notice to SOS for publication in MAR      July 30, 2024 
 

▪ MAR publication of proposal notice        August 9, 2024 
▪ Public comment begins 

 
▪ Public hearing date          September 4, 2024 

 
▪ Final public comment deadline        September 6, 2024 

 
▪ Adoption notice to BPE for consideration/respond to comments   September 12-13, 2024 

 
▪ Economic Impact Statement to Education Interim Committee   September 18, 2024 

 
▪ BPE authorization to publish adoption notice      January 16-17, 2025 

 
▪ Adoption notice to SOS for publication in MAR     January 2025 

 
▪ MAR publication of adoption notice       January 2025 

 
▪ Effective date of rules         July 1, 2026 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Board of Public Education may revise the above dates, based on the requirements of the Montana 

Administrative Procedure Act and the rulemaking statutes. 



A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. Roll Call
C. Statement of Public Participation
D. Welcome Visitors

July 19, 2024 
Montana State Capitol Building 

Room 152 
Helena, MT 

CALL TO ORDER 



CHARTER COMMITTEE – (Items 23-26)

Madalyn Quinlan 

ITEM 23 

UPDATE ON COMMUNITY CHOICE 
SCHOOL COMMISSION 

Trish Schreiber 



ITEM 24 

ACTION ON PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL 
PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK WORK 

GROUP’S RECOMMENDATIONS ON 
PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL 

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK METRICS 
AND CRITERIA 

Christy Mock-Stutz; Dr. Jeril Hehn, Director 
of Advanced Academics, Billings Public 

Schools; Superintendent Dan Rispens, East 
Helena Public Schools; Barbara Frank, 

Academic and Community Services Director, 
Missoula County Public Schools; 

Superintendent Erik Wilkerson, Jefferson 
High School 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Public Charter School Performance Framework 

Evaluation Criteria 
 
OVERVIEW 
Public charter schools must adhere to the provisions in Title 20 of the Montana Code Annotated and Title 10 of 
the Administrative Rules of Montana and any state or local rule, regulation, policy, or procedure relating to 
noncharter public schools within the located school district, unless a variance to standard was awarded. 
 
Public charter schools shall identify a performance framework as prescribed in 20-6-809, MCA, that clearly sets 
forth the academic and operational performance indicators, measures, and metrics which include: 
 
• School achievement goals  
• Student academic proficiency  
• Student academic growth 

• Achievement gaps in both proficiency and growth between major student subgroups  
• Attendance 
• Recurrent enrollment from year to year  
• Postsecondary readiness  
• Financial performance and sustainability  
• Charter Governing Board performance and stewardship, including compliance with all applicable laws, 

regulations, and terms of the charter contract  
 
The Public Charter School Performance Framework Work Group also included additional performance 
indicators, measures, and metrics which include: 
• Graduation Rate 
• Student Engagement 
• Support for Transitions 

 
These performance framework indicators, measures, and metrics must align to mission-specific goals, and when 
possible, exceed provisions in Title 20 of the Montana Code Annotated and Title 10 of the Administrative Rules 
of Montana. The performance framework indicators, measures, and metrics must be reported to the Board of 
Public Education no later than October 30 of the first year of operation. 
 
Public charter schools shall submit information in accordance with the Office of Public Instruction 
Accreditation Process documenting adherence to the performance framework to support the Board of Public 
Education’s evaluation and annual reporting process.  
 
The Board shall publish an annual report that includes a comparison of the performance of public charter school 
students with the performance of academically, ethnically, and economically comparable groups of students in 
noncharter public schools. 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND RATINGS  
Authorizers establish performance targets that honor their unique contexts. These targets establish the levels of 
performance corresponding to the ratings for a given measure. Authorizers begin by setting targets for the 
Meets Standard rating category, which establish expectations and definitions of a quality performance on a 
given measure. Potential ratings include:  
 
Exceeds Standard  This rating is reserved for performance that far exceeds expectations, 

demonstrating exceptional performance on a particular measure. This rating may 
be used in the academic framework, but it is not typically used in the financial or 
organizational framework.  

 
Meets Standard  The target for this rating category sets the expectation for charter school 

performance in all measures in all frameworks—academic, financial, and 
organizational. Schools earning this rating on a particular measure are performing 
well in that area.  

 
Approaches Standard  Schools with this rating are approaching but have not fully met expectations for 

performance on a given measure. While these schools have achieved some of the 
minimum expectations on the measure in question, these schools may be subject 
to further analysis and potentially closer monitoring. This rating may be used for 
academic measures and qualitative measures in the organizational and financial 
frameworks.  

 
Does Not Meet Standard  Schools with this rating on a measure are performing below the authorizer’s 

expectations, and the school is subject to further analysis, closer monitoring, and 
possibly intervention. This rating is used on all measures in all frameworks.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 | P a g e  
 

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK – ACADEMIC 
 

Is the public charter school academically successful? 

The Board of Public Education places emphasis on multiple measures of student success. Strong literacy and 
numeracy skills are critical for success in life. There are also additional ways schools impact student learning, 
wellness, and other life outcomes consistent with their mission. The Board of Public Education encourages 
charter schools to think more broadly about excellence by setting expectations for, and evaluating progress 
against, other aspects of students’ learning and achievement unique to each school and its particular mission. 
 
Student Achievement Goals 
*Public Charter Schools must submit between 1-3 student achievement goals to highlight innovative efforts. 
Guiding Question: Is the school meeting mission- or school-specific student achievement goals?  

Student Achievement Goals Rubric  
  

Meets Standard (1)  
  

The public charter school has provided moderate evidence of 
meeting their mission- or school-specific student achievement 
goal. 

  
Does Not  

Meet Standard (0)  
  

  
The public charter school has no evidence to support meeting 
their mission- or school-specific student achievement goal.  

Definitions:  
• Moderate - submits at least 2 pieces of relevant and reliable documentation to meet standard. 
 
Student Academic Proficiency/Growth  
Guiding Question: How is the public charter school ensuring all students are learning in Math? 

Math Performance Rubric  
  

Exceeds Standard (3)  
  

The public charter school has provided strong evidence of the use 
of 1 or more well designed measurements for student learning and 
evidence that data generated from tool is used improve teaching 
learning. The data show an increase in achievement in math. 

  
Meets Standard (2)  

  

The public charter school has provided moderate evidence of 
the use of 1 or more valid and reliable measurements for 
student learning. The data show an increase in achievement in 
math. 

  
Approaches Standard (1)  

  

The public charter school has provided limited evidence of the 
use of 1 or more valid and reliable measurements for student 
learning. The data does not show an increase in achievement in 
math 

  
Does Not   

Meet Standard (0)  
  

 
The public charter school has no evidence to support student 
learning in math.  

Definitions:  
• Strong - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement tool used. The data generated from the tool is used to improve 

teaching and learning and demonstrates an increase in student learning progression, growth, or proficiency with 
overall group performance data. 

• Moderate - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement but some evidence on how the measurement tool is used to 
improve teaching and learning. Data provided demonstrates an increase in student learning progression, growth, or 
proficiency with overall group performance data.  

• Limited - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement tool used but no evidence on how the data generated from the 
tool is used to improve teaching or learning or that data provided demonstrates an increase in student learning 
progression, growth, or proficiency with overall group performance data.  

 



4 | P a g e  
 

Guiding Question: How is the public charter school ensuring all students are learning in ELA? 
ELA Performance Rubric  

  
Exceeds Standard (3)  

  

The public charter school has provided strong evidence of the use 
of 1 or more well designed measurements for student learning and 
evidence that data generated from tool is used improve teaching 
learning. The data show an increase in achievement in ELA. 

  
Meets Standard (2)  

  

The public charter school has provided moderate evidence of 
the use of 1 or more valid and reliable measurements for 
student learning. The data show an increase in achievement in 
ELA. 

  
Approaches Standard (1)  

  

The public charter school has provided limited evidence of the 
use of 1 or more valid and reliable measurements for student 
learning. The data does not show an increase in achievement in 
ELA. 

  
Does Not   

Meet Standard (0)  
  

 
The public charter school has no evidence to support student 
learning in ELA.  

Definitions:  
• Strong - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement tool used. The data generated from the tool is used to improve 

teaching and learning and demonstrates an increase in student learning progression, growth, or proficiency with 
overall group performance data. 

• Moderate - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement but some evidence on how the measurement tool is used to 
improve teaching and learning. Data provided demonstrates an increase in student learning progression, growth, or 
proficiency with overall group performance data.  

• Limited - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement tool used but no evidence on how the data generated from the 
tool is used to improve teaching or learning or that data provided demonstrates an increase in student learning 
progression, growth, or proficiency with overall group performance data.  

 
Achievement gaps in both proficiency and growth between major student subgroups  
Guiding Question: How is the public charter school ensuring students in major student subgroups are learning 
in Math? Please name those subgroups. 
Definition: This refers to a subgroup of students identified by a particular characteristic. The student subgroups 
used for the accountability system includes economically disadvantaged students, students from major racial 
and ethnic groups (White, American Indian, and Hispanic), children with disabilities, and English learners. 

Math Subgroup Performance Rubric  
  

Exceeds Standard (3)  
  

The public charter school has provided strong evidence of the use 
of 1 or more well designed measurements for student learning and 
evidence that data generated from tool is used improve teaching 
learning for major student subgroups. The data show an increase 
in achievement in Math. 

  
Meets Standard (2)  

  

The public charter school has provided moderate evidence of 
the use of 1 or more valid and reliable measurements for 
student learning for major student subgroups. The data show 
an increase in achievement in Math. 

  
Approaches Standard (1)  

  

The public charter school has provided limited evidence of the 
use of 1 or more valid and reliable measurements for student 
learning for major student subgroups. The data does not show an 
increase in achievement in Math. 

  
Does Not   

Meet Standard (0)  
  

The public charter school has no evidence to support student 
learning for major student subgroups in Math.  



5 | P a g e  
 

Definitions:  
• Strong - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement tool used. The data generated from the tool is used to improve 

teaching and learning and demonstrates an increase in student learning progression, growth, or proficiency within 
major student subgroup performance data. 

• Moderate - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement but some evidence on how the measurement tool is used to 
improve teaching and learning. Data provided demonstrates an increase in student learning progression, growth, or 
proficiency within major student subgroup performance data. 

• Limited - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement tool used but no evidence on how the data generated from the 
tool is used to improve teaching or learning or that data provided demonstrates an increase in student learning 
progression, growth, or proficiency within major student subgroup performance data. 

 
Guiding Question: How is the public charter school ensuring students in major student subgroups are learning 
in ELA? Please name those subgroups. 
Definition: This refers to a subgroup of students identified by a particular characteristic. The student subgroups 
used for the accountability system includes economically disadvantaged students, students from major racial 
and ethnic groups (White, American Indian, and Hispanic), children with disabilities, and English learners. 

ELA Subgroup Performance Rubric  
  

Exceeds Standard (3)  
  

The public charter school has provided strong evidence of the use 
of 1 or more well designed measurements for student learning and 
evidence that data generated from tool is used improve teaching 
learning for major student subgroups. The data show an increase 
in achievement in ELA. 

  
Meets Standard (2)  

  

The public charter school has provided moderate evidence of 
the use of 1 or more valid and reliable measurements for 
student learning for major student subgroups. The data show 
an increase in achievement in ELA. 

  
Approaches Standard (1)  

  

The public charter school has provided limited evidence of the 
use of 1 or more valid and reliable measurements for student 
learning for major student subgroups. The data does not show an 
increase in achievement in ELA. 

  
Does Not   

Meet Standard (0)  
  

 
The public charter school has no evidence to support student 
learning for major student subgroups in ELA.  

Definitions:  
• Strong - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement tool used. The data generated from the tool is used to improve 

teaching and learning and demonstrates an increase in student learning progression, growth, or proficiency within 
major student subgroup performance data. 

• Moderate - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement but some evidence on how the measurement tool is used to 
improve teaching and learning. Data provided demonstrates an increase in student learning progression, growth, or 
proficiency within major student subgroup performance data. 

• Limited - Evidence of a valid and reliable measurement tool used but no evidence on how the data generated from the 
tool is used to improve teaching or learning or that data provided demonstrates an increase in student learning 
progression, growth, or proficiency within major student subgroup performance data. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 | P a g e  
 

Attendance  
Guiding Question: Is the public charter school’s annual attendance rate meeting the state average of 33% of 
students attending school 95% or more? 

Attendance Rate Rubric 
  

Meets Standard (1)  
  

The public charter school’s average daily attendance rate 
meets the state average. 

  
Does Not  

Meet Standard (0)  
  

 
The public charter school’s average daily attendance rate does 
not meet the state average. 

Definition:  
• must show relevant and reliable documentation to meet standard. 
Comment for Context: If the public charter school does not meet this standard, provide any applicable context 
related to the mission of the charter school to address the discrepancy. 
 
Guiding Question: Provide evidence to show how students are engaged in their learning. 

Student Engagement Rubric 
  

Exceeds Standard (3)  
  

The public charter school has strong evidence to show that 
students are engaged in their learning. 

  
Meets Standard (2)  

  

The public charter school has moderate evidence to show that 
students are engaged in their learning. 

  
Approaches Standard (1)  

  

The public charter school has limited evidence to show that 
students are engaged in their learning. 

  
Does Not   

Meet Standard (0)  
  

 
The public charter school has no evidence to show that students 
are engaged in their learning. 

Definitions:  
• Strong - submits 3 or more pieces of relevant and reliable documentation. 
• Moderate - submits at least 2 pieces of relevant and reliable documentation. 
• Limited - submits at least 1 piece of relevant and reliable documentation. 
 
Graduation Rate (Grades 9-12 Only) 
Guiding Question: Does the public charter school meet the four-year adjusted cohort graduation rate for all 
students and for each student group who meet the state standards with a regular high school diploma. 

Graduation Rate Rubric 
  

Meets Standard (1)  
  

The public charter school meets the state four-year adjusted 
cohort graduation rate. 

  
Does Not  

Meet Standard (0)  
  

  
The public charter school’s graduation rate does not meet the 
state average. 

Definition:  
• must show relevant and reliable documentation to meet standard. 
Comment for Context: If the public charter school does not meet this standard, provide any applicable context 
related to the mission of the charter school to address the discrepancy. 
 
 



7 | P a g e  
 

Support for Transitions (Grades K-8 Only) 
Guiding Question: How is the public charter school supporting students as they transition into a new school 
setting, for example, kindergarten entry or transition to middle school or high school? 

Transitions Rubric 
  

Meets Standard (1)  
  

The public charter school has moderate evidence to support 
transitions into new school settings for students. 

  
Does Not  

Meet Standard (0)  
  

  
The public charter school has no evidence to support transitions 
into new school settings for students. 

Definitions:   
• Moderate - submits at least 2 pieces of relevant and reliable documentation. 
 
Postsecondary Readiness 
Guiding Question: How is the public charter school ensuring that students graduate college and career ready? 

Postsecondary Readiness Rubric (College and Career Readiness) 
  

Exceeds Standard (3)  
  

The public charter school has strong evidence to ensure students 
are graduating ready for college and/or career opportunities. 

  
Meets Standard (2)  

  

The public charter school has moderate evidence to ensure 
students are graduating ready for college and/or career 
opportunities. 

  
Approaches Standard (1)  

  

The public charter school has limited evidence to ensure students 
are graduating ready for college and/or career opportunities. 

  
Does Not   

Meet Standard (0)  
  

 
The public charter school has no evidence to ensure students are 
graduating ready for college and/or career opportunities. 

Definitions:  
• Strong - submits 3 or more pieces of documentation. 
• Moderate - submits at least 2 pieces of documentation. 
• Limited - submits at least 1 piece of documentation. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 | P a g e  
 

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK – FINANCIAL 
 

Is the public charter school financially healthy? 

Public charter schools have the autonomy to manage their finances, consistent with state and federal law. The 
Board of Public Education’s role is to define clear, measurable, and attainable financial standards and targets 
that a school must meet as a condition of renewal. The Board of Public Education has developed and utilized a 
good set of tools to assess and monitor a school’s financial health while respecting a school’s autonomy. 
 
Financial Performance and Stability 
Guiding Question: Does the public charter school materially comply with applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
and provisions of the Charter Contract relating to financial reporting requirements including timely and 
complete submission of required documents. 

Financial Performance and Stability Rubric  
  

Meets Standard (1)  
  

The public charter school materially complies with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations, and provisions of the Charter 
Contract relating to financial reporting requirements 
including timely and complete submission of required 
documents, such as:  
• Public Charter Initial Statement. 
• Public Charter Financial Summaries. 
• Trustee Financial Summaries. 

  
Does Not  

Meet Standard (0)  
  

The public charter school does not materially comply with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations, and provisions of the charter 
contract relating to financial reporting requirements due to failure 
to make timely and complete submission of required documents, 
including failure or unwillingness to provide additional 
information requested by the Board of Public Education.  

Definition:  
• must show relevant and reliable documentation of each activity listed to meet standard. 
 
Recurrent enrollment from year to year 
Guiding Question: What targets has the public charter school set for recurrent enrollment from year to year 
and provide evidence of how the public charter school is meeting these targets. 
Definition: recurrent enrollment is the number of students continuing to be enrolled in the school from one year 
to the next expressed as a percentage of the total number of students eligible to continue their enrollment at the 
school. 

Recurrent Enrollment Rubric  
  

Meets Standard (1)  
  

The public charter school meets their recurrent enrollment 
targets and provides evidence to support these targets. 
  

  
Does Not  

Meet Standard (0)  
  

The public charter school does not meet their recurrent enrollment 
targets and does not provide sufficient evidence to support these 
targets. 

Definition:  
• must show relevant and reliable documentation to meet standard. 
Comment for Context: If the public charter school does not meet this standard, provide any applicable context 
related to the mission of the charter school to address the discrepancy. 
 
 
 
 



9 | P a g e  
 

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK – ORGANIZATIONAL 
 

Is the public charter school organizationally sound? 

The Board of Public Education is responsible for holding public charter schools accountable for sound and well-
functioning organizational practices to protect the public interest. The Organizational Framework provides a 
comprehensive lens to the extent to which public charter schools are meeting operational expectations and 
protecting student and public interests while simultaneously honoring public charter schools’ rightful autonomy 
to design and deliver school models that meet students’ needs.  
 

Charter Governing Board performance and stewardship, including compliance with all applicable laws, 
regulations, and terms of the charter contract.  
Guiding Question: Does the Charter Governing Board comply with basic governance requirements? 

Governance Oversight Rubric  
  

Meets Standard (1)  
  

The Charter Governing Board complies with basic 
governance requirements such as: 
• monitoring academic performance at least once a quarter. 
• reviewing financial reports at each board meeting. 
• engaging in strategic planning. 
• conducting evaluations of its school leader, in accordance 

with Charter Governing Board policies. 
• monitoring compliance with its charter contract. 
• monitoring compliance with applicable law and 

regulations.  
• ensuring compliance with the family and community 

engagement plan. 
  

Does Not  
Meet Standard (0)  

  

 
The Charter Governing Board fails to materially comply with any 
one of the activities outlined above.  

Definition:  
• must show relevant and reliable documentation of each activity listed to meet standard. 
 
 

OPEN ENDED QUESTIONS 
1. How has the public charter school prioritized innovation different from a program that the school district 

could operate or currently operates without the public charter designation? 
 
2. Why is the public charter school innovating? What are the student needs in the community that are trying to 

be met? 
 
3. How is the public charter school flexible and nimble in response to the needs of students? 
 
4. What roadblocks or challenges is the public charter school encountering in efforts to innovate in the public 

charter school? 
 

 
 

 
 



ITEM 25 

ACTION TO DELAY THE OPENING OF 
JEFFERSON ACADEMY PUBLIC 

CHARTER SCHOOL FOR ONE-YEAR AND 
REVISION OF THE CHARTER CONTRACT 

Madalyn Quinlan 
Superintendent Erik Wilkerson, Jefferson 

High School 





Page 1 of 18 
 

INITIAL PUBLIC CHARTER CONTRACT 
 

This agreement, executed on this 28 day of February 2024 by and between the Montana Board of 
Public Education and the Charter Governing Board of Jefferson Academy (collectively, the 
“Parties”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS the State of Montana (the “State”) enacted the Public Charter Schools Act (the “Act”); and 
 
WHEREAS pursuant to 20-6-804, MCA, the Board of Public Education has the authority to (i) 
approve applications to establish public charter schools in the State, (ii) thereafter to enter into a 
Charter Contract with applicants setting forth the terms and conditions under which a public charter 
school shall operate, and (iii) may thereafter renew a Charter Contract for a period of up to five 
years; and 
 
WHEREAS an application was submitted to the Board of Public Education for establishment of a 
new public charter school pursuant to the Act, which the Board of Public Education approved;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, representations, warranties, and 
agreements contained herein, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Definition of Terms 

1.1. Board of Public Education: the board created by Article X, section 9(3), of the Montana 
constitution and 2-15-1507, MCA. 

1.2. Charter Contract: a fixed-term, renewable contract between a Charter Governing Board of 
a public charter school and the Board of Public Education that outlines the roles, powers, 
responsibilities, and performance expectations for each party to the contract. 

1.3. Charter Governing Board: the elected board of trustees of a public charter school district 
exercising supervision and control over a public charter school or the Local school board 
that is a party to the Charter Contract with the Board of Public Education and that 
exercises supervision and control over a public charter school pursuant to a Charter 
Contract.  Each Charter Governing Board is entitled to operate one school in one or more 
sites for each Charter Contract issued to it. 

1.4. Local school board: a preexisting board of trustees exercising supervision and control of the 
schools and programs of a local school district pursuant to Article X, section 8, of the Montana 
constitution and the laws of the state of Montana. 

1.5. Located school district: the school district in which a proposed, preoperational, or 
operational public charter school is located and from which the separate boundaries of the 
public charter school district are proposed to be formed. When a public charter school district 
is formed, the boundaries of the public charter school district are removed from the territory of 
the located school district. 

1.6. Noncharter public school: any public school that is under the supervision and control of a 
Local school board or the state and is not operating pursuant to a Charter Contract. 

1.7. School: a vehicle for the delivery of a complete educational program to students that has: 
independent leadership; dedicated staff; and defined facilities. A Charter Governing Board 
may have the authority to operate more than one school so long as a Charter Contract has 
been issued for each such school. A school may be housed in more than one physical site. 
The Charter Governing Board of a public charter school shall function as a Local 
Educational Agency (LEA). A public charter school is responsible for meeting the 
requirements of a LEA under applicable federal, state, and local laws, including those relating 
to special education. The Charter Governing Board is responsible for special education at 



Page 2 of 18 
 

the school, including identification and service provisions, and is responsible for meeting the 
needs of enrolled students with disabilities. 

1.8. Site: one of a number of facility locations for a single public charter school typically 
representing a grade range (for example, K-6 site, 7-8 site, or 9-12 site). A site would not be 
its own LEA, ESSA, or state Accountability Designation unit. More than one public charter 
school building tightly clustered (i.e., a campus) would operate as a “single site.”  
 

2. Establishment of the Jefferson Academy. 
2.1. Charter Agreement.  This agreement (the Charter Contract), which specifically incorporates 

the following: 
2.1.1. certain terms of operation set forth collectively and attached hereto in Exhibit A, and 

shall incorporate the initial charter applications or proposals of any additional schools that 
may hereafter be approved by the Board of Public Education, and which shall be 
hereafter referred to collectively as the Terms of Operation (the “Terms of Operation”); 

2.1.2. the Monitoring Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Monitoring Plan”), which shall 
incorporate applicable monitoring procedures which must be completed by the Charter 
Governing Board;  

2.1.3. the Performance Framework developed by each school to be operated by the Charter 
Governing Board or to be developed during the first year of operation by any additional 
school the Charter Governing Board may be permitted to operate, and further 
described herein and set forth in Exhibit C, (the “Performance Framework”);  

2.1.4. the Additional Assurances and Variances to Standards, if any, set forth in Exhibit D (the 
“Additional Assurances and Variances to Standards”); 

2.2. Purpose.  This Charter Contract is entered into for the purpose of authorizing the 
establishment of a public charter school that meets identified educational needs and 
promotes a diversity of educational choices.  The Charter Governing Board shall operate a 
public charter school consistent with the terms of the Charter Contract and all applicable 
laws and administrative rules to create an innovative and high-performing public charter 
school under the general supervision of the Board of Public Education and under the 
supervision and control of the Charter Governing Board who are elected by the qualified 
electors in the community where the public charter school is located. 

2.3. Applicable Law and Venue. Montana law governs this Charter Contract.  Except as provided 
in 20-6-811, MCA, and this Charter Contract, the Charter Governing Board is subject to the 
provisions in Title 20 of the Montana Code Annotated and any state local rule, regulation, 
policy, or procedure relating to noncharter public schools within the located school district.  
The parties agree that any litigation concerning the Charter Contract must be brought in the 
First Judicial District in and for the County of Lewis and Clark, State of Montana, and each 
party shall pay its own costs and attorney fees. 

2.4. Authority to Operate; Effective Date; Term.  The Board of Public Education, as the sole 
entity authorized to enter into charter contracts, having approved the Charter Governing 
Board to operate a public charter school on January 19, 2024, authorizes the Charter 
Governing Board to open and commence operation of a school on July 1, 2025. This 
Charter Contract is effective upon the signing of both parties for a term of five (5) years 
commencing on July 1, 2025, and ending on June 30, 2030. The Charter Contract may be 
renewed pursuant to 20-6-809, MCA, or extended pursuant to the terms herein. 

2.4.1. Planning Years, Effect. The Charter Governing Board shall continue or commence 
instruction, as the case may be, in conformity with the schedule set forth in the Terms of 
Operation for each school it is permitted to operate.  

2.4.1.1. Subject to the foregoing limitation, planning years applicable to any school or 
schools set forth in the Terms of Operation shall not require further approval of the 
Board of Public Education or constitute a revision to the Charter Contract.  



Page 3 of 18 
 

2.4.1.2. The Charter Governing Board may take one (1) additional planning year 
pursuant to 20-6-806, MCA. In this case, the Board of Public Education will 
authorize a delayed effective date commencing on July 1, 2025, and ending on June 
30, 2030, for a term of five (5) years. 

2.4.1.3. In the event the Charter Governing Board is unable to open a school or 
schools by such date(s) the Charter Contract issued that permitted the Charter 
Governing Board to operate such school(s) shall be deemed to be void ab initio.  
 

3. Governance 
3.1. Status.  The school shall be governed by the Charter Governing Board, as updated by 

subsequent election and approval, resignation, removal, or other disposition in accordance 
applicable law. The Charter Governing Board shall have final authority for policy and 
operational decisions of the school although nothing herein shall prevent the Charter 
Governing Board from delegating decision-making authority to officers, employees, and 
agents of the Charter Governing Board.  In addition: 

3.1.1. The Charter Governing Board shall establish and appoint members of an advisory 
board to provide recommendations and insight regarding the public charter school's 
operations. Members of the advisory board must include members with knowledge or 
experience in the mission or focus of the public charter school. 

3.1.2. The Charter Governing Board and its officers, directors, members, and partners, 
have a duty of care for complying with the provisions of this Charter Contract, all 
applicable laws, administrative rules, regulations, and reporting requirements. 

3.2. Code of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest.  The Charter Governing Board, its trustees, officers, 
and employees shall abide by the code of ethics and/or conflicts of interest policy set forth in 
existing Local school board approved policies, which must conform to applicable law, and 
include standards with respect to disclosure of conflicts of interest regarding any matter 
brought before the Charter Governing Board.  

3.3. Bylaws.  The Charter Governing Board shall provide notice to the Board of Public 
Education within five (5) business days regarding any proposed amendment to its bylaws, 
policies, or operating procedures that may impact the operation of a public charter school 
within its geographic boundaries. 
 

4. School Operations 
4.1. Age; Grade Range; Number of Students. Each school operated by the Charter Governing 

Board shall provide instruction to pupils in such ages, grades, and numbers in each year of 
operation as set forth in the Terms of Operation.  The Charter Governing Board shall 
annually determine the capacity of the school in consideration of the Charter Governing 
Board’s assessment of its ability to facilitate the academic success of students, to achieve the 
objectives specified in the Charter Contract, and to ensure that student enrollment does not 
exceed the capacity of its designated site. 

4.2. Admissions; Enrollment; Attendance; Transfer.  The Charter Governing Board shall have in 
place and implement comprehensive policies for admissions, enrollment, and attendance, 
which policies shall be approved by the Charter Governing Board and shall be consistent 
with applicable law and regulations. Such policies shall provide in detail the procedures and 
practices utilized by each school in regard to admission, enrollment, attendance and 
withdrawal including, inter alia, the period in which applications for admission shall be timely, 
how to obtain an application for admission, the practices in operating the random selection 
process, the maintenance of a wait list, the implementation of enrollment preferences, and the 
taking of student attendance. With the exception of any changes in the at-risk school design 
factors, the Charter Governing Board shall have the authority to make changes to such 
policies and such changes shall not require the permission of the Board of Public Education 



Page 4 of 18 
 

or constitute a revision to the Charter Contract. Such changes, however, must be consistent 
with applicable law and regulations. 

4.3. Marketing. The Charter Governing Board shall utilize reasonable outreach and marketing 
measures to make potential applicants aware of opportunities for enrollment at each of its 
schools.  

4.4. Insurance. The Charter Governing Board shall, at its own expense, purchase and maintain 
the insurance coverage for liability and property loss for each school or site as is described 
in the Terms of Operation together with any other additional insurance that the Charter 
Governing Board deems necessary. Such insurance policies shall continue in effect. In the 
case of additional schools, the applicable insurance must be in effect prior to employees or 
students being present. The Charter Governing Board shall provide the Board of Public 
Education with certificates of insurance or other satisfactory proof evidencing coverage 
including, but not limited to, renewal policies, or additions, riders or amendments thereto 
covering additional schools. All such insurance policies shall contain a provision requiring 
notice to the Board of Public Education, at least thirty (30) days in advance, of any material 
change, nonrenewal or termination. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, the 
Charter Governing Board shall take all steps necessary to comply with any additional 
regulations made applicable to public schools. 

4.5. Contracting with Educational Service Providers. Any entity that provides all or a substantial 
subset of all services necessary to operate and oversee any school’s educational program on 
a fee basis and pursuant to a fee-based contract shall be known as an educational service 
provider (“Educational Service Provider”) and the contract under which such services are 
provided shall be referred to as a management contract (“Management Contract”). Any other 
contractual arrangements including, but not limited to, leases, subleases, lease-purchase 
agreements, credit facilities, loan agreements, promissory notes, negotiable instruments, and 
other debt instruments, that are contemplated between the Charter Governing Board on the 
one hand and the Educational Service Provider, its partners, parents, subsidiaries, agents, 
and affiliates (including any entity that holds an economic interest in the Educational Service 
Provider) on the other, shall be known collectively, together with the Management Contract, as 
ESP Contracts (“ESP Contracts”). The following requirements and provisions relating to 
Educational Service Providers, Management Contracts and ESP Contracts shall apply. 

4.5.1. Except as otherwise provided in this Charter Contract, the Board of Public 
Education reserves the right to review and disapprove for good cause shown any and all 
ESP Contracts that the Charter Governing Board seeks to execute, amend, or renew 
during the time that this Charter Contract is in effect. Good cause shown includes, but is 
in no way limited to, a finding that the ESP Contract(s) at issue does not, under the 
totality of the circumstances, allow the Charter Governing Board effective and sufficient 
means to hold the Educational Service Provider accountable including means to 
terminate the Educational Service Provider without placing the school’s further existence 
in peril.  

4.5.2. To facilitate the Board of Public Education’s rights of review and disapproval, the 
Charter Governing Board shall provide the Board of Public Education with any 
proposed ESP Contract or proposed material amendment thereto no later than thirty (30) 
days prior to the proposed date of execution. In addition to the foregoing, prior to a 
school’s first year of operation, and where no prior Management Contract has been in 
place for that school, the Charter Governing Board must submit the proposed 
Management Contract to the Board of Public Education by no later than July 1 
immediately preceding the start of the school year. When submitting an ESP Contract, 
the Charter Governing Board must include a written opinion of the Charter Governing 
Board's legal counsel stating that the ESP Contract has been reviewed by legal counsel 
to the Charter Governing Board. Within thirty (30) days of receiving the proposed ESP 
Contract, the Board of Public Education shall notify the Charter Governing Board if 



Page 5 of 18 
 

the agreement is disapproved, except that the Board of Public Education, at their 
discretion, may extend the review period an additional thirty (30) days. It is expressly 
understood that should the Board of Public Education not disapprove an ESP Contract, 
the Board of Public Education by such action(s) are in no way endorsing or approving 
the contract, the fee arrangements if any or any other provisions contained therein. 

4.5.3. To the extent that the Terms of Operation contemplate that any of the Charter 
Governing Board’s schools would be operated with the assistance of an Educational 
Service Provider pursuant to a Management Contract, the Charter Governing Board 
shall obtain the prior written approval of the Board of Public Education prior to 
operating the school without such Educational Service Provider’s assistance. 
Notwithstanding the above, it is understood that circumstances may require the Charter 
Governing Board to terminate and/or not renew a Management Contract and thereafter 
operate a school without the services of the Educational Service Provider identified in the 
Terms of Operation (or otherwise subsequently approved by the Board of Public 
Education) prior to obtaining the permission of the Board of Public Education. Where 
the Board of Public Education determines, at their sole discretion, that such 
circumstances exist, and the Charter Governing Board has made good faith efforts to 
timely inform the Board of Public Education of the circumstances, the Board of Public 
Education may waive the Charter Governing Board’s breach of the prior permission 
requirement and allow the Charter Governing Board to seek permission ex post facto. 

4.5.4. Management Contracts shall set forth with particularity, inter alia, the extent of the 
Educational Service Provider’s participation in the organization, operation and 
governance of the Charter Governing Board and any school, and contain a provision 
requiring the Educational Service Provider to provide the Board of Public Education 
access to its annual financial statements and audit. 

4.6. Educational Programs. 
4.6.1. The Charter Governing Board shall implement and provide educational programs at 

its school(s) that are designed to permit and do permit students to meet or exceed the 
performance standards adopted by the Board of Public Education and the goals, and 
measures of progress towards those goals, of the school(s) as set forth in the 
Performance Framework. Subject to the immediately foregoing requirements, the 
Charter Governing Board shall have the right to make any modifications to the 
educational programs of its schools as it deems necessary including, but not limited to, 
the curriculum, pedagogical approach, and staffing structure, and such modifications 
shall not require the permission of the Board of Public Education or be deemed a 
revision to the Charter Contract, provided however, that any such modifications shall be 
generally consistent with the Terms of Operation and applicable law, and the Charter 
Governing Board reports such modifications as part of its annual report. 

4.6.2. Subject to any restraints in the Act or this Charter Contract, the Charter Governing 
Board may offer or share programs, settings, classes, and services between and among 
schools including grade level programs, specialized programs such as programs for 
students with disabilities or English language learners, and other programs so long as 
each such program is described in the Terms of Operation, each student participating in 
such program is included in the enrollment and Performance Framework of the student’s 
sending school, unless the Board of Public Education, in their sole discretion, 
otherwise permit. 

4.7. Performance Frameworks. By October 31 of the school year in which any school first 
commences instruction, the Charter Governing Board shall ensure that such school creates 
a Performance Framework, which plan upon its completion shall be incorporated into the 
Charter Contract as a Term of Operation. The Performance Framework shall replace and 
substitute for the assessment measures and educational goals and objectives set forth in the 
school’s charter application in the Terms of Operation, but shall not provide for less stringent 



Page 6 of 18 
 

assessment measures or educational goals and objectives than those set forth in the school’s 
charter application. The Charter Governing Board understands that any school’s success in 
meeting the goals and measures set forth in its Performance Framework shall be the 
predominant criterion by which the success of the school’s education program will be 
evaluated by the Board of Public Education upon the Charter Governing Board’s 
application for renewal of the authority to operate such school.  

4.8. Monitoring Plan and Oversight. The Charter Governing Board acknowledges that the Board 
of Public Education, or their authorized agents, have the right to visit, examine into and 
inspect the Charter Governing Board as well as any school or program the Charter 
Governing Board may operate pursuant to a Charter Contract and any records related to 
any of the foregoing. To permit the Board of Public Education to fulfill their oversight 
function under the Act and ensure that the Charter Governing Board and each of its schools 
is in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and the terms and conditions 
of this Charter Contract, the Charter Governing Board agrees to abide by the Monitoring 
Plan, the requirements of which are set forth at Exhibit B. 

4.9. Education of Students with Disabilities.  The Charter Governing Board shall provide services 
and accommodations to students with disabilities as set forth for each school in the Terms of 
Operation and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. § 1401 et seq.) (the 
“IDEA”), the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.) (the “ADA”), section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794) (“Section 504”), all applicable 
regulations promulgated pursuant to such federal laws, and the individualized education 
program (“IEP”) of each student as determined by the IEP Team formed consistent with 34 
CFR § 300.321. Each school shall provide such appropriate and required services either 
directly, cooperatively with another school operated by the Charter Governing Board, or by 
contract with another provider. 
 

5. School Personnel 
5.1. Status. The Charter Governing Board shall employ and/or contract with necessary 

personnel. The Charter Governing Board shall provide written notice to the Board of Public 
Education within five (5) business days of the hiring or departure (by resignation or 
dismissal) of the administrator, principal, or head of any school, however designated. The 
organizational structure of the Charter Governing Board and each school shall be consistent 
with the structures set forth in the Terms of Operation. 

5.2. Personnel Policies; Staff Responsibilities. The Charter Governing Board shall make 
available in written form its hiring and personnel policies and procedures for the school, 
including the qualifications required by the Charter Governing Board in the hiring of 
teachers, school administrators, and other school employees as well as a description of staff 
responsibilities. Such policies and procedures shall be consistent with those set forth in the 
Terms of Operation, and should clearly indicate that the Board of Public Education shall 
have access to all personnel files to the extent permissible by law. 

5.3. Background Checks; Fingerprinting. The Charter Governing Board shall establish, maintain, 
and implement procedures for conducting fingerprint-based background checks. 
 

6. Financial Operations 
6.1. Management and Financial Controls. 

6.1.1.  The Charter Governing Board shall at all times maintain appropriate governance and 
managerial procedures and financial controls and maintain the same at each public 
charter school, program or other activity operated by the Charter Governing Board. 

6.1.2. The Charter Governing Board shall provide a statement to the Board of Public 
Education, no later than one hundred and twenty (120) days after the date of execution 
of the Charter Contract, concerning the status of management and financial controls 



Page 7 of 18 
 

(the "Initial Statement") of the school. The Initial Statement must address whether the 
Charter Governing Board has documented adequate controls at that school relating to: 

6.1.2.1. (i) preparing financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (“GAAP”); 

6.1.2.2. (ii) payroll procedures; 
6.1.2.3. (iii) accounting for contributions and grants; 
6.1.2.4. (iv) procedures for the creation and review of quarterly financial statements, 

which procedures shall specifically identify the individual who will be responsible for 
preparing and reviewing such financial statements for the Charter Governing 
Board and for each applicable public charter school; and, 

6.1.2.5. (v) appropriate internal financial controls and procedures. 
6.2. The Initial Statement shall be reviewed and ratified by the Charter Governing Board prior to 

its submission to the Board of Public Education. 
6.2.1 If the financial controls proposed in the Charter Governing Board’s Initial Statement 

are substantially similar (i.e., no material difference) with financial controls currently in 
place and used by the Local school board, the Charter Governing Board shall 
include a copy of its most recent completed audit when submitting the Initial Statement. 
The Board of Public Education may require additional evidence to verify the 
correction of any deficiencies noted in the audit. 

6.2.2 If the financial controls proposed in the Charter Governing Board’s Initial Statement 
are materially different from financial controls currently in place and used by the Local 
school board, the Charter Governing Board shall retain, when possible, an 
independent certified public accountant or independent certified public accounting firm 
licensed in the State to perform an agreed-upon procedures engagement. The purpose 
of the engagement will be to assist the Charter Governing Board in evaluating the 
Initial Statement and the procedures, policies, and practices established thereunder. 
The Board of Public Education may require additional evidence to verify the 
correction of all such deficiencies. 

6.3. Financial Statements; Interim Reports. All financial statements that the Charter Governing 
Board is required to prepare shall be in accordance with GAAP then in effect. During each 
year of operation, the Charter Governing Board shall prepare and submit to the Board of 
Public Education a quarterly unaudited statement report of income and expenses for that 
preceding quarter in such form and electronic format as prescribed and disseminated by the 
Board of Public Education. to include, but not be limited to, certain financial statements for 
each public charter school operated by the Charter Governing Board. The Board of Public 
Education may reduce the frequency of financial reports after the first year of operation. 

6.4. Audits. 
6.4.1. For so long as the Office of Public Instruction’s currently operative audit letter does not 

identify charter school financial statements as a category that must be audited, the 
Charter Governing Board shall retain either an independent certified public accountant 
or certified public accounting firm licensed in the State to perform annually an audit of the 
Charter Governing Board’s annual financial statements related to public charter 
schools. Should the Office of Public Instruction’s currently operative audit letter identify 
charter school financial statements as a category that must be audited, however, the 
Charter Governing Board shall retain an independent certified public accountant or 
certified public accounting firm licensed in the State to perform annually an audit of the 
Local school board’s annual financial statements. The independent audit of the Charter 
Governing Board’s financial statements must be performed in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, as well as any additional requirements and 
guidelines that may be provided by the Board of Public Education. The audited 



Page 8 of 18 
 

financial statements must be submitted to the Board of Public Education within ten (10) 
business days of receipt of any such complete and final audit report. 

6.4.2. A Charter Governing Board that contracts with an Educational Service Provider must 
submit to the Board of Public Education audited financial statements of the Educational 
Service Providers by October 31 of each year. 

6.5. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Charter Governing Board shall begin on July 1 of each 
calendar year of the term of the initial Charter Contract and shall end on June 30 of the 
subsequent calendar year. 

6.6. Annual Budgets and Cash Flow Projections. 
6.6.1. Except in the first year of operation, a Charter Governing Board shall prepare and 

provide to the Board of Public Education a copy of its annual budgets and cash flow 
projections for each public charter school it has been authorized to operate each fiscal 
year by no later than August 30 of the immediately preceding fiscal year. 

6.6.2. All annual budgets and cash flow projections shall be in such form and electronic 
format as prescribed and disseminated by the Board of Public Education. 

6.7. Release of Funding. In the first year of the public charter school operations, if, after the 
October enrollment count, a public charter school does not meet the eligibility requirements 
for separate budget unit status and basic entitlement pursuant to 20-6-812, MCA, public 
charter schools receiving a basic entitlement will be subject to the return of overpayment 
provisions under 20-9-344, MCA. 

 
7. Reporting Requirements 

7.1. Annual Reports. No later than July 1 succeeding a school year in which any public charter 
school provided instruction, the Charter Governing Board shall submit to the Board of 
Public Education an Annual Report for each such public charter school setting forth the 
academic program and performance of each public charter school for the preceding school 
year. The Annual Report shall be in such form as shall be prescribed by the Board of Public 
Education and shall include at least the following components. 

7.1.1. A discussion of each school’s progress made towards achievement of the goals set 
forth in the Terms of Operation including its Performance Framework. 

7.1.2. A report on the progress of each public charter school in meeting the goals and 
measures of the Performance Framework during the last school year (the “Performance 
Framework Progress Report”). The Performance Framework Progress Report must 
contain data addressing each goal and measure in the school’s Performance Framework 
and should report data as may be required by the Board of Public Education in order 
for the Board of Public Education to substantiate outcomes. The Performance 
Framework Progress Report shall be prepared pursuant to any requirements set forth by 
the Board of Public Education. Should the Performance Framework Progress Report 
indicate that the school has not met one or more of the goals in its Performance 
Framework, the Board of Public Education may require the Charter Governing Board 
to submit a corrective plan for the school pursuant to this Charter Contract. 

7.1.3. The statement of assurances relating to compliance with requirements under the 
Charter Contract and applicable law, the form and requirements of which shall be 
determined by the Board of Public Education. 

7.1.4. A brief statement setting forth changes to the school’s educational program and 
mission as well as governing and organizational structures, during the previous fiscal and 
school year. 

7.2. Financial Reports. The Charter Governing Board shall provide the financial reports required 
by this Charter Contract pursuant to the terms and dates specified therein. 
 

8. Renewal, Corrective Action, and Termination 



Page 9 of 18 
 

8.1. School Renewal. No later than June 30 of each year, the Board of Public Education shall 
issue a public charter school performance report and charter renewal application guide to the 
Charter Governing Board of any public charter school whose charter will expire the following 
year.  The performance report must summarize the public charter school’s performance 
record and must provide notice of any weaknesses or concerns perceived by the Board of 
Public Education that may jeopardize renewal if not rectified.  The Charter Governing 
Board shall respond to the performance report and submit any corrections or clarifications 
within 90 days.  

8.2. No later than February 1, the Charter Governing Board shall submit to the Board of Public 
Education a renewal application to extend the authority to operate a school (the “School 
Renewal Application”). The School Renewal Application shall conform to 20-6-809, MCA, and 
the Board of Public Education’s guidelines and contain: 

8.2.1. a report of the progress of the school in achieving the educational objectives set forth 
in the Terms of Operation; 

8.2.2. a detailed financial statement disclosing the cost of administration, instruction, and 
other spending categories for the school that will allow a comparison of such costs to 
other schools; 

8.2.3. copies of each of the Annual Reports of the school including the school report cards 
and certified financial statements; 

8.2.4. evidence of parent and student satisfaction at the school; and 
8.2.5. such other material and information as is required by the Board of Public Education. 

8.3. Approval or Denial of School Renewal. The Board of Public Education shall either approve 
or deny the School Renewal Application. In the event that the School Renewal Application is 
not approved, the Charter Governing Board shall close the school at the end of the school 
year that corresponds with the end of the period the Charter Governing Board may operate 
the school pursuant to this Charter Contract, and the Charter Governing Board shall follow 
the procedures for school closure as established by the Board of Public Education. In the 
event that the School Renewal Application is granted in whole or part, the Board of Public 
Education shall enter into a proposed renewal Charter Contract to allow the Charter 
Governing Board to operate the school for an additional period of time in accordance with 
the Board of Public Education’s renewal practices. Nothing herein shall obligate the Board 
of Public Education to approve a School Renewal Application. 

8.4. Corrective Plans. If the Board of Public Education determines that the Charter Governing 
Board or any of its charter schools, programs or sites is not progressing toward one or more 
of the performance or education goals set forth in the Charter Contract, that the quality of a 
charter school’s, program’s or site’s educational program or the Charter Governing Board’s 
governance practices are not satisfactory, or that the Charter Governing Board or any of its 
charter schools or sites is not in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Charter 
Contract including the Monitoring Plan, then the Board of Public Education, in consultation 
with the Charter Governing Board, may develop and require the Charter Governing Board 
to implement a corrective plan (“Corrective Plan”). Nothing contained herein shall require the 
Board of Public Education to undertake the development of a Corrective Plan to terminate 
the authority to operate a charter school, site or program, place the Charter Governing 
Board on probationary status, or initiate mandatory remedial action in accordance with the 
Act or the Charter Contract. The terms and conditions of a remedial plan may include, but 
are not limited to, the termination of the authority of the Charter Governing Board to operate 
a particular charter school, site, or program. 

8.5. Grounds for Charter Termination or Revocation. The Charter Contract may be terminated 
and revoked: 

8.5.1. by the Board of Public Education in accordance with the Act; or, 
8.5.2. by mutual agreement of the Parties hereto. 



Page 10 of 18 
 

8.6. Grounds for School Closure. The Charter Governing Board’s authority to operate any 
charter school, site, or program may be terminated or revoked: 

8.6.1. should the Board of Public Education determine that one of the grounds set forth in 
the Act apply to such charter school, site, or program; or 

8.6.2. by mutual agreement of the Parties hereto. 
8.7. Notice and Procedures. 

8.7.1. Should the Board of Public Education determine that one of the grounds for 
termination or revocation of the Charter Contract as defined under the Act has occurred 
or is occurring, the Board of Public Education may, at their discretion, elect as follows: 

8.7.1.1. to terminate the Charter Contract; or 
8.7.1.2. terminate the Charter Governing Board’s authority to operate one or more 

charter schools, programs, or sites, or any combination thereof; or, 
8.7.2. Should the Board of Public Education elect to terminate the Charter Contract, the 

Board of Public Education shall provide notice of such to the Charter Governing 
Board at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of the proposed termination. 
Such notice shall include a statement of reasons for the proposed termination. Prior to 
termination of the Charter Contract, the Charter Governing Board shall be provided an 
opportunity to be heard and present evidence in opposition to termination. 

8.7.3.  Should the Board of Public Education elect to terminate the authority of the Charter 
Governing Board to operate a charter school or site, the Board of Public Education 
shall provide notice of such to the Charter Governing Board at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the effective date of the proposed action. 

8.8. Effect of Termination. In the event of termination of the Charter Contract, whether 
prematurely or otherwise, the Charter Governing Board agrees to follow any additional 
procedures required by the Board of Public Education to ensure an orderly dissolution or 
transition process, including the implementation of a school closure plan as provided by the 
Board of Public Education. 
 

9. Other Covenants and Warranties 
9.1. Indemnification and Acknowledgements 

9.1.1. Indemnification:  The Charter Governing Board shall indemnify, defend, save and 
hold harmless the Board of Public Education, the State of Montana, its departments, 
agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its officers, officials, agents and 
employees (“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim 
processing, investigation and litigation) (“Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury 
(including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged 
to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Charter Governing Board or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 
subcontractors. This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered 
under the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of the Charter 
Governing Board to conform to any federal, state, or local law, statute, ordinance, 
administrative rule, regulation, or court decree that is applicable to the Charter 
Governing Board. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all 
instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions 
of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by the Charter Governing Board from and against 
any and all claims. It is agreed that the Charter Governing Board will be responsible for 
primary loss investigation, defense, and judgment costs where this indemnification is 
applicable. In consideration of the award of this Charter Contract, the Charter 
Governing Board agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the State of Montana, 
its officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from the work performed by 
the Charter Governing Board for the State of Montana. 



Page 11 of 18 
 

9.1.2. Immunity.  The parties acknowledge that, pursuant to law, the Board of Public 
Education, its members, officers, and employees shall enjoy all immunities from liability 
as provided under the law. Nothing in this Charter Contract shall be construed as a 
waiver of any rights, limits, protections, or defenses provided by any sovereign or 
governmental immunity laws. 

9.1.3. Debts and Financial Obligations:  The parties acknowledge that neither the Board of 
Public Education, the State of Montana, or its agencies, boards, commissions, or 
divisions are liable for the debts or financial obligations of a public charter school or 
persons or entities that operate public charter schools. 

9.2. Charter Revision. This Charter Contract may be revised only by written consent of the 
Parties hereto. 

9.3. Assignment. This Charter Contract may not be assigned or delegated by the Charter 
Governing Board under any circumstances, it being expressly understood that the rights and 
obligations granted hereby runs solely and exclusively to the benefit of the Charter 
Governing Board. 

9.4. Notices.  Any notice, demand, request, or submission from one Party to any other Party or 
Parties hereunder shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given or served for all purposes if 
it is delivered in writing via electronic mail as an attachment thereto with a legally valid and 
binding electronic signature or an electronic image of a physical signature (.pdf or similar 
format), and as of the date upon which the sender receives receipt of confirmation generated 
by the recipient’s electronic mail system that the notice has been received by the recipient’s 
electronic mail system, to the Parties at the following addresses: 
 
If to the Charter Governing Board: 

Erik Wilkerson 
PO Box 838 

Boulder, MT 59632 
erik.wilkerson@jhs.k12.mt.us 

 
If to the Board of Public Education: 

McCall Flynn 
PO Box 200801 

Helena, MT 59620 
bpe@mt.gov  

 
9.5. Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Charter Contract or the Terms of 

Operation thereof to any person or in any circumstances shall be determined to be invalid, 
unlawful, or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Charter Contract and the 
application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is 
determined to be invalid, unlawful or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each 
remaining provision of this Charter Contract shall continue to be valid and may be enforced 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

9.6. Entire Charter. The Charter Contract supersedes and replaces any and all prior agreements 
and understandings between the Board of Public Education and the Charter Governing 
Board as it relates to the creation of a particular public charter school. To the extent that any 
conflict or incompatibility exists between the Terms of Operation and the other terms of this 
Charter Contract, such other terms of this Charter Contract shall control. 

9.7. Construction. This Charter Contract shall be construed fairly as to both Parties and not in 
favor of or against either Party, regardless of which Party prepared the Charter Contract.  

 
 
 

mailto:erik.wilkerson@jhs.k12.mt.us
mailto:bpe@mt.gov


Page 12 of 18 
 

 
 
 
JEFFERSON ACADEMY 
 
 
By   
Camilla Robson, Chair of the Charter Governing Board  

  
MONTANA BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION  
 
 
By   
Dr. Tim Tharp, Chair of the Montana Board of Public Education 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 13 of 18 
 

 
 
 

Exhibit A – Terms of Operation 
 

Part I – Specific Terms 
Additional Terms of Operation will be added at a later date, based on the timeline outlined for 
submission above. The Board of Public Education will communicate this timeline and submission 
expectations at a later date. 
 
The Charter Governing Board shall provide educational services, including the delivery of 
instruction, to students at the following location(s): 
 
Jefferson Academy North Campus 
PO Box 838 
Boulder, MT 59632 
 
Jefferson Academy South Campus 
105 Venture Way 
Boulder, MT 59632 
 
Part II – Charter Application 
The Board of Public Education will include the Charter Application submitted by the Charter 
Governing Board for execution of the Charter Contract. 
  



Page 14 of 18 
 

Exhibit B – Monitoring Plan 
 
Part I – Monitoring Plan 
 
As provided in the Charter Contract, the Charter Governing Board agrees to abide by a 
Monitoring Plan, the general components of which are set forth below. The requirements of the 
Monitoring Plan, are in addition to any notification, record-keeping, or reporting requirements set 
forth in the Charter Contract or applicable law including any obligation to receive the written approval 
of the Board of Public Education, and/or to seek approval for revision of the Charter Contract 
pursuant to applicable law. 
 

A. The Charter Governing Board shall maintain the following records in its offices for inspection 
by the Board of Public Education and/or its designee: 
1. Records concerning the enrollment and admissions process including all applications 

received and documents concerning the lottery process if conducted; 
2. Student academic and health records; 
3. Attendance records for students including withdrawals of students from each school and 

the reason(s) for such withdrawals; 
4. Individual Education Programs and other documentation concerning the Individuals with 

Disabilities Education Act (“IDEA”) as well as documentation concerning section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 for children with disabilities enrolled in each school; 

5. Staff rosters including records of hiring, resignation, and termination of employees; 
6. Evidence of credentials and/or qualifications for all teachers; 
7. Evidence that required fingerprint-based background checks have been conducted for all 

applicable school employees; 
8. Certificates of occupancy or other facility-related certification or permits; 
9. Lease agreements and/or mortgages or deeds; 
10. Loan documents; 
11. Contracts in excess of $1,000 including management contracts; 
12. Charter Governing Board or school policies in areas such as financial management, 

personnel, student discipline (including suspension and expulsion), complaints, health and 
safety, student privacy and transportation, Public Right to Know Laws and Open Meetings 
Laws and other areas required by the Charter Contract or law; 

13. Grievances made by students, parents, teachers, and other employees to the Charter 
Governing Board together with documentation of all actions taken in response; 

14. Inventory of all assets of the Charter Governing Board that have been purchased with 
public funds including grant funds; 

15. Documents sufficient to substantiate each school’s progress on the measurable goals set 
forth in its Performance Framework; and, 

16. Student level discipline records including, but not limited to, information regarding in-school 
and out-of-school suspensions, and expulsions for all students (including students with 
disabilities) available by grade and year reflecting: 

a. number of suspension/expulsion incidents; and, 
b. number of different students involved in suspension/expulsion incidents. 

 
B. To corroborate information submitted by the Charter Governing Board to the Board of 

Public Education, and in order to ensure compliance with the Act and the Charter Contract, 
the Board of Public Education or its designee will: 
1. Make at least one visit to each school in its first year of operation. Such visits may include 

an inspection of the physical plant, all categories of records set forth in subsection A of the 
Monitoring Plan, interviews with the administrator of the school and other personnel, and 



Page 15 of 18 
 

observation of instructional methods. Visits in later years may decrease in frequency and 
be conducted by Board of Public Education designees; 

2. During the first term of authority to operate a school, make at least one other visit to a 
school, which may be announced or unannounced. In subsequent terms, the Board of 
Public Education may conduct visits on a sampling basis for schools that demonstrate 
high levels of academic and fiscal soundness, compliance with applicable laws, rules, and 
regulations, and whose academic performance makes it likely they will improve student 
learning and achievement; 

3. Require the Charter Governing Board to make available necessary information in 
response to the Board of Public Education’s inquiries including information necessary to 
prepare annual or semi-annual evaluations of each school’s financial operations, academic 
program, future outlook, and other areas; 

4. Conduct internal investigations as appropriate on its own initiative or in response to 
concerns raised by students, parents, employees, local school districts and other 
individuals or groups. Where appropriate, the Board of Public Education shall issue 
remedial orders as permitted by the Charter Contract or applicable law; and 

5. Review as necessary the Charter Governing Board’s and its schools’ operations to 
determine whether any changes in such operations require formal revision of the Charter 
Contract and, if so, determine whether such revision should be recommended for 
approval. 

 
C. The Charter Governing Board shall track, and maintain information regarding, the following 

information: 
1. A copy of all minutes from each of its meetings, committee meetings and executive 

sessions of the meeting or session pertaining to the school; 
2. An updated list of trustees and officers of any such person’s election; removal; resignation; 

expiration of term without re-election; or, otherwise leaving the Charter Governing Board; 
and, 

3. An updated list of each administrator, principal, or head of school for each site of each 
school, however designated. 

4. Any and all student-level suspensions (including in-school and out-of-school suspensions 
of less than one-day) and expulsions including, but not limited to: 

a. The date the disciplinary action was instituted; 
b. The duration of any suspension; 
c. The reason for such suspension or expulsion; 
d. The student’s status as an English Language Learner (“ELL”), a student with a 

disability under the IDEA or a student who qualifies for the federal Free or Reduced 
Price Lunch program(“FRPL”); and, 

e. Other student demographic information. 
5. Any and all student-level enrollment and retention information including, but not limited to: 

a. The date of any student withdrawal, transfer or discharge; 
b. The reason for each withdrawal, transfer or discharge; 
c. The student’s status as an ELL, student with a disability under the IDEA or a FRPL 

student; and, 
d. Other student demographic information. 

 
D. The Charter Governing Board shall provide the Board of Public Education with such 

information on a quarterly basis in accordance with guidance maintained and disseminated by 
the Board of Public Education. Such guidance, as it may be amended from time to time, 
shall be binding on the Charter Governing Board. 

 
  



Page 16 of 18 
 

Exhibit C – Performance Framework 
 
Part I – Academic Performance Framework and Evaluation 
  

A. The Charter Governing Board shall adhere to the provisions in Title 20 of the Montana Code 
Annotated and Title 10 of the Administrative Rules of Montana and any state or local rule, 
regulation, policy, or procedure relating to noncharter public schools within the located school 
district. 

 
B. The Charter Governing Board shall identify a performance framework as prescribed in 20-6-

809, MCA, that clearly sets forth the academic and operational performance indicators, 
measures, and metrics which include: 
1. school achievement goals;  
2. student academic proficiency;  
3. student academic growth;  
4. achievement gaps in both proficiency and growth between major student subgroups;  
5. attendance;  
6. dropout rate;  
7. recurrent enrollment from year to year;  
8. postsecondary readiness;  
9. financial performance and sustainability;  
10. Charter Governing Board performance and stewardship, including compliance with all 

applicable laws, regulations, and terms of the Charter Contract.  
 . 
 
  



Page 17 of 18 
 

Exhibit D – Assurances and Variances to Standards 
 
Part I – Assurances Regarding Students with Disabilities 
 

A. The Charter Governing Board provides the following assurances regarding the provision of 
education and other services to students with disabilities to be enrolled at each proposed 
charter school. 
1. The Charter Governing Board will adhere to all provisions of federal law relating to 

students with disabilities including the IDEA, Section 504, and Title II of the ADA which are 
applicable to it. 

2. The Charter Governing Board will, consistent with applicable law, be a Local Education 
Agency (LEA) that will ensure that all students with disabilities that qualify under the IDEA: 
a. have available a free appropriate public education (“FAPE”); 
b. are appropriately evaluated; 
c. are provided with an IEP; 
d. receive an appropriate education in the least restrictive environment (LRE); 
e. are involved in the development of and decisions regarding the IEP, along with their 

parents; and, 
f. have access to appropriate procedures and mechanisms, along with their parents, to 

resolve any disputes or disagreements related to a school’s or school district’s 
provision of FAPE. 

3. Unless otherwise approved by the Board of Public Education, the Charter Governing 
Board shall assign a qualified employee whose responsibility it is to ensure 
implementation of the public charter school’s responsibilities under IDEA and Section 504. 

4. Each school will make available, as required by IDEA regulations, a student’s regular and 
special education teachers (and other required school personnel) for meetings convened 
by such student’s IEP Team. 

5. Each school will abide by the applicable provisions and regulations of the IDEA and the 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) as they relate to students with 
disabilities including, but not limited to, having procedures for maintaining student files in a 
secure and locked location with limited access. 

6. Each school will comply with the Office of Public Instruction data and reporting 
requirements in compliance with federal law and regulations.  

7. Each school will comply with its obligations under the Child Find requirements of IDEA 
including 34 C.F.R. § 300.111, and will provide appropriate notification to parents in 
connection therewith as applicable, including notifying them prior to potential evaluation. 

 
Part II – Assurances Regarding Indian Education for All (IEFA) 
 

A. The Charter Governing Board provides the following assurances regarding the provision of 
IEFA at each proposed charter school. 
1. The Charter Governing Board recognizes that it is the constitutionally declared policy of 

the State to recognize the distinct and unique cultural heritage of American Indians and to 
be committed in its educational goals to the preservation of the cultural heritage of 
American Indians. 

2. The Charter Governing Board shall ensure that all students utilizing educational 
programs provided by a charter school, whether Indian or non-Indian, learn about the 
distinct and unique heritage of American Indians in a culturally responsive manner. 

3. The Charter Governing Board shall work cooperatively with Montana tribes or those 
tribes that are in close proximity, when providing instruction or when implementing an 
educational goal or adopting a rule related to the education of each Montana citizen, to 
include information specific to the cultural heritage and contemporary contributions of 



Page 18 of 18 
 

American Indians, with particular emphasis on Montana Indian tribal groups and 
governments. 

4. Predicated on the belief that all school personnel should have an understanding and 
awareness of Indian tribes to help them relate effectively with Indian students and parents, 
the Charter Governing Board shall provide means by which school personnel will gain an 
understanding of and appreciation for the American Indian people. 

 
Part III – Variances to Standards 
 

A. Variances to Existing Standards: The Board of Public Education does not authorize any 
variances to standards as part of this Charter Contract to meet the intended outcomes of the 
proposed academic program of the school. 

  
B. Additional variance to standards requests may be approved in accordance with ARM 

10.55.604 or amendment to this Exhibit. An application for variance to standards is due in 
writing to the Superintendent of Public Instruction no later than the second Monday in October 
for the current academic year. 



ITEM 26 

ACTION ON AMENDMENTS TO PUBLIC 
CHARTER SCHOOL CONTRACTS 

Madalyn Quinlan 

*See Item 25 Revised Charter Contract
for reference



 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – (Item 27)

Renee Rasmussen 

ITEM 27 

ACTION ON THE NOTICE OF ADOPTION 
PERTAINING TO THE AMENDMENT OF 

ARM, TITLE 10, CHAPTER 56, 
ASSESSMENT STANDARDS, AND 

AUTHORIZE FILING OF THE NOTICE 
WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE’S 
OFFICE FOR PUBLICATION IN THE 

MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER 

Renee Rasmussen 



 
 
 

 
Montana Administrative Register 8/9/2024 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

 
In the matter of the amendment of 
ARM 10.56.101, 10.56.102, and 
10.56.105 pertaining to Assessment 
Standards 

) 
) 
) 
) 

NOTICE OF ADOPTION 

 
TO:  All Concerned Persons 

 
 1.  On April 12, 2024, the Board of Public Education (board) published MAR 
No. 10-56-286 pertaining to the public hearing on the proposed adoption of the 
above-stated rules at page 662 of the 2024 Montana Administrative Register, Issue 
Number 7. 

 
2.  The board has adopted the following rules as proposed: ARM 10.56.101, 

10.56.102, and 10.56.105. 
 

 3.  No comments or testimony were received.  
 
 4.  The rules adopted in this notice are effective August 9, 2024. 
 
/s/  McCall Flynn    /s/  Tim Tharp  
McCall Flynn     Tim Tharp 
Executive Director    Chair 
Board of Public Education   Board of Public Education 

   
 

Certified to the Secretary of State July 30, 2024. 
 



LICENSURE COMMITTEE – (Items 28-31)

Susie Hedalen 

ITEM 28 

INFORMATION ON ADDED 
ENDORSEMENTS UNDER CLASS 4 

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION 
LICENSURE 

Crystal Andrews 
Shannon Boswell 



 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 
Date: July 17-19, 2024 

  
Presentation Added Endorsement Areas Under Class 4 Licensure 

Presenter(s) Crystal Andrews and Shannon Boswell 

 
Position Title Accreditation and Licensure Director and CTAE Manager 

Office of Public Instruction 

  

Overview Class 4 license endorsement areas shall be evaluated on an 
annual basis by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Through 
the evaluation process, multiple endorsement areas were 
considered and added.   
 
 

  

Requested 
Decision(s) 

Information Only 

  

Related Issue(s) ARM 10.57.421  

  

Recommendation(s) None 
 

  
 

http://opi.mt.gov/


1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Class 4- Added Endorsements  
Board of Public Education-Information Item 

 
10.57.421 CLASS 4 ENDORSEMENTS  
(1) Recognized occupations eligible for a Class 4 license shall be evaluated on an annual basis by the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction. Appropriate career and technical education areas acceptable for 
endorsement on the Class 4 license include but are not limited to the following: agriculture business, 
agriculture mechanics, auto body, automotive technology, aviation, building maintenance, building trades, 
business marketing, computer coding, computer information systems, culinary arts, diesel mechanics, drafting, 
electronics, emergency medical technician (EMT), engineering, fire and disaster services, graphic arts, health 
science education, heavy equipment operations, horticulture, industrial mechanics, livestock production, 
machining, metals, plant and soil sciences, Reserve Officer Training Corps (ROTC) instruction, small engines, 
stagecraft, teacher education, videography, and welding. 
 

ADDED ENDORSEMENT AREAS 

1. 11S THA- Theater Arts 
2. 14S HPB- Health Professions- Biotechnology 
3. 14S HPI- Health Professions- Informatics 
4. 14S HPT- Health Professions- Therapeutics  
5. 17S CAR- Carpentry/Woodworking 
6. 23S ECE- Early Childhood 
7. 23S WBL- Work-Based Learning 
8. 23S TEX- Textiles 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact 

Crystal Andrews, Director of Accreditation and Licensure, 444-6325 crystal.andrews@mt.gov  

Shannon Boswell, CTAE Manager, 444-7915 shannon.boswell@mt.gov  

mailto:crystal.andrews@mt.gov
mailto:shannon.boswell@mt.gov


ITEM 29 

INFORMATION ON THE 
RECOMMENDATION FOR INITIAL 

APPROVAL OF THE UNIVERSITY OF 
MONTANA REQUEST TO IMPLEMENT 
HEALTH AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

ENDORSEMENT AND SECONDARY 
EDUCATION ENDORSEMENT 

Crystal Andrews 



 

 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 
Date: July 17-19, 2024 

  

Presentation Recommend Initial Approval of the University of 
Montana’s Request to Implement: Health and Physical 
Endorsement and Secondary Education Endorsement.  

  

Presenter Crystal Andrews  

 
Position Title Accreditation and Licensure Director 

 Office of Public Instruction 

Overview State Superintendent Arntzen recommends to the Board 
of Public Education the initial approval of the University of 
Montana’s request to implement a Health and Physical 
Education Endorsement and Secondary Education 
Endorsement. 
 
University of Montana’s Director of Accreditation, Kristi 
Steinberg, will provide an overview of the two 
endorsements.   

  

Requested Decision(s) Information only 
  

Related Issue(s)  

  

Recommendation(s) None 

  



 
 
 

APPROVAL OF NEW CURRICULAR PROGRAMS  
APPLICATION GUIDELINES 

 
University of Montana- Secondary Education (Distant Based) 

Health and Physical Education Endorsement 
Administrative Rules of Montana 10.58.802 

 
Step 1: Initial Approval Date Submitted 
Educator Preparation Provider (EPP) curriculum process 
and procedures. 

March 2024 

Institutional body implements policy to add new 
programs.  

May 2024 

Institutional governing body, i.e., board of directors, 
institutional leadership, or Board of Regents, as 
applicable, approves new program application. 

May 2024 

Verification of regional accreditation. 
 

June 2024 

 
Step 2: Application Process Date Submitted 
EPP completes the Institutional Self-Study Report (ISSR) to 
address Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM)10.58.802 
Approval of New Curricular Programs. 

May 2024 

EPP completes sections of the ISSR unit standards 
addressing how the new curricular program is aligned with 
ARM 10.58.311 – 315   

May 2024 

EPP completes sections of the ISSR: ARM 10.58.501 
Teaching Standards for endorsement subject areas; and 
specific sections of ARM related to the new program. 

May 2024 

EPP provides support material and resources as needed to 
respond to the Specific ISSR Sections – use electronic links 
as applicable, e.g., online Web links containing additional 
resources and support material, catalogs, programs of 
studies, assessment system information, surveys of need. 

May 2024 

 
Step 3: Application Submission Date Submitted 
EPP submits completed ISSR electronically to the OPI. 
 

June 2, 2024 

 
Step 4: Office Audit/Review Date Submitted 



OPI conducts the audit/review of the application 
materials.  
 

June 2024 

OPI provides an electronic report to EPP with comments 
and specific requests for additional documentation. 
 

June 2024 

EPP submits a follow-up report to OPI, as necessary. 
 

June 2024 

 
Step 5: Site Visit Date Submitted 
If the EPP is scheduled for a regular site review, the new 
program is included in the regular review.   
 

N/A 

If the EPP is not scheduled for a regular review within the 
next two years, the OPI will conduct a site review to verify 
the ISSR of the new curricular program meets the PEPP 
Standards.  

Spring 2026 

OPI facilitates the site review to verify the ISSR meets the 
PEPP Standards of the new program. 
 

Spring 2026 

Site Visits follow the approved state protocol based on the 
PEPP Standards. 
 

Spring 2026 

 
Step 6: Final Approval Process Date Submitted 
Site visitor team submits the state exist report to the state 
superintendent. 
 

May 2026 

State Superintendent of Public Instruction makes 
recommendation to approve/disapprove the proposed 
new curricular program to the BPE based upon the site 
team report. 
 

July 2026 

BPE takes final action on the Superintendent’s 
recommendation.  
 

September 2026 

 



ITEM 30 

INFORMATION ON THE VIRTUAL JOINT 
SITE VISIT AND STATE EXIT REPORT OF 

MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY 
EDUCATOR PREPARATION PROVIDER IN 

THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

Crystal Andrews 
Dr. Julie Murgel 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: July 17-19, 2024 

Presentation Review of the Virtual Joint Site Visit and State Exit 
Report of Montana State University Educator 
Preparation Provider (EPP) in the Department of 
Education, September 24-26, 2023. 

Presenter Crystal Andrews and Julie Murgel 

Position Title Accreditation Director; Chief Program Officer 
Office of Public Instruction 

Overview The State Superintendent of Public Instruction presents to 
the Board of Public Education (BPE) the State Exit Report 
of Montana State University EPP programs in the 
Department of Education. 

Review the summary of results and overall impressions of 
the virtual visit on September 24-26, 2023. 

Dr. Tricia Seifert, Dean of Education, and Dr. Rebecca Turk, 
Director of Accreditation will be available to provide 
comments and respond to questions from the BPE. 

The State Exit and Narrative Reports are included in the 
BPE Agenda Packet. 

Requested Decision(s) Information only 

Related Issue(s) The BPE approval process follows: 
July 2024: State Exit & Narrative Reports 
September 2024: Recommend Action 

Recommendation(s) None 



 

 

October 16, 2023 
 

Crystal Andrews 
Montana Office of Public Instruction 
P.O. Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

 
Dear Director Andrews, 
 
We would like to extend our gratitude for your work on our virtual 
accreditation site visit at Montana State University in September 2023. Your 
communication and support throughout the process was exceptionally 
helpful. In addition to the visit, the review team provided expert feedback on 
our report that will undoubtedly facilitate our continuous improvement 
efforts. The feedback offered by the review team, Julie Murgel, Michelle 
Price, and yourself was thorough and centered on best practice. This peer 
review is a pivotal component of our continuous improvement and 
accreditation process. We look forward to our continued professional 
partnership with the Office of Public Instruction and the Board of Public 
Education.  
 
I have provided the following update on our progress on meeting the 
recommendations of our final report.  

Recommendations & Moving Forward 
• Develop a more complete and comprehensive listing of courses that support 

the use of a variety of instructional strategies to develop a deep 
understanding of content areas is needed.  

• The MAT needs clearer evidence that the targeted areas of preparation in 
the content area are included in the program. 

• For modern languages, more explicit instruction or opportunities for 
candidates to enhance or apply language and culture knowledge aligned to 
the PEPPS content-specific standards is needed. 

• Comprehensive mapping aligned to the standards is recommended for 
Industrial Trades and Technology and MAT Elementary Education. 

• Computer Science course structure does not facilitate all-standards 
exposure. 
 

Þ We will compile a more complete listing of courses that engage preservice 
teachers in our program with a variety of instructional strategies within the 
content areas. This work will include partners from across all departments 
that support teacher education at MSU. 

Þ We will create a clear crosswalk between the PEPPS for each content area 
and the assessments that provide evidence for targeted areas of 



 

 

preparation in the content areas within the program, including the MAT and 
modern languages. 

Þ We will work with our partners in modern languages to create a clear 
crosswalk between the PEPPS and modern languages coursework that 
provide instruction and/or opportunities for candidates to enhance or apply 
culture knowledge.  

Þ We plan to engage in comprehensive curriculum mapping of all programs in 
the coming semesters. This will provide us an opportunity to identify areas in 
which we can more purposefully support preservice teachers in our program 
and provide additional opportunities for integration of best practices across 
courses. 
 
We look forward to the opportunity to improve in the recommended areas 
and are proud to have met or exceeded the expectations for our teaching 
licensure programs as identified in the PEPP Standards. Our priority is 
cultivating high-quality educators and leaders for the state of Montana so 
that each student can succeed.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Dr. Rebecca Turk 
Director of Accreditation 
Montana State University 
Department of Education 



 

Montana State University 
Education Preparation Provider 

State Exit Program Report 
July 18, 2024 

 
Crystal Andrews, Director of Accreditation and Education Preparation Programs 

 
From September 24-26, 2023, the Joint Accreditation review of the Educator Preparation 
Provider (EPP) in the College of Education Health and Human Development occurred virtually at 
Montana State University in Bozeman. This joint site review was conducted by the Council for 
the Accreditation of Educator Preparation (CAEP) and the Montana Office of the Public 
Instruction (OPI). Prior to the virtual site visit, a cadre of qualified educators including teacher, 
college professors, administrators and content specialists reviewed the Institutional Reports 
provided by Montana State University for the endorsement areas. The CAEP team reviewed the 
documents and conducted focus groups regarding the initial standards, ARM 10.58.311 to 
10.58.315 and the advanced standards, ARM 10.58.605 to 10.58.609. 

The purpose of the review was to verify that the Institutional Report of the EPP meets the 
requirements of the Montana Professional Educator Preparation Program Standards for both 
unit and program standards. The Final State Exit Report provides the results of the endorsement 
review relating to the program endorsement areas along with CAEP’s report. The Final State Exit 
Program Report 2023 is attached. 

 
DEFINITIONS WHICH PERTAIN TO THIS REPORT 

 
Standard is met: Regular accreditation for a period of seven years. 

 
Standard is met with notation: Regular accreditation with minor deviations with most of the 
components of a standard met. This could involve incomplete items on the Institutional 
Report or clarification/corrections needed. As those items are rectified, the 
recommendation to the BPE will reflect the current and corrected status. 

 
Area for Improvement (AFI): Standard is met with weakness. The site review team identified a 
weakness in the evidence for a standard or component. Area for Improvement should be 
remediated by the next accreditation cycle, and progress toward improvement is reported 
annually through the annual report to the OPI/BPE. During the next accreditation review, the 
EPP must demonstrate that the AFIs have been corrected. If the AFIs have not been 
corrected, a stipulation may be cited in the same area. 

 
Stipulation: A standard or component is not met. The site visiting team identified a 
deficiency related to one or more components or the BPE standard. A stipulation is of sufficient 
severity that a standard may be determined to be unmet. A stipulation must be addressed 
within two years to retain accreditation. 



 

 
Initial Program Standards: ARM 10.58.311 to 10.58.315 

Reviewed by CAEP 
ARM TITLE STATUS 

10.58.311 Initial Content and Pedagogical 
Knowledge 

MET 

10.58.312 Initial Clinical Partnerships and 
Practice 

MET 

10.58.313 Initial Candidate Quality, 
Recruitment, and Selectivity 

MET 
AFI 

10.58.314 Initial Program Impact MET 
AFI 

10.58.315 Initial Provider Quality Assurance 
and Continuous Improvement 

MET 
AFI 

 

 
Advanced Program Standards: ARM 10.58.605 to 10.58.609 

Reviewed by CAEP 
ARM TITLE STATUS 
10.58.605 Advanced Content and Pedagogical 

Knowledge 
MET 

10.58.606 Advanced Clinical Partnerships and 
Practice 

MET 
AFI 

10.58.607 Advanced Candidate Quality, 
Recruitment, and Selectivity 

MET 
AFI 

10.58.608 Advanced Program Impact MET 
AFI 

10.58.609 Advanced Provider Quality 
Assurance and Continuous 
Improvement 

MET 
AFI 

10.58.610 School Counseling CACREP 
Accredited 

 
 

 



 

Teaching Program Standards 
ARM TITLE STATUS 
10.58.501 Teaching Standards 

Undergraduate  
Graduate 

 
MET with Notation 
MET 

10.58.502 Agriculture MET 
10.58.503 Art K-12 MET 
10.58.509 English/Language Arts 

Undergraduate 
Graduate 

 
MET 
MET with Notation 

10.58.511 World Languages 
(French, German, Spanish) 
Undergraduate 
Graduate 

 
 
MET 
MET with Notation 

 
10.58.513 
10.58.520 

Health Enhancement 
Health 
Physical Education 

MET 
MET 

10.58.514 Family and Consumer Sciences MET 
10.58.515 Industrial Trades and Technology MET with Notation 
10.58.517 Library Media K-12 MET 
10.58.518 Mathematics 

Undergraduate 
Graduate 

 
MET 
MET with Notation 

10.58.519 Music K-12 MET 
10.58.521 Reading Specialist K-12 MET 
10.58.522 Science 

(Biology, Chemistry, Earth Science, 
Physics, Broadfield Science) 
Undergraduate 
Graduate 

 
 
 
MET 
MET with Notation 

10.58.523 Social Studies 
(Economics, Government, History, 
Broadfield Social Studies) 
Undergraduate 
Graduate 

 
 
 
MET 
MET with Notation 

10.58.528 Computer Science MET with Notation 
10.58.531 Early Childhood Education MET 
10.58.532 Elementary 

Undergraduate 
Graduate 

 
MET 
MET with Notation 

10.58.705 School Principals, Supervisors, and 
Curriculum Directors 

MET 

10.58.706 Superintendents MET 



 

 

 
COMMENDATIONS 
There were numerous commendations from across the programs attesting to the quality of the 
professional educational preparation program at Montana State University. Many of these 
commendations would not be possible without the collaboration of the Education faculty across 
the university. That type of collaboration takes time and effort. Below are some, though 
certainly not all, of the specific commendations. 

 
CAEP: 
The EDU core courses are aligned with IEFA to include diversity, equity, and inclusion. 
Supportive relationships have been developed between the candidates, faculty, schools and 
districts that provide support for all those involved. 

 
Art K12: There is a wide variety of methods and materials introduced and candidates have 
ample opportunity to gain enough knowledge and experience in these to carry into the 
classroom. The scope and sequence of these courses allow students to continue to grow their 
own artistic skill, while simultaneously learning how these methods can be applied to diverse 
classroom environments. 

 
Family and Consumer Sciences: It is obvious that deep consideration and thought has been 
involved in the courses and experiences built into the MSU Family and Consumer Sciences 
program. Evidence indicates many concepts allow differentiated experiences leading students to 
mastery. The courses selected create a strong foundation for the graduate to be successful in 
their Family and Consumer Sciences career. 

 
Reading Specialist: The coursework overall appears to focus on evidence-based practices as 
called for in the standards. Candidates are given opportunities to instruct students in both 
clinical and internship settings which better prepares them for their own school settings. 
Decisions about student need in clinical and internship settings are based on research and data. 

 
Early Childhood: The coursework overall appears to focus on best practices as called for in the 
standards and expectations for the field. Candidates are given varied opportunities to identify, 
apply, and reflect upon content across semesters and clinical settings. 

 
School Principals, Supervisors, and Curriculum Directors: Essential questions and Learner 
Outcomes listed in courses are strong components for providing evidence aligned with PSEL 
standards. Those listed throughout different syllabi are comprehensive and thoughtful for 
learners in the Educational Leadership program. The syllabi (508, 507, 534, 565) were well 
developed and demonstrated strong evidence of covering required content. 



 

Overall: The institution provides candidates with ample opportunities to apply methods, 
performance skills, and critical thinking through clinical and internship experiences. As 
evidenced by syllabi and course work, content related to American Indians and the tribes in 
Montana is aligned and integrated throughout the program. 

 
AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT (AFI) 
Standards R3, R4, R5, A3, A4, and A5 lack the evidence of the effective use of data to monitor, 
evaluate, and make improvements to program areas. The details are noted in the following 
reviews. 

STANDARDS MET WITH NOTATION 
10.58.502 Teaching Standards in the undergraduate program, 10.58.515 Industrial Trades and 
Technology Education, 10.58.528 Computer Science, 10.58.509 English Language Arts, 
10.58.511 World Languages, 10.58.518 Mathematics, 10.58.522 Science, 10.58.523 Social 
Studies in the graduate programs, and 10.58.532 Elementary in the graduate program were 
found to have gaps between the evidence provided and the PEPP standards. The details are 
noted in the following reviews. 



 

Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.501 Teaching Standards 

Validating Statement: Montana State University offers initial teaching licensure in both teaching 
majors and minors at the undergraduate level, and in multiple teaching majors at the graduate 
level. At the level of undergraduate initial teaching licensure, the programs offered are early 
childhood education P-3, elementary education K-8, secondary education 5-12, and K-12 
education. At the level of graduate initial licensure, the programs offered are K-8 and 5-12. 
Additionally, Montana State University offers endorsements for Principals, Superintendents, and 
School Counseling at the graduate advanced licensure level. Review of the documentation, as 
itemized below, shows that evidence is consistent with meeting this standard. 

Sources of Evidence:10.58.501 Teaching Standards Institutional Report, course syllabi, MSU 
Online Academic Catalog course descriptions, learning outcomes, signature assessment 
descriptions, performance assessment descriptions, reflective assignment descriptions, 
Montana Assessment of Content Knowledge (MACK) data, Praxis data, performance assessment 
data. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: The Institutional Report: (i) lists courses across all programs 
for each component of 10.58.501; (ii) provides syllabi for all courses; (iii) describes evidence and 
learning outcomes for selected courses, to support claims made within the report. The evidence 
is well-constructed within the report to document program assessment in alignment with 
10.58.501. See “Evaluation” section, below, for further explanation. 

Evaluation: 
a. Evidence consistent with meeting the standard: A full review of the courses listed, syllabi 
provided, assessments described, and reflections listed revealed that the Teaching Standards 
are clearly and purposefully addressed and integrated into the content, pedagogy, and 
dispositional elements of all programs. The provider ensures that student learning outcomes 
are listed in virtually all syllabi, and that assessments–especially signature assessments–are 
linked to teaching standards. Purposeful cross-referencing of InTASC Standards, the Danielson 
Teaching Framework Model, and the PEPPS is found in the vast majority of syllabi, and 
references (where applicable) to specialized professional standards and/or NAEYC standards 
are also included. 
b. Evidence inconsistent with meeting the standard: EDSP 306 Introduction to Exceptional 
Learners is a required course and should be listed as supporting the undergraduate program. A 



 

more complete and comprehensive list of courses supporting the use of a variety of 
instructional strategies to develop deep understanding of content areas is needed for the 
undergraduate programs. 

Commendations: This Institutional Report documents the provider’s comprehensive and 
intentional efforts, across all programs, to meet the components of the Teaching Standards. The 
provider is to be commended for the ways in which all programs integrate content related to 
American Indians and tribes in Montana, not only in meeting 10.58.501(l), but across many 
other components as well. Additionally, the evidence of a very thoughtfully articulated program 
of courses and assessments within the MAT program is to be commended. 

Improvements: In the MAT program, a more complete and comprehensive listing is 
provided--namely, the methods courses, the course in content literacy, and courses in 
supporting the social-emotional needs of learners and in addressing the needs of culturally and 
linguistically diverse students. A similar approach should be taken for the undergraduate 
programs, especially with regard to the methods courses which are a rich source of providing 
teacher candidates with knowledge in how to use a variety of instructional strategies to 
encourage learners to develop deep understanding of content areas. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● The undergraduate programs: Meets with Notation 
● The Master of Arts in Teaching programs: Meets Standard 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.502 Agricultural Education 

Validating Statement: Evidence has been presented verifying that candidates have ample 
opportunity, primarily through the internships, to lead a school community in the development 
and implementation of a school vision. Course syllabi include opportunities for candidates to 
understand the many components of Agriculture with an emphasis on methods to teach 
students about Agriculture. 

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi provided, tasks assignments for teacher candidates, and 
course descriptions in course catalog. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: For each course in the Agricultural Educational program, the 
learning outcomes correlate to 10.58.502 PEPP Standard. 

Evaluation: Evidence has been presented to verify the focus for each aspect of the program on 
the PEPP Standards for Agricultural Education. 

Commendations: The Agriculture Education program allows students to gain a variety of skills 
among agricultural economics, agricultural mechanics, animal & range sciences, and plant & soil 
sciences which will benefit them as a teacher. 

Improvements: None 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets Standard 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.503 Art K-12 

Validating Statement: As evident by the provided course syllabi and course catalog descriptions, 
the program is very comprehensive and thorough in preparing future art educators. Candidates 
are exposed to art history, the evolution of art practices, and encouraged to form their own 
opinions, style, and appreciation for the artistic process. 

Sources of Evidence: Syllabi, course descriptions in course catalog 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: The courses in the Art Education Broadfield Major K-12 have 
clear outcomes listed in the course syllabus, including Art Standards as well as Education 
standards, depending on the course. 

Evaluation: The Art Education K-12 Broadfield Major is a well-designed sequence of courses 
that provide a wide range of media experience with intentional course outcomes. In addition to 
studio courses and building artistic skills, courses seek to provide an overall appreciation of art, 
the diversity within the arts and cultures of our world, as well as methods for candidates to 
effectively pass this appreciation on to future students. 

Commendations: There is a wide variety of methods and materials introduced and candidates 
have ample opportunity to gain enough knowledge and experience in these to carry into the 
classroom. The scope and sequence of these courses allow students to continue to grow their 
own artistic skill, while simultaneously learning how these methods can be applied to diverse 
classroom environments. 

Improvements: Though there are multiple mentions of cultural traditions and how they pertain 
to art, there isn’t any specific mention of American Indians, which is something that should be 
specified more. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets Standard 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.509 English/Language Arts 

Validating Statement: Evidence has been presented verifying that successful candidates follow 
the major program of study in preparation for becoming highly qualified Secondary ELA 
teachers. Course syllabi describe the experience of the teacher candidate as being deeply 
rooted in educational and ELA teaching pedagogy and pedagogical issues. Coursework, required 
texts, collaborative projects, and collaborative discussion build knowledge and experience, 
culminating in student teaching fieldwork that allows teacher candidates to practice and apply 
theoretical knowledge. Opportunities for differentiation, classroom management, and meeting 
the needs of diverse student populations and learning styles also culminate in and are 
measured by a successful student teaching field experience. 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in English, only weak 
evidence is provided. Many of the documents provided as evidence do not make it clear that 
the targeted area of preparation in the content area is necessarily included in the program. In 
particular, evidence to support that candidates have the necessary content knowledge across 
the domains is insufficient. Furthermore, all of the content-area targets rely on the PRAXIS 
score, prior undergrad coursework, and evaluation of candidate’s content knowledge through 
observation during the supervised teaching. 

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi, course descriptions in the catalog, Masters in Teaching 
Artifacts, Danielson Lesson Planning, Observation and Evaluation Tools, and MSU program 
leadership institutional report serve as sources of evidence to support the evaluation of the 
program. 

Assessments Aligned to Standards: For each course, as well as student teaching observations, 
internships, practicums, final Reflective Educator Projects, and portfolios, evidence has been 
presented to verify the alignment of student learning outcomes with the PEPP standards. 

Evaluation: Evidence has been provided to verify the alignment of each aspect of the ELA 
program with the Montana ELA PEPP Standards. 

Commendations: MSU’s ELA Professional Educator Preparation Program is deeply rooted in the 
theoretical considerations and pedagogical knowledge of ELA teaching and learning practices. 



 

Great care is given to prepare students with broad consideration of the multi-faceted nature of 
teaching ELA in Montana in contemporary classrooms. 

Course offerings combine to provide teacher candidates with opportunities to plan, implement, 
assess, and reflect on English, Language Arts, and Literacy instruction to promote deep critical 
thinking around social justice, diversity, and democracy. The Bobcat lesson plan provides an 
opportunity for students to actively support differentiation for varied learning styles and 
support IEFA. 

Improvements: Although pedagogical support is provided for diversifying the classroom 
curriculum from the traditional cannon, greater teacher candidate exposure to “integrating an 
extensive range of authors, print and non-print texts and genres, including historic and 
contemporary works by and about American Indians and tribes in Montana.” would be deeply 
beneficial. Consider the use of anthologies above and beyond the current published poetry lists 
to support exposure and familiarity building. 

Technologies in the classroom are supported broadly by educational technologies courses 
outside the ENT program and methods courses. Little evidence was found to support teacher 
candidate exposure to, learning about, and/or practice with educational technologies and 
multimodal texts directly pertinent to the ELA classroom specifically. In an age of digital literacy, 
the syllabi reflect a propensity toward traditional texts and composition modalities with some 
variation supported with recommended, but not required texts. Greater emphasis should be 
considered for diversifying texts to include non-print texts. This should be built upon to build 
and support various other forms of multi-modal composition. 

Although the representation of pedagogical considerations surrounding social justice issues 
related to linguistic diversity, race and representation in literature, rurality, equity, social 
comprehension, culturally and historically responsive literacy, etc. greater emphasis could be 
given throughout the program of study to provide teacher candidates with opportunities to 
engage in informed critical analysis and discourse about ELA PEPP standard E “demonstrate 
understanding of legal and ethical issues in English/language arts such as freedom of 
expression, censorship, and bias;” within the ENT program offerings. 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program, it is assumed that some of these considerations 
would be present in EDCI 556, The Legal, Social, and Practical Basis of Schooling, a syllabus for 
this course was not presented as evidence to support the alignment of this PEPP standard by 
the program offerings, and requirements. More explicit instruction or opportunities for 
candidates to enhance or apply content knowledge aligned to the PEPPS content specific 
standards is needed. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● The undergraduate English Language Arts Option: Meets Standard 



 

● The Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in English: Meets 
with Notation 



 

Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.511 World Languages 

Validating Statement: Evidence has been presented verifying that candidates have ample 
opportunity to lead a school community in the development and implementation of World 
Language instruction. Course syllabi include opportunities for candidates to understand the 
importance of language and culture in the learning process, both for students and teachers. 
Coursework and real-life problem solving during Student Teaching provide classroom 
management opportunities. 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program for modern languages it is not clear that the 
preparation in the target language area is necessarily included in the program. In particular, 
evidence to support that candidates have the necessary linguistic and cultural skills is 
insufficient. Furthermore, all of the language and culture skills rely on the PRAXIS score, prior 
undergrad coursework, and evaluation of candidate’s language and culture skills through 
observation during the supervised teaching. 

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi and course descriptions in course catalog. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: For each course in the Modern Language program, the 
learning outcomes correlate to the ACTFL and PEPP Standards. 

Evaluation: Evidence has been presented to verify the focus for each aspect of the program on 
the PEPP Standards. 

Commendations: 

Improvements: To better align with the needs of Montana’s demographic, developing a course 
plan to include one or more of the heritage languages of Montana tribal nations would be 
invaluable. If there were to be a future rewrite, it would be recommended to have an 
examination of the use and distinction between Religion and Spirituality. In many indigenous 
belief systems, spiritual awareness and development are daily practices mostly outside of the 
purview of an organized system and are more authentic representations of culture. 



 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program for modern languages, more explicit instruction or 
opportunities for candidates to enhance or apply language and culture knowledge aligned to 
the PEPPS content specific standards is needed. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● The undergraduate Modern Languages K-12 Option: Meets Standard 
● The Master of Arts in Teaching program for modern languages: Meets with Notation 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.513 Health 

Validating Statement: The health program provides candidates with a combination of field 
observations, practicum experiences, reflective practice through peer evaluations, unit plan 
development aligned with national standards, identification of youth risk behaviors affecting 
health, and critical examination of health education programs using the health education 
curriculum analysis tool. 

Sources of Evidence: Course outcomes and standards are listed from a course syllabus. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: A clear program of alignment to standards is available in 
course syllabi. 

Evaluation: Health education candidates use multiple methods of assessment to plan 
instruction, engage all learners, monitor learner progress, provide meaningful feedback, and 
reflect on lessons to enhance the acquisition of functional health knowledge and health-related 
skill proficiency for all learners. Candidates plan relevant and meaningful school health 
education instruction and programs that are sequential and aligned with appropriate K-12 
health education standards. Health education candidates demonstrate an understanding of 
health education content, health literacy skills, digital literacy skills, theoretical foundations of 
behavior change and learning, and applicable K-12 health education standards for the purpose 
of instilling healthy behaviors in all learners. 

Commendations: Exceptional effort in having candidates employ the State and National Health 
Education standards during clinical experiences. 

Improvements: None 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets Standard 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.520 Physical Education 

Validating Statement: The Health Enhancement program facilitates opportunities for candidates 
to engage and support all learners in learning through practicum participation and field 
experiences with school-aged students in the local community. Through a variety of coursework 
and projects, candidates are assessed on the understanding and organization of subject matter 
for learning. Planning for instruction and designing learning experiences for all learners is 
promoted through field experiences and observations. Candidates have numerous 
opportunities to assess learning through practicum experiences. Candidates have the 
opportunity to develop as professional educators through reflective practice utilizing peer 
evaluations. 

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi and documentation of course content. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: A clear program of alignment to standards is available in 
course syllabi. 

Evaluation: Physical education candidates are given enriched opportunities to demonstrate 
content and foundational knowledge, skillfulness and health-related fitness, planning and 
implementation, instructional delivery and management, assessment of learning, and 
professional responsibility. Noted in the evidence section of the IR are all methods courses 
utilizing the same course assignments as a system of candidate assessment of pre-service 
teacher performance. Would recommend including disparate assessments in each course for a 
stronger reflection of candidate performance proficiency and program rigor. 

Commendations: Respectful effort to facilitate learning opportunities for candidates to engage 
in clinical practice through service learning opportunities in community schools and 
campus-facilitated events for school-aged children. 

Improvements: None 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets Standard 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.514 Family and Consumer Sciences 

Validating Statement: The documents and evidence for the MSU 10.58.514 Family and 
Consumer Sciences program meet and/or exceed requirements for accreditation. 

Sources of Evidence: Due to the nature of the standards and context of delivery, types of 
evidence vary. The following was utilized: 

● Personal applications (i.e. career portfolio, food selection related) 
● Inquiry-based applications 
● Assignments that are reflective of the critical science approach of the FCS discipline 
● Case study analysis (i.e. Raise a child, lesson plans, diversity themes) 
● Real-world applications (i.e. handbook creation, toolkit development, website creation, 

apparel analysis, financial/budgeting) 
● Laboratory and research assignments (i.e. human services/family systems, food/culinary, 

apparel, housing, diversity themes, financial) 
● Field experiences 
● Lesson plan and teaching material creation aligned to standards 
● Capstone and final project-based evaluations that include a self-reflection component 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: The following evidence was found to be aligned to standard 
assessment: 

● Project-based applications of knowledge and skill 
● Assignments and discussions with reflective prompts 
● Quizzes and formal assessments 
● Capstone projects (including lesson plan, website, toolkit and handbook creation) 
● Field experiences 

Evaluation: The MSU Family and Consumer Sciences program is strongly aligned with the Rule: 
10.58.514 FCS standards. 

Commendations: It is obvious deep consideration and thought has been involved in the courses 
and experiences built into the MSU Family and Consumer Sciences program. Evidence indicates 
many concepts allow differentiated experiences leading students to mastery. The courses 
selected create a strong foundation for the graduate to be successful in their Family and 
Consumer Sciences career. 



 

 
Improvements: There are no improvements suggested at this time. Continual refinement of 
individual course content and the overall program is suggested to ensure research findings and 
best practices are explored and adopted as deemed valuable moving forward. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets Standard 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.515 Industrial Trades and Technology Education 

Validating Statement: Evidence has been presented verifying that candidates have ample 
opportunity to work within an industry where a broad understanding of Industrial Technological 
concepts is understood. Course syllabi include opportunities for candidates to engage in 
Industrial processes and understand the importance of technology literacy and application. 

Sources of Evidence: Syllabi, MSU Technology Education Course Catalog 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: For courses with provided evidence, each learning outcome 
correlated to the Industrial Trades and Technology Standard and PEPP Standards. 

Evaluation: Evidence has been presented to verify the focus for each aspect of the Technology 
Education program on the Industrial Trades and Technology and PEPP Standards. The program 
proves there are a variety of course opportunities and practical experience for candidates to 
prepare themselves to work within Industrial Trades and Technology Education. 

Commendations: Industrial Trades & Technology courses appear to give candidates a 
comprehensive and rigorous training in each content area. Uses of Reflection and Teaching 
problem solving strategies are being utilized across courses. Choice is given to candidates for 
specialization in different Industrial Trades and Technology areas. 

Improvements: Creating a comprehensive course mapping aligned to the standards stating 
which standards are met, at what level they are met, and a detailed description is 
recommended. Strengthening communication between departments (Industrial Trades and 
Education) would ensure content and pedagogical knowledge are aligned. Providing evidence 
for each course listed under the courses & outcomes portion of the report would help solidify 
evidence. Also provide evidence for each class under the courses & outcomes portion of the 
report. “In class description or course description” does not provide enough evidence for the 
course. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets with Notation 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.517 Library Media K-12 

Validating Statement: The plethora of sources of evidence was provided by the Montana State 
University’s academic library program for the Library Media Certificate. 

Sources of Evidence: The institutional report provides detailed information regarding required 
course titles, course descriptions, and learning outcomes. All syllabi are provided, including 
detailed unit plans for the practicum courses. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: The syllabi clearly align assessments to PEPP standards. Most 
standards are covered across multiple courses so that the standards are visited and revisited 
throughout the program by different instructors using different methodologies. 

Evaluation: Learning activities are robust and created so that students can share knowledge and 
create new knowledge. Learning outcomes are measured in a variety of ways, including 
activities, writing assignments, presentations, discussions, and reflective journals. This is an 
impressive program. 

There’s no evidence that field work is used in assessing learning outcomes. The description of 
EDCI 598 indicates that an activity is completed in consultation with a mentor librarian, but the 
course primarily consists of shared readings and synchronous and asynchronous class 
discussions. It’s unclear whether or not the practicum involves students spending time in 
libraries applying the skills that they have learned in the courses. As described in the syllabus, 
the course is not a practicum, rather it’s a seminar course. 

Commendations: Some syllabi have land acknowledgements regarding the land on which the 
Home Institution sits as well as the land that serves as the workplace of the distance instructor. 

Other than in two instances referenced in the improvements section, syllabi are exceptionally 
well-written, aesthetically pleasing, and highly professional. They are complete with clear 
learning outcomes, rubrics, revision dates, expectations, schedules, and deadlines. 

The Ethics and Advocacy course is exceptionally designed to teach the fundamental concepts of 
major professional tenets in the context of current events. It’s clear that updates for this course 
are substantial with each offering. 



 

 
Improvements: The EDCI 546 syllabus needs to be re-written. It needs to adhere to accessibility 
standards. It specifies a grading scale that’s inconsistent with the MUS grading scale. It 
recommends a resource with a link that doesn’t work. It contains out-of-date information. 

The EDCI 549 syllabus also needs to be re-written. The weekly chart of assignment is confusing 
in that it’s a table with a main column that’s empty. Assignments are written in incomplete 
sentences. There are blanks in the syllabus that aren’t filled in which should contain information 
about expectations for completed assignments. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets Standard 



 

Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.518 Mathematics 

Validating Statement: The Institutional Report makes it clear that two programs are reviewed. 
The undergraduate Mathematics Teaching Option and the Master of Arts in Teaching program 
with secondary endorsement in mathematics. 

For the undergraduate Mathematics Teaching Option, strong evidence for nearly every area of 
preparation is presented. 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in mathematics, only 
weak evidence is provided. Many of the documents provided as evidence do not make it clear 
that the targeted area of preparation (mathematics) is necessarily included in the program. In 
particular, evidence to support that candidates have the necessary mathematics content across 
the mathematical domains is insufficient. Furthermore, all of the content-area targets (i.e. 
number and operation, geometry, calculus, history, probability) rely on the PRAXIS score, prior 
undergrad coursework, and evaluation of candidates content knowledge through observation 
during the supervised teaching. 

Sources of Evidence: 
Syllabi 
MAT Artifact Descriptions 
MAT PRAXIS Scores by MAT Cohort 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: For the undergraduate Mathematics Teaching Option, strong 
evidence is presented that assessment of candidates is aligned to standard 10.58.518 through 
learning objectives that are closely aligned to the goals of the standard. 
For the Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in mathematics, 
inconsistent and sometimes weak evidence is presented that assessment of candidates is 
aligned to standard 10.58.518 through learning objectives and artifact descriptions. 

 
Evaluation: For the undergraduate Mathematics Teaching Option, a clear connection between 
the program contents and the PEPPS Standard 10.58.518 is made. 
For the Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in mathematics, there 
is not a clear connection between the program contents and many of the PEPPS Standards 
10.58.518. 



 

 
Commendations: For the undergraduate Mathematics Teaching Option, there is a clear 
commitment to many of the important processes that empower mathematical learners: 
modeling, problem solving, reasoning, communication, looking for structure and pattern are all 
heavily incorporated. 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in mathematics, there 
is a clear emphasis on the skills and dispositions needed for effective classroom instruction: 
multiple means of assessment, understanding student culture, planning instruction and 
managing classrooms. 

Improvements: For the undergraduate Mathematics Teaching Option, a clearer connection to 
mathematical history should be made (10.58.518.1(j.vii)). 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in mathematics, more 
explicit instruction or opportunities for candidates to enhance or apply content knowledge 
aligned to the PEPPS content specific standards is needed (10.58.518.1(a-h)). 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● The undergraduate Mathematics Teaching Option: Meets Standard 
● The Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in mathematics: 

Meets with Notation 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.519 Music K-12 

Validating Statement: Evidence has been presented verifying candidates have ample 
opportunities to learn and practice the skill set required across K-12 music programs. Course 
syllabi include many opportunities for candidates to explore and understand music from a 
historical and cultural perspective. Coursework also affords many opportunities for practical 
application of all skills. 

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi and course descriptions 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: For each course that is within the Music K-12 program, the 
learning outcomes correlate with the PEPP Standards. 

Evaluation: Evidence has been presented to verify the focus for each aspect of the Music 
programs. 

Commendations: Many courses address critical thinking, problem solving and performance 
skills. 

Improvements: Many courses address teaching strategies that are age appropriate, but what is 
not clear is the addressing age appropriate classroom management specifically for the music 
classroom(s). 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets Standard 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.521 Reading Specialists K-12 

Validating Statement: Evidence has been provided that candidates have ample opportunities to 
learn evidence-based practices aligned to instruction and assessment of literacy through both 
coursework and practical application in clinical practice and an internship. Course syllabi 
indicate opportunities to engage with both the scientific and research-based aspects of literacy 
through the Science of Reading as well as the art of teaching literacy through courses on 
children’s literature. 

Sources of Evidence: Course Syllabi, course descriptions and assignments included in course 
syllabi. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: Learning outcomes are aligned to standards. 

Evaluation: Evidence provided demonstrates that the program covers all standards adequately. 
There is a clear emphasis on implementing both the art and science of teaching literacy across 
the curriculum. Coursework clearly covers literacy research and researchers as well as the 
foundational knowledge needed to be a reading specialist. Multiple opportunities are given to 
implement the knowledge from courses into practice through clinic hours and an internship. 

Commendations: The coursework overall appears to focus on evidence-based practices as 
called for in the standards. Candidates are given opportunities to instruct students in both 
clinical and internship settings which better prepares them for their own school settings. 
Decisions about student need in clinical and internship settings are based on research and data. 

Improvements: While the majority of coursework was clearly evident and research based, there 
are still practices interwoven in some courses that are based on outdated research and 
methodologies, such as the three cueing system and reading workshops. Working to eliminate 
these methodologies and moving all coursework to practices aligned to current research would 
strengthen the program as a whole. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets Standard 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.522 Science 

Validating Statement: Evidence has been presented verifying that successful candidates follow 
the subject major and/or minor program of study or the Broadfield major program of study. 
Subject major and/or minor teaching endorsement programs are limited to biology, Earth 
science, chemistry, and physics. The physical science endorsement is a balanced combination of 
physics and chemistry. The Broadfield major includes a concentration in one of the endorsable 
disciplines, coupled with balanced study in three other endorsable science disciplines. Science 
disciplines selected adhere to a scope and sequence which ensures a thorough grounding in the 
basic concepts, skills, and dispositions associated with Montana and national K-12 content 
standards. 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in Science Broadfield 
it is not clear that the targeted area of preparation in the content area is necessarily included in 
the program. In particular, evidence to support that candidates have the necessary content 
knowledge across the domains is insufficient. Furthermore, all of the content-area targets rely 
on the PRAXIS score, prior undergrad coursework, and evaluation of candidate’s content 
knowledge through observation during the supervised teaching. 

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi, task assignments for internships, course descriptions in 
course catalog. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: For each course that is within the Science program, the 
learning outcomes correlate with the PEPP Standards. 

Evaluation: Evidence has been presented to verify the focus for each aspect of the Sciences 
programs addressing the PEPP Standards. 

Commendations: 
● Syllabus for EDM403: EDM 403 -Excellent Online piece for addressing online instruction 

for students. The comparison of Montana K-12 Content Standards and the Next 
Generation Science Standards (NGSS) are embedded in the methods courses. 

Improvements: According to the evidence provided, some areas do not appear to be aligned to 
the standards. For the MAT program, Engineering appears to be addressed only within the 



 

undergrad courses. To ensure candidates are proficient in all areas, it would be beneficial to 
provide clarity on how contemporary science, in particular, Engineering is addressed in 
coursework. Consider how American Indians and tribes in Montana and their traditional 
relationships to the environment are embedded throughout candidate assignments rather than 
a stand-alone assignment. Especially in the MAT program, ensure that candidates are prepared 
to teach all components within the state and national science content standards, by 
crosswalking the individual course syllabi with the K-12 content standards. 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program, more explicit instruction or opportunities for 
candidates to enhance or apply content knowledge aligned to the PEPPS content specific 
standards is needed. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● The undergraduate Science Broadfield Option: Meets Standard 
● The Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in Science 

Broadfield: Meets with Notation 



 

Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.523 Social Studies 

Validating Statement: The presented evidence verifies that the preparatory program for Social 
Studies offers candidates the opportunity to practice and become proficient in the skill sets 
required for effective instruction in the Social Studies disciplines. Coursework also exposes 
students to a variety of content areas and has a strong emphasis on Indian Education for All. 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in Social Studies 
Broadfield, only weak evidence is provided. Many of the documents provided as evidence do 
not make it clear that the targeted area of preparation in the content area is necessarily 
included in the program. In particular, evidence to support that candidates have the necessary 
content knowledge across the domains is insufficient. Furthermore, all of the content-area 
targets rely on the PRAXIS score, prior undergrad coursework, and evaluation of candidates’ 
content knowledge through observation during the supervised teaching. 

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi and course descriptions 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: The course description learning outcomes and content 
correlate with the knowledge and skill sets articulated in 10.58.523 (1), (2), (3), (5), and (6). 

Evaluation: Evidence has been presented that verifies that the Social Studies teacher candidate 
program correlates with outlined standards. 

Commendations: The coursework offered provides students an opportunity to develop critical 
thinking skills and evaluate information across all mediums of communication. Tribal land 
acknowledgements within each syllabus indicate strong understanding of and commitment to 
Indian Education for All. 

Improvements: In a few of the syllabi, skill sets were implied more than stated. However, these 
were more explicit in other courses offered as evidence. 

For the Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in Social Studies 
Broadfield, more explicit instruction or opportunities for candidates to enhance or apply 
content knowledge aligned to the PEPPS content specific standards is needed. 



 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● The undergraduate Social Studies Broadfield Option: Meets Standard 
● The Master of Arts in Teaching program with secondary endorsement in Social Studies 

Broadfield: Meets with Notation 



 

Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.528 Computer Science 

Validating Statement: The activities used in the progression of the required computer science 
courses in addition to the required education course ensure that a teaching candidate is 
prepared to meet the standards outlined in ARM. Candidates have multiple opportunities to 
show knowledge of concepts through summative assessments throughout the program and also 
are expected to demonstrate knowledge through the use of simulations/program development. 
The inTASc standards of the education courses are met in three (3) areas. It can be said that the 
computer science minor at MSU meets the ARM requirements. 

Sources of Evidence: The undergraduate programs catalog indicates the courses needed for a 
candidate to earn a computer science teaching minor. The course sequence includes four (4) 
computer science required courses, one (1) computer science elective course, and three (3) 
education courses (with one directly related to computer science). Looking at the requirements 
found in the computer science standards, the four required computer science courses met 
many of the basics included in the standards. The remaining standards can be met by taking one 
of the elective computer science classes. However, teaching candidates do not necessarily get 
exposed to all of the standards as they do not take all elective classes. The data reviewed 
included the course description found on the MSU web page, submitted syllabi from MSU, and 
surveying the textbooks identified in the syllabi. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: The required courses for both computer science and 
education show a strong alignment to the standard. The elective computer science courses 
meet the remaining standards as a whole. However, teaching candidates are not exposed to all 
content in the elective courses as they are required to take only one elective. 

Evaluation: Upon completing a survey of the evidence, it does appear that MSU focuses heavily 
on Python and Java programming languages. All candidates are expected to learn both of these 
languages in depth. Depending on the elective course taken by a candidate, he/she may be 
exposed to more languages. It is expected that a candidate takes four different languages in the 
standards. 

The elective courses cover in detail what the standards expect with regards to artificial 
intelligence, human-computer interactions, computer maintenance, operating systems, 
software development, security including firewalls. However, teaching candidates are only 



 

required to take one of these courses. One area that was not evaluated and could not be found 
in any of the evidence was building and fielding mobile services. However, looking at the 
evidence, it could be implied that the topic is covered. 

Commendations: The computer science minor incorporates the basics of computer 
programming in detail for two languages. If a student chooses the correct computer science 
elective, they may be exposed to more programming languages. The required courses set up 
candidates to meet the CSTA K-12 (2017) national standards with regards to computer 
programming, meaning that students would be exposed to teachers that meet the national CS 
standards. The education courses will make sure that the teaching candidates have the ability to 
teach computer science. Although not listed in the ARM standard, math is very important to 
programming and having the math course listed as a requirement is commendable. The math 
course was reviewed, and it does have the teaching candidate meet appropriate math 
requirements required in programming. The educational courses also do a good job of having 
students apply different technology tools to solve problems. 

Improvements: The computer science department has many courses that meet the demands of 
the standards. However, many of them are single classes and don’t expose teaching candidates 
to all areas of the standards. It is recommended that the department look at the standards that 
are met by the single elective computer science courses and develop another general education 
computer science course that incorporates the content of those classes, realizing that the 
in-depth level would only be at the surface. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets with Notation 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.531 Early Childhood Education 

Validating Statement: Evidence has been provided to demonstrate candidates have a wide 
variety of opportunities to learn about the history, context, practices, and knowledge and skills 
required across the early childhood education profession. This is evidence through both 
coursework and practical application in clinical practice and an internship. Course syllabi 
indicate opportunities to engage with the historical, ethical, and research-based aspects of 
curriculum and instruction in early childhood settings, as well as opportunities to enhance 
practice through teaming and collaboration with families and other related service providers. 

Sources of Evidence: Course Syllabi, course descriptions and assignments included in course 
syllabi. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: Learning outcomes are aligned to standards. 

Evaluation: Evidence provided demonstrates that the program covers standards adequately. 
There is a clear emphasis on opportunities for candidates to identify, apply, and reflect upon 
implementation of integrated curriculum methods and assessment in early childhood settings. 
Additionally, coursework clearly demonstrates content, application, and reflective opportunities 
for candidates to understand teaming and collaboration with families and related service 
providers. Multiple opportunities across varied settings are provided to candidates for applied 
clinical experiences. 

Commendations: The coursework overall appears to focus on best practices as called for in the 
standards and expectations for the field. Candidates are given varied opportunities to identify, 
apply, and reflect upon content across semesters and clinical settings. 

Improvements: While the majority of coursework clearly aligned with and provided varied 
opportunities to meet standards, some courses presented as evidence did not clearly reflect 
critical components of the standard. Enhancing courses with specific topics related to childhood 
trauma and adverse childhood experience would strengthen existing content. Additionally, 
including the applied opportunity for candidates to demonstrate trauma-informed classroom 
management strategies would bolster candidate preparation for entering the profession. 

 
Accreditation Recommendation: 

● Meets Standard 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.532 Elementary 

Validating Statement: After a review of all the course syllabi submitted within the Elementary 
Education (K-8) Major and the Master of Arts in Teaching: Elementary Education K-8, it is 
evident that the program consistently aligns with the Montana Professional Educator 
Preparation Program Standards (PEPPS) for Elementary (10.58.532). The content presented in 
the syllabi reflects a strong commitment to preparing future educators who possess the 
knowledge, skills, and dispositions necessary to meet the PEPPS, ensuring that graduates are 
well-equipped to excel in their teaching careers. 

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi, including course learning outcomes, assignments, Signature 
assignments, Danielson Performance Assessment (DPA), MAT Artifacts, and MAT Praxis content 
Knowledge Scores by Cohort. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: Most course syllabi provide intentional and explicit 
connections to Montana PEPP Standards. When PEPPS are not directly linked in the syllabi, 
evidence provided in the Institutional Report supports the Standards. 

Evaluation: The Elementary Education (K-8) Major as well as the MAT Elementary Education 
(K-8) provide a well-designed overall sequence of courses that broadly address the PEPP 
Standards. Within most course syllabi, further evidence was found that the PEPP Standards are 
intentionally a part of the learning outcomes and assessed more formally through “Signature 
Assignments” (major only), Performance Assessments, and “Artifacts” (MAT only). 

Commendations: Some course syllabi provide very clear evidence of alignment of certain 
assignments to the PEPP Standards, as well as other professional standards (e.g., EDU 222 
Service Learning Project, EDU 370 Final Project, and EDM 303 Science Lesson Plan). Eight 
“Signature Assignments”, which provide a meaningful application of learning, are distributed 
across a sequence of courses in the Elementary Education K-8 major. The MAT program 
systematically assesses “Content Knowledge Demonstrated During Student Teaching/Clinical 
Practice” with six “Artifacts” that are aligned with the InTASC & Montana PEPPS (10.58.501). 

Improvements: Several syllabi listed the InTASC, Montana PEPPS, and/or other professional 
standards but do not clearly link the standards to the course assignments or assessments. The 



 

MAT program consistently references the Danielson Framework but does not provide clear 
evidence of alignment to Montana PEPPS for Elementary (10.58.532). 

Accreditation Recommendation 
● The Elementary Education (K-8) Major: Meets Standard 
● Master of Arts in Teaching: Elementary Education K-8: Meets with Notation 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.705 School Principals, Supervisors, and Curriculum 
Directors 

Validating Statement: Evidence has been presented verifying that candidates have ample 
opportunity, primarily through the internships, to lead a school community in the development 
and implementation of a school vision. Course syllabi include opportunities for candidates to 
understand the importance of school culture in the learning process, both for students and 
teachers. Case studies during course work and real-life problem solving during the internship 
provide organizational management opportunities. 

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi including assignments, learner outcomes, alignment to PSEL 
Standards. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: For each course in the Educational Leadership program, the 
learning outcomes correlate to the PSEL Standards. 

Evaluation: Evidence has been presented to verify the focus for each aspect of the program on 
the PSEL Standards. 

Commendations: Essential questions and Learner Outcomes listed in courses are strong 
components for providing evidence aligned with PSEL standards. Those listed throughout 
different syllabi are comprehensive and thoughtful for learners in the Educational Leadership 
program. The syllabi in particular (508, 507, 534, 565) were well developed and demonstrated 
strong evidence of covering required content. 

Improvements: There was no mention of collaborating with families that specifically include 
American Indians or members of Montana Tribes throughout any syllabi. The requirement for 
‘staff professional growth’ based on research had no explicit evidence throughout syllabi. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets Standard 



Montana State University 
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

September 24-26, 2023 

Narrative Report 

 

 
Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.706 Superintendents 

Validating Statement: A wealth of courses are provided to address each of 10.58.706 
requirements. These courses range from theory to practice for students providing a program 
that strives to ensure adequate preparation. It is clear via each syllabus that the PSEL standards 
are the guiding principles as well as the NELP, AASA, NASSP, NAEMSP, CCSSO and more 
professional organization standards. 

Sources of Evidence: Course Syllabi, Course Assignments/Assessments as included in Syllabi, 
PSEL Standards as included in Syllabi. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: Assessments in each course syllabi are aligned to multiple 
standards. Assessments are varied by course and topic aligned to appropriate standards. 

Evaluation: Evidence provided validates the efficacy of the program following each of the PSEL 
Standards. The program is facilitated by a combination of past practitioners and doctoral 
professors. Course content, including readings, assignments and reflections are thoughtfully 
constructed and delivered to align to the requirements of the program. 

Commendations: Many courses require students to review actual school documents and work 
with current school business managers/clerks and personnel to evaluate and critically evaluate 
practices. 

Improvements: Two considerations for program improvement are: 
● Inclusion of critical information systems utilized by superintendents, such as, Student 

Information Systems which are vital in many daily tasks directly related to many of the 
Montana Code Annotated (MCAs) and ARM (10.58.706) requirements. 

● Take into account that Superintendents are often the HR director of their institutions 
and/or Transportation Directors and as such it is imperative that the practical application 
and implementation of law is focused on during preparation of this requirement. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Meets Standard 



ITEM 31 

INFORMATION ON THE SITE VISIT AND 
STATE EXIT REPORT OF MONTANA STATE 

UNIVERSITY NORTHERN EDUCATOR 
PREPARATION PROVIDER IN THE 

COLLEGE OF ARTS, SCIENCES, AND 
EDUCATION 

Crystal Andrews 
Michelle Price 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: July 17‐19, 2024 

Presentation  Review of the Site Visit and State Exit Report of Montana 
State University Northern Educator Preparation Provider 
(EPP) in the College of Arts, Sciences, and Education, April 
25‐26, 2024. 

Presenter  Crystal Andrews and Michelle Price 

Position Title  Accreditation Director; Accreditation Specialist 
Office of Public Instruction 

Overview  The State Superintendent of Public Instruction presents to 
the Board of Public Education (BPE) the State Exit Report 
of Montana State University‐ Northern EPP programs at 
the College of Arts, Sciences, and Education. 

Review the summary of results and overall impressions of 
the virtual visit on April 25‐26, 2024. 

Beth Durodoye, Dean of Education will be available to 
provide comments and respond to questions from the 
BPE. 

The State Exit and Narrative Reports are included in the 
BPE Agenda Packet. 

Requested Decision(s)  Information only 

Related Issue(s)  The BPE approval process follows: 
July 2024: State Exit & Narrative Reports 
September 2024: Recommend Action 

Recommendation(s)  None 

























Montana State University-Northern
Educator Preparation Provider

State Exit Program Report
July 18, 2024

 Crystal Andrews, Director of Accreditation and Educator Preparation Programs

From April 25-26, 2024, the State Accreditation review of the Educator Preparation Provider 
(EPP) at the College of Arts, Sciences & Education occurred onsite at Montana State University 
Northern in Havre. This site review was conducted by the Montana Office of the Public 
Instruction (OPI). Prior to the onsite visit, a cadre of qualified educators including teacher, 
college professors, administrators and content specialists reviewed the Institutional Reports 
provided by Montana State University Northern for the endorsement areas.

The purpose of the review was to verify that the Institutional Report of the EPP meets the 

requirements of the Montana Professional Educator Preparation Program Standards (PEPPS) for 

both unit and program standards. The report provides the results of the review relating to 

PEPPS as outlined in ARM 10.58: 

● 10.58.311    INITIAL CONTENT AND PEDAGOGICAL KNOWLEDGE

● 10.58.312    INITIAL CLINICAL PARTNERSHIPS AND PRACTICE

● 10.58.313    INITIAL CANDIDATE QUALITY RECRUITMENT, PROGRESSION, AND 

SUPPORT

● 10.58.314    INITIAL PROGRAM IMPACT
● 10.58.315    INITIAL PROVIDER QUALITY ASSURANCE AND CONTINUOUS 

IMPROVEMENT
● 10.58.501    TEACHING STANDARDS

● 10.58.503    ART K-12
● 10.58.509    ENGLISH/LANGUAGE ARTS

● 10.58.513    HEALTH

● 10.58.515    INDUSTRIAL TRADES AND TECHNOLOGY EDUCATION
● 10.58.520    PHYSICAL EDUCATION

● 10.58.521    READING SPECIALIST

● 10.58.522    SCIENCE

● 10.58.523    SOCIAL STUDIES

● 10.58.526    TRAFFIC EDUCATION

● 10.58.532    ELEMENTARY

● 10.58.604    ADVANCED PROGRAMS

● 10.58.605    ADVANCED CONTENT AND PEDAGOGICAL KNOWLEDGE

● 10.58.606    ADVANCED CLINICAL PARTNERSHIPS AND PRACTICE

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ChapterHome.asp?Chapter=10%2E58
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E311
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E312
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E313
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E314
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E315
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E501
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E503
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E509
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E513
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E515
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E520
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/RuleNo.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E521
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E522
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E523
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E526
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E532
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E604
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E605
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E606


● 10.58.607    ADVANCED CANDIDATE QUALITY, RECRUITMENT, PROGRESSION, 

AND SUPPORT

● 10.58.608    ADVANCED PROGRAM SATISFACTION WITH PREPARATION

● 10.58.609    ADVANCED PROVIDER QUALITY ASSURANCE AND CONTINUOUS 
IMPROVEMENT

● 10.58.610    SCHOOL COUNSELING K-12

DEFINITIONS WHICH PERTAIN TO THIS REPORT 

Standard is met: Regular accreditation for a period of seven years.

Standard is met with notation: Regular accreditation with minor deviations with most of the
components of a standard met. This could involve incomplete items on the Institutional
Report or clarification/corrections needed. As those items are rectified, the
recommendation to the BPE will reflect the current and corrected status.

Area for Improvement (AFI): Standard is met with weakness. The site review team identified a 
weakness in the evidence for a standard or component. Area for Improvement should be 
remediated by the next accreditation cycle, and progress toward improvement is reported 
annually through the annual report to the OPI/BPE. During the next accreditation review, the 
EPP must demonstrate that the AFIs have been corrected. If the AFIs have not been
corrected, a stipulation may be cited in the same area.

Stipulation: A standard or component is not met. The site visiting team identified a
deficiency related to one or more components or the BPE standard. A stipulation is of
sufficient severity that a standard may be determined to be unmet. A stipulation must be 
addressed within two years to retain accreditation.

Initial Standards
ARM TITLE STATUS
10.58.311 Initial Content and Pedagogical 

Knowledge
Met with Notation

10.58.312 Initial Candidate Partnerships and 
Practice

Met with Area for 
Improvement

10.58.313 Initial Candidate Quality 
Recruitment, Progression, and 
Support

Met with Area for 
Improvement

10.58.314 Initial Program Impact Stipulation
10.58.315 Initial Provider Quality Assurance 

and Continuous Improvement
Stipulation

https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E607
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E608
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E609
https://rules.mt.gov/gateway/ruleno.asp?RN=10%2E58%2E610


Advanced Standards
ARM TITLE STATUS
10.58.605 Advanced Content and Pedagogical 

Knowledge
Met with Notation

10.58.606 Advanced Clinical Partnerships and 
Practice

Met with Notation

10.58.607 Advanced Candidate Quality, 
Recruitment, Progression, and 
Support

Met with Area for 
Improvement

10.58.608 Advanced Program Satisfaction with 
Preparation

Stipulation

10.58.609 Advanced Provider Quality Assurance 
and Continuous Improvement

Met with Area for 
Improvement

Teaching Program Standards
ARM TITLE STATUS
10.58.501 Teaching Standards

Elementary
Secondary

Met with Notation
Met with Notation

10.58.503 Art K-12 Met with Area for 
Improvement

10.58.509 English/Language Arts Met with Area for 
Improvement

10.58.513
10.58.520

Health Enhancement 
Health
Physical Education

Met with Area for 
Improvement
Met with Notation

10.58.515 Industrial Trades and Technology Met with Area for 
Improvement

10.58.521 Reading Specialist K-12 Met with Area for 
Improvement

10.58.522 Science
Broadfield

Met with Notation

10.58.523 Social Studies
Broadfield

Met with Notation

10.58.532 Elementary Met with Area for 
Improvement

10.58.526 Traffic Education Met with Area for 
Improvement

10.58.610 Counseling Met with Notation



COMMENDATIONS
The EPP is commended on its numerous ways the advanced candidates are applying their 
knowledge of laws, policies, and professional standards. Through essays, interviews, 
assignments, and evaluations, candidates are held to a high level of demonstration and 
application of this area.

The introductory art courses have a solid foundation and allow candidates to engage into a 
diverse history of art, with a heavy emphasis on American Indians and tribes in Montana. 
Candidates are given the opportunity to utilize multiple assessment strategies for evaluating 
progress of their content knowledge of art  through peer review.

The English 5-12 program offers a robust review of literature across genres. Critical analysis of 
literature is explored in depth and breadth. Teacher candidates have a required course of study 
that ensures strong content knowledge. 

The English 5-12 program texts, activities, and courses of study include the important 
considerations for authentic writing instruction that is rooted in writing best practices and 
learning science-supported writing pedagogy. The program is applauded for teaching the value 
of collaborative writing strategies and methodology.

The EDU course syllabi for Broadfield Science show a strong connection between both the PEPP 
standards and the 3D Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) and Montana Standards, as 
well as integrate Indian Education for All (IEFA) into the curriculum.

Traffic education program courses place a large emphasis on learning and following state 
requirements for approval of traffic education programs and following Motor Vehicle Division 
testing procedures. The Office of Public Instruction website is used often as a resource for new 
candidates. The use of multiple state agencies as well as guest speakers as sources of 
information show a cooperative approach to education. One of the largest areas of focus is 
understanding the importance of positive attitudes towards safe driving. 

All counseling syllabi are clearly aligned with each standard, not only for Montana PEPPs, but 
also with other accreditations. It is clear to advanced candidates what outcomes they are 
expected to learn in each course and with each assignment. The more applied nature of the 
counseling theories course which often happens in a more advanced course on counseling 
theories is an area of note. 

STANDARD MET WITH NOTATION
10.58.311 Initial Content and Pedagogical Knowledge 1c: Evidence did not support the use of 
research and evidence to measure P-12 student progress. The use of research and valid and 
reliable data is paramount in ensuring all P-12 students are learning. It is unclear to what extent 



candidates use data to create individualized, small group, and whole group instruction in all 
program areas.

10.58.311 Initial Content and Pedagogical Knowledge 1d: 
Although the EPP has provided evidence of developing content and pedagogical knowledge, it is 
unclear how content is applied in developing differentiated instruction to ensure learning takes 
place for a range of student needs within today’s P-12 classrooms. With a shift in personalized 
and proficiency based learning, educators are tasked with providing a range of instruction and 
interventions within the classroom setting.

10.58.605 Advanced Content and Pedagogical Knowledge 1d: Although advanced candidates 
are evaluated on the Montana PEPPS through many diverse tools, the review noted the need for 
an updated Internship Evaluation tool based on current PEPPS. The tool submitted for evidence 
does not include the depth and breadth of the content specific PEPPS and is missing two 
components of ARM 10.58.610 Counseling standard.

10.58.606 Advanced Clinical Partnerships and Practice 1c:  Although the minimum 
qualifications for provider and school based clinical supervisors are communicated through the 
Clinical Training Manual and the use of an Internship Contract ensures all participants 
understand their roles and expectations, the training of supervisors appears to be limited. It was 
communicated that a quick online training was performed, but the depth and breadth of the 
training is unclear. It is important that supervisors are provided proper training to ensure 
evaluations and clinical experiences are provided with fidelity and aligned to program and 
national standards.

10.58.501 Teaching- Elementary and Secondary 1d: Improvement is needed in the area of (d) 
including writing literacy in all program areas. It is unclear from the evidence provided when 
candidates are able to learn how to incorporate and implement practices of writing across 
content areas. 

10.58.501 Teaching- Elementary and Secondary 1e: Another area needing clarity is providing 
opportunities to demonstrate the application of (e) how to connect concepts and use 
perspectives to engage learners in critical thinking, creativity, and collaborative problem solving 
within the classroom setting which was lacking in evidence.

10.58.520 Physical Education Standards: The depth in which the standards are covered needs 
to be addressed due to the high attrition rate among new teachers. It is recommended courses 
are fully aligned to the standards providing multiple opportunities for each standard to be 
covered and practiced furthering a deeper understanding of teacher performance expectations. 
Methods courses need to provide candidates with multiple modalities for learning and 
assessment and not rely solely on opinion-based discussion posts.



10.58.522 Science 2c: It is recommended to modify the syllabi and coursework for the lecture 
and lab content courses to include more of the Science and Engineering Practices (SEP), the 
Crosscutting Concepts (CCC), and IEFA integration. Lecture and lab courses should mention 
and/or incorporate “field work” into their syllabi/classes to assist in the instructional experience 
for meeting the three dimensional science standards, strengthening the 5-12 students’ ability to 
engage in the SEPs. The syllabi could also more directly incorporate IEFA and the CCCs. This may 
occur in the classroom but mentioning it in the syllabi would be advantageous in reviews and 
strengthen the value of the science standards and Montana initiatives.

10.58.523 Social Studies 2b: The EPP is lacking evidence of 2(a), how to select content 
appropriate for the purposes of social studies and 2(b) in relation to planning instruction based 
on national social studies curriculum standards for civic competence. Although syllabi reference 
the component, no evidence of how activities or assignments relate to the understanding or 
application of the standard is given. 

10.58.523 Social Studies 2e:Several courses focus on isolated components of 2(e), however the 
specific demonstration of candidates using a variety of approaches in instruction that are 
appropriate to the nature of social studies content in diverse settings with students with diverse 
backgrounds, interests, and range of abilities is unclear.

10.58.610 Counseling 1g (vi, ix): Standard g(vi) is less clear in syllabi than some of the other 
standards. Other courses are likely to cover this, but it could be made clearer where the specific 
issues are covered.

Standard g(ix) requires future counselors to learn about special education law, rules, and 
regulations as it is applicable to the work of school counselors. While some of this can be 
covered in assignments in other classes and some will be learned during clinical practice, a full 
class on the topic could be made to exist as either a pre-requisite or elective course. 

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT (AFI)
10.58.312 Initial Candidate Partnerships and Practice 1a: Although placement occurs at a range 
of school settings, not all candidates experience more than one school setting or developmental 
level due to placement occurring where the candidate is employed or the isolated location of 
the candidate. Requiring experience into a range of school settings and grade levels would 
expand the partnerships and allow candidates multiple, diverse experiences. After experiencing 
a range of classroom and grade level settings, candidates are more likely to find their preferred 
area which increases their likelihood of retention after they are employed.

10.58.312 Initial Candidate Partnerships and Practice 1c: With the changes in the structure of 
the programs, it is unclear how two-way communication between the EPP and partners is 
constructed and how cooperating teachers and university supervisors are gaining training and 



information on completing evaluations and creating diverse, authentic clinical learning 
opportunities. Evidence was lacking on how Supervisors are provided  the necessary support to 
ensure candidates are not only gaining the experiences needed but are also applying content 
specific practices. 

10.58.313 Initial Candidate Quality Recruitment, Progression, and Support 1a: While 
transitioning to an online format for the majority of the courses, there is a lack of continuity to 
address learning needs and styles of the candidates. There is a disparity between the 
experiences of the completers from the more in person format to the current candidates who 
are taking more virtual courses. Creating standard guidelines and training for faculty focused on 
establishing a virtual environment with robust interactive, skills-based coursework that propels 
a variety of learners toward developing the knowledge base and skills would provide the 
continuity for candidate support.

10.58.607 Advanced Candidate Quality, Recruitment, Progression, and Support 1e: The 
Internship Evaluation needs to be updated to meet the current requirements of ARM 10.58.610 
to include all complexities of the standards and the addition of 1 g(xi) and g(xii). Understanding 
the impact of common medications that affect learning, behaviors, and mood in the P-12 
environment. Understanding the impact of medication on concentration and attention enables 
a counselor to set the direction of interventions and strategies that are used for students. 

10.58.609 Advanced Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous Improvement 1f: Input from 
external stakeholders is important in the program design, evaluation, and continuous innovative 
improvement process. The creation of the Advanced Education Advisory Board should provide 
the necessary involvement of external stakeholders. Including these members will bring 
differing perspectives and insights to improvements, changes, and revitalization that is relevant 
to the unique area in which the EPP provides services.

10.58.503 Art K-12 1b: Improvement is needed in the area of providing candidates 
opportunities to demonstrate an understanding and application of interdisciplinary skills 
allowing learners to reflect and refine personal art education practices and pedagogy. Evidence 
of self and peer reflection was minimal for the practice of teaching art.  It was unclear how and 
within which coursework  individual substandards for the art endorsement are addressed.  
There was insufficient evidence of how courses address age appropriate classroom 
management specifically for the art classroom(s).

10.58.503 Art K-12 1g: There was no evidence provided that candidates have an awareness of 
copyright purposes and practices, budgeting and purchasing, or censorship issues. It does not 
appear that these skills are taught anywhere in the coursework.  Referencing EDU495, student 
teaching does not necessarily mean that their practicum covers stated areas, especially if they 
are not in an art education classroom.



10.58.509 English Language Arts 1f: Although the program offers wide exposure and familiarity 
with an "extensive range of authors, print and non-print texts and genres including historic and 
contemporary works by and about American Indians." IEFA literary canon throughout the 
program could be updated to include more current contributions, with emphasis on Montana 
authors to explore the importance of tribally and regionally specific literature in the K-12 
classroom. Syllabi within EDU courses were generally vague or missing explicit reference to the 
scope and sequence of the course of study.

10.58.509 English Language Arts 1g: The review found that the biggest challenge this program 
faces is that teacher candidates have only one 3-credit semester-long course dedicated to 
learning about 5-12 English Language Arts (ELA) Methods. Even given the Teaching Young Adult 
literature functions as a methods course, this only allows for a total of 6-semester credits and 
does not allow for the depth of study. Commonly, other university programs require four to six 
English Teaching methods courses of three-semester credits each.

10.58.509 English Language Arts 1h: Within MSU-N’s 5-12 English Methods course (EDU 497), 
candidates spend only one week each learning methods of instruction for the four domains of 
ELA as identified and delineated in the Montana ELA Standards and the Common Core State 
Standards: Speaking and Listening, Reading, Writing and Research, Language, and Conventions. 
Although the course integrates these aspects of ELA throughout the English Methods course 
(EDU 497) well, one week may be insufficient for some, if not many, teacher candidates to 
understand the myriad complexities, strategies, methodologies, and depth of knowledge to 
provide high-quality instruction in each of the facets of ELA upon entering the teaching 
profession.

10.58.513 Health Standards 1h, i, k, s, t : Improvement is needed in the area of providing 
candidates opportunities to analyze factors affecting the successful implementation of health 
education and coordinated school health programs. Candidates will require enriched 
opportunities to evaluate health education programs, adjusting learning objectives, and in 
designing instructional strategies for effective teaching. Improvement is needed in the 
appropriate facilitation of learning opportunities for candidates to develop a depth of 
understanding and applied practice in working with those who have different types of 
disabilities and the role of an adapted health enhancement program. Methods courses need to 
provide candidates with multiple modalities for learning and assessment and not rely solely on 
opinion-based discussion posts.

10.58.515 Industry Trades and Technology Education 1a (i, iv), b (vi), j, l, m, p, s: Creating a 
comprehensive course mapping aligned to the standards stating which standards are met, at 
what level they are met, and a detailed description is recommended. Strengthening 
communication between departments (Industrial Trades and Education) would ensure content 
and pedagogical knowledge are aligned. Providing evidence for each course listed under the 
courses & outcomes portion of the report would help solidify evidence. Additional evidence 



provided for each class under the courses & outcomes portion of the report, “Unit, Chapter 
Reflection, Projects”, does not provide enough evidence for the course to be evaluated 
diligently.

10.58.521 Reading Specialist 1c (vi), d (i, iii, iv), e (i), f (ii, iii, iv): There are many standards that 
require candidates to collaborate with colleagues, lead professional development, data team 
meetings, professional learning communities and to communicate with stakeholders such as 
parents. There was no evidence in the provided syllabi that these components are part of the 
coursework. These areas are significant responsibilities for a Reading Specialist and coursework 
should be adapted to teach the critical skills.  

The standards also require that a comprehensive assessment system be covered in the 
coursework. While screeners were thoroughly covered, no other type of assessment appears to 
have been discussed. Not only do the standards require an understanding of the different types 
of assessment, they also require that candidates have the ability to select appropriate 
assessments by considering reliability and validity, analyze assessment results, make 
instructional decisions for groups and classrooms, and share assessment results with 
stakeholders including classroom teachers and parents. There was no evidence provided that 
these skills were taught anywhere within the coursework.

10.58.526 Traffic Education 1n, q, y: For content standard letter (n) demonstrate an 
understanding of vehicle dynamics and balance as they relate to operator control, vehicle safety 
technology, and the effects of occupant restraint systems, it is listed as evidence that a member 
of law enforcement will be presenting the information, pending availability. No further evidence 
is given should an officer not be available. 

Content standard (q) design educational strategies for appropriate classroom and driving 
experiences for diverse learners, needs more specific evidence on how scaffolding and 
strategies are taught and measured to make the curriculum more accessible to diverse learners. 

Content standard (y) demonstrate skills and techniques using potential equipment to assist 
learning for students with special needs should have links to online information and required 
course reading provided within the evidence. 

The current course offerings are lacking in the areas of demonstrating appropriate resources to 
establish a traffic education support network, integrating traffic education into the K-12 
curriculum, and having the tools necessary to teach diverse learners and those with special 
needs.

TED 459, Adaptive Driver Education, course description indicates it would meet several content 
standards but has not yet been offered to candidates as it is a newly created class. It speaks to 



working as a team member to assist students with special needs and offers educational 
strategies and skill development for diverse learners.

10.58.532 Elementary Education 1 h, j, m, p: While the majority of coursework appears to align 
with PEPPs with varied opportunities to address standards, many of the course syllabi presented 
as evidence did not clearly reflect all the components of the standard or show how each 
standard is assessed. Providing more specific evidence of topics addressed and how 
assignments/assessments are evaluated would help make a more accurate assessment of the 
program. Topics & concepts related to standards not met include physical and mental health (h), 
interdisciplinary connections to integrate subject matter (j), proven instructional strategies (m), 
and social, emotional, and physical development (p).

STIPULATION
10.58.314 Initial Program Impact 1b: Due to the decline in the number of candidates and 
completers over the last few years, gaining data that is collected and can be easily analyzed has 
not recently occurred. Concerning employer satisfaction, only one year of data collection was 
submitted for this standard and did not provide enough data to adequately demonstrate the 
satisfaction with preparation of completers. Demonstrating standards through multiple valid 
and reliable data sources that address the unique make-up of the EPP and current conditions 
across the state would provide needed data points to accurately analyze and demonstrate 
program impact. Completer and Employer Surveys need to be completed by January of 2025 
and 2026. After each data collection, the data needs to be analyzed and followed up with 
interviews and observation. A report describing how they are using the data to determine if the 
completers have been effectively prepared to apply skills and dispositions will need to be 
submitted.

10.58.315 Initial Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous Improvement: Due to the current 
quality assurance system not aligning to the current needs of the program, a new system is in 
development but not yet implemented.  The quality assurance system is the foundation of the 
program and is in need of being relevant to the current components of the EPP programs as 
well as being fully implemented to ensure candidates are effectively prepared to take on the 
needs of the diverse educational environments in Montana.There was no evidence of a 
transition plan from the former system to the new proposed system.

10.58.608 Advanced Program Satisfaction with Preparation: Employer and completer 
satisfaction surveys that are valid, and reliable need to be implemented to understand employer 
and completer satisfaction. It is important for the EPP to know what is needed in the field, the 
areas in which the program is meeting or exceeding expectations of the employers, and the 
areas in which improvement is needed.



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.311 Initial Content and Pedagogical Knowledge

Summary of Findings: Using the Institutional Report, course syllabi, critical assessment rubrics 
and data, handbooks, and subsequent interviews during the on-site visit, the Montana State 
University-Northern appears to be aligned to ARM 10.58.311 Initial Content and Pedagogical 
Knowledge for the majority of components within the standard.

MSU N has nine undergraduate programs which lead to licensure and endorsement. The areas 
of majors are Elementary Education, English (5-12), General Science (5-12), Health & Physical 
Education (K-12), Industrial Technology (5-12), and Social Science Broadfield (5-12). The areas of 
minors are Art (K-12), Reading Specialist (K-12), and Traffic Education (K-12). The education 
programs at Montana State University Northern appear to provide evidence of developing and 
demonstrating knowledge and concepts within the offered areas.

The program has experienced systemic changes within the last two years in regard to members 
of leadership, mission and vision, and program structure. The changes to the program structure 
have led to a majority of the educational courses being in an online format and toward making 
progress in updating endorsement areas through crosswalks and the alignment of expectations 
and procedures for online coursework.   

Evidence Consistent with Meeting the Standard: The EPP provided evidence of scaffolding 
courses to build upon previous concepts and structuring observations and practicums to 
provide stages toward application in the clinical settings. Methods and content courses provide 
the foundation for learning and development which is assessed at multiple intervals through 
self-reflections, educational philosophy, and critical assessments.

Evidence was gathered through course syllabi, multiple assessments and rubrics ranging from 
pedagogy, content, philosophies, dispositions, and Practicum and Student Handbooks. Critical 
assessments are aligned to the 11 Montana standards in ARM 10.58.501, InTASC Standards, and 
the Danielson Framework and are assessed during each of the three Practicums to show 
candidate development of knowledge and skills.

Evidence Inconsistent with Meeting the Standard: Evidence did not support the use of research 
and evidence to measure P-12 student progress. The use of research and valid and reliable data 



is paramount in ensuring all P-12 students are learning. It is unclear to what extent candidates 
use data to create individualized, small group, and whole group instruction in all program areas.

Although the EPP has provided evidence of developing content and pedagogical knowledge, it is 
unclear how content is applied in developing differentiated instruction to ensure learning takes 
place for a range of student needs within today’s P-12 classrooms. With a shift in personalized 
and proficiency based learning, educators are tasked with providing a range of instruction and 
interventions within the classroom setting.

Recommendations for New Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulations Including a Rationale 
for Each: 
None

Recommendation: 
● Met with Notation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.312 Initial Candidate Partnerships and Practice

Summary of Findings: Montana State University-Northern provided evidence in the form of 
handbooks, an articulation agreement, and the Community Partnership Survey conducted in 
2021-2022 along with the Institutional Report. In person and virtual interviews were also 
conducted during the on-site visit. The resources described were used to evaluate the EPP’s 
alignment to ARM 10.58.312 Initial Candidate Partnerships and Practice.

While conducting interviews, it was noted that the EPP has gone through systemic changes in 
the last two years. The education department has changed its focus to reflect the new direction 
toward providing partnerships to rural and isolated communities across Montana, as well as 
some of the more urban areas. With a change in the direction of the program structure, there 
have been some inconsistencies between presented evidence and information gained from the 
interviews conducted on-site. When delving deeper into the interviews, it is believed the 
inconsistencies are a result of the rapid changes needing to be made but not all aspects of the 
requirements being fully implemented.

Evidence Consistent with Meeting the Standard: According to evidence presented, the EPP 
makes every effort to provide opportunities for candidates to student teach in their preferred 
districts. The EPP works closely with the site administrators to ensure a qualified cooperating 
teacher is available to provide the mentorship and support. The EPP has also worked with 
districts to provide an apprenticeship program as the districts face current shortages in teacher 
applicants.

Evidence Inconsistent with Meeting the Standard: When providing evidence of establishing 
mutually agreeable expectations for candidate entry, preparation, and exit, a gap is present 
between the EPP and clinical partners’ perceived communication of performing evaluations and 
of creating diverse clinical opportunities. The EPP provides evaluation rubrics and criteria for 
scoring in the handbook but does not provide formal training on how to conduct the 
evaluations. Clear examples of how to offer diverse experiences during clinicals is lacking which 
leads to reduced experiences in professional collaboration in data analysis teams, observing and 
co-conducting meetings with parents, and involvement in developing personalized plans for Tier 
II or Tier III academic or behavioral students.  



Recommendations for New Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulations Including a Rationale 
for Each: Although placement occurs at a range of school settings, not all candidates experience 
more than one school setting or developmental level due to placement occurring where the 
candidate is employed or the isolated location of the candidate. Requiring experience into a 
range of school settings and grade levels would expand the partnerships and allow candidates 
multiple, diverse experiences. After experiencing a range of classroom and grade level settings, 
candidates are more likely to find their preferred area which increases their likelihood of 
retention after they are employed.

With the changes in the structure of the programs, it is unclear how two-way communication 
between the EPP and partners is constructed and how cooperating teachers and university 
supervisors are gaining training and information on completing evaluations and creating diverse, 
authentic clinical learning opportunities. Evidence was lacking on how Supervisors are provided  
the necessary support to ensure candidates are not only gaining the experiences needed but 
are also applying content specific practices.

Recommendation: 
● Met with Area for Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.313 Initial Candidate Quality Recruitment, Progression, 
and Support

Summary of Findings: The Institutional Report, evidence provided with the report, and on-site 
interviews were used to evaluate Montana State University-Northen’s alignment to ARM 
10.58.313 Initial Candidate Quality, Recruitment, and Selectivity. The majority of the evidence 
submitted displays practice and programming in place prior to major changes implemented 
within the last year but not current conditions. 

Montana State University-Northern’s College of Arts, Sciences & Education has experienced 
systemic changes in regard to members of leadership, mission and vision, and program 
structure. The modifications to the program structure were made in response to societal 
changes and the “frontier” location of the candidates and partners served by the Educator 
Preparation Program. This has led to a majority of the educational courses being in an online 
format and the beginning steps toward updating endorsement areas through crosswalks, the 
alignment to PEPPS, and to the expectations and procedures for online coursework.

Apparent steps toward providing up to date data on candidate development and progress and 
candidate recruitment through apprenticeships and virtual coursework are noted as areas in the 
process of development. Due to these changes, there are gaps and inconsistencies between 
evidence provided and information gained through the interviews in the area of tracking 
candidate quality and providing candidate support.

Evidence Consistent with Meeting the Standard: The EPP has provided evidence of addressing 
local, state, regional, and national needs for hard-to-staff schools and shortage fields. Focus and 
resources have been put into place to develop relationships with hard-to-staff schools by 
allowing candidates to student teach in the areas they live. The EPP has also participated in the 
Teachers of Promise Pathways (TOPP) grant-funded program which encourages Montana high 
school students to consider teaching as a career and makes it more accessible for students 
across the remote regions of Montana.

Evidence supports the alignment to monitoring dispositions beyond academic ability. 
Dispositions are evaluated as part of the entrance interview to establish a baseline for data. 
Candidates and cooperating teachers evaluate the candidate’s dispositions through each of the 



three practicums and during Student Teaching. The Disposition Assessment has been vetted for 
validity and reliability.

Evidence Inconsistent with Meeting the Standard: Some online courses were found to be 
inconsistent with expectations of candidates engaging in learning and the processes of 
candidates receiving assistance. Considering the EPP’s transition to online learning, consistent 
expectations for engagement in learning and having consistent processes of receiving assistance 
would increase the development of candidate’s skills and understanding of concepts.

Although there is evidence of admissions requirements, evaluation tools to monitor candidates, 
and a completion policy that includes multiple assessment measures, it is unclear of the 
tracking mechanism that is currently in place to ensure all relevant faculty and candidates have 
access to monitor the assessment data. Previously faculty and candidates had the ability to 
access the database through BrightSpace, but with the modernization of the database and the 
transitioning to proficiency based assessments, there appears to be a gap in the provided 
information.
 
Recommendations for New Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulations Including a Rationale 
for Each: While transitioning to an online format for the majority of the courses, there is a lack 
of continuity to address learning needs and styles of the candidates. There is a disparity 
between the experiences of the completers from the more in person format to the current 
candidates who are taking more virtual courses. Creating standard guidelines and training for 
faculty focused on establishing a virtual environment with robust interactive, skills-based 
coursework that propels a variety of learners toward developing the knowledge base and skills 
would provide the continuity for candidate support. 

Recommendation: 
● Met with Area for Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.314 Initial Program Impact

Summary of Findings: The Institutional Reports, provided evidence, and on-site interviews were 
used to evaluate Montana State University-Northern’s alignment to ARM 10.58.314. 
Information provided during the interviews reflected a change in leadership and direction of the 
program over the last two years. The EPP appears to be in transition within the major workings 
of the program which has led to gaps in the evidence provided. 

The EPP issues Completer Surveys through the Montana Council of Deans to gather information 
on areas of satisfaction and areas needing improvement. The EPP expressed that small numbers 
of completers in recent years have made it difficult to receive Completer Survey results. Other 
tools used to collect information range from candidate journaling, feedback from cooperating 
teachers, and Practicum entry and exit points. Only one year of Employer Survey data was 
submitted for review. 

Evidence Consistent with Meeting the Standard: The overall data submitted appeared to 
represent satisfaction in relevance and effectiveness of the preparation of the completers. The 
limited number of employers surveyed through the Employer Survey, the employers that 
completed the Community Partnerships survey, and those interviewed answered the majority 
of questions in a positive manner. The completers between the years of 2017-2020 also 
answered the questions surveyed with a majority of positive responses although current data 
was not supplied.

The data submitted as evidence, though limited, and subsequent interviews demonstrated that 
program completers perceive their preparation as relevant to their responsibilities on the job 
and that their preparation was effective. The majority of responses were positive in nature with 
few responses indicating negative connotations.

Evidence Inconsistent with Meeting the Standard: With few employer responses to the 
Employer Survey and the lack of completer satisfaction data to properly analyze, the EPP has 
not demonstrated that program completers effectively contribute to P-12 student learning using 
valid and reliable data as no other data was submitted. Interviews suggested data acquired 
during Practicums and Student Teaching, such as candidate journaling and feedback from 
cooperating teachers, were also used, but there are no other tools to provide data past 
graduation besides the limited survey data.



To demonstrate through structured and validated instruments that completers effectively apply 
the professional knowledge, skills, and dispositions as described in ARM 10.58.501, information 
on effective application is needed. The evidence provided beyond the Completer Surveys were 
the comments from exit interviews concerning suggested improvements to the program, how 
the candidates felt toward preparation for student teaching, and building relationships with 
P-12 students.

Recommendations for New Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulations Including a Rationale 
for Each: Due to the decline in the number of candidates and completers over the last few 
years, gaining data that is collected and can be easily analyzed has not recently occurred. 
Concerning employer satisfaction, only one year of data collection was submitted for this 
standard and did not provide enough data to adequately demonstrate the satisfaction with 
preparation of completers. Demonstrating standards through multiple valid and reliable data 
sources that address the unique make-up of the EPP and current conditions across the state 
would provide needed data points to accurately analyze and demonstrate program impact. 
Completer and Employer Surveys need to be completed by January of 2025 and 2026. After 
each data collection, the data needs to be analyzed and followed up with interviews and 
observation. A report describing how they are using the data to determine if the completers 
have been effectively prepared to apply skills and dispositions will need to be submitted.

Recommendation: 
● Stipulation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.315 Initial Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous 
Improvement

Summary of Findings: Diverse evidence in the form of various surveys, agendas, application 
forms, handbooks, and evaluation questions and rubrics were provided along with the 
Institutional Report for 10.58.315 Initial Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous 
Improvement. During on-site interviews, it was communicated that the EPP is currently in the 
process of transitioning to an online focus. The quality assurance system is in the planning stage 
and has not been fully implemented to align with the current status of the program. 

In response to the transition to a more online focused format, courses are being reviewed by 
Quality Matters to develop quality control. The EPP also communicated an improvement was 
taking place concerning the database used in the previous quality assurance system. In past 
years, data was compiled in a database that required manual input and did not represent live 
conditions. The database is in the process of being modernized to allow candidates and faculty 
access to real-time information.

Evidence Consistent with Meeting the Standard: The Educator Preparation Program has 
provided evidence to support alignment to using data and feedback to support continuous 
improvement by establishing priorities and enhancing program elements and capacity. 
Suggestions for improvement provided in short answer responses in surveys have led to using 
the Danielson Model, which is aligned with InTASC standards, in the development of evaluations 
and reflections. A decline in enrollment and the needs of the remote locations of candidates 
and partner schools has led to providing more courses and candidate check-ins with supervisors 
and faculty online. 

Evidence Inconsistent with Meeting the Standard: Gaps have been identified in the current 
quality assurance system addressing the needs of the online format. More consistency in the 
online course format and the quality of candidate interactions within the courses are currently 
lacking as the new quality assurance measures are in development. 

The regular and systematic assessment of program performance was not clearly communicated 
in relation to faculty access and review of data. Although procedures state data is reviewed 
annually, evidence was provided for one data review in 2020, and interviews did not clearly 
communicate how data was currently reviewed by all faculty.



Recommendations for New Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulations Including a Rationale 
for Each: Due to the current quality assurance system not aligning to the current needs of the 
program, a new system is in development but not yet implemented.  The quality assurance 
system is the foundation of the program and is in need of being relevant to the current 
components of the EPP programs as well as being fully implemented to ensure candidates are 
effectively prepared to take on the needs of the diverse educational environments in Montana. 
There was no evidence of a transition plan from the former system to the new proposed 
system.
 
Recommendation: 

● Stipulation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.605 Advanced Content and Pedagogical Knowledge

Summary of Findings: Based on the evidence provided in the Institutional Reports and the 
on-site visit interviews, Montana State University-Northern verifies alignment to ARM 10.58.605 
Advanced Content and Pedagogical Knowledge with some notations in the program. The 
evidence provided included course syllabi, detailed information on the Exit Portfolio and 
Interview, Internship Evaluation and corresponding data, the National Counselor Examination 
data, and the Internship Dispositions Rubric. 

MSU N has one advanced degree leading to licensure which is Counselor Education. The 
majority of advanced candidates are teachers already working in schools which provide 
placements during internships. The counseling courses are conducted in a mostly virtual format 
with scheduled three-hour weekly Zoom meetings requiring whole class attendance and once a 
month in-person, intensive sixteen-hour sessions.   

Evidence Consistent with Meeting the Standard: The advanced program assesses advanced 
candidate development and application of discipline-specific practices through Case 
Presentations, video sessions, group supervision meetings, journal writings, and various 
assessments through coursework, practicum, and internship. Course assignments and scenarios 
provide the advanced candidates the ability to apply theoretical knowledge to a range of 
settings, issues, and clientele while gaining immediate feedback from peers and faculty. 

The EPP evidence supports alignment to the components of standard c) through a research 
methods course and various other courses using assignments which include research projects, 
analyzing information using quantitative and qualitative inquiries, conducting a project as a 
consultant determining the needs of a school or community partner, and leading and 
participating in collaborative activities in differing settings. During these assignments, advanced 
candidates are exposed to the uses of technology in their field. The EPP is commended on its 
numerous ways the advanced candidates are applying their knowledge of laws, policies, and 
professional standards. Through essays, interviews, assignments, and evaluations, candidates 
are held to a high level of demonstration and application of this area.  

Evidence Inconsistent with Meeting the Standard: Although advanced candidates are 
evaluated on the Montana PEPPS through many diverse tools, the review noted the need for an 
updated Internship Evaluation tool based on current PEPPS. The tool submitted for evidence 



does not include the depth and breadth of the content specific PEPPS and is missing two 
components of ARM 10.58.610 Counseling standard.

Recommendations for New Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulations Including a Rationale 
for Each: 
None

Recommendation: 
● Met with Notation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.606 Advanced Clinical Partnerships and Practice

Summary of Findings: The Institutional Report, various pieces of evidence, and on-site 
interviews show alignment to ARM 10.58.606 Advanced Clinical Partnerships and Practices with 
some notations. The advanced program is composed of only the Counseling Education degree 
and provides clinical partnerships with an array of schools and mental health services across the 
state. The online format of the coursework allows the EPP access to a variety of areas from 
remote locations to more urban settings. 

The faculty for the advanced program is currently composed of one full time faculty member 
and two adjunct faculty. The evidence submitted includes contracts, dispositions, evaluations, 
clinical training manual, Exit Portfolio information, and Praxis data. Interviews were also 
conducted with the full time faculty member and stakeholders ranging from partners to 
advanced candidates and completers.

Evidence Consistent with Meeting the Standard: The Clinical Training Manual, evaluations, and 
communication tools used between the EPP faculty and partners provide guidance on criteria to 
ensure advanced candidate preparation centers on the development of knowledge, skills, and 
professional dispositions. Weekly logs completed and submitted by the supervisors provide 
immediate two-way feedback on progress and potential areas of concern. 

The EPP and clinical partners are able to con-construct mutually beneficial P-12 school and 
community arrangements for clinical preparation and share responsibility for continuous 
improvement of the advanced candidates by allowing the clinical partners to choose activities 
that are unique to the clinical environment and yet provide experience and application of the 
content area material covered in coursework and needed to align to PEPPs and national 
standards. Clinical feedback, evaluations, and weekly logs provide oversight for the EPP faculty. 
Currently employed teachers within the advanced program are allowed to work with their 
employing school to conduct their practicums and internships.

Evidence Inconsistent with Meeting the Standard: Although the minimum qualifications for 
provider and school based clinical supervisors are communicated through the Clinical Training 
Manual and the use of an Internship Contract ensures all participants understand their roles 
and expectations, the training of supervisors appears to be limited. It was communicated that a 
quick online training was performed, but the depth and breadth of the training is unclear. It is 



important that supervisors are provided proper training to ensure evaluations and clinical 
experiences are provided with fidelity and aligned to program and national standards.

Recommendations for New Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulations Including a Rationale 
for Each: 
None

Recommendation: 
● Met with Notation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.607 Advanced Candidate Quality, Recruitment, 
Progression, and Support

Summary of Findings: Using the Institutional Report, evidence provided through the report and 
subsequent interviews, the EPP appears to be aligned to ARM 10.58.607 with an area for 
improvement. The evidence provided consists of detailed information on the criteria for the Exit 
Portfolio Oral Defense, Internship Evaluation data, Praxis and National Counselor Examination 
data, tracking mechanisms from admission through graduation, admission essay rubric and 
admission scorecard, dispositions rubric, a draft of the Graduate Program Handbook, and course 
syllabi. 

The advanced program staff is composed of three faculty members with one member physically 
located at the university. Courses are in a “mixed mode” format with online and in-class 
components. 

Evidence Consistent with Meeting the Standard: The online format allows advanced candidates 
to remain in the schools where they teach and provide the much needed roles of their field to 
these hard to reach locations. As teachers in the schools, they were very aware of the needs of 
the school and had already established relationships with many of the P-12 students, families, 
and staff. The EPP also includes assignments such as research presentations and scenarios that 
provide experience for the advanced candidates to insight to curriculum and tools used for 
suicide, alcohol, and drug prevention which are current issues within the schools. 

Every admission to the advanced program must include an Admission Essay and are scored 
using the Admission Scorecard. Advanced candidates are monitored using Admission Thru 
Graduation Data, GPAs, background checks at different intervals. The Praxis II, Exit Portfolio, and 
National Counselor Examination data must be met by minimum requirements. Dispositions are 
monitored through evaluations at the beginning and end of the program. 

The EPP documents academic competency and development and application of discipline 
specific knowledge through evaluations, course assignments, participation in discussions and 
scenarios, and supervisor’s observations. Progress from evaluation to evaluation and term to 
term is monitored for improvement and ensure performance meets determined criteria. When 
candidates fall below standards, the faculty meets with the supervisor and candidate to address 
the issue and possibly develop a remediation plan. 



The expectations of the profession, including ethical conduct, professional standards of practice, 
and relevant laws and policies are central to CNSL 508: Theories of Counseling & Development 
and CNSL 549: Research Methods in Counseling and are communicated and evaluated 
throughout the Practicum and Internship using supervisor evaluations and weekly logs. 

Evidence Inconsistent with Meeting the Standard: Although the Montana PEPPs are assessed 
in several ways, the Internship Evaluation has not been updated to meet current requirements. 
This tool is used to demonstrate the quality of the advanced candidates and is missing changes 
to the depth and breadth of the components and two vital components: 10.58.610 1 g(xi) 
demonstrating knowledge of common medications that affect learning, behavior, and mood in 
children and adolescents, and g(xii) demonstrating knowledge of professional organizations, 
preparation standards, and credentials that are relevant to the practice of school counseling.
 
The advanced program is currently using the Clinical Training Manual and the University Catalog 
since the Graduate Handbook is in draft form. The Graduate Handbook includes specific 
information on the advanced program such as program objectives, outcomes, faculty contact 
information, course schedules, policies, procedures, and guidelines unique to the advanced 
program. The publication and issue of the Graduate Handbook will provide additional 
transparency to the advanced program criteria and transition points.

Recommendations for New Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulations Including a Rationale 
for Each: The Internship Evaluation needs to be updated to meet the current requirements of 
ARM 10.58.610 to include all complexities of the standards and the addition of 1 g(xi) and g(xii). 
Understanding the impact of common medications that affect learning, behaviors, and mood in 
the P-12 environment. Understanding the impact of medication on concentration and attention 
enables a counselor to set the direction of interventions and strategies that are used for 
students. 

Recommendation: 
● Met with Area of Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.608 Advanced Program Satisfaction with Preparation

Summary of Findings: The Montana State University-Northern offers one graduate degree 
leading to licensure or endorsement, which is Counseling Education. The Institutional Report 
submitted included evidence in the form of Graduate Surveys and timelines for survey data 
collection. Interviews conducted during the on-site visit were also used to evaluate alignment to 
ARM 10.58.608 Advanced Program Satisfaction with Preparation. 

Evidence Consistent with Meeting the Standard: Graduate surveys were provided to show 
100% of the graduates are employed. Interviews related satisfaction with the program from 
both completers, current candidates, and partners.

Evidence Inconsistent with Meeting the Standard: Employer satisfaction data was not provided 
although graduate surveys reported 100% of graduates employed and many of which are 
employed through internship placements. More data is needed to adequately evaluate 
alignment to employer satisfaction.

Recommendations for New Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulations Including a Rationale 
for Each: Employer and completer satisfaction surveys that are valid, and reliable need to be 
implemented to understand employer and completer satisfaction. It is important for the EPP to 
know what is needed in the field, the areas in which the program is meeting or exceeding 
expectations of the employers, and the areas in which improvement is needed. 

Recommendation: 
● Stipulation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.609 Advanced Provider Quality Assurance and 
Continuous Improvement

Summary of Findings: Using the Institutional Report, provided evidence, and on-site interviews, 
the EPP appears to meet ARM 10.58.609 Advanced Provider Quality Assurance and Continuous 
Improvement with an area for improvement. The evidence provided consisted of evaluation 
data, the Clinical Training Manual, meeting agendas, Exit Portfolio Evaluation criteria and rubric, 
and the draft of the Graduate Handbook.

The program currently consists of one full time faculty member located on campus and two 
adjunct faculty members. The Associate Professor fulfills many of the essential roles and 
responsibilities within the quality assurance system such as reviewing data. 

Evidence Consistent with Meeting the Standard: Multiple measures are used to monitor the 
advanced candidates’ progress and are used in decision-making for programmatic 
improvement. The Admission Thru Graduation Data is used to monitor the advanced candidates 
using several measurable criteria. Check-in points are used to ensure candidates are ready for 
the Practicum and to check progress at the mid-point of the Practicum and prior to Internship. 
During the check-ins, evaluations and required documents are used to determine if candidates 
are ready to move forward. A final check-in is held at the end of Internship to ensure candidates 
have met graduation requirements. 

The Exit Portfolio Oral Defense, Praxis, the National Counselor Examination, Internship 
Evaluations and Dispositions, and clinical experiences are used to ensure the quality assurance 
system relies on relevant, verifiable, representative, cumulative, and actionable measures. 
Rubrics provide clear expectations of required criteria.

Evidence Inconsistent with Meeting the Standard: Although reliable measurements showing 
program performance are collected and monitored, clear evidence of how innovations are 
tested and results of regular and systematic assessments are being used for the improvement of 
program elements and process was not presented. Meeting agendas related courses being 
added or removed from the program but no reasons were given to connect decisions to 
information from the quality assurance system.



Evidence of information being shared with internal stakeholders was provided in meeting 
agendas and through interviews, however limited evidence was provided of external 
stakeholders. The Institutional Report stated the program is creating an Advanced Education 
Advisory Board with an effective date in the academic year of 2024-2025.
 
Recommendations for New Areas for Improvement and/or Stipulations Including a Rationale 
for Each: Input from external stakeholders is important in the program design, evaluation, and 
continuous innovative improvement process. The creation of the Advanced Education Advisory 
Board should provide the necessary involvement of external stakeholders. Including these 
members will bring differing perspectives and insights to improvements, changes, and 
revitalization that is relevant to the unique area in which the EPP provides services.

Recommendation: 
Met with Area of Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.501 Teaching- Elementary

Validating Statement: Alignment is evident with standards and available in course syllabi, 
course descriptions in the course catalog.

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi and other documentation of course content.

Assessment Aligned to Standard: Program aligns with standards.  Evident in course syllabi, 
course descriptions in the course catalog.

Evaluation: Evaluation appears to include candidate performance data, aggregated and 
disaggregated, qualitative, and quantitative. Clear details are evident and the depth and 
breadth, including multiple measures and additional opportunities for assessment throughout.  
Candidates demonstrate learning through examinations, projects, written and oral 
presentations, papers, and other assessments. Aggregate and disaggregate assessment data 
was not included in evidence.

Commendations: There are ample opportunities for candidates to reflect on their experiences, 
understanding of concepts, and own growth.

Improvements: Improvement is needed in the area of (d) including writing literacy in all 
program areas. It is unclear from the evidence provided when candidates are able to learn how 
to incorporate and implement practices of writing across content areas. Another area needing 
clarity is providing opportunities to demonstrate the application of (e) how to connect concepts 
and use perspectives to engage learners in critical thinking, creativity, and collaborative problem 
solving within the classroom setting which was lacking in evidence.

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Met with Notation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.501 Teaching- Secondary

Validating Statement: Alignment is evident with standards and available in course syllabi and 
course descriptions in the course catalog.

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi and other documentation of course content.

Assessment Aligned to Standard: Program aligns with standards.  Evident in course syllabi, 
course descriptions in the course catalog.

Evaluation: Evaluation appears to include candidate performance data, aggregated and 
disaggregated, qualitative, and quantitative. Clear details are evident and the depth and 
breadth, including multiple measures and additional opportunities for assessment throughout. 
Candidates demonstrate learning through examinations, projects, written and oral 
presentations, papers, and other assessments. Aggregate and disaggregate assessment data 
was not included in evidence.

Commendations: There are ample opportunities for candidates to reflect on their experiences, 
understanding of concepts, and own growth.

Improvements: Improvement is needed in the area of (d) including writing literacy in all 
program areas. It is unclear from the evidence provided when candidates are able to learn how 
to incorporate and implement practices of writing across content areas. Another area for 
improvement is providing opportunities to demonstrate the application of (e) how to connect 
concepts and use perspectives to engage learners in critical thinking, creativity, and 
collaborative problem solving within the classroom setting which was lacking in evidence.

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Met with Notation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.503 Art K-12

Validating Statement: Evidence has been presented verifying candidates have many 
opportunities to learn and practice the skill set required for K-12 art program content. Course 
syllabi include evidence that candidates explore and understand art from a historical and 
cultural perspective. Coursework also affords many opportunities for practical application of 
artistic skills. 

Sources of Evidence: Syllabi for 11 courses were provided for Art and Education coursework. 
While the syllabi were provided, most of the evidence cited did not have an explanation or 
reference to how assignments were preparing the candidates to be art teachers or how children 
acquire art skills. There were also several areas where the evidence did not match the particular 
components of the art endorsement standard. The course descriptions in course catalog and 
university website were utilized to locate more information.

Assessment Aligned to Standard: It was difficult to determine how each standard was assessed 
for the Art courses and which substandard was taught in which course. Syllabi made no mention 
of K-12 Montana art content standards or the pedagogy required to teach art. 

Evaluation: Evaluation appears to include the creation of many lesson plans, quizzes, tests, 
journals, and discussions assessing  the candidates’ content knowledge for art.  Unfortunately, 
no assignment explanations or rubrics were provided as these appear to be housed in Bright 
Space so it was very difficult to determine how candidates or faculty can assess their readiness 
to acquire and demonstrate the teaching standards as they apply to teaching art.  

Commendations: The introductory art courses have a solid foundation and allow candidates to 
engage into a diverse history of art, with a heavy emphasis on American Indians and tribes in 
Montana. Candidates are given the opportunity to utilize multiple assessment strategies for 
evaluating progress of their content knowledge of art  through peer review.

Improvements: Improvement is needed in the area of providing candidates opportunities to 
demonstrate an understanding and application of interdisciplinary skills allowing learners to 
reflect and refine personal art education practices and pedagogy. Evidence of self and peer 
reflection was minimal for the practice of teaching art.  It was unclear how and within which 
coursework  individual substandards for the art endorsement are addressed.  There was 



insufficient evidence of how courses address age appropriate classroom management 
specifically for the art classroom(s).

There was no evidence provided that candidates have an awareness of copyright purposes and 
practices, budgeting and purchasing, or censorship issues. It does not appear that these skills 
are taught anywhere in the coursework.  Referencing EDU495, student teaching does not 
necessarily mean that their practicum covers stated areas, especially if they are not in an art 
education classroom.

Accreditation Recommendation
● Met with Area for Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.509 English Language Arts

Validating Statement: Accountability to this standard was reviewed using the MSU-N 
Institutional Report, course syllabi with evidence of compliance, and the program requirements 
outlined in the university’s course catalog. The primary focus of this review was adherence to 
and application of principles outlined in the Professional Education Preparation Standards 
10.58.509 English Language Arts.

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi (including course texts, topics/content, objectives, and 
assignments for assessment), course descriptions, program requirements, and the MSU-N 
Institutional Report were reviewed as evidence of PEPP Standard alignment.

Assessment Aligned to Standard: The assessments were aligned to the course objectives, which 
were frequently aligned directly to the PEPP standards, meeting the universal standard of 
10.58.509 English Language Arts.

Evaluation: Based on the evidence presented by the MSU-Northern faculty, the review found 
that the program met most standards without reservations or concerns. 

Commendations: The program offers a robust review of literature across genres. Critical 
analysis of literature is explored in depth and breadth. Teacher candidates have a required 
course of study that ensures strong content knowledge. 

Program texts, activities, and courses of study include the important considerations for 
authentic writing instruction that is rooted in writing best practices and learning 
science-supported writing pedagogy. The program is applauded for teaching the value of 
collaborative writing strategies and methodology.

Improvements: The review found that the biggest challenge this program faces is that teacher 
candidates have only one 3-credit semester-long course dedicated to learning about 5-12 ELA 
Methods. Even given the Teaching Young Adult literature functions as a methods course, this 
only allows for a total of 6-semester credits and does not allow for the depth of study. 
Commonly, other university programs require four to six English Teaching methods courses of 
three-semester credits each.



Within MSU-N’s 5-12 English Methods course (EDU 497), candidates spend only one week each 
learning methods of instruction for the four domains of ELA as identified and delineated in the 
Montana ELA Standards and the Common Core State Standards: Speaking and Listening, 
Reading, Writing and Research, Language, and Conventions. Although the course integrates 
these aspects of ELA throughout the English Methods course (EDU 497) well, one week may be 
insufficient for some, if not many, teacher candidates to understand the myriad complexities, 
strategies, methodologies, and depth of knowledge to provide high-quality instruction in each 
of the facets of ELA upon entering the teaching profession.

Although the program offers wide exposure and familiarity with an "extensive range of authors, 
print and non-print texts and genres including historic and contemporary works by and about 
American Indians." Indian Education for All (IEFA) literary canon throughout the program could 
be updated to include more current contributions, with emphasis on Montana authors to 
explore the importance of tribally and regionally specific literature in the K-12 classroom. Syllabi 
within EDU courses were generally vague or missing explicit reference to the scope and 
sequence of the course of study.

The National Council of Teachers of English (NCTE) is listed as a professional organization for 
reference. Teacher-candidate students would benefit greatly from engagement with additional 
secondary ELA professional organizations such as the Montana Association of Teachers of 
English Language Arts (The NCTE local chapter), The International Literacy Association, The 
Reading League, and Writing Projects Under The Big Sky (the Montana State affiliate of the 
National Writing Project). Building opportunities (codified in the syllabus) that bolster 
preparation for pre-service teachers to engage in professional, institutional, and leadership roles 
poises and prepares them to continue to develop as professional educators after completing the 
ELA PEPP.

Accreditation Recommendation
● Met with Areas for Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.513 Health Standards

Validating Statement: The Health program provides candidates opportunities to utilize 
health-related data to promote healthy lifestyles and behaviors inclusive of American Indians 
and tribes in Montana, conduct needs assessments that provide appropriate data to determine 
health education needs of learners, formulate measurable learner goals and objectives that 
promote healthy lifestyles and behaviors, demonstrate competence in delivering planned health 
education programs and develop effective communication between health care providers and 
consumers working cooperatively as an advocate for improving personal, family, and community 
health. 

An area where the program needs to experience improvement is in providing candidates 
opportunities to analyze factors affecting the successful implementation of health education 
and coordinated school health programs. Additionally, candidates require opportunities to 
evaluate health education programs, adjusting objectives, and designing instructional strategies 
for effective teaching. Improvement is needed in the area where candidates need opportunities 
to select effective, valid, and reliable health resource materials for dissemination, interpret 
concepts, purposes, models, and theories of health promotion and health education. 

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi and documentation of course content. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: A program of alignment to standards is available in course 
syllabi. 

Evaluation: The Health program initiates a strong foundation of content-related courses in 
health education and exercise science. Further, the program facilitates opportunities for 
candidates to gain exceptional experience in planning for student teaching experience through 
reflective practice and guided observation in classroom settings. Candidates learn to develop 
advanced instructional strategies, materials, technologies, and activities to promote Indian 
Education for All across the K-8 curriculum. Candidates learn a variety of strategies to 
administer, analyze, interpret and utilize various assessments in health and physical education. 
Despite its strengths, the Health program is deficient in critical components related to 
instructional strategies in health enhancement education courses. Through the examination of 
each course syllabus the following information was noted: 



● In the syllabi for HEE 303, HEE 340, HEE 435, and HEE 310 the standards are referenced 
in the course descriptions, course alignments, block objectives, objectives for 
assignments, or goals. However, in each of these courses, assignments or assessments 
were not intentionally aligned to any standards. 

● In the syllabi for HEE 303, HEE 340, HEE 435, and HEE 310 candidates are only given 
opinion-based questions to respond to in discussion posts for assignments. Candidates 
are not given opportunities to utilize developmentally appropriate instructional 
strategies to elicit P-12 student engagement with the content. 

As future health educators, candidates will be expected to influence behavior change through 
cognitive education. Methods courses in health enhancement education provide candidates 
with the techniques needed to be effective advocates for health education and health 
promotion. Importantly, a health program that is deficient in the Health Enhancement 
Curriculum Model and Health Enhancement Curriculum Standards puts candidates at a severe 
disadvantage in the first years of teaching. 

Commendations: There is considerable effort to provide candidates with applied experiences in 
exercise physiology and in guided instructional practice to prepare for student teaching. The 
effort to focus on the study of the physiological effects of acute and chronic exercise provides an 
educational framework of how exercise and physical activity influences health, and on the 
promotion of physical activity in community, clinical, school, and public health settings. This is 
critical for candidates in the foundational understanding of health promotion and health 
education. 

Improvements: Improvement is needed in the area of providing candidates opportunities to 
analyze factors affecting the successful implementation of health education and coordinated 
school health programs. Candidates will require enriched opportunities to evaluate health 
education programs, adjusting learning objectives, and in designing instructional strategies for 
effective teaching. Improvement is needed in the appropriate facilitation of learning 
opportunities for candidates to develop a depth of understanding and applied practice in 
working with those who have different types of disabilities and the role of an adapted health 
enhancement program. Methods courses need to provide candidates with multiple modalities 
for learning and assessment and not rely solely on opinion-based discussion posts. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Met with Area for Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.515 Industry Trades and Technology Education

Validating Statement: Evidence has been presented verifying that candidates have exposure 
within an industry where a broad understanding of Industrial Technological concepts are 
understood. Course syllabi include opportunities for candidates to learn through an online 
process, of topics in Industrial trades education and the importance of technology literacy and 
application. 

Sources of Evidence: Syllabi, MSUN Industrial Technology Course Catalog

Assessment Aligned to Standard: For courses with provided evidence, each learning outcome 
correlated to an Industrial Trades and Technology Standard and PEPP Standards. Some 
standards were left without evidence provided to meet Industrial Trades and Technology 
Standard and PEPP Standards.

Evaluation: Evidence has been presented to verify the focus for each aspect of the Industrial 
Trades Education program on the Industrial Trades and Technology and PEPP Standards. The 
program did not provide enough evidence to support each aspect of the Industrial Trades 
Education program on the Industrial Trades and Technology and PEPP Standards.

Commendations: Industrial Trades & Technology courses are provided for candidates. Uses of 
Reflection and Teaching problem solving strategies are being utilized across courses provided for 
evaluation. 

Improvements: Creating a comprehensive course mapping aligned to the standards stating 
which standards are met, at what level they are met, and a detailed description is 
recommended. Strengthening communication between departments (Industrial Trades and 
Education) would ensure content and pedagogical knowledge are aligned. Providing evidence 
for each course listed under the courses & outcomes portion of the report would help solidify 
evidence. Additional evidence provided for each class under the courses & outcomes portion of 
the report, “Unit, Chapter Reflection, Projects”, does not provide enough evidence for the 
course to be evaluated diligently.  

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Met with Area for Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.520 Physical Education Standards

Validating Statement: The Physical Education program prepares candidates to apply academic 
training to interactions with P-12 students, parents, colleagues, and administrators in the public 
schools. The program facilitates opportunities for candidates to engage and support all learners 
through practicum participation and field experiences and observations. Through a variety of 
coursework and projects, candidates are assessed on the understanding and organization of 
subject matter for learning.

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi and documentation of course content. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: A program of alignment to standards is available in course 
syllabi. 

Evaluation: Physical education candidates are given opportunities to demonstrate competence 
in the identification of critical elements of motor skill performance, demonstration of motor 
skill performance in a variety of physical activities, describing and applying bioscience and 
psychological concepts to skillful movement, physical activity, and fitness.  Candidates are given 
opportunities to demonstrate knowledge and use technology tools and instruments to monitor 
P-12 students’ motor skills, development, and performance. Candidates are given some 
opportunities to demonstrate knowledge and understanding of state and national content 
standards, current law, including those related to American Indians and tribes in Montana.  
Candidates are given opportunities to demonstrate understanding and use of current 
instructional strategies in elementary physical education, development of a teaching philosophy, 
budgeting strategies, lesson plan development, and integrating Indian Education across the 
curriculum. 

Through the examination of each course syllabus the following was noted: 

● In the syllabi for HEE 303 and HEE 435 the standards are referenced in the course 
descriptions, course alignments, block objectives, objectives for assignments, or goals. 
However, in each of these courses, assignments or assessments were not intentionally 
aligned to any standards. 



● In the syllabi for HEE 303 and HEE 435 candidates are not given opportunities to utilize 
developmentally appropriate instructional  strategies to elicit P-12 student engagement 
with the content. 

Commendations: Respectful effort is made to create meaningful learning opportunities for 
candidates through teaching practices, reflective consideration of content literacy, and 
budgeting for instructional equipment. 

Improvements: The depth in which the standards are covered needs to be addressed due to the 
high attrition rate among new teachers. It is recommended courses are fully aligned to the 
standards providing multiple opportunities for each standard to be covered and practiced 
furthering a deeper understanding of teacher performance expectations. Methods courses need 
to provide candidates with multiple modalities for learning and assessment and not rely solely 
on opinion-based discussion posts. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Met with Notation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.521 Reading Specialist

Validating Statement: Supporting materials were reviewed. Course objectives align to PEPP and 
InTASC standards.   

Sources of Evidence: Syllabi for 6 courses were provided along with additional scope and 
sequence for two of the courses. While the syllabi were provided, most of the evidence cited 
simply stated the name of an assignment within the course, but there was no explanation or 
rubrics of assignments provided for review to ensure assignments aligned to objectives or 
standards.  

Assessment Aligned to Standard: Determining how each standard is assessed was unclear as 
evidence was listed with only the title of the assignment, and no additional information was 
provided. Within the syllabi, assignments, quizzes and tests were listed but the assignments 
were not connected to standards nor were instructions or rubrics provided to give clarifying 
information for the review. It appears that most of this information is located in BrightSpace, 
and the reviewer was not given access to all the class content.  

Evaluation: Evaluation appears to include the creation of many lesson plans, quizzes, tests, 
Journals, discussions and an Exit Interview. Unfortunately, no assignment explanations or 
rubrics were provided as these appear to be housed in Bright Space which presented difficulty 
in determining how these assignments aligned to the standards.  

Commendations: The foundational skills have been very thoroughly covered. The process of 
learning about each skill, training to use the screeners aligned to the skill, and then writing a 
lesson plan based on the assessment will give candidates a solid start to understanding the 
process of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support.  

Improvements: There are many standards that require candidates to collaborate with 
colleagues, lead professional development, data team meetings, professional learning 
communities and to communicate with stakeholders such as parents. There was no evidence in 
the provided syllabi that these components are part of the coursework. These areas are 
significant responsibilities for a Reading Specialist and coursework should be adapted to teach 
the critical skills.  



The standards also require that a comprehensive assessment system be covered in the 
coursework. While screeners were thoroughly covered, no other type of assessment appears to 
have been discussed. Not only do the standards require an understanding of the different types 
of assessment, they also require that candidates have the ability to select appropriate 
assessments by considering reliability and validity, analyze assessment results, make 
instructional decisions for groups and classrooms, and share assessment results with 
stakeholders including classroom teachers and parents. There was no evidence provided that 
these skills were taught anywhere within the coursework.  

Accreditation Recommendation
● Met with Area for Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.522 Science

Validating Statement: Supporting materials were reviewed. Accountability to this standard was 
demonstrated through Syllabi, notes of explanation, and the catalog. Integration of the PEPP 
Standards were documented through some of the course syllabi and other documents.

Sources of Evidence: Evidence was gathered primarily from course Syllabi. The course catalog 
and explanatory notes were also used with regards to specific standard components.

Assessment Aligned to Standard: The assessments were aligned to the objectives of the course 
which were frequently aligned directly to the PEPP standards, meeting the universal standard of 
Broadfield Science 10.58.522 Science.

Evaluation: The institutional review indicates that the course work in the Science Broadfield 
program is aligned with the content in PEPP Standards. Through an examination of each syllabus 
the following information was noted.
  
Commendations: The EDU course syllabi for Broadfield Science show a strong connection 
between both the PEPP standards and the 3D Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) and 
Montana Standards, as well as integrate IEFA into the curriculum.

Improvements: It is recommended to modify the syllabi and coursework for the lecture and lab 
content courses to include more of the Science and Engineering Practices (SEP), the 
Crosscutting Concepts (CCC), and IEFA integration. Lecture and lab courses should mention 
and/or incorporate “field work” into their syllabi/classes to assist in the instructional experience 
for meeting the three dimensional science standards, strengthening the 5-12 students’ ability to 
engage in the SEPs. The syllabi could also more directly incorporate IEFA and the CCCs. This may 
occur in the classroom, but mentioning it in the syllabi would be advantageous in reviews and 
strengthen the value of the science standards and Montana initiatives. 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Met with Notation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.523 Social Studies

Validating Statement:  The PEPP standards are offered and assessed through a variety of 
courses, their content, and assessment. Additionally, capstone projects are used to provide 
evidence of various skills and proficiencies, particularly in the upper level Education courses.

Sources of Evidence: Syllabi from the various courses listed in alignment with the PEPP 
standards.

Assessment Aligned to Standard: Each course syllabi clearly lists the assessments.  Additionally, 
assessment summaries are offered in the Institutional Report Document

Evaluation:  While the broadfield offerings listed demonstrate alignment with 10.58.523 (1), the 
syllabi are not available for courses in Economics, Psychology, Sociology, and Native American 
Studies. Therefore the breadth and depth of content and assessments in those areas is not 
clearly articulated. 

Commendations: HSTA 255 (Montana History) has a particularly strong emphasis on the 
historical perspectives of Montana Tribes.  

Improvements: The EPP is lacking evidence of 2(a), how to select content appropriate for the 
purposes of social studies and 2(b) in relation to planning instruction based on national social 
studies curriculum standards for civic competence. Although syllabi reference the component, 
no evidence of how activities or assignments relate to the understanding or application of the 
standard is given. 

Several courses focus on isolated components of 2(e), however the specific demonstration of 
candidates using a variety of approaches in instruction that are appropriate to the nature of 
social studies content in diverse settings with students with diverse backgrounds, interests, and 
range of abilities is unclear.

Accreditation Recommendation:  
● Met with Notation



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.532 Elementary Education

Validating Statement: Evidence has been provided that candidates have a wide variety of 
opportunities to learn about the history, context, practices, and knowledge and skills required 
across the elementary education profession. This is evidenced through both coursework and 
practical application through field experiences. Course syllabi indicate an intentional integration 
of cross-cutting objectives (reflective practice, technology, using data, Indian Education, and 
Danielson Framework) as well as attention to PEPPS and InTASC standards.  

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi, course descriptions, course objectives, and course 
assignments/assessments.

Assessment Aligned to Standard: Course objectives and assignments/assessments are generally 
aligned with PEPPS and InTASC standards, but evaluative criteria were not provided to analyze 
this at a more granular level.

Evaluation: The evidence provided in the IR detailed the learning objectives that aligned with 
the PEPPS, but many of the syllabi submitted lacked detail to make an accurate assessment. 
Some standards only listed one course when other courses should apply.  Syllabi followed a 
general format that emphasized standards and Danielson generally but it was unclear how 
individual assignments/assessments were aligned with PEPPs or what evaluative criteria was 
used. Many syllabi lacked credit load information or overview/schedule of topics covered. No 
overall program plan was submitted, leaving it unclear whether other courses are required for 
completion of the program.

Commendations: The coursework overall appears to focus on best practices as called for in the 
standards and expectations for the field. Candidates are given varied opportunities to identify, 
apply, and reflect upon content across semesters and practicums. Syllabi suggests an intentional 
integration of cross-cutting objectives (reflective practice, technology, using data, Indian 
Education, and Danielson Framework). 

Improvements: While the majority of coursework appears to align with PEPPs with varied 
opportunities to address standards, many of the course syllabi presented as evidence did not 
clearly reflect all the components of the standard or show how each standard is assessed. 



Providing more specific evidence of topics addressed and how assignments/assessments are 
evaluated would help make a more accurate assessment of the program. Topics & concepts 
related to standards not met include physical and mental health (h), interdisciplinary 
connections to integrate subject matter (j), proven instructional strategies (m), and social, 
emotional, and physical development (p). 

Accreditation Recommendation: 
● Met with Area for Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.526 Traffic Education

Validating Statement: Evidence was provided by Montana State University Northern in the form 
of an institutional report, required and elective courses, syllabi, and online documentation links 
and resources. Textbooks and required reading were also cited as well as presentations from 
traffic education professionals.

Sources of Evidence: Materials and standards were reviewed. The Traffic Education standards 
were substantiated through various documents including the course syllabi and institutional 
report.

Assessment Aligned to Standard: After examining the stated objectives and goals, most of the 
Traffic Education Content Standards have been aligned with the information given in the 
institutional report provided by Montana State University Northern.  

Evaluation: The institutional report indicates that the overall coursework for the Traffic 
Education program is aligned with the Traffic Education Curriculum Standards listed in ARM 
10.58.526 with a few areas of improvement. The following are notes taken during the 
evaluation process: 

The following courses have content standards listed and aligned: TED 462, TED 461, and 
TED 456.  

The following courses do not have content standards listed or aligned: TED 468, TED 465, 
TED 455, TED 454, and HPE 234. TED 452, 454, 455,  and 465 have objectives listed but are not 
linked to standards. 

TED 457, 458, and 459 are listed as new classes that have not yet been offered. Course 
outcomes and objectives are listed but not linked to standards. Syllabi are not yet available. 

Several links within the syllabi for the courses do not link properly to web addresses or 
external documents. Broken links need to be repaired. When a discussion post is listed as the 
evidence for a standard, the post question should also be included in either the evidence or 
within the course syllabus. 

Commendations: Traffic education program courses place a large emphasis on learning and 
following state requirements for approval of traffic education programs and following Motor 
Vehicle Division testing procedures. The Office of Public Instruction website is used often as a 
resource for new candidates. The use of multiple state agencies as well as guest speakers as 



sources of information show a cooperative approach to education. One of the largest areas of 
focus is understanding the importance of positive attitudes towards safe driving. 

Improvements: For content standard letter (n) demonstrate an understanding of vehicle 
dynamics and balance as they relate to operator control, vehicle safety technology, and the 
effects of occupant restraint systems, it is listed as evidence that a member of law enforcement 
will be presenting the information, pending availability. No further evidence is given should an 
officer not be available. 

Content standard (q) design educational strategies for appropriate classroom and driving 
experiences for diverse learners, needs more specific evidence on how scaffolding and 
strategies are taught and measured to make the curriculum more accessible to diverse learners. 

Content standard (y) demonstrate skills and techniques using potential equipment to assist 
learning for students with special needs should have links to online information and required 
course reading provided within the evidence. 

The current course offerings are lacking in the areas of demonstrating appropriate resources to 
establish a traffic education support network, integrating traffic education into the K-12 
curriculum, and having the tools necessary to teach diverse learners and those with special 
needs.

TED 459, Adaptive Driver Education, course description indicates it would meet several content 
standards but has not yet been offered to candidates as it is a newly created class. It speaks to 
working as a team member to assist students with special needs and offers educational 
strategies and skill development for diverse learners. 

Content standard (z) demonstrate an understanding of techniques and strategies to integrate 
traffic education into the K-12 curriculum; 

The courses listed are for graduate work only or list the Adapted Illustrated Driver 
Manual as formative reading on the subject of integrating traffic education into the K-12 
curriculum. More documentation and artifacts are necessary for this standard to be met. TED 
452 mentions it in the syllabus, but it is not included as part of the evidence nor does it discuss 
the ways in which the standard is met. Integrating traffic education into the K-12 curriculum 
would be demonstrated more thoroughly through the use of lesson plans created specifically 
for grade school level students. Pedestrian and bicycle safety can be integrated into K-12 
curriculums as well as proper use of car seats and booster seats. 

Content standard (ac) demonstrate an understanding of current information on appropriate 
resources and how to establish an effective traffic education support network within the 
community.



The courses listed are for graduate work only. There are no artifacts or evidence for 
undergraduate work. The information listed does not offer current information or resources. It 
gives the history of MTEA as a source of evidence. More documentation and artifacts are 
necessary for this standard to be met. Demonstrating appropriate resources to establish a traffic 
education support network may be done through the use of research in identifying potential 
support systems, providing contact information, giving examples of past support, or highlighting 
persons with expertise or experience in the area.

Accreditation Recommendation:
● Met with Area for Improvement



Montana State University Northern
Educator Preparation Provider Accreditation Review 

April 25-26, 2024

Narrative Report

Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.610 Counseling

Validating Statement: A variety of assignments and assessments are used throughout the 
MSU-N Counseling program with rubrics that match American School Counselor Association 
(ASCA), Council for the Accreditation of Educator Preparation-Specialized Professional 
Association (CAEP-SPA), and Montana PEPP standards. Advanced candidates engage with 
coursework through online, and intensive in-person residencies where they demonstrate the 
self-awareness, knowledge and skills required of future school counselors. Additionally, clinical 
placements allow for candidates to further develop these skills in real practice while receiving 
extensive supervision and assessment from site and faculty supervisors.

Sources of Evidence: Course syllabi, standards crosswalk, internship manual, and student 
handbook. 

Assessment Aligned to Standard: A distinct program of alignment with standards is available in 
all course syllabi. 

Evaluation: The nature of a counseling program is inherently relational and experiential. While 
some quantitative assessments could be utilized to provide more concrete data on advanced 
candidate outcomes, including practice PRAXIS or National Counselor Examination (NCE), it is 
worth noting that memorization of facts and theories does not necessarily make a good 
counselor. For this reason, the more qualitative assessments make more sense to determine 
candidate readiness to become counselors. 

Commendations: All syllabi are clearly aligned to standards, not only for Montana PEPPs, but 
also with other accreditations. It is clear to advanced candidates what outcomes they are 
expected to learn in each course and with each assignment. The more applied nature of the 
counseling theories course which often happens in a more advanced course on counseling 
theories is an area of note. 

Improvements: Standard g(vi) is less clear in syllabi than some of the other standards. Other 
courses are likely to cover this, but it could be made clearer where the specific issues are 
covered.



Standard g(ix) requires future counselors to learn about special education law, rules, and 
regulations as it is applicable to the work of school counselors. While some of this can be 
covered in assignments in other classes and some will be learned during clinical practice, a full 
class on the topic could be made to exist as either a pre-requisite or elective course. 

Accreditation Recommendation:
● Met with Notation



LUNCH AND VISIT WITH HELENA 
SCHOOL DISTRICT SCHOOL AGED 

CHILD CARE (SACC) PROGRAM 

Broadwater Elementary School 
900 Hollins Avenue, Entry Number 5 



MSDB LIAISON – (Item 32)

Renee Rasmussen 

ITEM 32 

MSDB REPORT 

Paul Furthmyre 

ACTION ITEMS: 

 Action on Personnel Items
 Action on Out of State Travel Requests

 Action on GFHS/MSDB Cooperative Dance
Team MHSA Agreement 

 Action on Final Reading of MSDB Policies
8425 8425P, 8450, 8450F1, F2, F3, 1000 

Series, 2000 Series, 4000 Series  



Montana School for the Deaf and the Blind
Board of Public Education Report

July 2024

Agenda Action Items:

1. Personnel Action Report
7 Hires
4 Resignations
1 Retirement

2. Out of State Travel Requests
National Association of State Relay Administrators
Batelle for Kids Ed Leaders Conference
Northern Rockies Association for the Education and Rehabilitation of the Blind and
Visually Impaired
Council of Schools and Services of the Blind and American Printing House

3. GFHS / MSDB Cooperative Dance Team Agreement MHSA Agreement

4. Final Approval for Policy Changes
8425 Service Animals
8425P Service Animal Allowance Procedure
8450 Automated External Defibrillators (AED)
8450 F1 / F2 / F3 Automatic External Defibrillators

F1 - Incident Report
F2 - School Staff AED Notification Letter
F3 - Service Log

Adopt Policy 1000 Series Suggestions from MTSBA
Policy 1000: Legal Status, Operation and Organization - Replace and Renumber
Policy 1310: District Policy and Procedures - "District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 1401: Records Available to Public - Replace
Policy 1420: School Committee Meeting Procedure - "District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 1513: Management Rights - "District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 1521: Board/Superintendent Relationship -"District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 1610: Goals and Objectives - "District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 1640: Board Participation in Activities - "District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 1700: Uniform Complaint Procedure - "District" and "Trustees" Updated

Adopt Policy 2000 Series Suggestions from MTSBA
Policy 2000: Goals - "District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 2050: Innovative Student Instruction -"District" and "Trustees" Updated

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1MgqxH41FQgGay06vhSoxrYeI9BXEwOdfn3AgKye8lKA/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IPKzFelmqqsuph_sZfuiajMUySQzLtvX/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1G9N9XlTaNk9p8Zfdh1kaFuX_bwx1Cz_2/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1h_alZ5exfucRCjklZJiAts6_9L1p0jDd/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1h_alZ5exfucRCjklZJiAts6_9L1p0jDd/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16BY_-Ve1B6fw_fOeKaGuJnBpUMxgqqkL/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qEp7sYVQmYskW5gfqaNIYDxbVRKb1P90/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1INuVKQeUeQFvGdc91wLyEsHZB2RJAHge/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1EAGT2cDF8g5tKt0qP371vMJitjLBKQt4/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1PDg3RqrNsQ7TlwifqXjPG-igLKaRcyBw/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1EPyeCiGCooKrpOguLnz46leig0A01rOq/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VMTkgbohiGN3PE2cnQZ9Ye0qCZQKQZeS/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1d5fYdlF4162xOkpLS1aWa7mLOrLNtDNJ/view?usp=sharing


Policy 2100: School Calendar and Day -"District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 2120: Curriculum and Assessment - "District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 2130: Program Evaluation and Diagnostic Tests - "District" and "Trustees"
Updated
Policy 2166: Gifted Program "District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 2168: Remote Instruction from Non-School Sources - Renumber
Policy 2171: Significant Writing Program - "District" and "Trustees" Updated
Policy 2309: Library Program and Materials - Replace
Policy 2311: Instructional Materials - Replace
Policy 2312: Copyright - Replace
Policy 2314: Instructional and Library Materials Review - Replace
Policy 2330: Controversial Issues and Academic Freedom - Move prayer provision to
2332
Policy 2450: Indian Education for All - Updated to comply with law changes
Policy 2510: School Wellness - Replace

Adopt Policy 4000 Series Suggestions from MTSBA
Policy 4315: Visitors and Spectator Conduct - Replace - Combine 4313
Policy 4332: Conduct on School Property - Replace
Policy 4340: Public Access to District Records - Replace
Policy 4410: Relations With Law Enforcement and Child Protective Agencies - Replace
Policy 4520: Cooperative Programs With School Districts, Businesses, Community
Organizations, and Public Agencies - Replace Combine 4500
DELETE: 4226 - Renumbered 3226
DELETE: 4314 - Renumbered 1420
DELETE: 4100/4300 - Renumbered 2158
DELETE 4600

5. First Reading for Policy Changes
Policy 2000 Series Suggestions from MTSBA
Policy 2132: Student and Family Privacy Rights - New Policy
Policy 2140: Guidance and Counseling - New Policy
Policy 2150: Suicide Awareness and Prevention - New Policy
Policy 2151: Interscholastic Activities - New Policy
Notice Form 2151-NF(1): Interscholastic Activities - School Athletics Informed Consent
and Insurance Verification Form - New Policy
Policy 2158: Parent and Family Engagement and Educational Involvement - New Policy
with Previous Policy 2700 included
Policy 2161: Special Education - New Policy
Procedure 2161-P(1): Special Education - Procedure - New Policy
Policy 2162: Section 504- New Policy
Procedure 2162-P(1): Section 504 - Procedure- New Policy
Policy 2163: Traffic Education- New Policy
Policy 2167: Correspondence Courses New Policy

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1d5fYdlF4162xOkpLS1aWa7mLOrLNtDNJ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1d5fYdlF4162xOkpLS1aWa7mLOrLNtDNJ/view?usp=sharing


Policy 2170: Digital Academy Classes - New Policy
Policy 2320: Field Trips, Excursions, and Outdoor Education - New Policy
Policy 2332: Religion and Religious Activities - New Policy
Policy 2333: Participation in Commencement Exercises - New Policy
Policy 2335: Health Enhancement - New Policy
Notice Form 2335-NF(1): Health Enhancement - Annual Notice - New Policy
Notice Form 2335-NF(2): Health Enhancement - Special Notice - New Policy
Policy 2410: High School Graduation Requirements - New Policy
Procedure 2410-P(1): High School Graduation Requirements - New Policy
Policy 2600: Work Based Learning - New Policy
Procedure 2600-P(1): Work Based Learning - Insurance - New Policy
Notice Form 2600-NF(1): Work Based Learning - Affiliation Agreement - New Policy

Policy 4000 Series Suggestions from MTSBA
Policy 4211: School Name, Logo, Imagery, and Colors - New Policy
Form 4330-F(1): Community Use of School Facilities - School Facilities/Grounds Use
and Assumption of Risk Form - New Form
Policy 4350: Website Accessibility and Nondiscrimination - New Policy

Attached Documents:
● MSDB Committee Bi-Monthly Meeting Agenda
● MSDB Committee Bi-Monthly Meeting Minutes
● Educator Interpreter Proposal
● Organization Update
● Legislative Asks Support
● EPP Budget Requests Submitted
● HVAC Feasibility Study
● Mustang Center Parking Lot
● Vocational Building Remodel
● MSU Mentoring External Review

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1d5fYdlF4162xOkpLS1aWa7mLOrLNtDNJ/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1r18cqoOfXM_NB2jusm36Kljv2HlUVMTlpF6JcpD8N5U/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hoCPdxtiWh0DKVa-UcJ13JQk6AC2FWxd/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=117298687530580090600&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://drive.google.com/file/d/13beSug2L77Lq1ZXBVXO-yfMS0yD7guE6/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1XfaY5qKeDx5eJHZ2mz9ztE85J-i9HH_j/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1APxSTqj-Z9VDg-cG3nV1v5LK87AC6lli/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jPScsTUz9iemQuDduhbtMTwL5_MyV6nR/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YnYOxN3M7Ha_E1eI6reFD0hp-JGePr2L/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Ae_auKGGYxRoREmn0pOJOwZRcAPzvWT4/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Ae_auKGGYxRoREmn0pOJOwZRcAPzvWT4/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YqlAWal4QyXbyZf7xMQfW4SFVA0T6Qlk/view?usp=sharing






















































































































































































































































































































































































































FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
September 12-13, 2024 

Livingston, MT 

Election of Board Officers 
Approve Strategic Planning Items – C 

MACIE Update 
MACIE Renewal (Even Years) 

Montana Digital Academy Update 
Annual HiSET Report 

Annual Special Education Report 
Assessment Update 

Accreditation Update 
MAST Update 
Federal Update 

Content Standards Revision Update 
Data Modernization Update 


	Financials.pdf
	ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Subcl,Fund

	Item 3 -- Superintendent Report.pdf
	Superintendent Report_BPE_7.1.24
	Combined Reports for Supts Report
	1_Assessment Update
	2_MAST
	3_ESSER
	ESSER Grant Funding Project Outcomes  
	Target Range K-8 Elementary
	Jessica Pyette (District Business Clerk) noted that almost 100% of the student body participated in the fundraising campaign.

	Lincoln County High School
	“The best part of the class was the realistic hands-on aspect. The community people that came in really showed us how the skills can carry over to their industry and how we could get a job staying in our community using these skills.” 
	- Caleb Ravich, Junior


	4_Data Modernization
	�Data modernization Project Update �
	OPI Data Modernization Project Overview
	Phase i Complete
	Phase ii & III progress
	Upcoming phases
	Questions?

	5_Content Standards Update


	Item 9 -- Montana School Insurance Alliance Overview.pdf
	Montana School Insurance Alliance�(MTSIA)
	Agenda
	HB 332 
	Program Goals
	Guiding Principles�
	Governance��
	Interim Board of Directors
	Underwriting
	Timeline of Milestones
	Value Proposition:  All Members

	Item 10 --  Information Career Coaches.pdf
	Montana Ready
	Mission Statement 
	Montana Ready – Career Development K-12 Connection�
	Career Development Models
	Industry Needs
	Industry Needs
	Regional Career Coaches
	CTAE and CTSOs
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Connection with Multiple Stakeholders
	Montana Ready Components 2023-2024
	Identification of District Levers �October - February
	Montana Ready Events: March - April
	Montana Ready Events: March - April
	Professional Development for Districts: �January - May
	Other Activities Led by Career Coaches: �October - July
	Middle School Exploration
	Ongoing Montana Ready Needs 
	Slide Number 20

	Item 11B -- Bridging Education Transitions MUS BPE 7.2.24.pdf
	Bridging Education Transitions: Supporting Remedial Math & Writing Needs in MT
	Slide Number 2
	MUS Developmental Education Strategies
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Recommendation
	Slide Number 9

	Item 13 -- OPI AISA Data.pdf
	Areas of success:
	Areas of challenge:
	Academic Achievement, Graduation, and Dropout Data

	Item 14 -- Review of Proposed Revisions to ARM Title 10, Chapter 54, Mathematics Standards.pdf
	ADPE600.tmp
	Executive Summary
	Introduction
	Economic Impact Statement Required Elements
	a) Affected Classes of Persons
	b) Economic Impact
	Cost to State Agencies
	c) Costs and Benefits of the Proposed Rule
	d) Less Costly or Less Intrusive Methods
	e) Selection of Proposed Rule
	f) Efficient Allocation of Public and Private Resources

	Conclusion
	Appendix A – Economic Impact Survey Responses
	Appendix B: Math Standards Revision Task Force Members
	Appendix C: Math Standards Revision Review Team Members
	Appendix D: Math Standards Revision Negotiated Rulemaking Committee
	Appendix E: Montana Office of Public Instruction Project Leadership


	Item 15 -- Cognia Crosswalk Report.pdf
	ADP3303.tmp
	Standards Crosswalk
	Cognia Accreditation and Certification Policies and Procedures
	Cognia Performance Standards
	Standards Rubric

	OPI Requirements
	OPI Requirement
	OPI Requirement
	OPI Requirement
	Supportive Cognia Standards to Meet this Requirement.

	OPI Requirement
	Supportive Cognia Standards to meet this requirement.

	OPI Requirement
	Supportive Cognia Standards to meet this requirement.


	Additional Cognia Resources
	Cognia Assurances
	Institution Assurances

	Accreditation Documents Required by Cognia
	Accreditation: Three Phase Improvement Process
	Additional Cognia Required Diagnostics
	Required Analyses: Student Performance Analysis
	Required Analyses: Stakeholder Feedback Analysis
	Required Analyses: Learning Environment Observation Analysis

	Cognia Accreditation Engagement Reviews
	Leadership Presentation (as needed)
	Evidence Review
	Stakeholder Interviews (as needed)
	Observations
	General Observations Around the Institution




	Montana Office of Public Instruction Chapter 55 Cognia Crosswalk Overview January 18 2024.pdf
	Slide 1: Montana Chapter 55/Cognia Accreditation Crosswalk
	Slide 2: Cognia Accredits Schools through the following Three Entities 
	Slide 3: In your Packet 
	Slide 4: Student Population in Cognia Accredited Schools 
	Slide 5: Crosswalk Overview 
	Slide 6: Paul Furthmyre – Superintendent Montana School for the Deaf and Blind
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: Assurance Standards Also Supported by Cognia Standards 
	Slide 9: Brett Zanto - Principal Capital High School   
	Slide 10
	Slide 11: OPI Requirement – Graduate Profile Supported by Cognia Standards 
	Slide 12: Pete Joseph – Superintendent Corvallis Public Schools 
	Slide 13: OPI Requirement – Student Performance Standards Supported by Cognia Standards 
	Slide 14: Tony Biesiot – Superintendent Darby Public Schools
	Slide 15: Accreditation Portfolio
	Slide 16: Rick Duncan – Superintendent Powell County Schools
	Slide 17: Thank you for your consideration!
	Slide 18: Questions 


	Item 28 --  Information Item State Exit Report & Regular Accreditation Status MSU.pdf
	DEFINITIONS WHICH PERTAIN TO THIS REPORT
	COMMENDATIONS
	CAEP:
	AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT (AFI)
	STANDARDS MET WITH NOTATION
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.501 Teaching Standards
	Evaluation:
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.502 Agricultural Education
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.503 Art K-12
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.509 English/Language Arts
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.511 World Languages
	Commendations:
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.513 Health
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.520 Physical Education
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.514 Family and Consumer Sciences
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.515 Industrial Trades and Technology Education
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.517 Library Media K-12
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.518 Mathematics
	Sources of Evidence:
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.519 Music K-12
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.521 Reading Specialists K-12
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.522 Science
	Commendations:
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.523 Social Studies
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.528 Computer Science
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.531 Early Childhood Education
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.532 Elementary
	Accreditation Recommendation
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.705 School Principals, Supervisors, and Curriculum Directors
	Accreditation Recommendation:
	Number and Name of Standard: 10.58.706 Superintendents
	Accreditation Recommendation:





